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We want to communicate our value creation 
story entitled “automation.”
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The azbil Group’s philosophy is “human-centered automation” that pursues collaboration between humans 
and machines and between human ingenuity and technology by leveraging advanced measurement and 
control. Based on this philosophy, by incorporating technological innovations such as IoT, AI, big data, and 
the cloud, we continuously propose value unique to the azbil Group in various environments, from office 
buildings to plants and factories to everyday life.

In this integrated report, we introduce our financial and non-financial capital that form the source of 
this value creation and our growth story to realize our long-term vision with an eye on 2030.

   Editorial policy
The azbil report is an integrated report that summarizes the value creation story of the azbil Group. 
The report combines financial and non-financial information that was previously printed in the annual 
report and CSR report in a readily comprehensible manner. It is circulated to various stakeholders 
such as investors and shareholders, business partners, employees, and local communities where we 
do business.

In editing the report, we have referred to the “International Integrated Reporting Framework” of 
the International Integrated Reporting Committee (IIRC) and the “Value Co-creation Guidance” of the 
Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry. Detailed financial information is available in the “Securities 
Report” while governance information is provided in the “Corporate Governance Report.”

   Reporting range:
Azbil Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries

   Reporting period:
From April 1, 2020 through March 31, 2021 (Some information post-April 2021 is included.)

   Additional notes:
Plans, objectives, strategies, and other statements in the azbil report are not facts from past opera-
tions but forward-looking statements and plans at the time of compilation based on the assumptions 
and beliefs of management considering the information available. Thus, the statements do not 
guarantee future performance and may differ materially depending on various important factors. 
Factors that may affect actual results include, but are not limited to, the following.
(1)  Economic conditions surrounding the azbil Group, exchange rate fluctuations, capital investment 

trends, etc.
(2)  Changes in our ability to provide products and services that are acceptable to our customers 

continuously and to thrive in market competition amid rapid technological innovation and global 
economic development.

For details, please refer to “Business-Related and Other Risks” on page 78.

Financial data and financial statements have been prepared based on Japanese GAAP and amounts 
have been rounded.

Handling of products and services introduced in this report differs by country or region.
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Since our foundation in 1906, we have pursued measurement 
and control technologies, delivering unique solutions to our 
customers. In April 2012, we changed our company name 
from Yamatake to Azbil Corporation. Today, the azbil Group is 
aiming to provide customers with its unique value in offices, 
production sites, and daily lives all over the world through its 
three business segments: Building Automation, Advanced 
Automation, and Life Automation.

Since 2020, the spread of COVID-19 and the resulting 
global economic slowdown have created challenging condi-
tions for the Group. However, in the medium to long term, we 
believe that automation will take on a greater role. These 
issues include changes in the business environment such as 
progressing globalization and fulfilling our responsibility to 
contribute to the sustainable growth of society, technological 
innovation, Japan’s aging society, progressing work style 
reforms, the response to climate change, remote work as a 
result of the spread of COVID-19, and business continuity 

planning (BCP). We believe that our response to these issues 
will further expand the business areas that automation can 
support. We see these changes as business opportunities for 
the azbil Group and plan to advance further both our global 
development and initiatives in our business fields and to accel-
erate growth.

We plan to promote initiatives toward the Sustainable 
Development Goals (SDGs), which are compatible with our 
Group philosophy. To this end, we will further provide new 
products and services that contribute to the safety, productivi-
ty, and value enhancement of production sites by using ad-
vanced technologies such as AI and various sensing technolo-
gies and expand our business by solving environmental 
energy-related problems in buildings and in the local commu-
nity, while strengthening our business and corporate founda-
tions. Through the pursuit of “human-centered automation,” 
we aim to become a corporate group that contributes to the 
sustainable development of society.

Improving productivity to address Japan’s declining 
birthrate and aging population
Construction of resilient social infrastructure to handle 
climate change and frequent natural disasters
Construction of infrastructure to respond to behavioral 
changes caused by infectious diseases

Establishment of an environment-friendly lifestyle and 
production infrastructure
Establishment of business processes that support work 
style reforms
Optimized manufacturing on a global scale by adopting 
technological innovation and digital transformation

Social issues
to be solved

Expansion of social issues / business domains to be 
addressed by automation

Expand the growth opportunities for the azbil Group

Contributing 
“in series” to the 
achievement of a 

sustainable society

Changes in 
customer 

needs

Message from Management

Through the pursuit of “human-centered automation,” we 
aim to become a corporate group that contributes to the 
sustainable development of society.

Contributing to the Creation of a Sustainable Society
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Executive Chairperson
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President and Group Chief Executive Officer
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Yamatake Shokai 
founded as a machine 
tool import company

The Spirit of our Founder

azbil’s history began with the founder’s dream 
to “free people from drudgery.” Since then, the 
azbil Group has responded to the changing 
demands of the times and our customers’ needs 
through repeated innovation and a constant 
awareness of our starting point, and in 2006, we 
celebrated the 100th anniversary of our founding.

The azbil Group’s history began in 1906 as 
Yamatake Shokai, a machine tool import com-
pany founded by Takehiko Yamaguchi out of 
his dream to “free people from drudgery.” 
Thereafter, Yamatake Shokai began to handle 
industrial instruments, transitioned to a manu-
facturer and seller of machine tools and instru-
ments, and focused on the domestic produc-
tion of automatic control valves. By under-  
standing and quickly commercializing the need 
for automation, Yamatake Shokai made large 
contributions to the development of Japanese 
industry from the post-war recovery period 
through the high-growth period.

1906

Takehiko Yamaguchi, Founder

“Free People 
from 

Drudgery”
as our DNA

azbil’s Value Creation | History of Value Creation
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Contributing to an energy-
saving society through the 
“savemation” concept
In 1953, Yamatake Shokai entered into a 50/50 
capital alliance with the US-based Honeywell, 
which at the time had the world’s leading 
measurement and control technologies. In 
1956, it changed its company name to Ya-
matake-Honeywell. From here, it began its 
journey as a comprehensive automation manu-
facturer and contributed to Japan’s high-level 
economic growth through air-conditioning 
control for large-scale buildings and process 
control for petrochemical plants. Furthermore, 
during the first oil crisis in 1973, it began 
developing a range of products and services to 
respond to the energy-saving and power-sav-
ing needs of society and in 1978 established a 
new corporate philosophy known as “savema-
tion.” We have been highly evaluated by many 
stakeholders for our corporate stance of pro-
actively responding to resource and energy 
saving that connects to global environmental 
preservation through automation.

1978
Proposing “human-
centered automation” 
through the azbil brand

In other words, using automation technology, we will 
build zones in which safety, comfort, and fulfillment 
can flourish.

Meaning of our symbol and the 
company name
azbil: automation, zone, builder

In 1998, we reviewed our partnership with Hon-
eywell, and in 2002, we dissolved our capital 
alliance. In 2006, to welcome the 100th anni-
versary of Yamatake’s founding, we launched 
our new group philosophy of “human-centered 
automation.” This group  philosophy is found-
ed on the technology and know-how that we 
have cultivated over many years in advanced 
measurement and control technologies and 
energy management. Based on this founda-
tion, “human-centered automation” is an ex-
pression of our desire to be a group that con-
tributes to the achievement of a sustainable 
society by realizing “safety, comfort, and 
fulfillment” for people in offices, factories, and 
houses and “global environmental preservation.”

2006

Expanded alongside the development of Japanese industries

To realize safety, comfort, and fulfillment in people’s lives 
and contribute to global environmental preservation 
through “human-centered automation.”

azbil Group Philosophy

azbil2021_e_001-014_1018.indd   6azbil2021_e_001-014_1018.indd   6 2021/10/18   19:252021/10/18   19:25



007 azbil report 2021

Established the “three 
fundamental policies”  
for sustainable growth

Being a long-term partner for the cus-
tomer and the community by offering solu-
tions based on azbil’s technologies and products

Taking global operations to the next level by 
expanding into new regions and a qualitative 
change of focus

Being a corporate organization that never 
stops learning, so that we can continuously  
grow stronger

In 2012, to respond quickly to changes in the 
business environment, global social issues, 
and our customers’ needs while pursuing 
sustainable growth, the azbil Group estab-
lished “Three Fundamental Policies.” Based on 
these policies, we have established a two-stage 
medium-term plan (FY2013–2016, and FY2017–
2019) focusing on three businesses with differ-
ent business cycles: Building Automation (BA), 
Advanced Automation (AA), and Life Automa-
tion (LA). Under these targets and policies, we 
have implemented various measures, such as 
the selection and concentration of business, 
organizational reform, profitability enhance-
ment, global development, and human re-
source development in the three businesses.  
In doing so, we have continuously strength-
ened our management base.

As a result, we greatly strengthened our 
earning power, including a rise in the ratio of 
business in line with the life cycles of our 
customers’ buildings and plants. We also 
developed a global business infrastructure that 
will serve as an engine for growth and 
strengthened our financial base, crisis man-
agement system, and corporate governance 
system.

2012
Toward the next 100 years

While evolving the spirit of our foundation, the 
azbil Group continues to challenge itself to  
create new value. To do so, in 2006, we created a 
new Group philosophy, “human-centered auto-
mation,” and our Group symbol of “azbil.” In 
2008, we changed our Group name to the “azbil 
Group.” In 2012, we changed our company name 
from Yamatake to Azbil.

Pursuing new 
value creation 

through
“automation”

Three Fundamental Policies

azbil’s Value Creation History of Value Creation
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Started contributing “in series” 
to the achievement of a 
sustainable society
With the effects of global warming becoming more 
apparent and the COVID-19 pandemic changing 
behavior patterns in 2020, the interest in sustainabil-
ity of business, global environment and society is 
increasing at an unprecedented rate. This means 
that high productivity using measurement and con-
trol technologies and frontline knowledge, as well as 
the realization of comfortable, safe, and secure 
spaces while minimizing resource and energy con-
sumption over the long term will be demanded more 
and more in the future. It also means that the role of 
automation will grow and that its value will increase. 
In response, the azbil Group is expanding further the 
scope of automation and control by applying the 
latest technologies such as IoT, AI, cloud computing, 
and big data, enhancing our ability to solve problems 
through automation and accelerating our pursuit of 
new value creation.

The azbil Group aims to contribute “in series” to 

2020

In order to implement our corporate philosophy, we will take 
action based on the 5 Guideposts (guiding principles for busi-
ness), aiming to serve as a Guiding bridge that interconnects 
our worldwide customers and leads us all into the future.

1. �Realizing a safe and comfortable social environment through 
cooperative creation by human ingenuity and technology

2. �Contributing in series to the achievement of a sustainable 
society

3. �Building long-term partnerships with stakeholders
4. �Creating dynamic value through diverse human resources 

and teamwork
5. �Growing constantly through innovation and a corporate 

culture of continual learning

the achievement of  a sustainable society by re-
sponding to the expanding roles demanded of auto-
mation and by enhancing our skills to help problem 
solving of our customers and society. To this end, in 
2019, we revised our Guiding Principles and Code of 
Conduct, which serve as guideposts for the azbil 
Group. The goal of the revisions was to develop 
business activities aligned with a sustainable society 
by aligning everything from our philosophy to the 
actions of every employee and the implementation of 
our management strategies. Also, in 2020, we set out 
quantitative targets such as the effective CO2 reduc-
tion of 3.40 million metric tons per year at our cus-
tomers’ sites in environmental and energy fields as 
part of the azbil Group’s SDG targets.

The azbil Group aims to achieve solutions for social 
issues such as SDGs as well as sustainable growth 
and contributes “in series” to the achievement of a 
sustainable society through its automation business.

Guiding Principles
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AA

LA

BA Business
Products and services for buildings

Products and services 
for factories and plants

Products and services for daily lives 
(lifelines, healthcare, and houses) 

Business

Business

Office buildings, research 
laboratories, factories, data 
centers, government buildings, 
hotels, shopping centers, 
hospitals, schools, airports, etc.

Customers: building owners, 
construction industries

City gas, LP gas, water supply, 
pharmaceuticals, ordinary 
detached houses

Customers: Gas companies, 
local governments, 
pharmaceutical 
manufacturers, house builders

Petrochemicals / chemicals, oil 
refining, electric power / gas, iron 
and steel, waste management / 
water supply and sewage, pulp and 
paper, shipping, food, 
pharmaceuticals, automobiles, 
electrical / electronic, 
semiconductors, various 
manufacturing equipment

Customers: Manufacturers

Achieve business growth in the BA, AA and LA businesses by launching new 
products and services in Japan and overseas, centered on development in the 
three growth fields in response to changes in the business environment, 
including customer needs and new social issues.

To realize safety, comfort and fulfillment in people’s lives and 
contribute to global environmental preservation through 
“human-centered automation.”

azbil Group Philosophy

Long-term Targets (FY2030)
Medium-term Plan (FY2021–2024) (p. 15–)

Business Development in the 
Three Growth Fields

CSR Management (p. 65–)

Foundations Supporting 
Sustainable Growth

Environment
Environmental Initiatives (p. 67–)

Governance
Corporate 
Governance 
(p. 79–)

Social

HR Initiatives: Achieving Human Capital Management (p. 73–)
Intellectual Property Strategy and Brand Management (p. 75)
Compliance and Internal Controls (p. 76) Risk Management (p. 77–)
Communication with Stakeholders that Connects to Co-creating Value (p. 91–)

Quality Assurance and Safety (p. 71) CSR Procurement (p. 72)

Safety
To live and work in good 
health and safety

Comfort
To always live and work 
in comfort

Fulfillment
To create new value 
with the customer

Environment
To optimize the 
management and usage 
of energy

Contributing to SDGs 
through our business
• Environment and Energy
• New Automation
• Supply Chain, Social 

Responsibility
• Health and Well-being 

Management, An Organization 
That Never Stops Learning

Economic Value
Sustainable growth, increased 
corporate value, returns to 
redistribute economic added 
value to stakeholders 

Operating Capital
(Inputs)

N
ew

 Autom
ation Fields

Environm
ental and Energy Fields

Life-cycle Solution Fields

Automation technology 
can be used as a 
common foundation for 
deployment in markets 
where new social and 
customer needs are 
emerging.

Three Growth FieldsHuman capital
No. of employees 
10,003 people 
(As of March 31, 2021)
Annual no. of attendees 
at azbil academy sessions 
(Total number of attendees)*1 
74,800 people
No. of individuals obtaining 
official qualifications *2 
2,618 people

Social and 
relationship capital
Sales and service bases 
23 countries
Domestic: 14 companies 
Overseas: 46 companies

Intellectual capital
R&D expenses approx. ¥56 billion 
(FY2021–2024 plan)
Capital investment to enhance the 
capabilities of R&D sites
Approx. ¥7 billion (FY2021–2022)
Patents 2,784 (As of March 31, 2021)

Manufactured capital
Production bases 
Domestic: 10 factories 
Overseas: 6 factories

Natural capital
Total energy usage*3 

58,481 MWh 
Total water usage*4 
1.07 million L

Financial capital
Issuer rating A+ (R&I)
(As of March 31, 2021)

azbil Group's 
integrated value chain 

spans from 
development and 

production to sales, 
engineering, 
and services

(p. 47–)

*1 Lectures include general courses such 
as CSR and other elective online 
courses and the number of lecturers 
includes personnel of group 
companies such as cooperating 
companies or retailers

*2 Of the official qualifications, no. of 
qualifications obtained that are 
considered important for 
business operations

*3 Scope of calculation: 
Azbil Corporation and its affiliated 
companies

*4 Scope of calculation: Azbil 
Corporation, domestic affiliates, and 
overseas major production bases

Se
rv

ic
es

Consu
lti

ng
 / 

Sa
le

s

Engineering / Installation

Technological Research /
Product Development

M
anufacturing /

Procurem
ent

Main Product Lines
(Outputs)

Value Provided by the azbil Group
(Outcomes)
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To address issues faced by customers and society in line with changes over time, we have been 
refining our technologies and solutions by drawing on our “measurement and control” automation 
technologies based on the idea of constantly solving problems by focusing mainly on people.
The azbil Group is unique in its ability to promote value creation with customers through its inte-
grated system of working closely with customers at their sites.

azbil’s Value Creation Value Creation Model
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BA Business
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Products and services 
for factories and plants
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(lifelines, healthcare, and houses) 

Business

Business

Office buildings, research 
laboratories, factories, data 
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hotels, shopping centers, 
hospitals, schools, airports, etc.

Customers: building owners, 
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City gas, LP gas, water supply, 
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detached houses

Customers: Gas companies, 
local governments, 
pharmaceutical 
manufacturers, house builders

Petrochemicals / chemicals, oil 
refining, electric power / gas, iron 
and steel, waste management / 
water supply and sewage, pulp and 
paper, shipping, food, 
pharmaceuticals, automobiles, 
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semiconductors, various 
manufacturing equipment

Customers: Manufacturers

Achieve business growth in the BA, AA and LA businesses by launching new 
products and services in Japan and overseas, centered on development in the 
three growth fields in response to changes in the business environment, 
including customer needs and new social issues.

To realize safety, comfort and fulfillment in people’s lives and 
contribute to global environmental preservation through 
“human-centered automation.”

azbil Group Philosophy

Long-term Targets (FY2030)
Medium-term Plan (FY2021–2024) (p. 15–)

Business Development in the 
Three Growth Fields

CSR Management (p. 65–)

Foundations Supporting 
Sustainable Growth

Environment
Environmental Initiatives (p. 67–)

Governance
Corporate 
Governance 
(p. 79–)

Social

HR Initiatives: Achieving Human Capital Management (p. 73–)
Intellectual Property Strategy and Brand Management (p. 75)
Compliance and Internal Controls (p. 76) Risk Management (p. 77–)
Communication with Stakeholders that Connects to Co-creating Value (p. 91–)

Quality Assurance and Safety (p. 71) CSR Procurement (p. 72)
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Comfort
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with the customer

Environment
To optimize the 
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of energy
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through our business
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Management, An Organization 
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*3 Scope of calculation: 
Azbil Corporation and its affiliated 
companies

*4 Scope of calculation: Azbil 
Corporation, domestic affiliates, and 
overseas major production bases
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Valves and 
positioners

Controllers and 
various sensors

Monitoring and 
control systems

Pharmaceutical 
manufacturing 
equipment

Valves and 
controllers

Sensors,  
measuring devices

Building automation 
system

Various gas and 
water meters

The azbil Group delivers products and services and works with 
its customers to solve social issues, thereby contributing “in 
series” to a sustainable society and achieving sustainable 
growth for our business and increased corporate value. Under 
our new long-term targets and medium-term plan, we are 

strengthening the foundations of our business that underpin 
sustainability and making further operating capital investments 
in order to utilize our integrated system that extends from 
development through to services and accelerate expansion in 
three growth fields.
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•	Decided to construct a new factory at a 
Dalian production subsidiary in China 
—expanding and strengthening the 
scale of the global production system 
(July 2020)

•	azbil subsidiary in Thailand opens 
Solution and Technology Center 
—established to provide next-genera-
tion intelligent services using IoT and AI 
(August 2020)

•	Participated in the Smart Urban Co-Innovation Lab 
led by Singapore’s CapitaLand (January 2021)

•	Started constructing two laboratory buildings at 
Fujisawa Technology Center, our central R&D base  
—These facilities will serve as a core base of R&D to 
respond to the demand of new automation  
(April 2021)Conceptual image of the 

factory building

Here, we introduce the initiatives that azbil has pursued in 
the past year to capture changes in the social and  
business environment and to create value.

Strengthening the value chain and  
company-wide capabilities

azbil’s Value Creation 2020 Highlights
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Progress in Three Growth Fields

•	azbil to strengthen the business for pandemic-ready airflow control 
systems—contributing to safety and comfort of medical personnel 
(June 2020)

•	Launched sales of the AI Tempera-
ture Detection Solution that immedi-
ately recognizes faces and detects 
temperature with high accuracy—
contributing to preventing the 
spread of infection in the post-COVID society (June 2020)

•	Launched sales of the official version of cloud services that easily 
digitalize handwritten recording tasks—contributing to operational 
digitalization in the post-COVID society (July 2020)

•	The enhanced functionality of communications gateway allowing 
data interchange between control devices without programming—
and adds IoT support for industrial furnace burners (October 2020)

•	Launched sales of the valve analysis and diagnosis service to moni-
tor the condition of valves operating in plants through the cloud—
contributing to the stability and enhanced security of manufacturing 
facilities (November 2020)

•	Launched global sales of early warning system for time series 
data—enhancing oversight capabilities of manufacturing sites by  
predicting future events (December 2020)

•	Launched sales of licenses with attached installation support to 
makers of manufacturing equipment for our online anomaly detection 
system (March 2021)

•	Promoted new initiatives toward the next generation in the energy 
management field with our DX-EGA, a cooperative business concept 
in the field (March 2021)

•	Launched sales of new air-conditioning systems to respond to 
diversifying workstyles and office uses geared toward the “new 
normal” era (March 2021)

Note: The dates within parentheses are when the announcements were made.

●	Four indices chosen by the Government 
Pension Investment Fund (GPIF):

	 - FTSE Blossom Japan Index
	 - MSCI Japan ESG Select Leaders Index
	 - �MSCI Japan Empowering Women Index 

(WIN)
	 - S&P/JPX Carbon Efficient Index
●	Included in the 2021 Bloomberg Gen-

der-Equality Index

[Inclusion in other indices]
●	FTSE4Good Japan Index
●	MSCI Japan Index
●	JPX-Nikkei Index 400

Inclusion in major indices

Products and services

•	Announced participation in Keidanren’s “Challenge Zero” declaration 
(June 2020)

•	Announced support for Keidanren’s Declaration of Biodiversity and 
its revised action policies (June 2020)

•	CDP Climate Change 2020 (B valuation)
•	Conducted evaluations and test calculations on main risks and 

opportunities in line with the recommendation of the Task Force on 
Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)

•	Strengthened greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction targets (2030) 
Reduced the amount of GHG emissions from our business activities 
(scopes 1+2) from 30% to 55% (2017)—approved as science based 
targets (SBTs) in August 2021

Environmental initiatives
•	Provided relief funds both in Japan and overseas for the COVID-19 

pandemic and for damage from heavy rains (June and July 2020)
•	As a voluntary social contribution initiative with 

employee participation, the azbil Honey Bee Club 
supported social welfare organizations  
(November 2020)

•	Signed the “United Nations Global Compact”  
(April 2021)

Social and human rights initiatives

•	azbil Global Executive Member Anju Jaswal selected for Singapore 
100 Women in Tech List (November 2020)

•	azbil’s whistleblowing system certified by Japan’s Consumer Affairs 
Agency—advancing health and well-being management through our 
CSR Hotline (December 2020)

•	Received the highest mark of Eruboshi certified company based on 
the Act on Promotion of Women’s Participation and Advancement in 
the Workplace (December 2018)

•	Received Kurumin certification as a company supporting child-rais-
ing (February 2021)

•	Certified as a Health & Productivity Management outstanding organi-
zation in 2021 (March 2021)

Health and well-being management initiatives

•	Delivered online anomaly detection system for batch processes to 
Kaneka Corporation—received orders for 10 systems in six months 
mostly from chemical manufacturers (June 2020)

•	Began providing cloud-based valve analysis and diagnosis service to 
Mitsubishi Chemical Corporation (March 2021)

Record of delivering results

•	Established new numerical targets of essential goals for SDGs 
(August 2020)

•	Established new targets for SDGs (May 2021)

SDG initiatives

•	Received the “Red Dot Award 2020,” a global 
design award (April 2020) 

•	azbil’s Cloud Operation Center acquired the 
Information Security Management System 
(ISMS) international standard certification (July 2020)

•	azbil’s control valve maintenance support system received award 
from Chinese automation and smart manufacturing media company 
gongkong® (November 2020)

•	azbil received Frost & Sullivan 2020 Southeast Asia Building Automa-
tion Systems Customer Value Leadership Award (December 2020)

Product and service evaluations

Foundations Supporting Sustainable Growth
— ESG Initiatives

•	Announced our skills matrix (June 2021)
•	Expanded disclosure based on revisions to Japan’s Corporate 

Governance Code and the revised Companies Act

Strengthening corporate governance

•	Began developing digital solutions for intelligent building manage-
ment systems overseas with the support of the Singapore Economic 
Development Board (June 2021)

•	Recognized as an “energy management support service provider” 
that facilitates energy savings at plants and business sites, for eight 
consecutive years (June 2021)
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Azbil Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries

Net Sales, Operating Income
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Financial Highlights

The Company conducted a two-for-one stock split for shares of common stock on October 1, 2018.
Figures for net income per share (EPS) and dividends per share have been recalculated to reflect the number of shares after the stock split.

azbil's Value Creation Financial and Non-Financial Highlights
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Non-Financial Highlights

Note: Estimations for each fiscal year’s performance from 2018 are based on the methods reviewed by third parties.
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We are aiming to enhance our 
unmatched ability to provide 
unique automation solutions for 
our customers and society as we 
transform the Group for 
sustaining growth.

Kiyohiro Yamamoto
Representative Director,
President and Group Chief Executive Officer
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Interview with the CEO

Your first year as Company President was 
challenging with the worldwide COVID-19 
pandemic. How do you view the Group’s 
performance in FY2020?

Q1

Please discuss your view on the Company’s 
performance in FY2020 and the results of 
the previous two medium-term plans.

Q2

The azbil Group’s meaningful contribution to 
creating a sustainable society became clear 
during the year. Our automation technologies 
and installation, engineering, and service 
businesses, particularly the services we pro-
vide to medical facilities and other key institu-
tions of social infrastructure, all played im-
portant roles during the challenging situation. 

A1

The business and operating structure reforms 
under the recently completed two medium-term 
plans limited the impact on our performance 
from the severe business conditions.

A2

Throughout the pandemic, our priorities have been on the safety 
of our employees and customers and on ensuring that we contin-
ue to provide customers with the essential services needed to 
maintain uninterrupted operation of important facilities and social 
infrastructure in FY2020. We were able to do so largely because 
of the reforms to our business and operating structures that we 
completed under the previous two medium-term plans.

The relevancy of our automation products and services 
to a sustainable society became abundantly evident as more 
people began working from home during the year. The tech-
nologies we offer, such as those enabling work to be done 
online and from remote locations and providing carefully con-
trolled air conditioning and ventilation, create living and work 
environments that are both safe and secure.

Our products and services are also playing an important 
role in mitigating the effects of climate change. The Group’s 
measurement and control technologies help to reduce carbon 
dioxide emissions from large buildings, factories, and plants, 
and many of our customers are using our products and services 

In Japan, the numerous urban redevelopment projects sup-
ported solid demand for equipment and systems for large 
buildings, and the capital investment activity drove steady 
demand for advanced manufacturing systems. The labor 

to help them achieve carbon neutrality. The azbil Group as a 
whole emits about 17 thousand tons of CO2 per year, but the 
total effective reduction of CO2 that our technologies are produc-
ing at our customers is about 2.94 million tons annually, or about 
170 times our own emission volume (Data from FY2020).

During the year, I was also reassured about the Group’s 
potential for future growth into the long term from the increasing 
demand for automation technologies at the core to address 
social issues. We believe that integrating the latest IoT, AI, and 
sensing technologies to create innovative products that can 
provide significant contributions to addressing societal problems, 
such as the challenges Japan is facing with a graying population 
and declining birthrate, new work styles, and aging infrastructure.

I also believe the Group’s proactive efforts to implement and 
enable work-at-home and remote work are allowing our employees 
to use their time and workspaces more efficiently. This is increasing 
productivity, which I think will be key asset in the future.
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The Shonan Factory (top) and Fujisawa Technology Center (bottom)
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shortage in Japan led to strong demand for equipment main-
tenance and for rationalization and labor-saving technologies. 
At the same time, our business was impacted to some extent 
by the global economic contraction during the pandemic, as 
many companies inevitably postponed investment plans due 
to the reduced business activity. As a result, we recorded 
moderate year-on-year declines in both sales and profit in 
FY2020, with sales amounting to ¥246.8 billion and operating 
income of ¥25.7 billion.

Despite the harsh business conditions, our improved 
operational efficiency enabled us to hold the operating income 
margin at 10.4%, very near the 10.5% in FY2019, while a rise 
in net income helped maintain return on equity (ROE) above 
10%, at 10.4% compared to 10.9% last year. The improve-
ment in operational efficiency was achieved under the medi-
um-term plans from FY2013 to FY2016 and from FY2017 to 
FY2019. During that time, we nearly doubled operating income 
from ¥13.9 billion to ¥27.3 billion and expanded the operating 
income margin from 5.6% to 10.5%. ROE similarly rose from 
5.4% to 10.9%. I believe these results demonstrate the suc-
cess of our profit-oriented management since the global 
financial crisis of 2007–2008, which has enabled us to signifi-
cantly limit the potential damage to our performance com-
pared to past times of economic crisis. The business and 
operating structure reforms and steps to improve profitability 
are guided by three fundamental policies: being a long-term 
partner for the customer and community by offering solutions 
based on azbil’s technologies and products; taking global 
operations to the next level by expansion into new regions and 
a qualitative change of focus; and being a corporation that 

never stops learning so that it can  continuously grow stronger.
These policies guide all of our efforts to strengthen our 

product and service offerings. They were also behind our strate-
gic decision to raise the business ratio of the life cycle solutions 
businesses in the Group’s three segments of Building Automa-
tion (BA), Advanced Automation (AA), and Life Automation (LA). 
The measures we have implemented have increased the value 
we provide to customers and improved our profitability. We have 
also been expanding our global operations with the aim of 
developing them into another engine for business growth. We 
currently have sales and service operations in 23 countries, and 
in 2018 we established the Strategic Planning & Development 
Office for Southeast Asia in Singapore.

In addition, we are upgrading our production capabili-
ties. We are introducing state-of-the-art technology to our lead 
development site at the Fujisawa Technology Center and the 
Shonan Factory, which together serve as a combined mother 
factory for the Group’s global operations. We are also investing 
in technology development as another source for business 
growth. Our focus is on developing sensor technology, which 
is a key component of the booming IoT field, and on new 
products and services integrating AI, IT, and cloud technologies.

The new medium-term plan sets a course for ongoing 
reform and strengthening of our business and operational 
structures. The plan also provides a clear roadmap for further 
expanding our global business and harnessing the power of 
digital transformation (DX) as we systematically and methodi-
cally continue to improve our operations and enhance our 
business performance and potential.
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Safety

Transformation

Growth

Contribute “in series” to a 
sustainable society

Continuously raise corporate value

FY2019 FY2020

FY2021–2024
New medium-term plan

FY2024 FY2030

Sustainable societySustainable society

New long-term targets

The new medium-term plan (FY2021-2024) will move us beyond 
the focus on business continuity and prioritizing employee safety 
during the pandemic to the growth phase for achieving our 
targets for FY2030
* Ref: pp. 23–28

Interview with the CEO

What are the main objectives and initiatives 
of the new medium-term plan, and what will 
be the biggest challenges?

Q3

The current medium-term plan has several 
initiatives designed to apply the Group philos-
ophy of “human-centered automation” and to 
steadily and swiftly bring about the transfor-
mation needed to deliver us to our next phase 
of growth to FY2030.

A3

I think it is important in these business conditions to reaffirm our 
business character and strengths. Management must also be 
steadfastly committed to making quick and bold decisions to 
change what we need to make our business better in the future.

What should not change is our “human-centered auto-
mation” philosophy and the unique business model it gives us. 
The azbil Group’s core assets are not just its ability to develop, 
manufacture, and sell equipment and systems with state-of-
the-art measurement and control technology. We also have the 
ability to provide long-term solution services with high-level 
safety, security, and efficiency, including advanced engineering 
technology for onsite equipment installation and maintenance.

A suitable environment requires more than steady 

temperature control; it also needs to create air and space 
quality that harmonize with various factors and conditions. We 
provide equipment for buildings, plants and factories, houses, 
and societal lifelines. To create the optimal conditions for the 
people who live and work at each site, we must not only offer 
a broad menu of products, but also have the ability to tailor 
the products to each site’s unique conditions. In addition, 
providing maintenance and other services during 10- or 20-
year equipment life cycles requires us to continually make our 
products and systems more competitive and constantly im-
prove our onsite engineering and service capabilities.

At this moment, many Group employees are hard at 
work inside customer factories trying to find solutions to 
complex problems. I know their dedication because I myself 
did similar work when I was helping launch an energy manage-
ment business. It’s true that “The solution always exists at the 
worksite.” That’s why our employees are side by side with our 
customers worrying, thinking, and devising ingenious solu-
tions. These employees are the fundamental source of the 
azbil Group’s competitive advantage.

I believe that setting clear targets and key performance 
indicators and carrying out the PDCA cycle as quickly as 
possible will be critical. When business conditions and tech-
nologies are changing as rapidly as they are, this speed is 
absolutely essential and will go a long way to determining our 
competitiveness in the years ahead.

The new medium-term plan was designed for these 
conditions. It was purposely designed to provide easy visual-
ization of our objectives for the three business segments and 
for the Group’s development, production, and human resource 

New Long-term Targets and Medium-term Plan
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Providing distinctive solutions that leverage the azbil Group’s strengths 
and unique solutions in the three growth fields

BA
Commercial

buildings

AA
Factories,

plants

LA
Infrastructure,

pharmaceuticals,
houses

Infrastructure,
pharmaceuticals,

houses

Strengthen the engineering and service business foundation using DX; expand overseas

Maintaining long-term optimal operations and contributing to a sustainable society

New
Automation

Solving new 
challenges with 

new products and 
services

Environment
and Energy

Applying our proven 
strengths in energy 

efficiency and 
renewable energy

Life-cycle Solutions

Supporting customers’ assets for the long term
High value-added services using a network that leverages our business platform 

expanded and upgraded over the long term

functions that support the segments. The plan’s objectives are 
based on long-term targets that we updated to take into 
account the changing business climate, new technology 
trends, and structure of society, as well as what we want the 
Group to be three and 10 years in the future. The aim of the 
plan is to set the Group’s growth on an upward trajectory with 
all Group employees using their originality and ingenuity at 
onsite locations and feeling proud about contributing to the 
sustainability of society.

The concept of office workspace is evolving, and this is 
creating a whole new panoply of demand for the changes in 
customers’ needs in accommodating to the new ways people 
work, such as to ensuring safe ventilation. New opportunities 
for business growth are also surfacing, such as from the 
growing demand for sophisticated air conditioning technology 
that focuses on segmented spaces and provides a balance of 
comfort and energy efficiency.

The medium-term plan was formulated for the Group to 
thrive in this environment. Under the plan we aim to transform 
the Group to be able to meet customer needs and respond to 
societal problems in Japan and overseas and to generate 
Group synergies while developing customized business mod-
els for each segment. The plan also sets specific performance 
goals of reaching ¥300.0 billion in net sales and ¥36.0 billion in 
operating income, with an operating income margin of approx-
imately 12%, in FY2024. At that point, the plan will deliver us 
from a transformation phase to a growth phase propelling us 
toward ¥400.0 billion range in net sales and ¥60.0 billion range 
in operating income, with an operating income margin of 
approximately 15%, in FY2030.

Building out three growth fields to propel segment growth
To keep pace with the changes in customer needs and soci-
ety, we are focusing on expanding business by fully leveraging 
the azbil Group’s strengths and unique solutions to develop 
the three growth fields of new automation, environment and 
energy, and life-cycle solutions. Building out our business in 
these three fields will open up new avenues for growth in the 
BA, AA, and LA businesses.

The growth potential in the new automation fields has 
become increasingly apparent over the past year. Our ap-
proach to expanding the new automation fields is to directly 
boost our customers’ competitive advantages by providing the 
added value of “improved quality of space and productivity” at 
their facilities. Improvements in these areas normally lead to 
increased consumption of energy and resources, but we will 
provide another layer of added value by developing highly 
energy efficient equipment, which strategically overlaps with 
the environment and energy business fields.

Technology in the new automation fields will have the 
dual challenge of tackling social issues, which will no doubt be 
a very competitive field, while also being more environmentally 
friendly. Our onsite experience, specialized expertise, and 
extensive data will be our differentiating factors and will be the 
resources that will enable us to improve both quality and 
environmental performance. In short, I believe the azbil Group 
has the perfect set of unique strengths for success.

The added value of a life-cycle business is the continu-
ous provision of value over long periods. For customers, the 
provided value becomes a foundational element for their 
operations and businesses; for us, providing the value be-

Three Growth Fields That Share a Common Foundation of Automation Technology
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Guiding Principles Code of Conduct Management Strategy

Our corporate philosophy, employee conduct, and management strategies contribute “in series” to the achievement of a sustainable society

Proactive CSR
Providing value to society through our business and voluntary 

activities rooted in local community

Basic CSR Fulfilling our fundamental obligations to society 

(corporate governance, compliance, risk management, etc.)

azbil Group
Group

Philosophy
Human-centered

automation

Sustainable
Society

SDGsProviding new value 
and environmental 

initiatives unique to the 
azbil Group

Customers
Suppliers

Employees
Partners

Shareholders

Society

For generations, the spirit of our founder’s conviction to “free people from drudgery” is the essence of our mission to use 
automation to contribute to society to make people happier. We believe continuously improving corporate value is the 
foundation of sustainability, and management raises corporate value by pursuing the two objectives of growing business that 
produces value at the customer site and conducting business activities that earn the support and trust of society.

In 2020, the azbil Group completely revised its Guiding Principles and Code of Conduct to reestablish the principles we 
follow to ensure we continue to grow our business and contribute a sustainable society. The union of our corporate philosophy, 
employee conduct, and management strategies enables the azbil Group to directly contribute to a sustainable society through 
its business activities as we continue growing together with society.

• Fundamental policies

 - Long-term partner

 - Global expansion

 - Learning organization

• Three growth fields

 - New automation

 - Environment and energy

 - Life-cycle solution
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Interview with the CEO

comes a recurring business that will infuse a steadily growing 
flow of profits to the Group into the future.

Over time, as we broaden our presence in the three 
growth fields, our business scale will steadily grow along with 
our contribution to a sustainable society.

These fields already have presences in the BA, AA, and 
LA businesses that can be further developed with automation 
technology as a core. We will be advancing five initiatives to 
meet changes in needs and markets as they emerge around 
the world, such as the changes caused by the COVID-19 
pandemic. The ultimate objectives of the five initiatives that 
follow are to generate business growth and establish steadily 
rising profits in all three business segments.

	�Increase investment to strengthen our product and 
service development capabilities

We will meet new needs for automation and develop new 
products and services to drive growth in each business by 
augmenting our product sensor, actuator, and other offerings 
with edge computing services located close to customers’ 
sites and by improving our cloud computing applications for 
optimally using and controlling big data gathered from custom-

ers’ sites. Guided by our technology development strategies to 
meet changing customer needs and provide new added value, 
we will aggressively invest to strengthen our abilities to devel-
op new products and services. Part of this will be to construct 
a new testing center with state-of-the-art facilities at the 
Fujisawa Technology Center, our lead site for research  
and development.

	�Increase contact points with customers
The new social issues and changing business environment are 
creating the need for new solutions through new automation at 
our existing customers and opening up business opportunities 
in new markets and business fields. While using DX to 
strengthen and streamline our sales capabilities, we will invest 
resources in our focus markets in Japan and overseas to build 
on our connections with current customers and to continue 
cultivating new customers around the world.

	�Expand business by actively addressing social issues
To alleviate the pressing social issues of climate change, aging 
infrastructure, the prevention of contagious diseases, and 
Japan’s shrinking labor force, we will create safe and secure 

Contributing “In Series” to a Sustainable Society through Our Businesses and Growth
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Guiding Principles Code of Conduct Management Strategy

Our corporate philosophy, employee conduct, and management strategies contribute “in series” to the achievement of a sustainable society

Proactive CSR
Providing value to society through our business and voluntary 

activities rooted in local community

Basic CSR Fulfilling our fundamental obligations to society 

(corporate governance, compliance, risk management, etc.)

azbil Group
Group

Philosophy
Human-centered

automation

Sustainable
Society

SDGsProviding new value 
and environmental 

initiatives unique to the 
azbil Group

Customers
Suppliers

Employees
Partners

Shareholders

Society

For generations, the spirit of our founder’s conviction to “free people from drudgery” is the essence of our mission to use 
automation to contribute to society to make people happier. We believe continuously improving corporate value is the 
foundation of sustainability, and management raises corporate value by pursuing the two objectives of growing business that 
produces value at the customer site and conducting business activities that earn the support and trust of society.

In 2020, the azbil Group completely revised its Guiding Principles and Code of Conduct to reestablish the principles we 
follow to ensure we continue to grow our business and contribute a sustainable society. The union of our corporate philosophy, 
employee conduct, and management strategies enables the azbil Group to directly contribute to a sustainable society through 
its business activities as we continue growing together with society.

• Fundamental policies

 - Long-term partner

 - Global expansion

 - Learning organization

• Three growth fields

 - New automation

 - Environment and energy

 - Life-cycle solution
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Companies are increasingly being evaluated 
in terms of the United Nations’ Sustainable 
Development Goals and environmental, 
social, and governance criteria. How is the 
azbil Group incorporating social responsibil-
ity into its business operations?

Q4

Management is using the SDGs as guideposts 
for our mission to contribute “in series” to the 
achievement of a sustainable society.

A4

The medium-term plan sets taking action on social issues as 
one of the primary means for expanding our business, and we 
are harnessing the azbil Group’s unique capabilities to address 
social issues. In the environmental and energy fields, for exam-
ple, we are reducing the environmental impact that is usually 
associated with “improved quality of spaces and productivity” 
and supporting customer efforts to attain carbon neutrality. In 
FY2020, we set four essential goals of the Group for SDGs 
along with specific targets. The core categories are the two 
businesses of environment and energy and new automation, 
and two areas of general corporate activities, which are supply 
chain and social responsibility along with health and well-being 
management and an organization that never stops learning.

office and production spaces and develop new solutions, such 
as virtual power plants, that reduce energy demand and 
enable conversion to alternative renewable energy sources.

	�Boost DX and strengthen employee DX proficiency
Cloud and application software technology is a common 
element in boosting the added value of our services with AI 
and big data and in developing business related to virtual pow-
er plants and other emerging technology fields. We will train 
employees and hire dedicated DX staff to ensure we have a 
fully developed DX structure for our onsite engineering ser-
vices, which are a key Group strength.

	�Form strategies to establish continuous profit margin growth
As we develop strategies for business growth, we will continue 
and expand the strategies of the previous medium-term plans 
that have improved our ability to generate profit. Management 
will emphasize profit improvement, which will include lowering 
costs by introducing new products and using DX to improve 
business efficiency, as we actively work to attain our FY2030 
target of operating income margin of 15%.
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We are taking steps to achieve the targets set in the following four categories. We constantly review the targets and indicators with 
the aim of continuing to improve our environmental performance. (See page 58 for details about the targets and our initiatives.)

Business

Essential Goals Targets

I
Preserving the Earth’s environment and 
solving energy-related problems through 
cooperative creation
Environment and Energy

Ⅱ
Realizing a safe and comfortable society 
through new automation
New Automation

   	Solutions for energy (toward a decarbonized society)
   	Environmental preservation (realization of Integrated Environmental Corporate Management)
	 Lower our greenhouse gas emissions and help reduce CO2 at our customer sites to advance 

decarbonization, and incorporate resource recycling, biodiversity conservation, and other environ-
mental activities into our business activities

   	Providing productivity and higher value that lead to customer’s peace of mind and comfort
	 Automate manufacturing and operations to improve the quality of customer living, production, and 

shared spaces and create new value

Ⅲ
Fulfilling our responsibilities to society across 
our supply chain and contributing to local 
communities
Supply Chain, Social Responsibility

General corporate activities

Essential Goals Targets
   	Fulfilling social responsibilities with customers and business partners
   	 Invigorating local communities
	 Work with our business partners toward common SDGs and share the value of CSR in the supply chain  

Promote local social contribution activities

Ⅳ
Strengthening our foundations to solve 
societal problems through health and well-be-
ing management and continuous learning
Health and Well-being Management, An Organi-
zation That Never Stops Learning 

   	 Implementing health and well-being management (job satisfaction, health, diversity and 
inclusion)

   	Developing and strengthening “an organization that never stops learning”
	 Flexibly accommodate work styles, reduce total work hours, support and promote employee mental and 

physical health, create opportunities for diverse personnel to demonstrate their abilities, and provide 
learning opportunities to develop human resources who can contribute to solving social issues

Interview with the CEO

Among these, the most concerned with great passion is  
about global warming and environmental issues. Our automa-
tion technologies contribute in two ways, by reducing energy 
waste through efficient energy usage and in turn by reducing 
demand for energy. Product recycling and renewable energy 
technologies also contribute greatly. The value of our automa-
tion technology is that it can lower energy demand while 
providing quality of space and maintaining productivity at 
living, office, and production sites. This is one of the ways that 
azbil is contributing “in series” to the achievement of a sustain-
able society. I find this extremely motivating and hope to 
inspire Group employees in Japan and around the world to 
take action on the SDGs.

We are also engaging in several measures to improve 
our non-financial reporting of the Group’s environmental, 
social, and governance status. Fortifying our corporate foun-
dation is a priority as it will support not only sustaining growth 
for the Group, but will enable us contribute meaningfully to 
realizing a sustainable society. Our investment in business 
growth will be aggressive in the areas of technology (intellectu-
al capital), manufacturing equipment (manufacturing capital), 

and human resources (human capital).
Our CSR management practices focus on contributing 

to a sustainable society through our business activities found-
ed on our Group philosophy  of “human-centered automation,” 
and putting people first. On the most fundamental level, in all 
of our operations, we will continue actively applying and en-
forcing the Ten Principles of the United Nations Global Com-
pact in the four areas of human rights, labor, environment and 
anti-corruption. Our CSR management also prioritizes risk 
management, thorough ethical and legal compliance, and 
environmental and social contribution. 

Our efforts to strengthen our CSR activities were recog-
nized by the Government Pension Investment Fund, which in 
FY2020 selected four ESG indexes in which azbil is a constitu-
ent. Yet, it is imperative that we continue diligently strengthen-
ing our corporate governance to continue ensuring fairness, 
neutrality, and transparency in our management practices. 
Recent measures include steps to establish a structure to 
facilitate constructive dialogue with all stakeholders, which is 
essential to realizing sustaining business growth and continu-
ing to increase our corporate value into the long term.

Essential Goals of azbil Group for SDGs
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How will the Company return profit from 
its business growth to shareholders and 
investors?

Q5
Do you have a message for stakeholders?

Q6

We raised the FY2020 year-end dividend and 
the planned total annual dividend for FY2021 
in accordance with our commitment to a 
disciplined capital policy and strategically 
investing to increase our corporate value. We 
have also supplemented shareholder return 
through share buybacks. As part of our disci-
plined capital policy, we apply an internal 
control index for capital investment activities 
that includes our own formula for ROIC re-
flecting the specific conditions of our busi-
ness investments. Management practices an 
active awareness of capital costs and is 
geared toward achieving targets for ROE.

A5 The azbil Group is engaging in a concerted 
effort to transform itself by pursuing the sub-
stantial opportunities for long-term growth 
in the automation business. The Company 
and its stakeholders will share the benefits 
of the growth we achieve and maintain good 
relationships.

A6

I stress the importance of keeping long-term objectives in 
mind even when dealing with the immediate situation. Share-
holder return is a key part of this and remains a management 
priority. Our basic policy is to maintain a stable dividend and 
seek to raise dividends while considering the overall circum-
stances of our consolidated business performance, dividend 
on equity ratio (DOE), ROE, and the strategic need to ensure 
adequate internal reserves for current and future business 
development and a sound financial foundation.

Following this basic policy and in consideration of our 
business performance, which even in the harsh operating 
environment exceeded our projections, we raised the FY2020 
year-end dividend payment to ¥30 per share, a ¥5 increase 
from our original plan, which brought the full-year dividend 
payment to ¥55 per share. The DOE ratio was thus 4.0% for 
FY2020, and we will continue advancing the medium-term plan 
to continue steadily increasing DOE. Looking ahead to FY2021, 
based on our outlooks for business growth and our earnings 
performance, we plan to raise the ordinary dividend by ¥5, 
which will increase the full-year dividend to ¥60 per share.

As mentioned earlier, we will be aggressively investing in 
technology, equipment, human resources, and other areas 
necessary for sustaining growth and raising corporate value. 
In keeping with a disciplined capital policy, we also acted on 
our commitment to returning value to shareholders by improv-
ing ROE and distributing dividends by flexibly repurchasing 
2.25 million outstanding azbil shares, valued at approximately 
¥10.0 billion.

In FY2021, we began using ROIC as an additional key 
management indicator with ROE to further strengthen our 
corporate governance and as an additional guide for raising 
our corporate value and maintaining a disciplined capital 
policy. I believe strong awareness of capital costs is increas-
ingly critical and plan to emphasize its importance in our 
management activities.

We fully embrace the idea of stakeholder capitalism as it 
reflects the values that the azbil Group has adhered to since 
its inception. 

We have always had strong relationships with our stake-
holders, and I wish to continue engaging in constructive dia-
logue, which is essential for maintaining the business environ-
ment and our business performance.

How business conditions will be in the aftermath of the 
COVID-19 pandemic is still anything but certain, but I think 
there will be an exponential increase in demand for the 
Group’s core competencies in automation technology, installa-
tion, services, and engineering. It is truly rewarding and I take 
pride in the fact that our drive to increase the use of automa-
tion directly contributes to a sustainable society. At the same 
time, the increasingly fierce competition in all markets means 
that we need to mobilize the full power of our capabilities to 
succeed. The azbil Group is putting all of its energy into trans-
forming itself for future growth, and I look forward to pursuing 
the significant opportunities ahead.
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Anticipating business opportunities from the growing role of automation, we formulated new long-
term targets and a new medium-term plan to contribute the achievement of a sustainable society to 
achieve the Group’s growth.

Establishing New Long-term Targets and the  
New Medium-term Plan

Results of the Previous Medium-term Plans 
—background of formulating new long-term targets and new medium-term plan

Two-Stage Medium-term Plan
FY2013–2016    FY2017–2019

Long-term targets (FY2012–2021)

FY2020
New social issues emerging 
from changing conditions 
such as global warming 

and the COVID-19 
pandemic, leading to large 
changes in customer needs

FY2021

Establishing new long-term targets 
and new medium-term plan

As the role that automation should play 
(resolving issues) expands, we created 

new long-term targets and a new 
medium-term plan for growth that 

captures new business opportunities.

Promoted our management plan based 
on the three fundamental policies

Being a long-term partner for the 
customers and the community
Taking global operations to the next level
Being a corporate organization that never 
stops learning

Results of the previous two medium-term 
plans (FY2013–2016, FY2017–2019)

Formulating new long-term targets and a 
new medium-term plan based on issues in 
the previous medium-term plan

In 2012, to respond quickly to changes in the business envi-
ronment, customer needs, and global social issues while 
pursuing sustainable growth, we established our “long-term 
targets” and “three fundamental policies” for 10 years through 
FY2021.

In line with these targets and policies, in FY2013, we 
began our two-stage medium-term plan (FY2013–2016, 
FY2017–2019). By strengthening products and services focus-
ing on people and realizing a world of automation co-created 
by human ingenuity and technology and evolving our three 
businesses— Building Automation (BA), Advanced Automation 
(AA), and Life Automation (LA)—into a life-cycle solutions 
business with customers and society, we increased the value 
provided to customers and our profitability. 

By advancing reforms of business and operational 
structures as measures in the past medium-term plans, we 
greatly enhanced profitability and made progress in developing 
our global business foundation as a growth engine. We also 
made progress in implementing CSR management, strength-
ening our governance system and financial structure, and 
building risk management systems including improving our 
business continuity plan (BCP).

In terms of strengthening profitability, we faced a chal-
lenging business environment due to decreased capital invest-
ment and other factors with the spread of COVID-19 starting 
in 2020. Consequently, in FY2020 (ended March 31, 2021), 
orders received and net sales declined year on year, and 
operating income was also forced into decline. However, we 
maintained almost the same level of operating income margin 
as the previous fiscal year at 10.4% (down 0.1 points from the 
previous year), which we believe demonstrated the effective-

During our two-stage medium-term plan, Japan experienced 
an increasingly aging society and progress in work-style re-
forms, while economic globalization advanced and demands 
to respond to climate change and the SDGs increased. There 
was also more change in business models with technological 
innovations such as IoT, AI, big data, and cloud technology, 
and the business environment surrounding the azbil Group 
changed on a global scale.

The azbil Group formulated a new medium-term plan 
starting in FY2020 based on these changes. However, with the 
unexpected rapid spread of COVID-19, both the business 
environment and economic conditions changed significantly. 
At the same time, global needs for safe and secure living and 
production spaces increased, thus expanding the role of 
automation in resolving social issues. In other words, business 
opportunities for the azbil Group are growing rapidly, leading 
us to revise our plan. 

In May 2021, while considering the target date to achieve 
the SDGs, based on the theme of “management that contributes 
‘in series’ to the achievement of a sustainable society,” we estab-
lished long-term targets for FY2030 that aim to balance sustained 
corporate growth (enhanced corporate value) and sustainability of 
society. At the same time, as the first step toward that vision, we 
announced the new medium-term plan (FY2021–2024).

ness of our continuous measures. Furthermore, we steadily 
enhanced our management foundation toward the Group’s 
sustainable growth, including strengthening and diversifying 
our capital-raising abilities on the finance side.
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Fundamental Policy (1) 
Being a long-term partner for the customer and 
community by offering solutions based on our tech-
nologies and products
In developing technologies and products that allow us to provide 
solutions to our customers, we improved our R&D hub and 
strengthened its capabilities, developed new sensors that are the 
basis of metering and measurement, and developed products and 
services using AI, IT, and cloud technology. We made progress in 
these initiatives in our BA, AA, and LA businesses. We expanded 
our maintenance service and life-cycle solutions business, main-
tained and improved profitability, and strengthened our resilience 
to downturns in the business environment.

Fundamental Policy (3)
Being a corporate organization that never stops 
learning, so that we can continuously grow stronger
In terms of human capital, we made progress in initiatives to “be 
a corporate organization that never stops learning” to respond to 
changes in the business environment and advances in globaliza-
tion. Employees improved their skills through the Azbil Academy, 
and we optimally allocated human resources by transferring 
around 630 employees to departments engaged in our growth 
strategy. Additionally, we revamped our human resource system 
to motivate employees, allow them to exercise diverse capabili-
ties, and improve productivity.

Fundamental Policy (2)
Taking global operations to the next level by ex-
panding into new regions and a qualitative change 
of focus
We improved our global network as a growth platform. In terms 
of sales and service, we have expanded to 23 countries. In 2018, 
as our first regional organization leading our regional strategy, we 

Responding to the 
COVID-19 pandemic

To respond to the spread of 
COVID-19, which began in spring 
of 2020, based on our BCP 
system that we have continuously 
strengthened, the azbil Group 
improved its crisis response 
system by promoting telecommut-
ing internally and reconfirming our 
supply chain on the operations 
side. By quickly enacting policies 
prioritizing the safety and security 
of our employees, customers, and 
business partners, we responded 
to requests for engineering and 
service provision to maintain our 
customers’ important facilities as 
well as businesses that are essen-
tial for the continued safety of 
social infrastructure.

established the Strategic Planning & Development Office for 
Southeast Asia in Singapore. In regard to production, we estab-
lished production bases in China, Thailand, and Japan to stream-
line production and strengthen systems including our BCP. In 
FY2019, we upgraded the Shonan Factory, which began opera-
tions as the azbil Group’s mother factory for global production in 
collaboration with the Fujisawa Technology Center.

We maintained a thorough crisis management system and 
prioritized safety and security in our business operations. 
Through measures to strengthen profitability that produced 
results as initiatives in our medium-term plan as well as growth of 

our life-cycle business centered on the service field for which 
stable demand is expected, we succeeded in limiting the nega-
tive effects from the business environment caused by the spread 
of COVID-19.

Main results based on the three fundamental policies 
and two-stage medium-term plan

As a result of the two-stage medium-term plan, our business 
profitability improved greatly, and we maintained profit levels 

even amid the COVID-19 pandemic
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Business expansion measures, profitability improvement initiatives, and strengthen-
ing the business foundation in anticipation of changes of environment and greater 
business opportunities in the automation business

Net sales
[Overseas]

Operating income
Operating income margin

ROE

Contributing “in series” to the 
achievement of a sustainable society

Sustainably enhancing 
corporate value

Changes in the business environ-
ment and greater business opportu-
nities in the automation business

Corporate growth through businesses that 
contribute “in series” to the achievement of a 
sustainable society through new long-term targets

Implementing reforms and 
investment for growth starting 
with the new medium-term plan

¥259.4 billion
[¥44.2 billion]
¥27.3 billion

10.5%
10.9%

¥246.8 billion
[¥44.9 billion]
¥25.7 billion

10.4%
10.4%

¥300.0 billion
[¥66.0 billion]
¥36.0 billion

12%
approx.12%

¥400.0 billion range
[¥100.0 billion range]
¥60.0 billion range

approx. 15%
approx. 13.5%

Changes in 
technological 
innovation

Changes in the 
business 
environment

Changes in 
societal 
structure

Accelerating 
change due to 
the spread of 
COVID-19

The role and value 
of automation have 
increased in 
response to the 
emergence of new 
social issues 

New business 
opportunities

Business expansion centered on the three 
growth fields
Global expansion of sales network and 
business and product portfolio

Streamlining and expanding  recurring 
business including services by 
promoting DX
Strengthening overseas production bases, 
increasingly shifting to and expanding 
overseas production and procurement

Overseas business expansion including capital 
participation

Introducing new products and revamped products 
with enhanced capabilities and lower costs
Effective allocation of human resources
Strengthening sales activities and streamlining 
operations by using DX

FY2019 FY2020
New Medium-term 

Plan for 
FY2021–2024

New Long-term Targets
for FY2030

Safety

Transformation

Growth

Through our automation business, we will achieve growth by contributing “in series” to the achieve-
ment of a sustainable society and proactively implement reforms and investment for growth.

Outline of New Long-term Targets and the New Medium-term Plan

Establishing a New Medium-term Plan and New Long-term Targets That Anticipate Business Environment Changes 
and Business Opportunities

Anticipating changes in the automation 
business environment and greater business 
opportunities

At present, the nature of society and industry and consumers’ 
needs are experiencing significant changes, and new issues to 
be resolved are emerging globally. These changes and issues 
include the global issue of climate change, changes in the 
structure of society such as the aging population in Japan, 
increased demand in the industrial world for new products and 

services to realize a smart society, increased global needs for 
safety and security due to the spread of COVID-19, and accel-
erating needs for telework environments.

There are many other roles for the diverse capabilities of 
automation including labor saving, energy saving, and re-
source saving. With the number of variables to control growing 
and becoming increasingly complex each year, the value of 
automation is continuing to rise.

Establishing New Long-term Targets and the New Medium-term Plan
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Business expansion measures, profitability improvement initiatives, and strengthen-
ing the business foundation in anticipation of changes of environment and greater 
business opportunities in the automation business

Net sales
[Overseas]

Operating income
Operating income margin

ROE

Contributing “in series” to the 
achievement of a sustainable society

Sustainably enhancing 
corporate value

Changes in the business environ-
ment and greater business opportu-
nities in the automation business

Corporate growth through businesses that 
contribute “in series” to the achievement of a 
sustainable society through new long-term targets

Implementing reforms and 
investment for growth starting 
with the new medium-term plan

¥259.4 billion
[¥44.2 billion]
¥27.3 billion

10.5%
10.9%

¥246.8 billion
[¥44.9 billion]
¥25.7 billion

10.4%
10.4%

¥300.0 billion
[¥66.0 billion]
¥36.0 billion

12%
approx.12%

¥400.0 billion range
[¥100.0 billion range]
¥60.0 billion range

approx. 15%
approx. 13.5%

Changes in 
technological 
innovation

Changes in the 
business 
environment

Changes in 
societal 
structure

Accelerating 
change due to 
the spread of 
COVID-19

The role and value 
of automation have 
increased in 
response to the 
emergence of new 
social issues 

New business 
opportunities

Business expansion centered on the three 
growth fields
Global expansion of sales network and 
business and product portfolio

Streamlining and expanding  recurring 
business including services by 
promoting DX
Strengthening overseas production bases, 
increasingly shifting to and expanding 
overseas production and procurement

Overseas business expansion including capital 
participation

Introducing new products and revamped products 
with enhanced capabilities and lower costs
Effective allocation of human resources
Strengthening sales activities and streamlining 
operations by using DX

FY2019 FY2020
New Medium-term 

Plan for 
FY2021–2024

New Long-term Targets
for FY2030

Safety

Transformation

Growth

Establishing new long-term targets that 
contribute “in series” to the achievement of 
a sustainable society

azbil sees these changes in the business environment as new 
growth opportunities to add to stable demand in our existing 
business areas, such as maintenance and efficiency improve-
ment. These changes also represent large opportunities to 
contribute to realizing the SDGs through our business. To that 
end, based on the theme of “contributing ‘in series’ to the 

Establishing a new medium-term plan based 
on the theme of “transformation”

Implementing investments in “growth”

To achieve our new long-term targets, while continuing busi-
ness operations that prioritize safety as we have done since 
FY2020 with the COVID-19 pandemic, we will rise to the 
challenge of transformation that leads to growth as we antici-
pate changes in the business environment and greater oppor-
tunities in the automation business. In FY2030, the final year of 
our new long-term targets, we aim to increase net sales by 
¥150 billion or more from the current level to ¥400 billion 
range, to double operating income to ¥60 billion range, to 
increase operating income margin by 5 points from FY2019 to 
approximately 15%, and to increase ROE from the current 
around 10% to approximately 13.5%.

Furthermore, during the period of the new medium-term 
plan for FY2021–2024, we see the pillar of transformation as a 
deeper pursuit of “the three growth fields that share a common 
foundation of automation technology (p. 27),” which has been our 
focus since FY2017 during the previous medium-term plan, and 
we will develop products and services that respond to diverse 
needs. Through automation that will enable us to continually 
carry out “improvements to the quality of space and productivi-
ty” in customers’ assets as well as “curb energy usage,” we will 
contribute to resolving social issues and helping customer 
companies achieve their SDGs while capturing new demand.

To realize transformation and achieve growth with an eye on 
FY2030, azbil will continuously implement investment in ad-
vanced technological development as well as capital invest-
ment to create a global production and product/service supply 
system. We will proactively introduce new products and ser-
vices born from this process both in Japan and overseas and 
maximize the value that we provide to our customers. At the 
same time, we will enhance productivity and create new work-
styles by improving and streamlining our own business activi-
ties and further increase profitability and margins.

achievement of a sustainable society” and balancing our own 
growth with sustainability of society, we established new 
long-term targets as guidelines to continuously pursue growth 
measures and investments through FY2030, while continuing 
to strengthen profitability and build up our global business 
foundation from the previous medium-term plans. As the first 
stage in that process, in May 2021 we announced our new 
medium-term plan (FY2021–2024).
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New Automation Fields
By providing “improvements to the quality 
of space and productivity” as added value 
in customers’ assets, we will support 
customers to enhance their competitive-
ness (high productivity, provision of com-
fortable, safe, and secure spaces, etc.).

Environmental and Energy Fields
As we head for the carbon-neutral age, we 
will provide technologies, products, and 
services that balance “improvements to the 
quality of space and productivity” in 
customers’ assets with “minimal usage of 
resources and energy.”

Life-cycle Solution Fields
Using our cultivated knowhow and ad-
vanced technologies, while maintaining 
customers’ assets over the long term, we 
will continuously realize “improvements to 
the quality of space and productivity” and 
“minimal usage of resources and energy.”

* Devices built using microfabrication technology to integrate sensors, 
actuators, and electronic circuits on substrates

Strengthen the engineering and service business 
foundation using DX; expand overseas

Maintaining long-term optimal operations and contributing to a sustainable society

New
Automation 

Solving new 
challenges with 

new products and 
services

Environment
and Energy 

Applying our 
proven strengths in 
energy efficiency 
and renewable 

energy

Life-cycle Solution
Supporting customers’ 

assets over the long term
High value-added services using a network that 
leverages our business platform expanded and 

upgraded over the long term

Commercial
buildings

The azbil Group’s unique solutions that combine the 
three growth fields have already produced results for 
customers. By fusing cutting-edge system solutions 
using AI and cloud technology with advanced devices 
employing MEMS* sensor technology and others, we 
will continue to create new solutions.

• To counter global warming, we are fitting existing 
buildings and implementing energy management 
to continuously reduce CO2 emissions from large 
buildings, etc.

• Product lineup to realize safe and secure 
workplaces, for which demand has grown during 
the COVID-19 pandemic

• Cloud services using AI and IoT to realize safe 
and efficient remote operations of production 
facilities, etc.

• From labor saving in the maintenance of energy 
infrastructure to new services through the 
collection and use of big data, etc.

Product development, production, 
and service infrastructure to 
support solutions in the azbil 
Group's three growth fields

R&D system
Fujisawa Technology Center 
(MEMS, packaging technolo-
gy, application technology)

Service network
Maintenance and service sites in 
Japan and overseas, BOSS Center, 
Cloud Operation Center, and others

Production system
“Mother factory” (a combination of Shonan 
Factory and Fujisawa Technology Center) 
and factories in China and Thailand

Factories, 
plants

Infrastructure, 
pharmaceuti-
cals, houses
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Progress in the three growth fields
The azbil Group is transforming its business model centered 
on “the three growth fields that share a common foundation of 
automation technology.”

The new automation fields will quickly respond to global 
social issues and changes in customers’ needs born from 
changes in the societal structure and business environment 
including responding to climate change, co-existing with 
viruses, work-style reform, aging infrastructure, and more 
sophisticated manufacturing. Through automation, we will 
provide value including high quality, safety, remote environ-
ments, and decarbonization. These are the fields in which we 
will carry out “improvements to the quality of space and pro-
ductivity” in customers’ assets.

When providing this added value, in general, more 
energy and resources are consumed. However, azbil is devel-
oping business with both accumulated data and factors for 
differentiation including products, services, and knowhow that 

are effective in saving energy and resources. The environmen-
tal and energy fields will respond to both the demands of 
society and customers’ needs.

Furthermore, the life-cycle solution fields provide  
maintenance services over the long term that balance “im-
provements to the quality of space and productivity” with 
“resource and energy minimization” to match the life cycle of 
customers’ assets.

The ability to engage in these three areas of value as 
business fields is a business value unique to the azbil Group, 
which has pursued the optimization of human-centered spac-
es through an integrated structure ranging from concept to 
design, construction, installation, engineering, and mainte-
nance. Going forward, by strengthening our engineering and 
service platform using DX, we will provide these three growth 
fields to society and our customers as a common automation 
value that goes beyond national borders and business sectors.

Centered on development in the three growth fields founded on automation technology, we will 
grasp new changes in the business environment that reflect changing customer needs and new 
social issues, and introduce new products and services in Japan and overseas.

Initiatives to Realize the New Medium-term Plan (FY2021–2024)

Establishing New Long-term Targets and the New Medium-term Plan
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We have established a specialized organization and an executive officer in 
charge of our sustainability initiatives, hold azbil Group CSR Promotion 
Committee meetings, and provide reports at Management Meetings and 
Board of Directors meetings (p. 65). We proactively disclose risks and 
opportunities related to climate change.

(1) CSR management system

Regarding the SDGs, we have established our own four essential goals and 
concrete targets (p. 57). We will implement continuous revisions to ensure 
steady execution and boost our activity level.

(4) Establishing SDG goals

To support growth toward the goal of “contributing ‘in series’ to achieving a 
sustainable society” in our medium-term plan, we set the skills expected in 
Directors and disclose a skills matrix (p. 87).

(2) Disclosing our skills matrix In April 2021, we became a signatory to the “United Nations Global 
Compact,” underlining our commitment to strengthen our existing initiative 
for human rights protection on a global level.

(5) Signing the United Nations Global Compact

In terms of human resources, we are promoting “health and well-being manage-
ment (p. 73),” diversity and inclusion, and optimal personnel allocations.

(3) Pursuing “health and well-being management” In terms of management control, we implemented management with an 
awareness of the cost of capital and introduced return on invested capital 
(ROIC) to achieve our ROE targets in our new long-term targets and new 
medium-term plan (p. 31).

(6) Introducing ROIC

Conceptional image of the laboratory building 
(Image courtesy of Nikken Sekkei Ltd.)

Improving development and manufacturing 
facilities for MEMS sensors, the key to 
sensing technology 

We will strengthen our marketing and development capabilities to reinforce 
new product and service development to create new solutions continuous-
ly. In terms of development, we will strengthen our development capabilities 
in system solutions, devices, and field instruments to respond to increas-
ingly polarized customer needs (p. 49). To that end, we will upgrade and 
strengthen the Fujisawa Technology Center, our research and development 
hub, to reinforce our development capabilities for cutting-edge system 
solutions and high-performance, high-precision devices (construction to be 
completed in May 2022).

 R&D expenses
Total of approximately ¥56 billion from FY2021 to FY2024 (plan)

 �Investment for functionality improvements of the Fujisawa 
Technology Center 

Approximately ¥7 billion for construction costs from FY2021 to FY2022 (plan)

(1) Technological research and product development

As for fulfilling our social responsibility in our supply chain and building an 
optimal production system to support global business development, our 
Shonan Factory and Fujisawa Technology Center have collaborated in 

building a next-generation production 
system. We are also aiming to expand 
our production capacity overseas in 
response to growing global demand 
and to upgrade and further automate 
our production processes by con-
structing a new factory building at 
Azbil Control Instruments (Dalian).  
(p. 53)

Azbil Control Instruments (Dalian)
New factory building image (scheduled for completion in 2022)

We will undertake initiatives to further strengthen domestic and overseas 
sales and service networks, including introducing and globally developing 
sales force automation (SFA, a sales support system) and increasing 
overseas personnel and bases. Additionally, we will improve the provision 
of high value-added services by using cloud services such as remote 
maintenance (p. 55), promote business partnerships, and carry out over-
seas regional business development with the Strategic Planning & Develop-
ment Office for Southeast Asia taking a central role.

(2) �Strengthening sales, engineering, and service 
networks and promoting DX

(3) �Strengthening global production and  
procurement system

Investments and measures for continuous creation of solutions

Realizing sustainability through CSR management unique to azbil

We will carry out proactive research and development and capital investment to accelerate the development and market introduc-
tion of new products and services to achieve our long-term targets in FY2030. Additionally, we will implement DX measures in 
sales, service and engineering and network infrastructure enhancement measures that are both required to create high added 
value in our services and to streamline our business.

We will pursue “management that contributes ‘in series’ to the achievement of a sustainable society” through our core businesses. 
Additionally, we will continue to strengthen CSR management with priorities for action such as promoting Group management and 
improving governance systems, strengthening risk management and compliance, promoting management with emphasis on 
people, and contributing to the global environment and society.
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Based on our new  
long-term targets and 
medium-term plan, we will 
work to enhance corporate 
value by further improving 
capital efficiency and by 
implementing a disciplined 
capital policy.

Message from the Executive Officer in Charge of Finance and  
Business Management

Please tell us about your role.
Q1

We will steadily implement our new long-term 
targets and medium-term plan and ensure the 
achievement of our targets from the stand-
point of both management and finance. To 
respond to the expectations of all our stake-
holders, we will make consistent growth 
investments and realize highly efficient busi-
ness portfolio management.

A1

As Assistant to President, the executive officer in charge of 
overall corporate administration, I am responsible for business 
management and financial strategy. To improve the Group’s 
business management and capital efficiency to support global 
business development and strengthen governance, I manage 
the azbil Group’s business performance, develop and operate 
accounting systems and internal controls, and formulate and 
execute financial and capital strategies.

In our previous medium-term plans (FY2013–2016, 
FY2017–2019), we advanced various measures to strengthen 
our management and finances. Specifically, in addition to 
strengthening our business foundation by introducing an 
accounting system in anticipation of the introduction of Inter-
national Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and global 
internal controls, we have been steadily raising the level of 
dividends and flexibly repurchasing our shares based on the 
idea of a disciplined capital policy, taking into account the 
perspective of capital efficiency as well as investment for 
growth and maintenance of a sound financial base. For the 
shares that we bought back, in addition to introducing an 
employee stock incentive system to increase employees’ 
awareness of our stock price and performance and drive 
motivation and morale, we disposed of treasury shares in a 
disciplined fashion.

We have formulated and revised the guidelines on 
strategic shareholdings in light of the objectives of the Corpo-
rate Governance Code and have also been working to acceler-
ate the reduction of our existing shareholdings. (We held 71 
issues as of the end of March 2015 and 41 issues as of the 
end of March 2021.) In terms of our business portfolio, we 
evaluate the effects of our investments and future business 
viability. In addition to the acquisition of overseas businesses 
in our LA business, we sold our elderly care and emergency 
call system business.

Looking back, since the start of the 2000s, the business 
environment of the azbil Group changed significantly with the 
bursting of the IT bubble. We introduced ROE targets with an 
awareness of capital efficiency in management. From a business 
perspective, while maintaining our basic approach of placing 
automation at the core of our business, we established our LA 
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35.0

30.0

25.0

20.0

15.0

10.0

5.0

4.5

4.0

3.5

3.0

2.5

2.0

1.5

1.0

0.5

0.0
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 (FY)

(Yen) (%)

2.0Total amount of  own shares 
repurchased (billions of yen)

Total number of shares 
repurchased (millions of shares)

2.0 3.0 5.0 9.9 10.0

2.00 1.20 1.43 1.87 3.72 2.25

3.7% 3.6% 3.6% 3.5% 3.4% 3.3%
3.1% 3.1%

3.5% 3.5%
3.7%

3.9% 4.0%

4.2%
(Plan)

60.0
(Plan)

55.050.046.041.0
38.5

33.531.5 31.531.531.531.531.031.0

The dividend per share and the amount of shares repurchased have been retroactively revised to take into account the effect of the 2-for-1 common stock split. The amounts have been rounded.

Dividends per share (left scale) Dividend on equity (DOE) (right scale) 

Developing a disciplined capital policy and maintaining and enhancing the azbil 
Group’s corporate value, while carefully balancing three key elements: promoting 
shareholder returns, investment in growth, and maintaining a financial foundation.

Maintain and 
enhance 

enterprise value

azbil

Enhance 
shareholder 

returns

• To treat the return of profits to 
shareholders as a management priority.

• To return profits to shareholders 
mainly via dividends, but also to 
repurchase the Company’s own 
shares expeditiously.

• In deciding the level of such returns, to 
give consideration to consolidated 
financial results, levels of ROE, DOE, 
and retained earnings required for 
future business development and 
strengthening the corporate structure.

• To maintain a stable dividend level while 
at the same time striving to raise it

Invest in 
growth

Maintain a 
financial 

foundation

Basic Policy

Dividends and DOE

Please tell us about your approach to your 
financial strategy and capital policy.Q2

Our basic policy is to implement a disci-
plined capital policy including shareholder 
returns to sustainably maintain and enhance 
corporate value.

A2

Our core policy in establishing and executing a capital policy is 
to balance maintaining a financial foundation, investments in 
growth, and shareholder returns to maintain and increase our 
corporate value.

The azbil Group is engaged in businesses essential in 
maintaining our customers’ important facilities and social infra-
structure. To ensure that these facilities and infrastructure do not 
shut down in the event of a natural disaster or an event that 
affects our business operations, such as the recent outbreak of 

business in addition to our existing BA and AA businesses. While 
alleviating the effects of changes in the business environment, we 
created three main business portfolios to realize sustainable 
growth and worked to improve the profitability of each of our 
businesses. As a result of these efforts, we succeeded in increas-
ing our ROE from 6.1% in FY2012 to 10.4% in FY2020 after two 
medium-term plans.

In our new long-term targets and medium-term plan, we 
have established the necessary investment plan to achieve 
future growth, as well as even higher ROE targets. Going 
forward, in addition to developing existing initiatives, we will 
steadily make growth investments and realize highly efficient 
business portfolio management to respond to the expectations 
of all our stakeholders.

COVID-19, we must continue to operate our businesses for a 
certain period. To do so, in addition to securing capital for its 
BCP on top of regular operating capital, the azbil Group is 
strengthening its financial foundation to conduct flexible in-
vestments, including M&A, for future growth. Furthermore, the 
azbil Group positions shareholder returns as an important 
management policy. While steadily increasing dividend levels, 
we will flexibly incorporate stock buybacks.

Dividends will be determined through comprehensive 
consideration of consolidated performance, dividend on equity 
(DOE), and ROE levels. Our policy is to work to increase 
dividends while maintaining stable dividend levels. In FY2020, 
our DOE was 4.0%. While securing capital for a sound founda-
tion and investments in growth, we flexibly repurchase our 
shares with a focus on increasing capital efficiency.

In FY2020, we postponed the repurchase of our shares 
in preparation for the COVID-19 disaster, but have repur-
chased our shares for three consecutive fiscal years since 
FY2017. In FY2021, we repurchased approximately 10 billion 
yen of our shares through the second quarter. 
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Approx. 13.5%
Approx. 12.0%

0
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(%)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
(Plan)
2024

(Target)
(FY)2030

End of FY2020 (March 31, 2021)
 Shareholders’ equity ratio (consolidated)� 69.6%
 Cash and cash equivalents (consolidated)� ¥90.7 billion

Capital-raising methods
 Overdraft facility account limit� ¥10 billion
 Commitment credit lines� ¥10 billion
 Corporate bond issuance limit (issuer rating A+)� ¥20 billion 
 �Commercial paper issuance limit  
(short-term rating a-1)� ¥20 billion

ROE Shareholders’ Equity Ratio, Cash and Cash Equivalents  
(as of March 31, 2021), and Capital-Raising Methods

Message from the Executive Officer in Charge of Finance and Business Management

How did you respond to the changes in the 
business environment caused by COVID-19?Q3

We strengthened our responsiveness to the 
changes by securing a solid financial foun-
dation and reinforcing and diversifying our 
capital-raising capabilities.

A3

In FY2020, the spread of COVID-19 initially made forecasts 
difficult and we were forced to conduct our operations, includ-
ing our safety measures, in an extremely challenging business 
environment. However, due to policies to improve profitability 
implemented over several years, we managed to maintain 
stable profitability. After the 2008 financial crisis, our operating 
income margin fell to 5% when the business environment 
deteriorated sharply. In FY2020, we recorded a year-on-year 
sales decrease, however, we were able to maintain profitability. 
This was because of not only our initiatives to strengthen 
profitability in our BA, AA, and LA businesses but also our 
consistent efforts to reform our business structure, such as 
reviewing the portfolios of the individual businesses that com-
pose each business.

In addition to the business side, from the finance side, 
we secured a stable financial foundation and strengthened our 
capital-raising capabilities to support the continued business 
operations of our customers’ important facilities and social 
infrastructure. Specifically, while securing liquid funds on-hand 
in Japan and overseas, we maintained a total of ¥10 billion in 
commitment credit lines concluded with multiple financial 
institutions. On top of our corporate bond issuance limit of ¥20 
billion, we established a commercial paper issuance limit of 
¥20 billion, maintaining capital-raising capabilities to respond 
to unforeseen contingencies such as the COVID-19 pandemic.

In particular, in October 2020, Rating and Investment 
Information, Inc. (R&I) upgraded our corporate bond rating to 
“Single A+ (Stable)” and our commercial paper rating to “a-1.” 

The ratings reflect the evaluations of our business structure, 
which has a high ratio of stable revenue sources such as 
maintenance and services capable of generating profits con-
tinuously even in a unfavorable business environment such as 
the COVID-19 pandemic.

Please tell us about the key policies and 
KPIs to achieve the targets in the new long-
term targets and medium-term plan.

Q4

Our ROE targets are approximately 12% for 
FY2024 and approximately 13.5% for 
FY2030. To achieve this, we will proactively 
invest mainly in research and development, 
take steps toward management with a 
greater awareness of capital efficiency, and 
execute management of the azbil Group 
centered on ROIC.

A4

We recently established new long-term targets with FY2030 as 
the final fiscal year and set an ROE target of approximately 
13.5%. As the first step, we aim to achieve ROE of approxi-
mately 12% in the new medium-term plan ending in FY2024.

For strategic growth investments, for the time being, we 
plan to make capital investments to enhance the capabilities of 
our research and development hub, the Fujisawa Technology 
Center (construction costs of approximately ¥7 billion), and to 
expand factories at our overseas production hubs for the 
improvement and strengthening of our cutting-edge global 
development and production system. We plan to invest a 
total of approximately ¥56 billion over four years in research 
and development.

Starting in FY2021, to advance management with an 
awareness of capital costs to improve ROE, we will implement 
azbil Group management using return on invested capital 
(ROIC), which we began preparing during the previous medi-
um-term plan. While steadily making investments for business 

azbil2021_e_015-032_1018.indd   31azbil2021_e_015-032_1018.indd   31 2021/10/18   19:292021/10/18   19:29

032azbil report 2021

FY2019 FY2020 FY2021

Results Initial plan
(May 2020)

Revision
(May 2021)

Plan
(May 2021)

Dividend per share (annual) ¥50 ¥50 ¥55 ¥60
Compared to the  
previous fiscal year +¥4

+¥5
Year-end dividend 
increased by ¥5

+¥5

Interim
Year-end

¥25
¥25

¥25
¥25

¥25
¥30

¥30
¥30

Payout ratio 35.5% 35.0% 38.5% 41.3%
Dividend on equity (DOE) 3.9% 3.7% 4.0% 4.2%

Dividends, Payout Ratio, and DOE for FY2020 and FY2021

growth, as a form of Group management, we will implement a 
PDCA cycle of confirming and improving the elements from the 
ROIC tree breakdown. In doing so, we will promote business 
portfolio management aimed at improving the total ROIC levels 
and maximizing the use of management resources. 

Please tell us about your approach to profit 
returns in FY2020 and FY2021.Q5

Against the backdrop of earnings that ex-
ceeded our performance plan and having 
secured a strong financial foundation, in 
FY2020, we increased the year-end  
dividend. We plan to increase annual divi-
dends further in FY2021 as we expect sta-
ble, sustainable growth. In addition to  
paying dividends, we will enact a  
disciplined capital policy by implementing 
own shares repurchased.

A5

Regarding dividends for FY2020, it was difficult to predict the 
effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business. As such, 
at the time of the financial results announcement in May 2020, 
we made public our plans to pay a dividend of ¥50 per share, 
maintaining the same level as the previous fiscal year. Howev-
er, as we worked toward business continuity placing safety 
first, throughout FY2020, we recorded profits that exceeded 
the earnings forecast released on November 5, 2020, by 
strengthening our business profitability and our financial struc-
ture. Having secured a strong financial foundation, we in-
creased our year-end dividend by ¥5, bringing our annual 
dividend to ¥55 per share.

As the first fiscal year for our new long-term targets and 
medium-term plan, in FY2021, we expect increases in both 
sales and profits based on the effects of our efforts to 
strengthen business profitability and the business foundation 

that we have built. From a long-term standpoint, we also 
envision stable, sustainable growth underpinned by strategic 
development and our outlook for the business environment in 
each of our businesses. Therefore, we will further promote 
profit return to our shareholders, and based on our policy of 
working to increase stable dividend levels further, for FY2021, 
we plan to increase the ordinary dividend by a further ¥5 to 
annual dividends of ¥60 per share. As a result, DOE, which we 
consider one of our key indicators, is expected to be 4.0% in 
FY2020 and 4.2% in FY2021, as mentioned earlier.

In addition to these dividend increases, based on our 
status and outlook for current business and performance, we 
plan to increase capital efficiency further, return more profits to 
our shareholders, and enact a flexible capital policy to respond 
to changes in the corporate environment. To do so, by the 
second quarter of FY2021, we repurchased 2.25 million shares 
worth approximately 10 billion yen (repurchase period: May 17, 
2021 through August 13, 2021).

Going forward, we will work to improve the return of 
profits to shareholders, enact a disciplined capital policy, 
conduct management that is even more aware of the cost of 
capital, and enhance our corporate value. We ask for your 
continued support of the azbil Group in this process.
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Creating new value together with customers at their sites
Automation is playing a growing role as a solution for addressing various social issues and meeting 
changing customer needs.

The azbil Group combines the measurement and control technologies it has cultivated to date, 
the knowledge it has gained working on site, and advanced IoT, AI, and big data technology to cre-
ate new value through its business while working together with customers at their sites.

At a Glance

BA
We create comfortable and efficient office and production 
spaces and reduce the environmental burden by using our 
original environmental control technologies to deliver comfort, 
functionality, and energy efficiency for all types of buildings.

Building Automation Business

AA
We develop advanced measurement and control technolo-
gies for factories and plants to help create production sites in 
which people can safely fulfill their potential. We create new 
value in collaboration with our customers.

Advanced Automation Business

LA
We apply our measurement and control technologies and services cultivated over 
many years for buildings, factories, plants, and basic infrastructure to lifeline utili-
ties such as gas and water, residential central air-conditioning systems, life science 
research, and pharmaceuticals. We help people to enjoy active lifestyles.

Life Automation Business

Practice of Value Creation   
— Provision of Value to our Customers
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Practice of Value Creation — Provision of Value to our Customers

BA
We create building environments that balance comfort and energy saving, 
and provide long-term services throughout building life cycles.

Building Automation Business

The Building Automation (BA) business provides products and 
systems necessary for air conditioning control of office build-
ings and all types of large-scale buildings through an integrat-
ed framework, ranging from the development, manufacture, 
and sales of products and systems to engineering, installation, 
and maintenance services.

We deploy our advanced automated air-conditioning 
control technology combining control systems and application 
software for air-conditioning facilities with various devices 
(controllers, valves, and sensors) along with our proprietary 

environmental control technologies. With these technologies, 
we create business and production spaces designed for 
comfort and health as well as overall “wellness” that help 
boost business efficiency and labor productivity while minimiz-
ing environmental impact.

Using our strength in providing total solutions covering 
the life cycles of buildings, we support stable operation and 
increasing the asset value of customer buildings over the long 
term, beginning with building construction and through main-
tenance services, renovation, and energy-saving solutions.

Office buildings, research laboratories, factories, data centers, government buildings, hotels, shopping centers, hospitals, schools, airports, etc.

Business Fields

20–25 years

Planning Operation

Construction
(design, installation,

and engineering)

Service
(equipment maintenance, 

building operation, etc.)

Service

Retrofit, including ESCO services
(solutions, installation, and engineering)

Retrofit

1990

1990s Construction bubble

2000s Large supply of office buildings

Urban redevelopment and 
Olympic-related constructionBusiness environment (Life cycle of buildings and construction boom)

Steadily growing volume of building requiring 
services and renovation beginning in FY2021

2000 2010 2020

Construction

Construction

Renovation

Renovation Operation

Operation

Major renovationOperation (services)

Operation (services)

Operation (services)

New 
con-

struction

Con-
struction 
comple-

tion

Instal-
lation

Large-
scale 

renovation

Con-
struction 
comple-

tion

Instal-
lation

Construction

Operation

Features and Strength

�Environmental control technology utilizing 
cloud computing and AI

Original environmental control technology using networks and operating data to 
improve safety, comfort, and environmental performance

Technical 
capability

�Full lineup of products
Respond quickly to social issues by in-house development and manufacture of 
sensors, valves, controllers, and systems, including open innovation 

Product strength

�Total solutions / Integrated framework
Integrated framework for instrumentation design, installation and engineering, 
maintenance services, energy-saving solutions, and building management 
and operation

Execution ability

�Life-cycle business
Stable business model aligned to building life cycles from construction planning to 
providing daily services and supporting renovation projects

Earning power

Pioneer in the air conditioning control field
Pioneer in Japan in air conditioning control for large buildings

Presence

Building Life cycle
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Cloud

Provide services catering to building life cycles by integrating building automation  
and IoT and other new technologies

Development and manufacture of building automation systems, automatic control 
equipment, and application software for building management

Building  
complex man-
agement and 
maintenance

Detecting Protecting
Sensor and measure-
ment devices
Sensing and measurement of 
room temperature/humidity

Security systems
Controlling access to building 
commons and interiors

User-operated devices
Building users can set the temperature, 
humidity, and other variables

Room temperature/
humidity sensor

Motorized control valve 
with flow measurement 
and control functions

Smart damper for 
diffuser

Digital setting 
device

Smartphone 
application (for 
room users)

Infrared array 
sensor

Wireless sensor

Room temperature/
humidity controller

Access control 
system

Contactless 
smartcard reader 

Multi-area user 
terminal

Building 
automation 
system

Wall-mounted 
BA system

BA system for 
small buildings

Maintenance Energy  
management

Building 
operation 

optimization 
proposals

Building 
renovation 
proposals

Controlling

Regulators and controllers
Control of building facilities 
and instruments to keep 
them in an optimal state

Controller for 
air conditioning 
equipment

Heating/cooling plant controller

Compact 
remote I/O 
module

Adjusting

Valves and actuators
Optimal adjustment of the 
flow rates of hot/cold water 
or steam used in buildings

Settings

Monitoring and 
Managing

Building automation (BA) 
systems
Monitoring and management of 
the indoor environment, securi-
ty, equipment, and energy 
usage throughout the building
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Practice of Value Creation — Provision of Value to our Customers

BABuilding Automation Business

The BA business is pursuing ongoing business growth by 
actively integrating new technologies and providing solu-
tions for modern needs such as decarbonization and the 
“new normal.”

	�Major construction projects in Japan and Asia
	�Increasing demand for building renovation in Japan
	�Decarbonization spurring energy-saving and CO2 
emission reduction needs
	�Pandemic creating need for advanced safety and 
security including improved ventilation and access 
control
	�Rising demand for safe and comfortable offices 
leading to improving productivity in the “new 
normal” era

	�Use our accumulated data and expertise to 
provide energy efficiency solutions
	�Integrate our BA system, IoT devices, and field 
equipment to optimize energy usage, air 
quality, and temperature quality
	�Introduce cloud-based energy efficiency and 
virtual power plant (VPP) services
	�Develop proven energy-saving apps and 
engineering services meeting safety and 
comfort needs overseas

Changes in the business environment 
and customer needs Core Strategies

Medium-term plan | Vision and growth strategy for the BA business
Becoming an Asia-based world-class supplier of building systems

Kazuyasu Hamada
Director, Managing Executive Officer  
President of Building Systems Company, Azbil Corporation

Fiscal Year 2020 Performance Review

Fiscal Year 2021 Performance Plan

Operating environment

FY2020 business review

The BA business had several projects that were delayed be-
cause of the COVID-19 pandemic, but the overall impact during 
the year was limited in Japan. Demand continued from urban 
redevelopment projects in the Tokyo metropolitan area and 
included growing interest in solutions for improving ventilation, 
saving energy, reducing CO2, and lowering operational costs. 
Overseas, the sluggish demand and delayed projects caused by 
the pandemic adversely impacted our business performance.

service business declined owing to a low volume of multi-year 
service contracts coming up for renewal during the fiscal year. 
In addition, scrutiny of project profitability led to a temporary 
decline in orders received from existing buildings during the 
first half of the fiscal year.

Sales declined 5.1% year on year and fell short of our 
plan. While sales had continued at a high level, due to project 
completion concentrated in FY2019, sales for new large-scale 
buildings declined, as did sales for existing buildings (for the 
aforementioned reason). Overseas sales were also impacted by 
project delays caused by the pandemic. We controlled costs 
and took steps to improve profitability, but the decline in sales 
resulted in segment profit declining 5.8% year on year.

In these business conditions, we diligently worked to secure 
orders while maintaining and enhancing profitability and 
strengthen our job execution capabilities and efficiencies 
primarily at our construction and service sites with a view to 
responding to the Japanese government’s workstyle reforms 
while giving due consideration to the safety of our employees 
and customers.

The BA business recorded a 3.6% decline in orders 
received from FY2019 to ¥118.503 billion. Demand remained 
steady for sales and installation of air conditioning control 
equipment and systems for new large-scale buildings and was 
strong for renovation and services related to ventilation, energy 
saving, and CO2 emissions reduction solutions. However, the 

We aim to increase both sales and profits in FY2021 by cap-
turing the strong demand for air conditioning control equip-
ment and systems for large buildings, working through the 
order backlog for new building construction, and responding 
to the rising demand for building renovation.
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Controller for air 
conditioning

Smartphone 
application

Wireless 
sensor

Smart damper for 
diffuser

Central monitoring 
system 

Air conditioning unit

Cell type air conditioning system 
— A new air conditioning system for the diverse work styles and offices in the “new normal” era

	�Temperature control for each cell (air outlet unit) in a zone
	�Ability to control indoor CO2 concentration and ventilation using air 
from an outside source is effective for preventing the spread of 
infection
	�Workers use a smartphone application to make their  
space comfortable

New work styles demand more personalized air conditioning 
systems. The azbil Group helps create healthy and attractive 
offices with comfortable, energy-saving, and ideal work layouts.

Close Up

* �Building information modeling is a method of using databases to enhance the 
productivity of the building design and construction by enabling real-time, 
three-dimensional management throughout a building life cycle

0

50.0

100.0

150.0

0

10.0

20.0

30.0
(Billions of yen)

(FY)

(Billions of yen)

134.5

16.3

2019 2020 2021
(Plan)

2024
(Target)

121.4

14.3

Sales (left axis) Segment profit (right axis)

Sales and Segment Profit
Initiatives to Accomplish the  
Medium-term Plan

Longer-term outlook

Initiatives to attain the medium-term plan 
performance targets

In the medium and long term, we plan to leverage our solid 
track record to fully respond to the expected rising demand 
from major redevelopment projects and for renovation of 
numerous large buildings beginning in FY2021.

We expect growing demand for optimal automated 
air-conditioning control to realize comfortable environments and 
increasing need for energy saving and CO2 reduction accompa-
nying the movement toward decarbonization. Although the 
increase in remote work due to the pandemic could reduce 
demand related to office buildings, we expect the “new normal” 
to increase demand in Japan and overseas for solutions for the 
highest S-class and A-class large-scale office buildings with 
ventilation, room access control, and other functions offering 
safety, security, and wellness.

To respond to the growth in demand, the azbil Group 
will continue expanding its business by continuing to provide 
solutions built on its established engineering, installation, and 
service structure and extensive data and expertise while also 
offering innovative solutions for remote maintenance, cloud-
based services, and cell air conditioning systems. We are also 
advancing internal measures, including reforming our business 
processes, to establish a more robust profit structure.

The areas of the retrofit business that we expect to expand in 
Japan are environmental and energy and life-cycle business. We 
will capture demand in those areas by offering solutions incorpo-
rating our vast store of operating data. We expect to see an 
increasing number of VPPs come into operation for the advantag-
es they offer of using renewable energy and curbing demand, 
and plan to support the use of VPPs by devising solutions unique 

Expand the three growth fields / Respond to new 
social issues

to the azbil Group that will utilize BA systems already installed in 
large buildings.

Develop and launch new products and services

Increasing overseas customer contact points (coverage)

Digital transformation (DX) and increasing profitability

We plan to introduce new cell air conditioning systems and other 
new products, systems and services incorporating cloud com-
puting and AI to meet the needs for new office environments 
accommodating the diverse workstyles under the “new normal.” 
We also plan to actively promote collaborative creation and open 
innovation with companies outside the Group.

We will expand our overseas business by introducing prod-
ucts for overseas markets and building relationships with 
leading companies.

We are introducing revamped products and building a struc-
ture using building information modeling (BIM)* and other 
technologies to support ongoing profit creation. The structure 
will also be used for our businesses overseas in the future.
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Practice of Value Creation — Provision of Value to our Customers

Process Automation
(materials industries)

Petrochemical, chemical, steel, and other industries that 
supply materials used in production processes

Three AA Business Sub-segments Main Products and Services

Factory Automation
(processing and 
assembly industries)

Electrical and electronic devices, semiconductors, food, 
pharmaceuticals, and other industries handling or using 
automation in production processes

Control Product (CP) Business
Supplying factory automation products 
such as controllers and sensors

Industrial Automation Product 
(IAP) Business

Supplying process automation products 
such as differential pressure & pressure 
transmitters and control valves

Solution and Service (SS) Business

Sensors and switches

Controllers

Flat-panel displays and 
recorders
Combustion safety and 
control systems

Control valves and 
actuators
Measuring instruments and 
transmitters (Flow rate, 
temperature, pressure, 
liquid surface, etc.)

Industrial automation 
control and monitoring 
systems, applications, and 
software
Maintenance service

Offering control systems, engineering 
services, maintenance services, 
energy-saving solution services, etc.

Business Fields

AAAdvanced Automation Business

We work with our customers to solve problems at manufacturing sites and 
create safe, comfortable, and ideal work environments.

Our Advanced Automation (AA) business fields are broadly 
divided into the process automation (PA) field, related to the 
materials industry, and the factory automation (FA) field, related 
to the processing and assembly industry. The azbil Group 
structures its activities in the PA and FA fields into the three 
business sub-segments of control products (CP), industrial 
automation products (IAP), and solution and service (SS). We 
make full use of our high degree of expertise and familiarity 
with specific market needs and product characteristics of each 

sub-segment to provide a variety of solutions enabling ad-
vanced control and optimized operation throughout the life 
cycles of customer equipment and facilities, from systems, 
products, and software to instrumentation and engineering 
and maintenance services. Incorporating the latest technologi-
cal innovations such as IoT, big data, cloud computing, and AI, 
we create new value at the manufacturing site by working with 
customers seeking safe and stable operations, improvements 
in productivity, and innovation in production processes.

Business Fields and Business Units

Features and Strengths

�Combining on-site knowledge and the 
latest measurement control technologies 
and information technologies 

Field professionals combine their skills and knowledge to provide measurement 
and control solutions optimized for production sites and smart IoT services using 
big data and AI

Technical 
capability �Sensors and field instruments incorporat-

ing advanced technology
Sensors and field instruments incorporating MEMS and other advanced technol-
ogies for quick and accurate on-site capture of information critical to sophisticat-
ed control

Product 
strength

�Total solutions / integrated framework
Developing business in the three AA business sub-segments based on market 
characteristics; providing solutions tailored to customer needs through an 
integrated framework from the development of products and applications to 
instrumentation, engineering, and maintenance services

Execution abilityLeading the industrialization of Japan
Unmatched ability to generate new value backed by over a century of developing 
measurement and control technology at production sites and substantiated by 
abundant success and expertise in a wide variety of industries

Presence
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Diagnosing

Using big data and AI at manufacturing sites to facilitate safer and more stable operations

Visualization and diagnosis of the status of 
production and equipment operation using 
high-performance sensors

Using big data and AI to detect anomalies 
beforehand, predict the future status, and 
optimize operational plans

Control valve maintenance support 
system

Device management system

Online anomaly 
detection system

Early warning system 
for time series data

Upper limit

Lower limit

Conventional 
point at which 
warning is issued

Normal

Detection of warning 
signs (current)

Prediction of future 
changes

Early 
detection

Control valves
Optimal adjustment of the flow 
rates of gases and liquids at 
customer sites

Sensors and switches
Precise detection and high reliability to 
support a broad range of needs at 
customer sites

Controllers
Optimal control 
of processes, 
equipment, and 
facilities

Mass flow 
controllers
Control flow rates of 
gases to a set value

Control valve and smart 
valve positioner

High-accuracy posi-
tion sensor

Photoelectric switch

Advanced 
ultraviolet 
flame sensor

Intelligent 
earthquake 
sensor

Micro flow rate 
liquid flow meter

Multi-loop control-
lers with multifunc-
tion display

Network 
instrumentation 
module

Process 
controller

Differential pressure 
and pressure 
transmitter

Electro-
magnetic 
flow meter

Vortex flow 
meter

Natural gas 
calorimeter

Limit switch

Integrated automation 
system

Adjusting

Detecting

Controlling

Monitoring
Monitoring and control 
systems
Monitoring of manufacturing 
processes

Measuring
Process sensors
Measurement of flow rates, pressure, 
liquid level, and calorific value

Development and production of measurement and control instruments, monitoring and 
control systems, and applications that solve problems at production sites

BIG DATA

Digital mass 
flow 
controller

Predicting
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Practice of Value Creation — Provision of Value to our Customers

AAAdvanced Automation Business

Medium-term plan | Vision and growth strategy for the AA business
Developing a globally competitive business to become a high-profit 
business entity that contributes to a sustainable society

Fiscal Year 2020 Performance Review

Operating environment
Regarding FY2020 market conditions affecting the AA busi-
ness in Japan and overseas, there has been demand growth 
in markets for semiconductor manufacturing equipment, due 
to expanding investment in 5G and other areas. There are 
signs of economic recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic. 
Although the effects of the pandemic remain unpredictable, we 
expect demand to continue to grow in manufacturing equip-
ment and other markets in Japan and overseas.

FY2020 business review

Sales were supported by the expansion of our overseas 
business and the improvement in manufacturing equipment 
markets, but ultimately declined 5.8% year on year overall due 
to the decrease in capital investment caused by sluggish 
market conditions. Sales exceeded our plan, buoyed by accel-
erated business growth overseas and the recovery in manu-
facturing equipment markets.

Segment profit declined 2.2% year on year due to the 
decrease in sales, however profit margins exceeded our plan, 
fueled by ongoing progress with growth strategies and mea-
sures to enhance profitability.

In this business environment, we continued steadily imple-
menting measures, such as cultivating customers and devel-
oping our overseas bases and structures, in anticipation of 
further recovery in demand and future growth. We also thor-
oughly implemented and expanded measures to enhance 
profitability that have produced tangible results.

AA business orders received ultimately declined by 
4.8% from FY2019 to ¥87.524 billion. Although orders turned 
upward year on year in the fourth quarter, overall orders re-
ceived for the full year were impacted by the global economic 
slowdown due to the pandemic and an overall decline in 
capital investment for plant and factory production lines and 
manufacturing equipment.

Fiscal Year 2021 Performance Plan

We aim to increase both revenues and profits in FY2021 by 
harnessing the recovery in capital investment accompanying 
improving conditions in the manufacturing equipment markets 
in Japan and overseas, aggressively developing customers 
and introducing new products overseas, and implementing 
measures to further enhance profitability.

The AA business is developing products and services in-
tegrating AI, cloud computing, MEMS*, and other technol-
ogies and accelerating entry into new markets, and creat-
ing the new automation field unique to the azbil Group.

	�Growing demand for manufacturing equipment and 
production line automation for new products and 
services
	�Growing demand for energy-efficient, GHG-con-
trolled production facilities for decarbonization
	�Growing demands to ensure safe, efficient opera-
tion of facilities, respond to labor shortages, and 
for products and high value-added services for the 
“new normal”

	�Develop new products using MEMS technology 
and expand the measurement field
	�Develop new products, systems and services 
for anomaly detection and prediction and AI 
equipment diagnosis that integrate cloud 
computing, AI technology, and IoT devices
	�Develop proven and competitive products and 
services offered in Japan for overseas markets

Changes in the business environment 
and customer needs Core strategies

Yoshimitsu Hojo
Director, Managing Executive Officer
President of Advanced Automation Company, Azbil Corporation
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Sales and Segment Profit
Initiatives to Accomplish the  
Medium-term Plan

Longer-term outlook

Initiatives to attain the medium-term plan 
performance targets

In the medium and long term, we anticipate growing investment 
demand to respond to labor shortages, the decarbonization of 
society, remote work and the “new normal,” and to advance the 
continuous automation of manufacturing equipment and produc-
tion lines to increase productivity by introducing new technologies.

We will continue advancing our business expansion into 
growth fields, particularly overseas, centered on the CP, IAP, 
and SS businesses. We will accelerate the development and 
market launches of products and services incorporating AI, 
cloud computing, and MEMS technologies, create the new 
automation field unique to azbil, and aim for business growth 
with high competitiveness.

The AA business covers a wide range of business fields and a 
variety of markets through its CP, IAP, and SS businesses and 
within each of these sub-segments we are focusing in further 
detail and leveraging azbil’s unique characteristics to develop 
business in the three growth fields. We will efficiently establish 
a number of business fields with a competitive advantage and 
strengthen our business portfolio.

We will further advance measures to strengthen profitability 
tailored to the characteristics of each business sub-segment. 
Measures will include expanding overseas production and 
procurement, redesigning products to reduce product costs 
(revamping core products), improving the cost of products and 
services by improving engineering methods, improving the 
order amount by revising selling prices and strengthening job 
risk management, and improving the product and service mix 
by shifting to high-profit offerings.

We will increase R&D investment and take a balanced ap-
proach of developing products and services from a long-term 
perspective while exploring new technologies. In the near 
term, we will revamp our product offerings in each business 
sub-segment’s primary business field. We have set creation of 
the “new automation fields” to be the main driver of our busi-
ness growth and where we will introduce new products and 
services that leverage azbil’s strengths in MEMS and other 
technologies. To grow the fields, we will restructure our product 
development process and acquire new development methods.

We see abundant room to expand our customer base in 
overseas markets and are accordingly reinforcing our overseas 
business structure by increasing our sales staff, strengthening 
their skills, and increasing the number of distributors in over-
seas markets. In Japan, we will revise our sales structure and 
continue expanding our customer coverage. We will also 
introduce DX to our sales functions, such as for sales force 
automation, in Japan and overseas.

Expand the three growth fields / Respond to new 
social issues

Measures to boost profitability

Develop and launch new products and services

Increase domestic and overseas customer contact 
points (coverage)

The valve analysis and diagnosis service
—A cloud-based service for safe and stable operation and maintenance optimization

	�Automatically sends valve operation data to the cloud for analysis
	�Enables users to confirm the results of a valve “health checkup” by visualization  when 
needed in the right format and in the right situation.
	�Facilitates optimal maintenance plans taking into account condition-based maintenance 
and without requiring special analytic or diagnostic technology or expertise; enables 
stable operation and strengthens safety capabilities of production equipment

Cloud-based monitoring has enabled early detection and prediction of valve anoma-
lies that had previously been possible only by dismantling equipment to inspect a 
valve’s internal condition. Cloud-based monitoring prevents trouble caused by valves 
and contributes to stable production equipment operation.

Close Up

* �Devices built using microfabrication technology to integrate sensors, actuators, 
and electronic circuits on substrates
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Practice of Value Creation — Provision of Value to our Customers

LALife Automation Business

Measurement and control technologies for safe, secure, comfortable, and 
healthy living

The Life Automation (LA) business leverages automation 
technologies to meet a vast variety of needs in people’s every-
day lives including realizing safe and secure living conditions, 
supporting fulfilling lives, and helping to address environmental 
issues. Through our business we enhance safety, security, 

comfort, and energy saving in various fields ranging from 
lifelines such as gas and water, living spaces including our 
residential air-conditioning systems, to research, pharmaceuti-
cal, and medical facilities that contribute to people’s health.

Business Field Overview

Features and Strengths

Meeting replace-
ment demand

Meters for replacement demand as required by law, 
smartification of gas and water meters, and use of 
smart meters to develop an “as a service” business 
model

Stability and 
growth potential

Contributing to ad-
vanced medical care

Engineering services and safe and high-quality 
equipment for pharmaceutical research and develop-
ment, manufacturing sites, and medical institutions

Growth 
potential

Whole building air 
conditioning

Centralized air-conditioning systems equipped with 
comfort features provide high level air quality, 
ventilation, and comfort

Uniqueness

Lifeline  
(gas and water meters ) field

The LA business provides household 
meters for city gas, LP gas, and water as 
well as products for industrial use, in-
cluding regulators and safety equipment, 
such as alarm units and automatic shut-
off valves. The azbil Group’s meter busi-
ness took a huge step in its development 
in December 2005 with the acquisition of 
Kimmon Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (now 
Azbil Kimmon Co., Ltd.), a pioneer in 
metering instruments that introduced 
Japan’s first domestically produced gas 
meter in 1904. The company currently 
offers city gas, LP gas, and water meters 
and enjoys a stable business foundation 
benefitting from legal requirements that 
support steady replacement demand for 
gas and water meters. Kimmon Manu-
facturing is currently developing smart 
meters with IoT technology.

Life science engineering 
(LSE) field

Our total solutions for pharmaceutical 
manufacturers encompass development, 
engineering, installation, sales, and 
after-sale services for lyophilizers, steriliz-
ers, and clean environment equipment, 
and other equipment. The azbil Group’s 
LSE business was boosted in January 
2013 with the addition of Spanish com-
pany Telstar S.A. (now Azbil Telstar, 
S.L.U.), a supplier of process equipment 
and environmental systems for pharma-
ceutical companies and laboratories with 
operations in Europe, Latin America, and 
South Asia. Telstar has a long track 
record and extensive experience in 
engineering and providing equipment and 
services related to the life science field.

Residential central air- 
conditioning systems

We adapt our air-conditioning technology 
for large-scale buildings to central 
air-conditioning systems for detached 
houses, with a single system for cooling, 
heating, ventilation, air purification, and 
dehumidification that provides a comfort-
able environment throughout the house. 
These systems also deliver comfortable 
and healthy living spaces through fea-
tures including electronic air cleaners 
with pollen and PM2.5 particle removal 
technology and variable air volume (VAV) 
control enabling temperature settings for 
each room.

azbil2021_e_033-048_1018.indd   43azbil2021_e_033-048_1018.indd   43 2021/10/18   19:322021/10/18   19:32

044azbil report 2021

Meter data services incorporating IoT
The LA business is advancing the incorporation of IoT to water and gas meters. In the LP gas market, we are 
expanding sales of our cloud-based data service for monitoring meter reading, security, and alarm conditions using 
LTE-M* standard IoT communications technology. We are also introducing a similar data service for city gas and 
water and exploring services that will offer new value by combining electricity, gas, and water data as we accelerate 
development of businesses applying automation to new fields for the era of Smart Metering as a Service (SMaaS).

* �LTE-M is a communication standard for IoT using licensed frequency bands in a low-power wide-area (LPWA) wireless commu-
nications network.

Ventilation is important in enclosed spaces. 
Unlike ordinary room air conditioners, our 
residential central air-conditioning system 
features a heat exchange ventilation system 
that refreshes the air in the entire house 
every two hours. These energy efficient 
air-conditioning systems also have electronic 
air cleaners that 
remove pollen 
and PM2.5 
particles to 
further enhance 
air quality.

Cloud

Azbil Kimmon Co., Ltd. Azbil Corporation

Air quality—ventilation and central 
air-conditioning systems

Lifeline Field (Gas and Water Meters)
Lifestyle-related Field 
(Residential Central Air-conditioning Systems)

Heat exchange 
ventilator

OutletOutdoor unitIndoor unit and 
electronic air 
cleaner

Gas meters

City Gas LP Gas Meters
Intelligent city 
gas meter

LPWA capable 
intelligent LP 
gas meter

Ultrasonic 
gas meter

Ultrasonic LP 
gas meter

High pressure 
regulator

Water Meters

LPWA capable 
electronic 
water meter

Battery-operated 
electromagnetic 
water meter

Azbil Telstar offers solutions comprising design, engineering, and 
manufacturing processes backed by automation technology for life 
science companies. Teams of experts oversee the entire manufactur-
ing process, including the design and manufacture of process 
equipment and facilities using original technologies for decontamina-
tion, pure water, pure steam, and freeze-drying. Delivered as turnkey 
projects*, these solutions contribute to efficient, environmental, and 
safe factory operations.

Azbil Telstar, S.L.U.

Pharmaceutical  
manufacturing equipment

Total solutions for life science

Life Science Engineering Field (Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Equipment)

Barrier system Lyophilizer

* �Contracts in which a single contractor is responsible for the delivery date, assurance, and performance guaran-
tee for all steps of development from design and the procurement of equipment, materials, and services, to the 
installation and test runs.

Gas and water providers

Data centers

Base station

Gas and water meters
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Practice of Value Creation — Provision of Value to our Customers

LALife Automation Business

Medium-term plan | Vision and growth strategy for the LA business
Structural reform to transform from a “new” to a “growth” business group

Fiscal Year 2020 Performance Review

Operating environment
The LA business’s three core fields each have a different 
business environment.

Sales in the lifeline field of gas and water meters, which 
account for the majority of sales, are primarily driven by de-
mand for meter replacement as required by law and remained 
steady for the year. Demand for LP gas meters, which account 
for part of sales for the lifeline field, entered a slow period, and 
demand for water meters was sluggish due to the extension of 
calibration expiration periods during the pandemic. Demand 
fluctuated in the LSE field and the lifestyle-related field for 
residential central air-conditioning systems; however, the 
structural reform of businesses in these fields is making prog-
ress in stabilizing and improving profits.

FY2020 business review

Sales declined 2.5% year on year due to lower sales in 
the lifeline field, which more than offset higher sales in the LSE 
field following the increase in orders received in the previous 
fiscal year, and fell short of the plan. Primarily due to profits 
being impacted by lower revenues in the lifeline field, segment 
profit fell 23.1% year on year and fell short of the plan.

Against the background of these business conditions and 
initiatives, overall orders received declined 3.2% from the 
previous fiscal year to ¥43.351 billion. Although there was an 
increase in the LSE field due to growing demand for R&D 
equipment in the pharmaceutical market in response to the 
pandemic, orders received declined in the lifeline field due to 
weak cyclical demand for LP gas meters and other factors.

Fiscal Year 2021 Performance Plan

We aim to increase both revenues and profits in FY2021 by 
expanding our cloud-based services in the lifeline field and by 
working through the increased backlog in orders in the LSE 
field due to demand growth in the pharmaceutical market.

We are transforming from a group of “new businesses” to 
a group of “growth businesses” as a data-driven service 
provider offering new services for the changing business 
conditions in the energy market.

	�Growing demand for energy management, infra-
structure maintenance, and safe and efficient 
operations
	�Growing demand for IoT-compatible meters in a 
changing energy market, such as deregulation  
of gas
	�Big data from smart meters to improve quality of 
life and for corporate environmental management
	�Increasingly sophisticated medical safety and 
security needs

	�Advance the energy management and Smart 
Metering as a Service (SMaaS) businesses
	�Develop pharmaceutical manufacturing 
solutions, such as for vaccines overseas
	�Offer space comfort solutions featuring our 
variable air volume and clean air technology 
for small buildings

Changes in the business environment 
and customer needs Core Strategies

Masato Iwasaki
Director, Managing Executive Officer
Life Automation Business, Azbil Corporation
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Cloud for electricity supply Cloud for city gas supply Cloud for water supply

Finance

Creation of new value and service

Real estate Medical 
healthcare

Manufacturing Local 
government

Housing Energy

Visualization

Weather Healthcare Customer 
information

Administration 
statistics

Map/positional 
information

Production 
information

Sensor 
data

LP gas supply Electricity City gas supply Water supply

Analysis Forecasting AI

LA gas cloud service

0

20.0

40.0

60.0

0

2.0

4.0

6.0
(Billions of yen)

(FY)

(Billions of yen)

3.3

2019 2020 2021
(Plan)

2024
(Target)

Sales (left axis) Segment profit (right axis)

58.0

1.6

45.7

Sales and Segment Profit
Initiatives to Accomplish the  
Medium-term Plan

Longer-term outlook

Initiatives to attain the medium-term plan 
performance targets

The LA business has a portfolio of businesses strongly associat-
ed with society, such as the meter business contributing to 
social infrastructure, equipment and engineering businesses 
supporting pharmaceutical manufacturing, and residential 
central air-conditioning systems. These business fields are also 
strongly related to the environmental and energy fields and  
two other growth fields. We will continue taking steps to stabi-
lize and improve profits in each of the business fields.

At the same time, we will augment our existing prod-
uct-driven business by pursuing opportunities brought about 
by business environmental change in the energy supply mar-
ket. For example, we will create new businesses as a service 
provider using IoT and other technologies and the data collect-
ed from our meters to boost sales and profits in the lifeline 
field. As we promote initiatives in each business field to gener-
ate business growth, we will transform the LA business from a 
group of “new businesses” to a group of “growth businesses.”

We will build on our stable product sales supported by meter 
replacement as required by law by further developing our ser-
vice business using IoT and our SMaaS. We also collaborate 
with the Takaoka Toko Group to expand the DX-EGA, next-gen-
eration energy management business which uses energy data 
for raising the quality of life and for transforming to a data 
service business for corporate business environments. We will 
also expand our lineup of smart meters for this new business.

We will develop an IoT-supported service business with a main 
on designing sterile spaces and designing and manufacturing 
pharmaceutical production equipment through an integrated 
framework, from equipment layout design for the pharmaceuti-
cal production process, to equipment design, manufacture, and 
installation and after service. In this way, we will respond to the 
increasing demand worldwide for pharmaceuticals centering on 
regions with population growth.

As a business that improves the quality of life by helping 
realize comfortable spaces, we provide equipment and sys-
tems that create comfortable living conditions in a wide range 
of houses big and small, new, and old. We will also support 
our customers’ healthy living through air quality in their houses 
by offering equipment that improves ventilation using heat 
exchange ventilation and electronic air cleaners.

Lifeline field

Life science engineering field

Residential central air-conditioning systems field

DX-EGA, next-generation energy management business 
—Creating new value by using measurement/metering data for decarbonization and 
addressing environmental problems

	�SMaaS business combining the Takaoka Toko Group’s collaborative meter reading 
system and the azbil Group’s existing cloud-based data collection method for 
buildings and gas meters
	�Providing added value in the energy and environmental fields, such as single 
household energy data analysis and supporting corporate ESG and carbon pricing. 
We are also planning to develope services for finance, distribution, healthcare, and 
other fields

The DX-EGA is the concept of a collaborative business combining various 
business data and services with current data collection methods. Business 
conditions in the energy market are undergoing major changes amid the quickly 
growing movements for decarbonization and to address environmental issues. 
The azbil Group is responding by leveraging its existing platform to broaden its 
business from product sales to becoming a provider of services using the power 
of big data.

Close Up
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Japan

China

Thailand

Europe

We have constructed a new building and 
introduced advanced facilities at our Fujisawa 
Technology Center, our core base for techno-
logical research and product development, 
working to enhance our capabilities by building 
an optimal research and development environ-
ment. We focus on research  into cutting-edge 
technologies, such as next-generation 
measuring technology and IoT at our U.S. 
Silicon Valley location, and on the development 
of pharmaceutical manufacturing equipment in 
Europe. While pursuing initiatives that leverage 
the special strengths of each region, we are 
also creating synergies among our global 
locations.

Promoting research and  
global development in 
through our three main hubs 
in Japan, the U.S., and Europe

Japan	� Azbil Corporation’s Fujisawa Technolo-
gy Center, and other locations

USA	� Azbil North America Research and 
Development, Inc.; Azbil North 
America, Inc.; Azbil VorTek, LLC

Europe	�Azbil Europe NV, Belgium; Azbil Telstar, 
S.L.U., Spain

R&D Bases

Azbil Telstar, S.L.U., Spain

Azbil Production (Thailand) Co., Ltd., Thailand

Azbil Corporation (Fujisawa 
Technology Center), Japan

Global Network

Through our global value chain, we aim to increase  
customer satisfaction and contribute to the resolution of 
social issues faced by society.

Technological Research and 
Product Development p. 49

We have established our main manufacturing 
bases in Japan, China, and Thailand to create 
and build a production system that combines 
global competitiveness with responsiveness to 
risks and changes in the market environment. 
Centered on our Shonan Factory and Fujisawa 
Technology Center, which function together as 
a mother factory, all Group companies and 
departments collaborate to maintain optimal 
costs and achieve production of high-perfor-
mance, high-quality products that incorporate 
cutting-edge technology.

Building a highly efficient 
production system centered 
on our mother factory

Manufacturing and 
Procurement p. 53
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The azbil Group is creating an integrated value chain that includes technological research and product development, production 
and procurement, sales, engineering, installation, and services. While sharing case studies for advanced solutions and initiatives in 
Japan, the U.S., Europe, and Asia, we are working to improve customer satisfaction throughout the world and aim to resolve 
environmental and other global social issues.

North 
America

Japan	� Azbil Corporation’s 
Shonan Factory, etc.

China	� Azbil Control Instru-
ments (Dalian) Co., 
Ltd., etc.

Thailand	� Azbil Production 
(Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Main Production 
Factories

Japan �Azbil Corporation; Azbil Trading Co., Ltd.; Azbil 
Kimmon Co., Ltd.; and others

Asia Pacific �Azbil Control Solutions (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.; 
Shanghai Azbil Automation Co., Ltd.; 
Azbil Korea Co., Ltd.; Azbil Singapore Pte. 
Ltd.; PT. Azbil Berca Indonesia; and others

USA/Europe �Azbil North America, Inc.; Azbil Europe NV; 
Azbil Telstar, S.L.U.; and others

Main Sales and Services Locations

Sales
Development
Maintenance services
Production

Based on our global service network, we 
conduct integrated business activities that 
combine sales, engineering, installation, and 
maintenance. We promote DX maintenance 
using cloud technology. In response to the 
different problems faced by our customers in 
each region, we provide world-class solutions 
and maximize the value of our customers’ 
facilities throughout their life cycles.

We work with our customers 
worldwide to create value 
rooted in their sites 

Azbil Corporation (Shonan Factory), Japan

Azbil North America, Inc., USA

Azbil Control Instruments 
(Dalian) Co., Ltd. China

Azbil (Thailand) Co., 
Ltd., Rayong Office 
(Solution & Technology 
Center), Thailand

Sales, Engineering,  
Installation, and Services p. 55
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Three growth fields

Control and monitoring sitesExpanding role of 
automation and 

improving 
corporate value

Overall 
optimization

• Better-quality 
spaces

• Increased 
productivity

• Control of 
energy usage

System Solutions

Field devices

Operating sites

• Changes in 
social 
structure

• Changes in 
business 
environment

• Changes in 
technological 
innovation

• Accelerating 
change due to 
the spread of 
COVID-19

Solutions for azbil Group

Essential Goals of azbil Group 
for SDGs

Environment and energy
Effective CO2 emissions reduction at 
customers’ sites

New automation
Through autonomy of manufacturing 
and operations, the azbil Group will 
improve the quality of customers’ living, 
production, and other shared spaces, 
and create new value

SDGs by 2030

Sustainable SocietySustainable Society

Networks enhanced
through IoT and DX
Networks enhanced
through IoT and DX

New
automation

business 

Environmental 
and energy
business

Life-cycle
solution
business

Technological Research and Product Development

Promoting research and development of products and  
services based on our management strategy to capture  
the changing needs of the market

Technological development policy
The azbil Group is introducing new, competitive products and 
services in the three growth fields of “new automation,” “envi-
ronment and energy” and “life-cycle solutions,” which are 
positioned as the three growth business areas. For this pur-
pose, we are working to further strengthen its measurement 
and control technologies for field devices and system solutions 
(figure below) in order to take advantage of changes in the 
business environment and in technology.

Specifically, we are promoting IoT and DX and our 
network between field devices in operating sites and our 
system solutions in control and monitoring sites. Through this 
network, sensing information received by field devices is 
aggregated and processed in our systems, which facilitates 
control planning and monitoring of sites, allowing for optimiza-

tion of the entire measurement and control system. By pro-
moting these initiatives, we aim to build optimal operating 
systems even for large-scale, complex control targets.

We are also simultaneously promoting the development 
of various individual technologies. For our field devices, we are 
incorporating MEMS, advanced measurement principles, and 
AI capabilities to pursue sensing devices with independent 
processing capabilities. In the area of system solutions, we are 
applying cutting-edge technology such as cloud systems and 
AI to process the big data received from operating sites as we 
work to build the entire system for optimal communication of 
complex phenomena. Through these initiatives, based on 
information that has been optimized using system solutions, 
we aim for more precise control of field devices by making 
them more user friendly and compatible with control devices.

Direction of R&D
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Azbil Europe

Azbil Telstar Fujisawa 
Technology Center

Azbil North America
Azbil North America 
Research and 
Development
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3.0
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(Billions of yen) (%)

(FY)

R&D expenses 11.9 11.8 11.2 12.1
R&D expenses to net sales ratio 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.7

2018 2019 2020 2021
(plan)

12.1

To counter global warming, we are doing retrofits for 
existing buildings and developing energy management 
technology to achieve a continuous reduction in the 
CO2 emitted from large buildings. We are also develop-
ing a product group to provide safer and more secure 
workplaces, which are increasingly in demand during 
the COVID-19 pandemic.

Building Automation business

Using AI and IoT, we are developing cloud services to  
provide safe and efficient remote operations of manu-
facturing facilities.

Advanced Automation business

We are developing new services ranging from labor 
saving in energy infrastructure maintenance to the 
collection and use of big data.

Life Automation business

In doing so, we are developing the three growth fields to 
realize improvements to the quality of space and productivity of 
customers’ assets as well as curbing energy usage as put forth 
in the new long-term targets to contribute to the resolution of 
social issues and realize our own sustainable growth.

To improve the quality of interior spaces at our custom-
ers’ sites, it is important to understand which aspects of the 
interior environment create discomfort or negatively affect 
people’s sensitivity or intellectual productivity, and then to 
control air circulation globally and locally based on whether 
(and how many) people are present. We are working to cap-
ture the necessary information on environmental factors to 
achieve this goal, and continually developing new technology 
to provide indoor environments in which everyone in the facility 
feels comfortable.

To increase productivity at operating sites, we are 
working to help our customers stabilize their operation quality 
by making complex processes more understandable in the 
interests of smart maintenance at manufacturing sites and by 
formalizing and automating human skills. 

To minimize resource and energy use, in addition to using  
energy-saving technologies we have developed through exten-
sive experience, we are working toward further optimization by 
understanding the best methods for saving energy without 
decreasing productivity or the quality of the indoor environment, 
and by learning from changes in the environment and under-
standing both current and predicted energy consumption.

Developing products by combining the three 
growth fields

KPI for technological and product development

Global development framework

While building unique solutions at our customers’ sites, the 
azbil Group is pursuing the following initiatives in its three main 
businesses to continuously create new solutions.

The azbil Group has set out quantitative indicators (KPIs) for 
technological development and product development, includ-
ing the patent application counts, the ratio of R&D expenses 
to net sales, product sales respectively, and the ratio of new 
products to total product sales. Additionally, by understanding 
on an annual basis the results of the technologies and products 
that we have developed, we revise our technological develop-
ment strategy and product development strategy accordingly.

We have a trilateral system of developing technology and 
products in Japan, the U.S., and Europe. These locations 
include our research and development center in Silicon Valley 
and our European companies.

At our U.S. research and development company, we are 
developing next-generation measurement technology, con-
ducting research on the latest technological innovations, 
including those related to IoT and international standardization.

In Europe, through cooperation with companies such as 
Azbil Telstar, S.L.U., we are strengthening our product line for 
pharmaceutical manufacturing facilities and medical facilities.

R&D Bases

R&D Expenses, R&D Expenses to Net Sales Ratio
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Company Location Calibration capacity capabilities

Azbil  
Corporation

Fujisawa Technology 
Center Calibration 
Office

Temperature, humidity, electricity (current, 
voltage), fluid flow (gas, liquid), pressure (vac-
uum), time (frequency), length, weight, torque

Kawara Technology 
Center Calibration 
Office

Temperature, humidity, electricity (current, 
voltage), pressure (vacuum), time (frequency), 
length, weight, torque

Azbil Kimmon 
Co., Ltd.

Calibration Service 
Center Flow rate (gas)

Azbil Kyoto 
Co., Ltd. Calibration Group Flow rate (liquid)

Azbil Corporation
Fujisawa Technology Center 
Calibration Office

Azbil Corporation
Kawara Technology Center Calibration Office

Azbil Kimmon Co., Ltd.
Calibration Service Center Azbil Kyoto Co., Ltd.

Calibration Group

* �Underline indicates JCSS registered 
business certification.

Top-class precision vacuum calibration system in Japan

Conceptual image of the laboratory building, which is scheduled for completion 
by the end of May 2022 (images courtesy of Nikken Sekkei Ltd.)

R&D investment

Human resource development for  
R&D personnel

Strengthening of calibration capabilities Production technology

At the Fujisawa Technology Center, the azbil Group’s core 
research and development hub, which is located in Fujisawa, 
Kanagawa Prefecture, we plan to build two new laboratory 
buildings by May 2022 to further strengthen our ability to 
offer cutting-edge solutions using cloud technology and AI, 
and our ability to develop high-performance, high-precision 
MEMS sensors.

By creating cutting-edge R&D facilities to accelerate the 
development of system solutions and devices for the next stage 
of growth, and by creating innovative workspaces that facilitate 
the creation of ideas for new technology and new value, we are 
improving the efficiency of our research and development in order 
to further create new value for customers. 

We are focused on training personnel who can create high 
added value using AI and big data for our services, and using 
DX for our engineering services (which are the backbone of the 
azbil Group’s business), and who can achieve the timely mar-
ket introduction of new products. Specifically, we are working 
to develop human resources for project management, software 
development, and electronic circuit and machinery design, and 
for the overall strengthening of our technological and develop-
ment capabilities.

With “correct measurement” as the starting point, the azbil 
Group provides safety, comfort, and fulfillment for our custom-
ers. To confirm that the sensors and measurement devices 
that are key to this end goal are functioning correctly, calibra-
tion is essential. The Measurement Standards Section at 
Azbil’s Fujisawa Technology Center is registered as a JCSS 
Accredited Laboratory for the functions of temperature, humid-
ity, electricity, pressure (vacuum), liquid microflow, and time 
(frequency). The Calibration Service Center (for gas flow) of 
Azbil Kimmon and the Calibration Group (for liquid flow) of 
Azbil Kyoto are also certified as JCSS Accredited Laborato-
ries, maintaining calibration capabilities that are top-class in 
Japan. We plan to strengthen our calibration capabilities in 
close coordination with our businesses as part of our efforts to 
create new business.

We are working to strengthen the production technology for 
our next-generation MEMS sensors, an area where we have 
the competitive edge of an unrivaled advanced packaging 
technology. Through the development of new production lines 
using smart machines and systems and AI-powered automa-
tion, we are developing production including high-mix low-vol-
ume production, customized production, and other high 
value-added types of production to meet our customer needs. 
At the Group’s mother factory, the Shonan Factory, and at our 
other production bases, our in-house production lines are 
working to use IoT to strengthen our global production system 
through the remote management of production information 
related to product quality and equipment maintenance.

azbil Group Calibration Locations
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This system, which is compatible with more personal work 
environments and highly convertible layouts, including layouts 
for infection prevention, provides temperature control in finely 
divided zones with cells (outlet units). Through the linked opera-
tion and individualization of smart damper for diffuser (SDF), air 
conditioning can be turned on and off by zone, and the tem-
perature can be set with a smartphone. The air conditioning can 
be adjusted responsively even as persons are nearby are feeling 
different levels of hot and cold. These air conditioning controls 
were developed based on know-how gained from experiments 
performed with volunteers from the company.

In attempts to make production more efficient using IoT, in 
about 50% of the cases where IoT adoption stalls, the problem 
is in the device data collection process. Device manufacturers 
have responded by writing communication programs to match 
the devices that collect data using a PLC*. However, this 
involves an immense amount of development processes, and 
there is  a shortage of human resources with the required skills 
to perform these functions. To resolve this issue, azbil devised 
the concept of the “multi-vendor IoT gateway (model NX-SVG),” 
which greatly reduces the development time model.
* PLC (programmable logic controller)

This system is a software package that immediately identifies 
deviations in monitored values and issues alarms. This system 
constantly monitors changes in the trends of time-series data 
for critical measurement values (process variables like tempera-
ture, pressure, flow rate, liquid level, etc.). Monitoring that uses 
the predictive alarm of this system, which makes predictions 
and activates alarms, affords faster awareness of problems than 
alarm monitoring using a monitoring and control systems (DCS) 
that activates an alarm only if the measured value reaches the 
trigger point for the alarm.

Duct temperature and humidity sensors require regular mainte-
nance to maintain product performance, and there has been a 
demand to reduce the number of maintenance tasks.

To respond to this demand, we developed a compact 
humidity element, and modularized the sensor so that the 
temperature and humidity sensing parts can be swapped out. 
To compensate for a lower S/N ratio due to miniaturization of 
the humidity element, we digitalized the measurement signal 
processing, which also allowed us to resolve issues and make 
improvements in product design and production management.

Early Warning System for Time Series Data

Duct Temperature and Humidity Sensor

Examples of devices and applications for solutions combining  
the three growth fields

New air-conditioning system for “new-normal” 
ways of working

Model NX-SVG communications gateway model, 
providing program-less information sharing be-
tween different control devices

Early warning system for time series data

Humidity element miniaturization and sensor units

SDF

Smartphone application
(for room users)

Wireless sensor
Patent pending

Zone-by-zone temperature 
control brings comfort 
anywhere in the office

Smartphone 
access to air 
conditioning 
control at 
the palm of 
your hand Wireless and easy 

to install in various 
locations

Comfortable

Comfortable

Model NX-SVG Burner controller
Burner diagnosis information can be 
easily acquired from models 
AUR355 and AUR455
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Our mother factory leads azbil Group production, creating a strong global system and raising the level of 
production in Japan and abroad.

CreateDemonstrate

Lead

The azbil Group mother factory
Fujisawa Technology Center
Shonan Factory

Azbil Production 
(Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Azbil Control Instruments 
(Dalian) Co., Ltd.

Quality 
control

Production 
process 

improvement
Information 
systems use

Production 
BCP 

Global 
distribution and 

procurement

CSR (SDGs, 
employee 

satisfaction)
Personnel 

development

Azbil Telstar, S.L.U. Azbil Taishin Co., Ltd
Azbil TA Co., Ltd Azbil Kimmon, Co., Ltd Azbil Kyoto, Co., Ltd

(China)

(Thailand)

(Japan)

Manufacturing and Procurement

Aiming to Establish an Optimal Production System to  
Support Global Business Development 

Basic approach

Improving the global production system

The Group’s new main factory

The azbil Group aims to build an optimal production system that 
supports global business development. In addition to the expect-
ed considerations of quality, cost, delivery deadlines, and manu-
facturing efficiency, we seek production process innovation, 
expanded production scale, and expanded ratio of overseas 
production, while also considering the environmental impact of 
production, the continuing physical and mental health of 
workers, and the promotion of work style reform.

With the expansion of our business globally, we have estab-
lished three production centers in Japan, China, and Thailand. 
At each production center, we are strengthening our procure-
ment network, improving our sales and distribution channels 
for direct sales and shipment to various markets, and working 
to enhance productivity and expand production volume while 
lowering costs.

At our Thailand production center, we continue to 
expand the scale of production with a focus on component 
products using our newly built second factory, which began 
operations in 2018. To manufacture field instruments, we plan 
to enhance our production capacity further with measures that 
include factory expansion. At our production base in the 
Chinese city of Dalian, we increased our production capacity 
of control valves and differential pressure transmitters, and to 
further expand production volume, we are now building a new 

As part of the optimization of our global production system, 
the new Shonan Factory and our technology R&D facility, the 
Fujisawa Technology Center, work in close collaboration, 
functioning together as a mother factory for the Group.

To rise to the challenge of next-generation production, 
our goal is to achieve a “4M revolution” for the basic elements 
of manufacturing (man, machine, material, and method), 
further enhancing the three functions below and the strength 
of the azbil Group’s production.
Create    We aim to create and expand competitive advantages 
in our manufacturing departments that competitors cannot rival, 
by developing cutting-edge technology with advanced MEMS 
sensor packaging, and production processes that harness the 
power of AI and IoT and automatic precision processing.
Demonstrate    One of the azbil Group’s strengths is the 
development of highly automated lines that support high-mix 
low-volume production and other types of customization in 
which humans and machinery work in harmony. That is where 
we demonstrate our competitive production capabilities, which 
are both flexible and powerful.
Lead    The role of our Shonan Factory is to lead the entire 
azbil Group in production, distribution, and procurement, and 

factory scheduled to begin operations in mid-2022. We are 
simultaneously automating production processes to strengthen 
our manufacturing platform.

azbil Group’s Production System
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*1 �Human-centered automation for manufacturing systems (HCA-MS) are 
systems that realize the Group philosophy to aim for human-centered automa-
tion. Such a system mechanizes human capabilities such as kinesthetic sense, 
eyesight, and intelligence, combining the accuracy of machinery with the 
flexibility of human beings, and automating processes that were difficult to 
automate using previous technology. Functionality is modular, allowing reuse 
and flexible response to production facility expansion or other changes.

*2 �With force-control (active compliance) technology, when a robot grasps an 
object, the amount of force placed on the object is measured, and the measure-
ment is used to control the drive motor for the grip. The assembly of fragile glass 
capillaries is achieved by combining force control with positional control.

Flame detector

Glass capillary tube assembly device

Model AUD300C Model AUD100

We succeeded in automating the assembly of easily breakable 
miniature glass capillaries with zero losses by using force-control 
(active compliance) technology*2 that we developed for every 
part of the process.

A Kovar wire with a 0.65 mm external diameter is inserted into a glass 
capillary with a 0.7 mm internal diameter. The gap between the two is only 
0.05 mm. This technique is made possible by azbil’s force-control technology, 
which does not shock or put a load on the easily breakable glass capillaries.

Through the use of our image 
recognition and force-control 
technology, we can pick up 
randomly scattered glass 
capillaries one by one.

Capillary tubes
(internal diameter 
0.7 mm)

Kovar wire
(external diameter 
0.65 mm)

Fully assembled 
product

to promote standardization in the Group’s factories worldwide. 
Moreover, the factory systematically trains personnel in the 
production and management technology used in Japan and 
overseas, and which forms the foundation of those efforts. 
Training focuses on developing personnel who can manage 
production in a global context.

BCP for manufacturing and procurement

Contributing to a sustainable society and 
corporate growth

Innovative production processes

There is no shortage of production and logistical risks, domes-
tic and foreign, including damage from natural disasters or 
other unexpected situations such as the COVID-19 pandemic. 
To minimize the impact of emergencies on our customers, we 
do the following with the aim of restoring production within an 
optimal time frame.
• �Production line BCP: planning for restart of production lines
• �Product BCP: planning for alternate acquisition of parts and 

for maintaining inventory
• �Countermeasures for activity restrictions in the capital area: 

securing alternate factory production and logistical capacity
We also continue to implement preventive maintenance 

for natural disasters such as  earthquakes and floods, etc., 
install seismic countermeasures and employee safety measures, 
and increase office and factory disaster prevention capabilities.

The azbil Group has announced SDG goals and is strengthen-
ing efforts in the area of manufacturing to contribute to a 
sustainable society and to grow continuously as a company.

We are improving energy efficiency using IT, AI, and 
other technologies. With regard to products, we are employing 
energy-saving design to reduce the amount of material used, 
make greater use of reusable materials, and reduce the num-
ber of parts used. Furthermore, to fulfill our responsibilities for 
the supply chain, we cooperate with our business partners on 
achieving the SDGs as a shared goal that will help to realize a 
sustainable society. We continue to work on the optimization 
of our global production framework, providing high-quality 
advanced technologies, products, and services worldwide in a 
timely manner. In so doing, we strive to meet the various 
needs of our customers and contribute to a sustainable soci-
ety and sustainable business operations (Reference: Essential 
goal III: Supply Chain, Social Responsibility on page 63).

The azbil Group aims to innovate its production processes and 
to construct competitive production lines through improved 
production technology.

Specifically, we promote the development and applica-
tion of production line technology that allows us to create 
products few other companies can. We pursue unique and 
highly advanced manufacturing processes such as the con-
nection, bonding, and assembly of micro parts and other 
precision processes exemplified by our MEMS sensor assem-

bly, which utilizes  new materials and the use of innovative 
material processing techniques.

In addition, to improve manufacturing process efficiency 
and quality, we are systematically moving toward further 
automation and systemization of processes based on the azbil 
Group’s own HCA-MS*1 concept. By combining the latest in AI 
and IoT technology with the precise assembly, product pro-
cessing, and image processing know-how of the azbil Group, 
we are working towards an advanced level of automation by 
mechanizing processes that were once difficult to automate, 
such as those that required the skill and experience of work-
ers, and by automating inspection processes that once need-
ed a certain level of experience and judgment.

We are working to expand the scope of application of 
these initiatives from our mother factory to production sites in 
Japan and overseas, to maintain and improve quality globally, 
and to strengthen our competitiveness.

Example of Flame Detector Glass Assembly Process
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Practice of Value Creation — Provision of Value to our Customers

System solution development

Measurement and control
equipment development

Delivery of the value created through marketing, technological research and product development, and gaining 
trust by addressing issues in the field and increasing value

Technological 
research and 

product 
development

Marketing CustomersCo-creation of value with customers in the field

Sales, Engineering, Installation, and Service

Maximization of Life-cycle Value through an Integrated 
System that Covers Sales, Engineering, Installation,  
and Service

Providing total solutions worldwide

Maintenance service

Sales, engineering, and installation

In order to maximize life-cycle value in our customers’ build-
ings, factories, and plants, the azbil Group has a uniquely 
integrated framework that allows us to offer total solutions 
incorporating everything from consulting and sales proposals 
to engineering, installation, and services. Our sales engineers, 
systems engineers, field engineers, and service engineers 
work around the world to provide optimized solutions tailored 
to each site in order to meet the different requirements at 
various stages of the life cycle: planning, operation, mainte-
nance, improvement, and refurbishing.

Our service engineers are specialists in the equipment and 
systems used in buildings, plants, factories, and other facilities. 
They provide optimized operation, regular inspections, and 
maintenance services, and they respond quickly in the event of 
an urgent problem. Additionally, they make sure to promptly 
share feedback from customers with the Group. By incorporat-
ing customer feedback into our products and services we are 
able to raise the value and efficiency of our onsite operations. 

We work in an integrated framework to share the various 
needs and problems faced by our customers in their buildings, 
plants, and factories, from analysis of problems and proposal 
of solutions, to system design and actual onsite installation 
and adjustment.

In the air conditioning control systems in buildings handled by 
our BA business, there are differing challenges depending on 
the nature of the facility (offices, etc.) and the regional charac-
teristics. Based on its know-how and actual operating data 
accumulated over many years, the azbil Group can recom-
mend optimal products ranging from BA systems to ener-
gy-saving solutions, depending on the use of the facility and 
the type of operations. In addition, we provide onsite engineer-
ing and manage the safety, quality, and cost of our installa-
tions, providing the level of control that our customers request.

Customers at the manufacturing sites handled by our AA 
business also have a wide range of requests, which change 
greatly in line with evolving technology, such as  IoT. We con-
stantly work together with our customers to pursue solutions, 
ranging from creating systems for factories and plants to 
improving manufacturing processes, providing energy-saving 
solutions, and proposing optimal products and applications.

Life science engineering is one component of our LA business. 
We provide the equipment used to produce vaccines and 
other pharmaceutical products. To ensure the safety of these 
products, there are technologically complex and highly distinct 
requirements for the manufacturing equipment and services, 
which must also comply with very strict legal regulations in 
their design and fabrication. We use our deep knowledge in 
this area to propose optimal solutions that satisfy both our 
customers and the legal requirements.

Building Automation (BA)

Advanced Automation (AA)

Life Automation (LA)

Boosting QCDSE using DX and HR

The azbil Group Service Business
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Japan

Overseas

Solution proposals

Malfunction diagnosis
Facility control diagnosis
Energy-usage diagnosis

Remote maintenance (monitoring) 

Maintenance service

Large-scale buildings

Factories & plants

CloudTemperature, 
alarms, energy 

usage, etc.

Technical support

Consulting
sales

Service
engineers

BA
system

Monitoring
& control
systems

Access lines
Access lines

Communication infrastructure for services

Large-scale buildings

BA
system

Factories & plants

Monitoring
& control
systems

VPN*

Mobile
network

Diagnoses
Proposals

Inspections
Troubleshooting

(overseas 
subsidiaries)

(Japan)

* �We define five stages of risk, and work to prevent infection and manage 
workflow at each risk level to ensure the safety of our employees and prevent 
the spread of infection.

* Virtual organizational networks, which communication with distant locations makes possible as if it were within the company’s own network

In our BA business, we are enhancing the remote maintenance 
technology that allows us to remotely monitor buildings over-
seas and to provide efficient maintenance services with high 
added value. In our AA business, we are expanding our Asian 
service area, including China, Thailand, Singapore, and Indo-
nesia, by developing a comprehensive solutions-oriented valve 
business encompassing everything from the supply of control 
valve products to maintenance services. In addition to IoT-
based services that use big data and AI, such as monitoring 
for anomalies and predicting future conditions, we provide 
added-value solutions services globally as we work to expand 
our life-cycle solutions business.

To support our global service business in adapting to the condi-
tions of each country and to develop engineers who can pro-
pose added value to customers, we have established a system-
atic program to train measurement, control, and maintenance 
specialists and data scientists both in Japan and overseas.

Based on the unique advanced technology and abundant know-
how acquired by its control and management professionals, the 
azbil Group is working to create tools for its service operations. 
In addition to making site inspections more efficient, these tools 
allow us to more effectively maintain automated control devices 
by remotely collecting data and analyzing “event” outputs, and 
by having offsite experts examine control operations. Additional-

In its operations and maintenance work at hospitals and other 
facilities of importance for society and for customers, the azbil 
Group places top priority on employee and customer safety, 
and implements thorough safety measures to ensure the 
continuity of operations. Group personnel maintain air condi-
tioning systems in hospitals where staff are working hard every 
day to save the lives of those affected by COVID-19. To ensure 
the safety of the hospital personnel and prevent the spread of 
infections within hospitals, we pay the utmost attention to our 
system of risk-level management* as we implement various 
measures in close communication with the hospital staff. Our 
onsite staff has a strong sense of mission in maintaining equip-
ment and the indoor environment to allow the medical profes-
sionals to focus on treatment and to ensure the peace of mind 
of both COVID-19 patients and general patients.

Global expansion of the life-cycle solutions business 

Human resource development to support global services

Improving service productivity and added value 
through DX

Putting safety first in the maintenance of important facilities

Remote Maintenance Service Platform (Examples of Use in Our BA and AA Businesses)

Also, we are transitioning from conventional labor-intensive 
services to knowledge-intensive services centered on solutions 
proposals based on our wealth of data and proven results. We are 
also working to improve systems and personnel training overseas 
in order to offer the same services globally that we offer in Japan.

Through our DX-powered platform for providing engineer-
ing and services and our highly experienced and skilled human 
resources, we help our customers to achieve their targets for 
quality, cost, delivery, safety, and environment (QCDSE).

ly, through the collection and analysis of equipment self-diagnos-
tic information, we can proactively propose preventive mainte-
nance services that ensure system reliability.

While helping to solve a broad range of problems for 
customers by increasing the added value of these services, we 
are also transitioning to knowledge-intensive services through 
the sale of new products and services.
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Decade of Action

Selection of 
SDGs priority 

items

FY2018 Up to FY2030 

Implementation of 
the cycle of 
actions and 

reporting results

FY2019

Guiding 
Principles and 

Code of Conduct 
revised, goals set

FY2020

Established Corporate 
Sustainability Headquarters 

Strengthened activities 
under the new framework

Announced essential goals*
Established targets

FY2021

Established 
new targets 

SDGs Promotion 
Framework

Board of Directors

Manage-
ment

Managers

Employees

SDGs Promotion Committee

Reporting/Approval/
Direction

Promotion Committee: 
Provides overall strategy 
and guidance

Goals working 
groups: Determine 
specific actions to 
achieve each goal 
and handle promotion

Management Meeting

Main Office: 
Corporate 

Sustainability 
Headquarters

Environment 
and Energy 

Working Group

New 
Automation 

Working 
Group

azbil Group Liaison Working Groups for SDGs promotion

Supply 
Chain 

Working 
Group

Health and 
Well-being 

Management & 
Learning 

Working Group

* Essential goals: Ⅰ-Ⅳ goals listed on the right page. For each goal detailed qualitative and quantitative targets have been established.

Practice of Value Creation — Contributing to the SDGs

azbil Group’s Value Creation and Approach to Realizing the SDGs
The azbil Group shares the value of sustainability with society by working with stakeholders to pro-
mote activities that contribute to the SDGs.

This leads to our sustained growth and increased corporate value. 

Since the UN adopted the SDGs in 2015, the azbil Group has 
used them as a compass to guide its business activities. Since 
then, we have engaged in SDG initiatives to achieve sustained 

growth and contribute “in series” to a sustainable society. We 
established the Essential Goals of azbil Group for SDGs in 
2019, positioning the period through FY2030 as a Decade of 
Action and stepping up our efforts, driven by the Corporate 
Sustainability Headquarters set up in 2020.

azbil Group’s Approach to the SDGs

The azbil Group’s Corporate Sustainability Headquarters 
functions as the main office for running the SDGs Promotion 
Committee, which utilizes the PDCA cycle to step up the 
initiatives to achieve the Essential Goals of azbil Group for 
SDGs in FY2030. The Corporate Sustainability Headquarters 
formulates, executes, and evaluates plans relating to the 
SDGs, based on the discussions of the SDGs Promotion 
Committee, and reports on progress to the Board of Directors. 

Four working groups with different themes have been set 
up under the umbrella of the SDGs Promotion Committee. 
These working groups are liaising closely through the azbil 
Group CSR Promotion Committee, which has a cross-organiza-
tional function, with bodies such as the azbil Group Technology 
Committee, as well as guiding issue resolution and SDG realiza-
tion efforts on a Group-wide basis. For example, in collaboration 
with the Human Resources Department and Azbil Academy, a 
specialized organization dedicated to personnel development, 
the working groups are promoting greater awareness of the 
SDGs throughout the Group and focusing on education and 
training activities that will encourage proactive participation on 
the part of every employee. At the same time, by working 
closely with the Corporate Communication Task Force, the 
working groups are promoting SDG initiatives and disseminating 
ESG information that responds to the demands of society.

SDGs Promotion Framework

The Steps azbil Group is Taking to Achieve the SDGs
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*1 Base year: 2017 
*2 Greenhouse gases (i.e. CO2) 
*3 Base year: 2017
*4 �Management that integrates environmental activity such as decarbonization, resource circulation, and biodiversity conservation into business operations.
*5 �A general term for material and energy found in nature that can be used in daily human lives and that exists naturally and can be used for people’s daily lives 

and in production activities
*6 Best available technology (BAT) refers to the most effective technology that is both economically and technologically viable.
*7 All offices both in Japan and overseas 
*8 The azbil Group aims to participate in activities of a scale that can accommodate the total number of employees.
*9 Points tallied internally, with weight given based on the role, such as company executive, officer, and manager
*10 Points tallied internally for participating in opportunities (frequency or number of employees) to learn with stakeholders

Essential Goals Targets SDGs 

 

Environment 
and Energy

Solutions for energy (toward a decarbonized society)
  �Effective reduction of CO2 at customers’ sites  3.4 million metric tons of 

CO2/year
  �55% reduction*1 in GHG*2 emissions from our business activities 
  �20% reduction*3 in GHG emissions across the entire supply chain
Environmental preservation (realization of Integrated 
Environmental Corporate Management*4)
  �Creation and provision of eco-friendly products and services
  �Effective use of natural resources*5 and reduction of waste generation 

– design all new products to be 100% recyclable*6

Ⅰ

Preserving the 
Earth’s environment 
and solving ener-
gy-related problems 
through cooperative 
creation

Ⅱ
Realizing a safe and 
comfortable society 
through new auto-
mation

New  
Automation

Providing productivity and higher value that lead to 
customers’ peace of mind and comfort
  �Through autonomy of manufacturing and operations, the azbil Group 

will improve the quality of customers’ living, production, and other 
shared spaces, and create new value

  �Realization of a smart society through technological innovation
  �Providing solutions based on new ideas

 

Supply Chain 

Social Re-
sponsibility

Fulfilling social responsibilities with customers  
and partners  
(Expansion of azbil CSR activities to share value)
  �Working with our business partners on achieving SDGs as a common 

goal and creating shared CSR value across the supply chain 
Invigorating local communities  
(Contributions around azbil Group bases)
  �Social contribution activities rooted in local communities are run at all 

our business sites,*7 with active participation by every employee *8

Ⅲ

Fulfilling our respon-
sibilities to society 
across our supply 
chain and contribut-
ing to local commu-
nities

Ⅳ

Strengthening our 
foundations to solve 
societal problems 
through health and 
well-being manage-
ment and continu-
ous learning

Health and 
Well-being 
Management

An Organiza-
tion That 
Never Stops 
Learning

Implementing health and well-being management 
(job satisfaction, health, diversity & inclusion)
(Creating workplaces that allow flexible work styles and a reduction in 
total work hours, maintaining and promoting employees’ mental and 
physical health, and creating opportunities for diverse personnel to 
demonstrate their abilities)
  �65% or more employees expressed satisfaction with working at azbil 

Group companies
  �Double women’s advancement points*9 by 2024 (versus 2017)
Developing and strengthening “an organization that 
never stops learning”  
(Expanding opportunities for continuing education of globally active employees 
and opportunities to learn with stakeholders)
  �65% or more employees have experienced personal growth over the 

past year 
  �Double training opportunity points*10 by 2024 (versus 2012) 

Business

General Corporate Activities

The essential goals of azbil Group for SDGs consist of targets 
relevant to achieving the four essential goals. We established 
new targets for the essential goals.

By ensuring that all of our employees understand the 
goals and communicate further with our stakeholders during 
the course of our activities, we can collaborate with our cus-
tomers, business partners, and local communities to acceler-
ate cooperative creation aimed at solving societal problems 
and contribute to sustained growth for society as a whole.

Essential Goals of azbil Group for SDGs

SDG Goals and Key Initiatives
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Practice of Value Creation — Contributing to the SDGs

Environment and EnergyEssential Goal I

2.94 million metric tons of CO2 / year
Total effective reduction of CO2 at customers’ sites (FY2020)

Automation effects Energy management effects Maintenance and services effects

Utilizing our measurement and control 
technologies, we contribute to reducing 
environmental impact with our advanced 
control solutions that deliver stability and 
optimization of automatic control systems 
and process equipment for buildings.

2.69 million metric tons of 
CO2 / year

0.21 million metric tons of 
CO2 / year

0.04 million metric tons of 
CO2 / year

We have reduced environmental impact, 
taking advantage of our energy manage-
ment solution, to lower electricity con-
sumption, energy consumption, and CO2 
emissions.

We have reduced environmental impact by 
providing the high value-added services of 
the azbil Group, taking advantage of the 
knowledge and expertise acquired at 
customers’ sites.

*1	 In order to assess the contribution to the reduction of environmental impact quantitatively, the effects were classified into the three categories of 1) effects from 
automation, 2) effects from energy management, and 3) effects from maintenance services. Global reduction impact is partially based on original methods.

*2	 A third party reviewed the estimation method.

The target of effective CO2 reduction at 
customers’ sites

3.40 million metric tons of CO2/year

Fiscal Year 2030 Targets

Solutions for Energy (Toward a Decarbonized Society)

Solving global environmental problems is a prerequisite for 
achieving a sustainable society, and it is one of the key issues of 
the SDGs. The azbil Group recognizes that responding to 

We offer products, services, and solutions that help our cus-
tomers reduce CO2 emissions at their sites.

We strive to reduce society’s environmental impacts by 
providing automation equipment and systems for process 
optimization and stabilization, energy management, and other 
solutions to achieve a reduction in energy use and CO2 emis-
sions by way of maintenance and services on those equipment 
and systems after delivery. We help to reduce environmental 
impacts throughout our customer’s product life cycles. 

The total annual effective reduction of CO2 at cus-
tomers’ sites for the FY2020 was 2.94 million metric tons.*1 *2 
This corresponds to approximately 1/400 of the total CO2 
emitted in Japan each year (approx. 1.2 billion metric tons). 
The reduction in CO2 is 0.07 million metric tons less than the 

climate change is a priority, and we have set solutions for ener-
gy toward a decarbonized society and realizing environment-in-
tegrated management as our targets to achieve the SDGs.
(Reference: Environmental Initiatives on pp. 67-70)

reduction of 3.01 million metric tons achieved in the FY2019, 
but this is because of business changes caused by the 
COVID-19 pandemic and a lower CO2 emission factor for 
electric power due to the increased adoption of renewable 
energy sources. By FY2030, we aim to increase this effective 
reduction to 3.40 million metric tons of CO2. We have included 
overseas customer sites in these estimates since FY2014 in line 
with our global business expansion. 

Preserving the Earth’s Environment and Solving Ener-
gy-Related Problems through Cooperative Creation

Further Effective Reduction of CO2 at Customers’ Sites

web Please visit the link below for more information. 
(Contribution to the Environment: https://www.azbil.com/csr/basic/environment/core_business_activities/contribution/contribution-to-the-environment/index.html)
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*1 �Management that comprehensively incorporates a wide range of environmen-
tal activities including decarbonization, resource circulation, and biodiversity 
conservation into business operations.

*2 �Refers to a general term for substances and energy that exist naturally and 
can be used for human life and production activities.

*1 �The SBTi divides targets into three categories, or scopes. 
Scope 1: Direct GHG emissions from a business (from fuel burning, industrial 
processes, etc.) 
Scope 2: Indirect GHG emissions from using electricity, heat, or steam 
provided by another business. 
Scope 3: Indirect GHG emissions related to business activities (indirect 
emissions not included in scopes 1 and 2)

*2 �The targets officially approved by the SBT initiative refer to base years and 
target years as fiscal years. As such, all years stated above are fiscal years.

*3 �An organization jointly established by the CDP (a coalition of institutional 
investors that promotes disclosure of information regarding corporate 
measures taken to address climate change), the UN Global Compact (UNGC), 
the World Resources Institute (WRI), and the World Wide Fund for Nature 
(WWF), in order to achieve the GHG reduction targets delineated above. The 
SBTi is an international initiative that certifies company targets for reduced 
CO2 emissions as being consistent with scientific evidence. The 1.5˚C target 
is aimed at keeping the rise in global average temperatures due to climate 
change to no more than 1.5˚C compared with pre-industrial revolution levels.

*4 �The targets approved by the SBTi are as follows: Azbil Corporation commits 
to reduce absolute scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions 55% by FY2030 from a 
FY2017 base year. Azbil Corporation also commits to reduce absolute Scope 
3 GHG emissions 20% within the same timeframe.

*5 �In an azbil press release dated May 14, 2021, the revised target of a 60% 
reduction in GHG emissions was for a 2013 base year. An application was 
submitted to certify the SBTi’s goal of 1.5℃, and based on the reduction 
amount, the target was officially reapproved as a 55% reduction from a 2017 
base year, which matches the base year for scope 3.
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Our Targets for GHG Emission Reduction from 
Business Activities (scopes 1+2) 

less less

（FY）

Environmental Preservation (Realization of Integrated Environmental Corporate Management*1)

We have formulated our 2050 Long-term Vision for Reducing 
GHG Emissions, which lays out our goal to achieve substan-
tially zero GHG emissions (scopes*1 1+2) from our own busi-
ness activities by 2050, and we propose to achieve car-
bon-neutral operations.

Moves are now being made to rapidly decarbonize all 
aspects of society, prompting us to update our target for 
reducing GHG emissions through business activities to a 55% 
reduction (from a 2017 base year), up from the 30% reduction 
(from a 2013 base year*2) approved in 2019 by the Science 
Based Targets initiatives (SBTi)*3 for our goal of keeping the 
global temperature increase below 2℃ compared with pre-in-
dustrial revolution levels (2°C target). This new target was 
reapproved as a 1.5°C target by the SBTi in August 2021.

GHG Emissions Reduction Target for Business Activities 
Reapproved by the SBT Initiative for Its 1.5˚C Target

GHG emissions from business activities 
(scopes 1+2)
55% reduction

(Ref: 2017 base year; reapproved August 2021*5)

GHG emissions throughout the  
entire supply chain (scope 3)

20% reduction
(Ref: 2017 base year; approved May 2019)

Fiscal Year 2030 Targets*4

Design all new products to be
100%

recyclable

Fiscal Year 2030 Targets

As well as creating and supplying more eco-friendly products 
and services, we are also helping to promote the 3Rs (reduce, 
reuse, recycle) through more environmentally conscious design 
during new product development.

In FY2020, we set a new guideline to “design all new 
products to be 100% recyclable.” We are working on designs 
that can be appropriately disassembled/separated and recy-
cled when a customer disposes of the product, within the 
scope of the BAT.

Effective Use of Natural Resources*2 and Reduction in 
the Amount of Waste
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Practice of Value Creation — Contributing to the SDGs

TCFD  
— Initiative to Understand and Disclose Climate Change Impacts

*1 The task force and corresponding framework designed to promote disclosure of the impact of climate change, comprised of central banks and financial institutions 
from the world’s leading countries. It requires the disclosure of the potential impact of climate change on business operations in the context of at least two potential 
scenarios.

*2 This scenario assumes that temperature rise is contained within a sustainable range due to the implementation of stricter regulations and the introduction of techno-
logical innovations aimed at a decarbonized society. 

*3 This scenario assumes that no effective measures to reduce CO2 emissions are implemented, resulting in continued temperature rise and an increase in abnormal 
weather and natural disasters.

Item Initiative Details

Governance
The azbil Group recognizes that climate change is one of the top priorities in practicing the Group philosophy, and a cross-group 
task force led by designated officers was formed to deliberate in Management Meetings from the perspective of business and 
financial impacts under supervision of the Board of Directors.

Strategy

The azbil Group promotes reducing the environmental impact of our business activities and harnessing the technologies and 
expertise accumulated through those initiatives. We contribute to the environment through our core businesses by utilizing our 
measurement and control technologies to help customers solve their environmental issues, which will lead to the realization of a 
sustainable society.

(A) Disclosure of opportunities and risks
If the temperature rise is controlled (the scenario assuming a rise of between 1.5℃ and 2℃)*2

If temperature rise continues (the scenario assuming a rise of approximately 4℃) *3

(B) Impact of opportunities and risks on azbil Group financial plans, and countermeasures
• �At this stage, we recognize that there are more opportunities than risks, as reduction of CO2 emissions significantly out-

weighs CO2 emissions from azbil Group business activities. 

• �We are actively investing in R&D and equipment to accelerate new products’ and services’ development and their launch 
onto the market, to enable the azbil Group to contribute to a sustainable society.

• �The azbil Group is also working to decentralize the production network to reduce the risk of concentration.

Risk  
Management

The azbil Group comprehensively works to identify risks that may have a significant impact on operations, including those con-
nected to climate change. (1) After risks are extracted and analyzed by the Comprehensive Risk Subcommittee, consisting mainly 
of the department managers, (2) the Comprehensive Risk Committee, headed by the executive officer in charge of risk manage-
ment, identifies “risks deemed important to the azbil Group” for deliberation and decision-making by the Board of Directors. Once 
the risks are identified, the Company works to reduce the various types of risk by proposing countermeasures at the Management 
Meeting and other forums and reporting on the implementation status of measures as necessary to the Board of Directors.

Indicators  
and Goals

We promote efforts to combat climate change through our business activities which contribute “in series” to the achievement of a 
sustainable society, by considering indicators and goals that take into account all azbil Group customers, the Group itself, and its 
entire supply chain.
• �Target setting for reduced GHG (CO2) emissions at customer sites
• �Implementation of the 2050 Long-term Vision for Reducing GHG Emissions, which lays out our goal to achieve substantially zero 

emissions by 2050 by reducing GHG emissions (scopes 1+2) within our own companies
• �Formulation of (SBT certified) emission reduction targets for 2030 to reduce GHG emissions throughout the supply chain and 

help achieve the Long-Term Vision

Building Automation business Advanced Automation business Life Automation business

Opportunity
Expanding demand for energy-sav-
ings solutions and services that meet 
global needs

Increased demand for solutions, and 
sensors and other measurement 
instruments designed for new industries

Increased SMaaS business for gas 
meters using IoT technologies 

Risk
• Increased development costs for products and services to meet new regulations
• Increased production and procurement costs due to rising energy prices
• Reduced customer investment from increased burden due to introduction of carbon taxes and other costs

Building Automation business Advanced Automation business Life Automation business

Opportunity
Increased demand for products, services, 
and solutions that enable buildings to 
adapt to climate-related disaster

Increased demand for products, services, 
and solutions that offer anomaly predic-
tion function

Increased demand for products, services, 
and solutions adapted to handle 
climate-related disasters

Risk • Operational stoppages due to abnormal weather events, inability to provide products, services, and solutions
• Large reduction in customer investment due to business instability caused by abnormal weather

Main opportunity factors
Expansion of opportunities for the azbil Group’s products, 
services, and solutions
• �Expansion of CO2 reduction benefits (Target: 3.40 million tons 

/ 2030)
• �Expansion of corporate needs due to stricter regulations 

(decarbonization and energy conservation laws)
• �Increase in the VPP market to promote ZEBs, etc.

Main risk factors
Increase in physical risk due to increase in CO2 emissions 
from business activities and natural disasters
• �CO2 emissions from business activities (diminishing based 

on SBT target)
• �Risk of shutdown due to abnormal weather, etc.

In November 2019, the azbil Group endorsed the recommen-
dations by the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclo-
sures (TCFD)*1 to gain an accurate understanding of the 
impact of climate change on business activities and disclose 
that impact. After this announcement, we summarized azbil 
Group governance, opportunities, and risks connected to 
climate change as shown in the table below. Current evalua-

tions of each of our businesses’ opportunities and risks, based 
on a scenario where global temperatures are rising, indicate 
that the opportunities for business activities that contribute to 
reducing CO2 greatly outweigh the risks.

In line with the instructions by TCFD, we will continue to 
disclose the impact of climate change on the management of 
the Group.

azbil2021_e_049-064_1018.indd   61azbil2021_e_049-064_1018.indd   61 2021/10/18   19:342021/10/18   19:34

062azbil report 2021

Our online anomaly monitoring system utilizes big data 
from operations of production equipment at factories 
and plants for AI-driven learning. The system provides 
real-time monitoring of quality, equipment, utilities, and 
environmental load and detects minute changes that are 
warning signs of future problems. The system is current-
ly installed at over 50 sites for manufacturing and power 
generation customers and is operating over 5,000 AI 
models. These systems 
have also contributed to 
promoting remote 
operations during the 
COVID-19 pandemic 
and cultivating technical 
skills at the production 
sites, as well as to 
reducing manpower.

* �Automation is achieved through the four stages of: (1) monitoring; (2) control; 
(3) optimization; and (4) autonomy. Autonomy occurs at the highest level, and 
autonomous systems enable minimum human intervention and reduce prob-
lems caused by human error or equipment malfunctions. We also highlight New 
Automation as a technology that can help to solve a range of societal problems 
that have emerged in recent years, including resolving manpower shortages at 
worksites, reducing psychological burdens, promoting work-style reform, 
minimizing economic losses, maximizing energy efficiency, reducing industrial 
waste, and preventing accidents and disasters. 

Online Anomaly Detection System

Development Example 1

The system can satisfy production, inventory, and 
delivery capacity constraints; minimize costs and lead 
times; and rapidly devise automated plans. At a chemi-
cal plant, the system achieved a 95% reduction in the 
time required for instruction planning. The system can 
devise highly accurate production plans while manag-
ing various events each time they occur during manu-
facturing (including 
quality issues, equip-
ment malfunctions, and 
last-minute orders). The 
system also reduces 
the psychological 
burden on employees 
at the production site 
caused by time con-
straints.

Automatic Optimization Scheduling System

Development Example 2

AI detects signs of anomalies 
from minute changes in 
environmental variables

Automatically create a produc-
tion plan suited to the situation

New AutomationEssential Goal II

Our customers’ business environments have undergone rapid 
change due to the COVID-19 pandemic and accelerating DX. 
As a result, the azbil Group has reviewed the social signifi-
cance of automation in this new era and redefined the goal of 
new automation in the new medium-term plan (FY2021–2024) 
as: technology that, through autonomy* of manufacturing and 
operations, will improve the quality of customers’ living, pro-
duction, and other shared spaces and create new value.  

The autonomous systems built by the azbil Group inde-
pendently devise the most logical and efficient action plan for 
the assigned production target (production volume), and then 
execute the tasks optimally through coordination between 
existing automation equipment and control software. During 
this process, the autonomous system foresees malfunctions 

By providing new solutions based on the concept of 
autonomy, the azbil Group will solve various societal problems.

(e.g., quality defects, equipment failure); devises revised pro-
duction conditions or maintenance commands and other 
workarounds as needed; and works to minimize production 
costs, waste volumes, and CO2 emissions. With the autono-
mous system actively repeating this sort of cycle, it is possible 
to reduce human intervention and achieve productivity on a 
completely different scale than before. 

Realizing a Safe and Comfortable Society with  
New Automation

Autonomous Systems in Production Spaces

Providing Productivity and Higher Value That Lead to Customers’ Peace of 
Mind and Comfort
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Practice of Value Creation — Contributing to the SDGs

Supply Chain, Social ResponsibilityEssential Goal III

To fulfill our social responsibility across the supply chain, in 
2021, the azbil Group reviewed and amended our Essential 
Goals of azbil Group for SDGs and developed original indica-
tors in 10 major areas (see table at right), drawing on evalua-
tions of ESG by the FTSE and other external institutions. We 
plan to share these indicators with our business partners and 
to implement CSR activities that the azbil Group is known for 
— ones that utilize the knowledge the Group has built up over 
many years in such areas as environment, quality, compliance, 
and health and well-being management. 

We will evaluate the direction, framework, initiatives, 
and effectiveness of these activities using a four-tiered system 
to review independent achievement levels. We will also collect 
the results of customer questionnaires. Through this scheme 
that includes the four-tiered evaluation and the review, we aim 

In conjunction with the revisions to the Essential Goals for the 
SDGs, the azbil Group has also formulated the “aims” and 
“key themes” for the initiatives being run under the essential 
goal of “Implementing community-based social contribution 
activities across all the azbil Group’s offices with each employ-
ee actively participating.” In addition, to facilitate the practice 
of continuous and systematic activities, the Social Contribution 
Promotion Office was established in April 2021. Our aim is to 
contribute “in series” to the achievement of a sustainable 
society, by training every employee to tackle social problems 
in Japan and overseas with a focus on issues such as pres-
ervation of the global environment and how we foster the 
next generation. 

to promote ongoing collaboration and improvements with our 
business partners, as well as solutions to environmental and 
societal issues and other types of shared CSR value in the 
supply chain.

Sharing CSR Values across the Supply Chain

Implementing Community-Based Social Contribution 
Activities across All Offices

Main category Sub-category

Environmental supply chain

Climate change
Pollution & resources
Water security & water risk
Biodiversity
Environmental management

Social supply chain

Labor practices
Health and safety
Human rights
Communities (regional society)
Quality & customers

Major areas of indicators for evaluation across the 
supply chain

Aims
We aim to achieve a sense of solidarity and 
accomplishment as the azbil Group by establishing a 
corporate culture that helps individual employees to  
plan and implement solutions to societal problems  
and achieve ongoing personal growth, and to  
participate in initiatives that bring individual  
employees together with various stakeholders.

Key themes
· Areas involving the global environment
· �Areas involving people (particularly fostering the next 
generation) 

One of the Guiding Principles is our desire to build long-term 
partnerships with stakeholders. For the supply chain, we act in 
line with our Group philosophy and Guiding Principles, under-
standing and complying with all laws and regulations and 
expanding worldwide in an equitable way with due consider-
ation given to human rights and the environment. For our initia-
tives, we are working to implement corporate social responsi-

bility (CSR) throughout the supply chain by helping our 
business partners to understand our philosophy, principles, 
and the efforts we undertake.

Regarding our contributions to communities and societ-
ies where we operate, we engage in a wide range of initiatives, 
from grassroots efforts undertaken voluntarily by employees to 
offering donations to areas affected by the disasters.
(Reference: CSR Procurement on page 72)

Fulfilling Our Responsibilities to Society across Our 
Supply Chain and Contributing to Local Communities

Fulfilling Social Responsibility with Customers and Business Partners

Invigorating Local Communities
Please visit the link below for more information about our initiatives.

web https://www.azbil.com/csr/index.html
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Health and Well-being Management,  
An Organization That Never Stops LearningEssential Goal IV 

In 2019, we announced the azbil Group “Health and Well-be-
ing Declaration,” which revolves around work style reform and 
diversity. To make workplaces and employees healthy, happy, 
and lively, we are focusing on measures to improve job satis-
faction for our employees and to promote greater diversity in 
the workforce so that women and other diverse human re-
sources can play an active role.

The employee satisfaction survey conducted every year 
has demonstrated that for job satisfaction, there is a strong 
correlation between “the value of own work” and “trust and 
appraisal from supervisor.” We are therefore providing coaching 
& leadership training for employees in managerial roles across 
the azbil Group to improve subordinate recognition and motiva-
tional capabilities as well as organizational energy. We have 
changed the focus of our programs from the previous concept 
of “turning minus into zero” (measures on health and safety, and 
work-life balance) to “turning zero into plus” (measures to 
promote self-efficacy and organizational energy), which may 
help increase employee job satisfaction even further.

An organization that never stops learning can respond flexibly 
to changes in the business environment and promote opera-
tional reforms through the creation of new business and new 
ways of working, so that each employee grows autonomously 
to become a globally engaged human resource.

To continuously develop such human resources, the 
azbil Group is adding to its existing training programs by 
expanding opportunities to learn with stakeholders, including 
technical training with distributors, partner companies, and 
customers, as well as site tours for local community members. 
We also offer employee training that allows employees to 
experience personal growth through diligent study.

To encourage career development through various 
experiences provided at work and foster employees’ personal 
growth, the azbil Group has defined two indicators of prog-
ress: a point system to log educational opportunities, and the 
ratio of employees who experienced personal growth over the 
past year. These benchmarks guide our activities as an organi-
zation that never stops learning.

Implementing Health and Well-being Management 
That Revolves around Work Style Reform and Diversi-
ty and Inclusion

Developing Human Resources as an Organization That 
Never Stops Learning

Double the points for promoting the success of  
women compared with 2017*1 

(by FY2024)
Achieve a 65% or more*2 ratio of

employees who find satisfaction in 
working at the azbil Group

(by FY2030)
*1 �Points tallied internally with weight given based on the role, such as 

company executive, officer, and manager. 
*2 �Employee satisfaction survey conducted annually.

Targets for FY2024 and FY2030
Double the points for educational  

opportunities compared with 2012*3

(by FY2024)
Achieve a 65% or more*4 ratio of  

employees who experienced personal 
growth over the past year

 (by FY2030) 
*3 �Points tallied internally (by frequency or number of participating 

employees) for opportunities to learn with stakeholders at internal 
training, internships, and training and briefings for customers.

*4 Employee satisfaction survey conducted annually.

Targets for FY2024 and FY2030

People 
(the engine to drive the azbil Group)

Personnel system and HR training

Employee satisfaction Job satisfaction, self-efficacy, organizational energy, 
organizational performance

Work-life balance Elimination of harassment, total work hour reduction

Safety and health Ensure occupational safety, promote physical and mental health 

Work style
 reforms Diversity

Innovative 
change

Health and well-being management overview

Another of the azbil Group’s essential goals for the SDGs is to 
strengthen its foundation to solve societal problems through 
health and well-being management and continuous learning. 
We are developing various measures based on feedback from 

employee satisfaction survey and are running a range of differ-
ent human resource development programs to promote job 
satisfaction and personal growth in employees from diverse 
backgrounds, while also motivating staff to engage in business 
activities that contribute “in series” to a sustainable society.
(Reference: HR Initiatives: Achieving Human Capital Manage-
ment on page 73)

Strengthening Our Foundation to Solve Societal  
Problems through Health and Well-being  
Management and Continuous Learning

Implementing Health and Well-being Management (Job Satisfaction, Health, Diversity and Inclusion)  
Developing and Strengthening an Organization That Never Stops Learning
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First approach: Fulfilling our fundamental obligations to society (basic CSR)

Second approach: Contributing through business operations and voluntary activity (proactive CSR)
Contributing to society through our business operations

(Effective CO2 reduction at customers’ sites through
our products, services, and solutions)

Voluntary contributions to society 
(Supporting and promoting employees’ voluntary

participation in the activities that contributes to society)

Establishing and 
improving corporate 

governance

Strengthening the
foundations and

infrastructure
of corporate activity

Initiatives for sound and healthy corporate operations

Compliance Risk
management

Internal
control

Business management 
that values people

Reducing our
environmental footprint

Internal
auditing

CSR Promotion Framework

Proposals/
Reports 1

Approved plan directives
sent to business operation

3

Targets set and 
progress managed by 
operational plans

5
Coordination/Adjustment/Directives Progress report on CSR issues4

Directives/Approvals

Management Meeting Board of Directors
Azbil Corporation

azbil Group CSR Promotion Committee

Department heads in charge of basic CSR issues

Group Companies/Departments

Proposals/Reports 2 Directives/
Approvals

Strengthening the Foundation for Value Creation   
— ESG Initiatives

CSR Management of the azbil Group
With “human-centered automation” as the Group philosophy at the foundation of its business activ-
ities, the azbil Group works to fulfill its corporate social responsibility (CSR) by assisting in the con-
tinuous development of society. By putting people first, respecting human rights, and actively con-
tributing to the economy, environment, and society, we strive to not only achieve the SDGs but also 
share value with society.

Please visit the link below for more information on our CSR efforts.

web CSR efforts
https://www.azbil.com/csr/index.html

The azbil Group takes a broad view of the responsibilities that 
a company should fulfill for the benefit of stakeholders and 
society, and the Group as a whole takes a twofold approach to 
CSR management. First, there is what we call “basic CSR,” 
which involves fulfilling the azbil Group’s fundamental obliga-
tions as a member of society. Second is an approach that we 
named “proactive CSR,” consisting of contributing to solutions 
for society’s problems through our business operations, as 
well as employees’ voluntary participation in activities that 

The azbil Group has established the azbil Group CSR Promo-
tion Committee, comprising officers in charge of CSR at each 
Group company and led by the executive officer in charge of 
CSR at azbil Corporation. The committee formulates Group-
wide CSR action plans, subject to the approval of azbil Corpo-
ration’s Board of Directors, and monitors progress, while also 
guiding subsidiaries.

With the goal of continuously improving the level of its 
CSR activities, the committee formulates and implements 
plans, evaluates and analyzes the results, and reports to 

benefit society. These two pillars enable us to manage our 
CSR in a fair and sincere manner. 
Human Rights Initiatives
In April 2021, we signed the United Nations Global Compact. 
By participating in this internationally recognized initiative, we 
will once again strengthen our global efforts in the areas of 
human rights, labor, the environment, and anti-corruption, and 
actively contribute to the development of a sustainable society 
based on the principle of “human-centered automation.”

management, following a PDCA cycle. 
Another way the Group contributes to society is through 

its SDGs Promotion Committee, consisting primarily of other 
top-level management personnel, which works to achieve the 
Essential Goals of azbil Group for SDGs.

In addition to this framework, the azbil Group creates 
opportunities for dialogue with internal and external stakehold-
ers as necessary and incorporates their opinions into the 
Group’s activities to make our programs more effective.  
(Reference: pp. 91–92)

Approach to CSR Management

CSR Promotion Framework
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ESG Major ESG Issues azbil Group’s Main Initiatives Corresponding 
SDG Targets Related SDGs

E
Environ-

ment

Climate change
Carbon neutral

Contribute to decarbonization at customer sites 7.3, 13.2, 13.3

Reduce mid- to long-term CO2 emissions from business activities (scopes 1+2) 7.3, 13.2, 13.3

Offer energy management solutions 7.3, 13.2, 13.3

Promote the introduction of renewable energy with virtual power plant 
technology 7.2, 13.2, 13.3

Environmental consid-
erations for products 
and services

Promote environmentally conscious design 8.4, 9.4, 12.2, 12.5

Promote compliance with regulations regarding the inclusion of chemical 
substances in products both in Japan and overseas 12.4

Pollution & resources
Prevent environmental pollution, promote effective use of resources (including 
waste reduction)
Atmosphere, wastewater, hazardous waste, waste reduction, raw materials, etc.

12.2, 12.4, 12.5

Water security &  
water risk

Support waterworks infrastructure development and water resource 
management in developing countries, popularize remote monitoring systems 
for broad area water supply facilities using cloud services

6.1, 6.3, 6.4, 14.1

Respond to water withdrawal restrictions, strengthening of wastewater 
regulations, and natural disasters 6.4, 14.1

Biodiversity
Help conserve ecosystems through our operations (such as by providing 
equipment and other solutions for ballast water treatment systems in large ships) 14.1

Natural environmental conservation efforts centered on business bases 15.1, 15.4

Environmental supply 
chain

Reduce mid- to long-term CO2 emissions across the entire supply chain (scope 3) 13.3

Promote green procurement and the management of chemical substances 
contained in products, reduce industrial waste 12.2, 12.4, 12.5

Environmental man-
agement	 Promote environmental management based on ISO14001 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, 

13.3, 14.1

S
Society

Labor practices, 
health, and safety

Promote health and well-being management (work style reforms, diversity & 
inclusion), recruit and develop human resources, prevent the spread of 
COVID-19

3.3, 4.4, 5.5, 8.5

Human rights
Respect fundamental human rights, work to implement the 10 principles of 
the UN Global Compact, recruit personnel in accordance with each country’s 
laws and compliance regulations, eliminate harassment, promote diversity

4.4, 4.7, 5.1, 5.2, 
8.5, 8.7

Communities Sponsor community events, volunteer, and donate to socially contributing 
organizations

4.4, 4.7, 5.5, 7.3, 
8.5, 12.5, 13.3

Social supply chain Consider CSR in our purchasing activities, share CSR values with business 
partners across the supply chain 5.1, 8.5, 8.7

Quality & customers

Provide products and services of high quality, long-term stability, high 
safety, environmental friendliness, and long-term stable supplies to meet the 
life cycles of the customers

9.4, 11.3

Offer total solutions through an integrated system including development, 
production, sales, engineering, and services

9.4, 11.3, 12.2, 
12.4, 12.5

G
Gover-
nance

Corporate governance

Fortify supervisory and audit functions (by appointing independent outside 
offices, setting criteria to assess independence, etc.) 5.5

Bolster management transparency and health (through Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, etc.), introduce a skill matrix 16.7

Clarify responsibility system and promote dialogue (in accordance with the 
Corporate Governance Code, with corporate communications officer, etc.) 12.6

Risk management
Expand the comprehensive key risk management system (Comprehensive 
Risk Management Subcommittee and Comprehensive Risk Committee), 
crisis response (BCP)

12.4, 13.1

Compliance

Increase awareness of the Group philosophy, Guiding Principles, and Code 
of Conduct 4.7

Enhance compliance training, conduct and analyze the results of regular 
company-wide awareness surveys, improve hotline function 4.4, 16.3, 16.5

Active social contributions achieved through the support of 
the azbil Yamatake General Foundation

The azbil Group actively promotes initiatives based on an 
environmental, social, and governance (ESG) framework to 
achieve sustainability, and the table below summarizes how 
we are tackling important ESG issues, based on standards 

established by Sustainability Accounting Standards Board 
(SASB), among others.

Through our ESG initiatives, the azbil Group will ensure 
our sustainability while realizing the creation of value unique to 
azbil, in order to contribute “in series” to achieve a sustainable 
society and the SDGs.

azbil Group’s Main Initiatives Toward Achieving 
Sustainability
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Strengthening the Foundation for Value Creation — ESG Initiatives

Achieving a Sustainable Society
Our SDG Initiatives for FY2030

Effective reduction of CO2 
at customers’ sites
3.40 million metric tons of 
CO2 reduction per year

GHG emissions from business activities (scopes 1+2): 55% reduction (from a 2017 base year).

GHG emissions from supply chain (scope 3): 20% reduction (from a 2017 base year).

Effective reduction of CO2 at 
customers’ sites
2.94 million metric tons of CO2  
reduction Per year (FY2020)

azbil’s Value Creation
Comfortable indoor environments through 
environmental control technology
Optimized use of energy by equipment and 
facilities through advanced control technology

For more details, see “Reducing CO2 emissions at 
our customers’ sites” on page 59.

Contributing Through Our Core Businesses Reducing Our Own Environmental Impact

Effective Resource Use 
and Waste & Resource 
Input Reduction

Chemical Substance 
Management 
and Legal Compliance

CO2 reduction
(decarbonization)CO2

CO2
CO2

Wise use of resources
(recycling)

Harmony with nature 
(aiding biodiversity)

Nature 
Conservation Work

Promoting energy efficiency 
using our visualization system
Using renewable energy sourcesEnvironmentally 

Conscious Design
Consideration of the 
environment throughout the 
supply chain
8 environmental evaluation criteria

Environmental Initiatives
In keeping with the azbil Group philosophy, to help achieve a sustainable society and protect the 
Earth’s environment, we strive to reduce the burden on the environment caused by our own busi-
ness activities and we work to reduce the CO2 emissions from our customers’ facilities through our 
core businesses.

Please visit our website for further details on our environmental initiatives.

web Environmental Initiatives
https://www.azbil.com/csr/basic/environment/index.html

The azbil Group, in light of international developments such 
as adoption of the Unitaed Nations’ SDGs and the rapid drive 
towards decarbonization across society, has made a long-
term commitment to working on the environmental issues 
that it can tackle in order to protect the environment.

As a result of efforts to reduce our own environmental 

As a system for advancing environmental measures, the azbil 
Group Environmental Committee, headed by the executive 
officer for aG Environmental Load Innovation, meets three 
times a year to plan, deliberate on and review each Group 
company’s promotion systems while considering both risks 
and opportunities.

footprint, we gain know-how that enables us to better apply 
our measurement and control technology so that we can 
assist our customers to find solutions for their environmental 
challenges. In that way, we help to preserve the environment 
through our core businesses and contribute to the achieve-
ment of a sustainable society.

As a medium-term goal in preparation for FY2030, azbil 
aims to be a corporate entity that improves the Earth’s environ-
ment through unique initiatives and that is globally recognized for 
its environmental progressivism. To that end, we have set quanti-
tative goals linked to our SDG initiatives that use the two-pronged 
approach of making contributions to the environment through our 
core businesses and reducing our own environmental impact.

Our Basic Approach to the Environment

System for Progress on the Environment
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5 Strategic Policies

Environmentally Integrated 
Management
Initiatives are pursued through 
increasing collaboration with  
business units

Reference: pp. 59–60

The azbil Group endeavors to implement environmentally integrated management that combines 
environmental action with business action. The scope of our environmental initiatives is being 
expanded in collaboration with business units. In FY2020 we worked to make the effects of CO2 
reduction associated with our sales plan visible as a step towards achieving our SDG target of 3.4 
million metric tons of effective reduction of CO2 per year by 2030. We are continuing our efforts to 
connect the progress of CO2 reduction to our sales plans and increase awareness of the process.

Decarbonization
Reduction of CO2 emissions 
throughout our business activities 
including entire supply chain

Reference: pp. 59–60, p. 69

Having established a “2050 Long-Term Vision for Reducing Greenhouse Gas Emissions,” we are 
committed to reducing GHG emissions associated with our own business activities while also 
advancing product designs and solutions with decarbonization in mind, all with the aim of helping 
to reduce society’s GHGs. We updated the target we had set for reducing GHG emissions from our 
business activities from a 30% reduction (from a 2013 base year), which was certified as a 2°C 
target by the SBT Initiative*1 (SBTi) in 2019, to a 55% reduction (from a 2017 base year). This new 
target was recertified as a 1.5°C target by the SBTi in August 2021.
*1. �The SBT Initiative was jointly established by the CDP, United Nations Global Compact, the World Resources 

Institute (WRI) and the World Wide Fund for Nature (WWF). It offers certification that a company’s CO2 emissions 
reduction targets are scientifically based. The 1.5°C target aims to hold the rise in global temperature below  
1.5°C compared to the temperature level before the Industrial Revolution.

Resource Recycling
•	�Reduction of resource input and 
waste output
•	�Design for resource conservation 
and recycling 

Reference: p. 60

To reduce the amount of waste generated, we promote the 3Rs*2 striving to use less water and 
paper. By designing for conserving resources and recycling in our products and services, we help 
encourage our customers and society to circulate resources. In May 2021, the Group formulated 
its SDG target of “Design all new products to be 100% recyclable”.
*2. �An initiative that encourages the efficient use of resources in three ways: reduce (resource use), reuse,  

and recycle.

Environmentally  
Conscious Design
Promotion of eco-friendly design 
across the azbil Group

Reference: p. 70

The entire azbil Group is committed to pursuing environmentally conscious design. Working from 
three angles, namely reducing CO2 emissions, using resources wisely, and living in harmony with 
nature, we strive to reduce the environmental impact of our products and services across their 
entire life cycles.

Conservation of  
Biodiversity
•	�Conservation of biodiversity 
through our business
•	�Increasing our nature  
conservation work

As a partner in the Declaration of Biodiversity by the Japan Business Federation (Keidanren), we 
support the declaration’s revised action policies. As part of our specific policies to achieve a 
society that lives in harmony with nature, we will continue to conserve biodiversity through our 
business, encourage our supply chain including our business partners to undertake biodiversity 
initiatives, and cooperate with a number of organizations nationally and internationally to enhance 
our environmental protection activities. In FY2020, COVID-19 made it difficult to carry out nature 
conservation activities in forests with employees taking part as they had in the past, but instead 
we had online activities four times with a total of 50 employees participating.

An example of the explanatory material 
shared during an online nature  
conservation activity. 

An online nature conservation activity with over 50 
employees participating.

We have set medium-term policies that start in 2021 to help 
achieve the Group’s SDG goals. With “environmentally inte-
grated” company management, which combines environmen-
tal action with business action, we are strengthening collabo-

ration with our business units while expanding the scope of 
our initiatives and making progress on the global environmental 
issues we have identified as priorities, namely decarbonization, 
resource recycling, biodiversity conservation, and promotion of 
environmentally conscious design for our products and services.

Key Policies in Medium-term Plan (FY2021–2024)
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(metric tons of CO2)

(Azbil Corp., consolidated subsidiaries in Japan, 
and main manufacturing bases overseas)
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Scope of calculation
Scopes 1+2: Azbil Corp., consolidated subsidiaries in Japan, and main 

manufacturing bases overseas
Scope 3: Azbil Corp. and consolidated subsidiaries
* We have received third-party verification for our CO2 emissions figures 
(scopes 1+2+3).

Scope 1 3.6
Scope 2 13.2

Purchased 
goods 
and services
308.2 Capital goods 9.1

Fuel and energy-related 
activities not included 
in scopes 1 or 2
3.6  

Waste generated
 in business

 1.8

Upstream transportation and distridution 22.9

Business travel
 0.6

Employee
 commuting

 2.8 Use of sold
products
355.7

End-of-life treatment of 
sold products
1.2 

Scope 3 
Total 705.9

*1 �Scope 1 refers to direct GHG emissions from owned or controlled sources (fuel combustion, industrial processes, etc.).  
Scope 2 is indirect GHG emissions produced by the use of electricity, heat, or steam purchased from outside sources.

*2 �A program to disclose corporate climate change risk, created by the international nonprofit organization CDP. It investigates the status of climate change initiatives 
carried out by participating corporations every year and officially publishes the aggregated results. It also gives each corporation an individual rating for the status of 
its initiatives in an eight-step evaluation with A as the highest rating.

2030 Greenhouse Gas Emission Reduction Targets
• Reduce GHG emissions from business activity (scopes 1+2) by 55% compared to 2017 [Recertified in August 2021].
• Reduce GHG emissions from the entire supply chain (scope 3)*3 by 20% compared to 2017 [Certified in May 2019].

*3:	Scope 3 refers to all indirect GHG emissions related to business activities (indirect emissions not included in scopes 1 and 2).

*1 �A fixed value (0.37 Kg-CO2/kWh) is used for the CO2 emission factor for 
electric power. Note also that part of the figure contains estimates such as 
energy for air conditioning at tenant offices.

*2 �We have received third-party verification for our CO2 emissions figures 
(scopes 1+2) from FY2016 onwards.

The azbil Group’s 2050 Long-Term Vision for Reducing GHG 
Emissions aims to cut GHGs emitted from our business activi-
ties (scopes 1+2)*1 to substantially zero by 2050 with the 
ultimate aim of achieving a carbon-neutral society. To achieve 
this long-term vision, we have set medium-term 2030 GHG 

Emission Reduction Targets for our business activity and we 
are working on measures to cut CO2 emissions across our 
entire supply chain. The azbil Group’s climate change initia-
tives were given a B rating by CDP’s Climate Change project*2 
in 2020.

Decarbonization Initiatives

In response to the rapid progress towards decarbonization 
across society, we have updated our 2030 target for reducing 
GHG emissions from business activity from the original 30% 
reduction (compared to 2013) to a 55% reduction (compared 
to 2017). This new target was recertified as a 1.5°C target by 

In FY2020, CO2 emissions from the azbil Group’s bases as a 
result of our own business activity (scopes 1+2) were 16,754 
metric tons, down 51% from FY2006. As part of our continu-
ous efforts to leverage the knowledge we have cultivated over 
many years, we have installed energy visualization systems 
across the azbil Group. We are also pursuing efforts to im-
prove both our operations and our facilities while making use 

the SBT Initiative in August 2021.
To accomplish this goal, we are strengthening and ex-

panding our in-house energy-saving efforts by applying the 
energy-efficiency technology cultivated by various business 
units, including proof-of-concept testing, and we are increasing 
our use of renewable energy sources. We intend to accelerate 
our initiatives in order to make our long-term vision a reality.

of renewable energy sources.
The CO2 emissions from our entire supply chain 

(scope 3) amounted to 705.9 thousands of metric tons. Since 
CO2 emissions from the use of products sold and from pur-
chased products and services comprise over 90% of that 
total, we are concentrating our efforts on energy-saving de-
sign, resource-saving design, and other environmentally con-
scious design.

Updating to Our 2030 Greenhouse Gas Emission 
Reduction Targets

Results of Initiatives in FY2020

CO2 Emissions*1 (Scopes 1+2) / Unit Sales CO2 Emissions (Scopes 1+2+3)* Status (FY2020)
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To create and provide environmentally friendly products and 
services, the azbil Group as a whole is committed to environmen-
tally conscious design that seeks to reduce the environmental 
impact of products and services throughout their life cycle.

At the development stage, all new products undergo an 
environmental design assessment*1 in eight separate environ-
ment-related categories. We also conduct a life-cycle assess-
ment that provides a comprehensive evaluation from manufac-
ture to disposal. Products that meet our standards are 
classified as environmentally conscious products can be 
marked with the azbil Group Environment Label.*2 Products 
with particularly excellent evaluation results receive the azbil 
Group Environmentally Conscious Design 
Award as an incentive for developers.

In FY2020, we devised our own 
indicators and set targets in resource con-
sumption reduction and resource circulation 
and started making concrete efforts to 
achieve them. The results of the environmen-
tally-focused designs showed a 20.6% improvement overall*3 
in the environmental design assessments.

Also, in May 2021, the azbil Group added “Design all 
new products to be 100% recyclable” as one of the quantita-

The azbil Group endeavors to understand and reduce the 
amount of water used by the Group’s bases and also uses 
WRI Aqueduct*1 to evaluate water risks at each location from a 
business continuity standpoint. Based on the results of the risk 
assessment, we recognize that we have water risks at our 

In FY2020, there were no major legal violations by the azbil Group related to the environment, and consequently no resulting 
penalties, administrative fines, or lawsuits.

tive targets for its 2030 SDG targets. Within the scope of the 
usable best available technology (BAT*4), we will create de-
signs that can be adequately disassembled, separated and 
recycled by customers during disposal. Further initiatives are 
planned to help us promote environmentally-conscious design.

China (Dalian) and Thailand bases, which account for about 
20% of our total water usage.

In FY2020, the Group’s bases used 107 million liters of 
water, a year-on-year decrease of 18%. The azbil Group’s 
measures to mitigate water risk and reduce the amount of 
water used were rated B- by CDP Water 2020.*2

Environmentally Conscious Design Initiatives for  
Our Products and Services

Response to Water Risks

Compliance with Environmental Laws

*1 �We carry out an original four-stage scoring process and evaluate products according to the degree of improvement in environmental performance compared with 
similar previous products in eight separate environment-related categories.

*2 �Type II self-declared environmental labeling.
*3 �A summation of the evaluation points for all products that received an environmental design assessment in FY2020.
*4 �The most efficient technology that is executable from an economical and technical point of view.

*1 �Comprehensive maps provided by the World Resources Institute (WRI) about the state of water risks in all regions of the world.
*2 �A disclosure program about corporate water risks, created by the international nonprofit organization CDP. It investigates the status of water-related initiatives of 

participating corporations every year and officially publishes the aggregated results. It also gives each corporation an individual rating for the status of its initiatives in 
an eight-step evaluation with A as the highest grade.

azbil Group 
Environment Label

Results for Total Environmental Design Assessments  
(for FY2020)
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azbil Group CEO

Quality and Safety Officer

Azbil Corporation Domestic affiliates Local subsidiaries overseasQuality assurance and safety of Group 
companies and business lines

The azbil Group’s Quality Assurance and Safety Efforts

azbil Group 
Quality Assurance 
Committee

aG Quality Assurance Department

Quality improvement and crisis management

Monitoring of quality target achievement 
progress and quality improvement activities 
in each company and business line
Crisis management for emergency incidents;
quick response to shared problems within 
the azbil Group

Department of Safety Assessment

Safety assessments of products and 
services; compliance with relevant laws

Establishment of safety guidelines, risk 
assessment (RA) authorization system, and 
other standards and mechanisms
RA for products and services
Auditing of each company and business line

Quality Assurance and Safety
The azbil Group delivers safe and secure products and services of assured quality to  
customers globally.

The azbil Group has established and operates a quality assur-
ance system that works to constantly improve itself to allow its 
customers to use safe and secure products and services.

Based on this system, we have two corporate func-
tions—quality assurance and safety assessment—to offer 
guidance and supervision of quality throughout the Group. 
We also ensure product safety and dependability through 
safety assessments.

To help achieve the SDGs, which have 2030 as their target 
year, the azbil Group aims for a level of quality of products and 
services that is both satisfying and attractive to customers and 
users throughout the life cycle of products and services (from 
understanding the customer’s needs to the time of product 
disposal). We are also stepping up efforts to continually main-
tain and enhance quality of products and services to help to 
strengthen the azbil Group brand.

The azbil Group Quality Assurance Department, which is 
independent of the business units, supervises and monitors 
the quality improvement activity of the Group as a whole, and 
through the azbil Group Quality Assurance Committee works 
to prevent the occurrence or recurrence of quality problems 
and establish a crisis management system.

By establishing a quality assurance system that is directly 
linked to our business requirements, we guarantee the quality 
and safety of the products and services we provide.

To make sure that customers can use our products and 
services safely with a sense of dependency, the Department 

The azbil Group’s Quality Assurance and Safety  
Assessment System

Working towards 2030

The azbil Group’s Quality Assurance Practice

Quality Assurance and Safety of Group Companies 
and Business Lines

Safety and Dependability of Products and Services

Providing Product Quality that Satisfies Users and 
Customers
We will further reinforce the expected quality needed to satisfy 
customers as we change our businesses and introduce new 
technologies.

Providing Product Quality that Attracts to Users and 
Customers
In addition to reinforcing expected quality, we seek to break new 
ground in product planning and development by adding attrac-
tive quality features that appeal to customers.

Maintaining and Continuously Enhancing the Safety of 
Our Products (Peace of Mind)
We remain committed to maintaining our safety levels in products 
and services that are born from new technology and in service 
situations that change as people work with robots or drones.

of Safety Assessment promotes safe designs based on our 
Safe Design Standards document while endeavoring to 
guarantee the safety of our products and services by apply-
ing the mechanisms in our safety risk assessment system.
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We will work together with our business partners to 
realize shared CSR values in the supply chain with the 

SDGs as a common goal.

Influence on 
the supply 

chain, 
cooperation

Publicity 
outside the 
company

Evaluation*
1 azbil Group self-evaluation
2 Supplier self-evaluation

Feedback: requests and opinions from investors 
and shareholders

Level 1
Policies & 
Strategies
Establish-
ment/
thorough 
dissemination 
of basic  
policies, etc

Level 2
Systems & 
Structures
Establish-
ment of 
systems and 
structures 
within the 
Group.

Level 3
Initiatives

Encourage-
ment of 
suppliers.

Level 4
Evaluation of 
Effectiveness
Evaluation by 
azbil Group of 
effects of 
initiatives and 
encourage-
ment.

Survey and 
analysis

Survey of 
business 
partners, 
collection of 
survey to 
verify series 
of initiatives.

azbil’s self-evaluation
Business 
partners’ 

self-evaluations

Broad category Intermediate category Subcategory

E
(Environ-

ment-related 
supply chain)

Climate change
(GHG, energy)

	� Initiatives to address CO2/GHG 
emissions and other climate 
change issues.

Pollution, resources
(atmosphere, waste 

water, hazardous waste, 
waste reduction, raw 

materials, etc.)

	� Green procurement
	� Management of chemical 

substances in products
	� Less use of resources
	� Less industrial waste
	� Reuse of resources
	� Use of renewable energy

Water security, water 
risks

	� Less use of water, less waste 
water

Biodiversity 	� Conservation

Environmental mgmt. 	� Action in conformity with 
ISO14001

S
(Society-relat-

ed supply 
chain)

Labor practices

	� Elimination of child labor and 
forced labor, reduction of 
overwork

	� Equal opportunity, prohibition of 
discrimination

	� Promotion of diversity

Health and safety
	� Health and safety management
	� Work-life balance, new ways of 

working

Human rights
	� Respect for fundamental human 

rights (including rejection of 
antisocial forces and handling of 
conflict minerals)

Community
(local communities)

	� Action that encourages local 
development or contributes to 
society

Quality, customers
	� Fair commerce (including legal 

compliance)
	� Quality management

* �azbil carries out a self-evaluation of its initiatives at four levels (Levels 1 to 4). 
Additionally, business partners are requested to answer a self-evaluation 
survey, which is collected and evaluated and added to create a comprehensive 
evaluation with a total of five levels.

CSR Procurement
The azbil Group works with its business partners to undertake CSR-conscious purchasing activities 
throughout the supply chain.

In keeping with the azbil Group Philosophy and the azbil Group 
Guiding Principles, the azbil Group undertakes fair and honest 
purchasing activities in Japan and overseas, understanding 
and complying with legal regulations and acting with consider-
ation for human rights and the environment. We ensure that 
our business partners understand the Basic Procurement 
Policies of the azbil Group as we endeavor to carry out pur-
chasing throughout the supply chain with an awareness of  
our CSR.

The azbil Group intends to develop our CSR procure-
ment activity in order to fulfill our CSR in the supply chain with 
a view to achieving our SDG goals.

In addition to topics we have already addressed, such 
as our efforts on green procurement, the management of 
chemical substances in products, and our handling of conflict 
minerals, in consideration of the SDGs, we are expanding our 
target areas to add topics that involve both the environment 
and society, such as climate change and labor practices.

We try to ensure that business partners are fully aware 
of and strictly comply with our Basic Procurement Policy and 
CSR Procurement Guidelines. We also encourage them to 
conduct even better procurement, centered on items collabo-
rate with them to the target areas of the azbil Group’s initia-
tives, and we work alongside with them on this as needed. We 
intend to evaluate these activities individually and disclose 
them and the results of evaluation externally in an easy-to-un-
derstand manner.

Through these new CSR-oriented procurement activi-
ties, we intend to strengthen our links with business partners 
and provide fresh value and contribute to society throughout 
our supply chain.

(Reference: Essential Goal III: Supply Chain, Social Responsi-
bility on p. 63)

Basic Procurement Policies of the azbil Group

1.	Maintaining the aG’s public nature and fulfilling social 
responsibility

2. Observance of fair commercial transactions
3. Social conduct characterized by respect for people
4. Promotion of environmental protection

Please visit the link below for more information.

web https://www.azbil.com/corporate/procurement/policy/index.html

Target Areas for CSR-Oriented Procurement

A New CSR Procurement Framework for Achieving  
the SDGs
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Active participation of a 
diverse workforce

Career development for individual 
employees through improved 
awareness and improved skills

Reforming corporate 
culture and awareness

Reforming the mindsets of 
department heads and managers 
to create a culture where diverse 
personnel can flourish

Promoting various 
work style

Cooperation of all workplaces to 
support employees with different 
ways of working and in various 
environments

Employee satisfaction
Job satisfaction, organizational energy, etc.

Work-life balance
Elimination of harassment
Total work hour reduction

Safety and health
Ensure occupational safety

Promote physical and mental health

The azbil Group’s health and well-being management revolves around encouraging both work style 
reform and diverse personnel. In addition, we strive to transform human resources into human capital 
through training spearheaded by our specialized personnel training institution, Azbil Academy. 
Through these efforts we seek to become a corporation where all employees can display their abili-
ties to the fullest. Through  “people-focused” management based on the principle of “social conduct 
based on respect for human dignity” encapsulated in the azbil Group Code of Conduct, we are work-
ing on initiatives to utilize our human capital to produce sustained growth in corporate value.

HR Initiatives: Achieving Human Capital Management
(Reference: Essential Goal IV: Health and Well-Being Management, An Organization That Never Stops Learning on p. 64)

In July 2019, we released the azbil Group Health and Well-being 
Declaration. It defined our overall direction as “health and well-be-
ing management,” and referred to initiatives such as new ways of 
working and diversity promotion that are intended to help em-
ployees stay healthy and actively engaged in their work. All azbil 
Group companies are transitioning from policies that merely seek 
to reduce risk to policies that increase job satisfaction.

To create highly satisfying work environments, we endeavor to 
reduce total employee working hours, create harassment-free 
workplace from the viewpoint of respect for fundamental 
human rights while also undertaking initiatives to ensure em-
ployee safety and health, maintain and increase physical and 
mental health, and encourage work-life improve. We conduct 
annual employee satisfaction surveys to learn about problems, 
and then incorporate the results into plans for the following 
year in order to improve. This helps to increase employee job 
satisfaction (Reference: p. 64).

Since FY2020, we have focused on expanding our 
options for flexible ways of working, such as telecommuting 
and staggered work hours, to prevent the spread of 
COVID-19. This has led to further changes in the way we work 
through the creation and enhancement of business infrastruc-
ture and DX functions related to remote working.

In the azbil Group, we believe that having employees from 
different backgrounds who respect each other’s individuality and 
who utilize their talents to grow is the driving force for corporate 
growth. We are therefore committed to promoting initiatives with 
diversity and inclusion as the keywords. In FY2017 we launched 
our diversity promotion task force, the Azbil Diversity Network 
(ADN), and we are working on a variety of measures. 

Promoting Health and Well-being Management

Work Style Reform

Promoting Diversity and Inclusion

Azbil Diversity Network (ADN) Measures

To create a workplace where women play more important roles 
and assume positions of responsibility, we have established a 
rating system to evaluate our progress. It assigns points based 
on the number of female employees in positions of authority and 
their duties. Our goal is to double the FY2017 points by FY2024.

As our business activities become increasingly global, we 
actively hire new personnel from within Japan and from over-
seas, including people of various nationalities and graduates of 
universities in other countries. We are producing employees 
who can succeed as core personnel by allowing them to gain 
work experience in other countries and interact with employ-
ees from a variety of backgrounds. 

Each azbil Group company recruits a certain number of 
mid-career employees every year. These employees can fully 
utilize their practical skills in a corporate culture where diversity 
is respected, and many of these mid-career hires are appoint-
ed to management positions in their organizations.

Promoting Female Participation

Helping Foreign Employees Succeed

Continued Mid-Career Recruiting
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Global HR Development

Global experience, experience with new projects, etc.

Solutions Training / Business Leader Training

Hardship Hardship

Em
ployees

Leaders

M
anagers

O
rg. heads

M
gm

t.

Working with the three concepts of continuous personnel 
training, maximizing the abilities of personnel, and securing 
sufficient personnel while helping them to live fulfilling lives, we 
support the success of a diverse workforce regardless of age, 
nationality or gender, conducting fair treatment, evaluation, 
and appointment for all employees based on the level of ability 
they display.

We have also expanded our support system so that 
employees can balance work with childcare, familycare, or 
various major life events by working in a limited geographical 
area, working for fewer hours per day or days per week, or by 
receiving leave if a spouse has been transferred overseas. Our 
intent is to create an environment that allows employees to 
work comfortably at Azbil throughout their lives.

The azbil Group focuses on recruiting and developing person-
nel who seek to help solve problems through business activity 
that lead “in series” to a sustainable society. As an organiza-
tion that never stops learning, we also provide training, mainly 
through Azbil Academy.

A Personnel System that Supports Participation by a 
Diverse Workforce

Recruiting and Developing Personnel

In the maturing Japanese market, we are enhancing our re-
cruitment of personnel with product development and DX skills 
in response to changes in the market and in customer needs. 
Through the DX of our onsite engineering services, we will 
contribute to society and meet our customers’ expectations.

In order to develop the leaders that will lead the next genera-
tion of the company, the whole azbil Group is making an effort 
to enhance the skills of young employees, while also providing 
training at leadership, management, and executive stages for 
mid-career and long-term workers.

We have developed mechanisms that allow employees to 
experience not only outside training and on-the-job training 
at workplaces, but also various career experiences in a 
range of tasks and regions. We also carry out strategic 
transfers and assignments to help employees build interna-
tional business experience and experience with new busi-
ness projects.

To help employees develop their careers, in addition to provid-
ing better career training for various age groups, we offer 
training for long-term workers on how to draw up a “100-year 
life” plan. Also, employees are interviewed by their supervisors 
every year for a career review and to check if they are interest-
ed in a career-building transfer. Opportunities such as the Open 
Challenge system for internal recruitment are also available  
to them.

Additionally, we are working on a unified platform with a 
portal where employees can learn efficiently through online 
lessons (e-learning) regardless of time or place.

We intend to continue providing a variety of training 
tools for a diverse group of personnel so that they can grow 
through various experiences in order to achieve the azbil 
Group’s SDG target of “doubling the points for promoting 
educational opportunities together with our various stakehold-
ers by FY2024, and increasing the number of employees who 
feel a sense of growth to 65% or more by 2030.”

To increase our market share overseas, we are accelerating 
the development of personnel in Japan and overseas who can 

Enhanced Recruitment of Development /DX Personnel

Developing Next-Generation Leaders

HR Development Rotation

Creating an Environment for Developing Diverse 
Personnel

Developing Global Personnel

External Evaluation
The azbil Group’s health and well-being management has re-
ceived the “Kurumin” certification mark from Japan’s Ministry of 
Health, Labour and Welfare and was included in the Ministry of 
Economy, Trade and Industry’s Certified Health & Productivity 
Management Organizations for four years in a row as of FY2020. 
We were also selected for “Bloomberg’s 2021 Gender-Equality 
Index,” and we won the Toyo Keizai Award at the 3rd Platinum 
Career Awards from Mitsubishi Research Institute, Inc, in 2021.

Basic Principles of Human Resource Development
1.	�Human resources are the source of the azbil Group’s growth, 

so the azbil Group cannot grow unless the human resources 
grow.

2.	�Therefore, to optimize employee strength and organizational 
strength,

	 (1)	�Individuals: Take maximum responsibility for their own 
growth and development of capability

	 (2)	�Supervisors: Take responsibility for development of capa-
bility for subordinates in their organizations

	 (3)	�Companies: Support individuals and organizations by 
providing opportunities fairly.

succeed regardless of the countries or regions they are in. We 
have an active exchange program in which Japanese employ-
ees receive training overseas, and also employees from over-
seas subsidiaries undergo training in Japan.

Global HR Development
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We respect the intellectual property of third parties and view 
our intellectual property as an important resource for maintain-
ing and expanding existing markets and creating new busi-
nesses. We, therefore, work to acquire and protect patents, 
design rights, and other intellectual property rights.

More specifically, we work to support decision-making 
on business and R&D within our business units and research 
and development departments in the collaborative framework 
they have created. We actively mine both market data and 
intellectual property data in order to gain an understanding of 
technological trends in other companies and around the world.

We also manage our patent portfolios by business area. 
In areas we are looking to strengthen and in important R&D 
areas, we acquire intellectual property rights and strive for 
dominance with our eyes firmly on global expansion. At the 
same time, we endeavor to improve our overall investment 
efficiency by abandoning patent rights that contribute little to 
our competitiveness or business potential.

To foster a unified corporate image, we have laid out Group-
wide rules for the use of company names and logos, and other 
components of the azbil brand and have implemented them 
worldwide. One of our goals is to increase the azbil Group’s 
presence in the global market and promote domestic and 
overseas business expansion more effectively. Thus, we are 
currently looking to optimize everything from our product 
designs to the communication tools we use to remain in 
contact with stakeholders.

When creating communication tools, we aim to show-
case the advanced technological and problem-solving skills 
we display in the field while also interesting as many users as 
possible in sharing our desire to evolve towards the future. For 
our increasingly popular website and other digital tools, we 
give great consideration to appropriate design as well as tone 
of voice and style.

In the area of product design, to help realize the azbil 
Group’s vision of “a world of automation created by human 
ingenuity and technology,” we are establishing design guide-
lines, promoting the idea of human-centered design, and 
encouraging designers to think about design from the user’s 
perspective. The various products developed through these 
efforts have been highly rated domestically and internationally 
and have been honored with prestigious design awards both in 
Japan and overseas. 

Intellectual Property Strategy Brand Management

(Patents)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

2,784

(FY)

4,000

2,000

3,000

1,000

0

A smart HART modem that won the Good Design Award and Red Dot 
Design Award

We consider our intellectual property rights to be an important management resource. As we strive 
to increase our brand value, we also take steps to acquire, protect, and apply those rights by 
means such as strengthening our global management systems for the product designs and commu-
nication tools that form our points of contact with customers.

Intellectual Property Strategy and Brand Management

Fiscal Year 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Patents

Number of 
applications 506 562 537 423 393

Number owned 2,902 3,049 2,911 3,016 2,784

R&D expenses 
(billions of yen) 10.4 11.3 11.9 11.8 11.2

R&D expenses / 
net sales (%) 4.1 4.3 4.5 4.5 4.5

Number of Patents Owned

Data on Patents and R&D
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The azbil Group has built an organizational compliance system 
where an executive officer is appointed to drive and oversee 
compliance efforts, as shown in the chart below. The most 
substantial role is played by the compliance leaders, who are 
responsible for instilling awareness and leading compliance in 
the workplace and for discovering and reporting problems to 
the compliance officers as quickly as possible.

The basic policy that officers and employees are expected to 
adhere to is stated in the Basic Policy on Internal Control 
System Architecture, and we also disclose an overview of our 
performance. We are also strengthening efforts to comply with 
the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act and Internal 
Control Reporting System (J-SOX) and improving our account-
ing standards.

Promotion System, Initiatives

The azbil Group conducts annual compliance training for 
officers and department heads inviting an external lecturer. In 
October 2020, we invited a lecturer specialized in CSR/SDGs 
for an online lecture, which was attended by 280 people. 
During FY2020, when COVID-19 made face-to-face training 
difficult, 6,844 employees attended lectures through e-learn-

To enhance its CSR-focused management and health and 
well-being management, the azbil Group has established a 
reporting and consultation system that allows it to quickly 
discover and appropriately handle compliance violations and 
issues that negatively affect the workplace environment.

This system is available to officers and employees 
(including temporary employees) working at Azbil Corporation 
and other Group companies. It is also open to our business 
partners. The system accepts reports and consultations about 
actions that deviate from the azbil Group Guiding Principles 
and Code of Conduct, including legal violations, human rights 
issues, improper accounting, and problems that affect the 
workplace environment such as harassment and violations of 
internal company rules. Consultation is also provided on 
human resource issues and employee benefits. We have 
created a reassuring and easy-to-use environment that ac-
cepts anonymous requests for consultation. To prevent retribu-
tion against whistleblowers and others seeking consultation, 
we have built protections into our labor regulations, and secre-
cy and confidentiality of information is guaranteed for those 
using the service.

Also, in Japan we set up a CSR Hotline accessible 
within and outside the company. It is internally accessible to 
azbil Group employees for consultation including personal 
worries and concerns. In this way, we strive to  support physi-
cal and mental health and healthy lifestyles and working lives 
for employees. 

In November 2020, the hotline was certified and regis-
tered under Japan’s Consumer Affairs Agency’s Whistleblower 
Compliance Management System (based on self-declaration 
of conformity).

Maintaining and Increasing Compliance Awareness

Mechanisms for Employee Feedback and 
Problem Detection

As part of our efforts to fulfill our “basic CSR,” which is our responsibility as a corporate member of 
society, we strive to ensure compliance and build internal control systems for the entire azbil Group 
throughout our operations in Japan and abroad.

Compliance and Internal Control

Implement Policies

Explanation of Guiding Principles and 
Code of Conduct linked to Group 
Philosophy, guidance on compliance

Instilling compliance awareness, 
providing education and guidance, 
conducting surveys

Activity Support

Report/
Consult

Communicating 
compliance 
leadership policies 
System checks

Creating departmen-
tal compliance and 
educational systems, 
confirmation, 
guidance

Instilling 
awareness, 
guidance

Education 
Support

Education 
Support

President

Executive 
Officer

Compliance Officers
Heads of HQs and 
departments; managers of 
regional divisions, branches, 
offices, factories, etc.

Compliance Leaders
Managers of 
sales offices or groups

Employees: full-time, contract, 
seconded, temporary

Corporate Sustainability HQ

ing. We also organized online training for compliance officers 
and leaders with in-house instructors 27 times, with 740 
people participating in case discussions.

Additionally, we conduct an annual survey of all Group 
employees about the status of compliance within the compa-
ny. The results help us to understand and extract problems 
that need to be tackled so that we can implement the neces-
sary countermeasures.

Compliance System

Building Internal Control Systems and Complying  
with J-SOX

Compliance System
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The azbil Group’s Comprehensive Risk Management Subcom-
mittee, composed of department managers, conducts an 
exhaustive investigation to identify risks that may have a 
significant impact on operations. Following this, the azbil 
Group Comprehensive Risk Committee, headed by the execu-
tive officer in charge of risk management, compiles a list of 
risks that are especially in need of action, risks deemed im-
portant to the azbil Group, which are then deliberated on and 
confirmed by the Board of Directors. For the key risks, the 
Management Meeting and the azbil Group CSR Promotion 
Committee establishes systems with a PDCA cycle as a 
countermeasure, monitors their progress, and reports the 
outcomes to the Board of Directors.

In addition to the above, the Board of Directors of each 
Group company determines its own important risks and imple-
ments measures to counteract them. 

To minimize the risk from possible future events, we carefully 
review risks every year, identify the key risks, and construct a 
system for countermeasures incorporating the PDCA cycle. 
The state of progress is monitored within the framework of our 
CSR activity.

Also, we have established a crisis management re-
sponse system to help us respond to crises and emergencies, 
with the aim of minimizing the impact of any crisis that occurs. 
We are also building and strengthening the response struc-
tures of our “management of major emergencies.” Further-
more, we have formulated many kinds of detailed BCP as we 
continuously strive to improve our systems as part of our 
business continuity management.

Risk Management System

Risk Management
To avoid losing corporate value and the trust of the public, the azbil Group strives to accurately 
understand and minimize risk factors having the potential for serious impact on operations.

Crisis management and disaster response (handling of major incidents)

Risk Management

Crisis Management & Disaster Response

Management Meeting and
azbil Group

CSR Promotion Committee

Formulate risk countermeasure 
plans and monitor risk 
mitigation status

Risks related to business
execution and operations

Comprehensive
Risk Management

Subcommittee/
Department Managers

Evaluate risk mitigation status, 
identify and analyze risks 
deemed to have short- and 
long-term impact in terms of 
frequency of occurrence and 
magnitude of impact

Risk mitigation and
evaluation/Identification

and analysis

azbil Group Comprehensive
Risk Committee

Divisional managers scrutinize 
the analyzed and evaluated risk 
assessment and confirm the 
comprehensiveness of the 
selection

Select key risks

Board of Directors

Determine key risks

Management of Major Emergencies Business Continuity Management BCP; Disaster Response

Disaster/Epidemic Prevention
(coronavirus, etc.)

Business Continuity PlansOccurrence of major emergency

Occurrence of disaster

Initial response

Determine conclusion of event

Determine necessity of management

Establish emergency HQ, 
implement countermeasures

Establish crisis management HQ, 
implement countermeasures

Evaluate and confirm 
appropriateness of risks 
selected

Preventive measures to 
protect lives

Preparations to continue 
doing business

Check employee safety, status of victims
Secure operational resources and command system
Publicize crisis management

Get information
Devise countermeasures

Find cause
Prevent/minimize recurrence

The azbil Group’s Risk Management

The azbil Group’s Risk Management
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Risks that may affect the business results and financial posi-
tion of the azbil Group are summarized below. These risks are 
deliberated on by the azbil Group Comprehensive Risk Com-
mittee and the Board of Directors, and are managed compre-
hensively. In addition to this overall management, related 
departments also take measures to mitigate risk. Information 

Business-Related and Other Risks in the table that pertains to the future was judged by the 
company to be valid as of the end of FY2020. The risks that 
are listed are described in the 99th Annual Securities Report 
under “Business-Related and Other Risks.” Please refer to the 
securities report for details on how each potential risk was 
addressed and evaluated.

Category Risk Awareness Countermeasures and Risk Mitigation

Business 
environment

● �Risk that changing market conditions in specific regions and key 
business sectors, including construction and manufacturing, may 
have an impact on capital investments; risk of medium- to long-term 
decline in demand for offices due to changes in the environment; and 
a major economic recession could all have an adverse impact on the 
Group’s operations, business results, or financial position.

● �Aim for business growth by expanding life-cycle business, the demand for which is 
relatively stable in the event of economic fluctuation.

Growth in 
competitive 

environments

● �Risk that inadequate responses to business opportunities that may 
arise from changes in societal conditions, technological innovations, 
and the like could lead to the loss of competitive advantage.

● �Risk that the loss of competitiveness—caused by misreading of 
technological trends, slow R&D progress, or failure to respond to 
open innovation and technological developments—or delays in 
launching new products, sluggish sales, and the like could affect the 
Group’s operations or business results.

● �Upon recognizing new risks, develop new subscription models and similar offerings 
and engage in strategic collaboration.

● �Develop business by forming deeper alliances (including M&As) with other companies.
● �Make appropriate technology R&D investments and create a new organizational 

structure dedicated to specialized fields, such as IT solutions and cloud services; take 
action to verify new business models; improve systems by using the Azbil Academy 
personnel training organization to help train employees and help them change jobs; 
continue pursuing M&A opportunities; update and strengthen core information system 
and roll out across the Group; and take other measures to avoid delays in addressing 
changes in the environment and competitive disadvantages.

Product
quality

● �Risk that costs incurred by accidents due to defective products, 
systems, or services, or the resulting damage to our corporate 
reputation, or the effects of the aforementioned could affect the 
Group’s operations, business results, or financial position.

● �Use a dedicated organization to check quality at the product development and 
manufacturing stages.

● �Manage and improve production lines to maintain proper inspection work processes; 
check legal compliance statuses related to factory operation; and strengthen quality 
control for construction management, etc.

● �Conduct inspections using a dedicated organization that specializes in safety in 
addition to checks at the design and production stages.

Global
operations

● �Risk that unforeseen situations, such as regional political and 
economic upheaval, changes to laws, and terrorism, as well as 
differences in business practices or the occurrence of an epidemic 
such as COVID-19 could affect the Group’s operations, business 
results, or financial position.

● �Risk that delays in planned business expansion for reasons such as 
regional peculiarities could affect the building automation (BA) 
business.

● �Risk that sharp foreign exchange fluctuations may impact net sales, 
prices of raw materials and parts, SG&A expenses, etc.

● �Prepare disaster response, BCPs, etc. Introduce flexible ways of working such as 
working from home.

● �In the BA business, establish bases mainly in Southeast Asia and China; secure 
in-house engineers and partner companies to establish a robust business execution 
system; and start providing services aimed at launching life-cycle business overseas.

● �Hedge against foreign exchange fluctuations appropriately and expand overseas 
production to mitigate risk.

Securing and 
developing 

human 
resources

● �Risk that obstacles to securing, educating, and smoothly deploying 
human resources needed to address business structural changes 
could lead to declines in productivity or other performance indicators.

● �Risk that delays in securing, educating, or deploying personnel 
needed for overseas business development may inhibit achievement 
of business growth targets.

● �Secure and allocate the personnel necessary to address changes in business 
structure.

● �Take steps to establish a new personnel system.
● �Implement measures for securing and training human resources for overseas business 

development tailored to the situation of each business location.

Information 
leaks and IT 

security

● �Risk that leaks of confidential business information or personal 
information due to unforeseen circumstances could affect the Group’s 
business performance or financial position, or cause damage to its 
corporate reputation.

● �Risk that unexpected cyber-attacks, possibly using new methods, 
could affect the Group’s business operations.

● �Ensure confidentiality of important information and comply with laws on personal 
information protection (establish and implement internal regulations and educate 
employees)

● �Create a strong IT environment and implement employee training.
● �Establish a new inspection department that specializes in information security.
● �Thoroughly enhance information security management, including support for network 

transmissions to entities outside the company, limits on the sending and receiving of 
potentially dangerous e-mail attachments, and changes to VPN methods.

Environment, 
climate 

change, natural 
disasters

● �Risk of damage to production and supply of products and services 
stemming from large-scale disasters or other unforeseen events.

● �Risk that events beyond those assumed in the BCP will have a 
negative impact on business continuation, which could have a major 
effect on the Group’s business results or financial position.

● �Risk that climate change could lead to long-term market structural 
changes or impact the Group’s core businesses.

● �Risk that long-term market structural changes or a decline in sales 
generated by customers in core businesses could affect the Group’s 
business results.

● �Decentralize the production network to reduce the risk of concentration.
● �Verify business continuity period without limiting it to specific events; prepare the 

necessary funds, product inventories and materials, personnel, and production 
equipment.

● �Formulate a long-term vision to achieve “substantially zero emissions” of greenhouse 
gases associated with our business activities by 2050; reduce our environmental 
impact (obtain Science Based Targets Initiative (SBTi) certification and formulate 
long-term vision aimed at “substantially zero emissions”).

● �Identify various events that may be caused by climate change and check the details 
of the risks and potential impact on operations, then undertake scenario analysis and 
respond accordingly (disclosure according to the Task Force on Climate-related 
Financial Disclosures framework).

Compliance

● �Risk that violations of laws (antitrust laws, construction industry laws, 
labor laws, bribery laws, etc.), including violations resulting from 
failure to address characteristics of newly entered regions and 
industries and delays in responding to new laws and revisions of 
existing laws, may result in administrative penalties and fines; risk 
that inappropriate acts by the company and/or its business partners 
will lead to harmful rumors and damage the Group’s reputation.

● �Conduct regular monitoring in Japan and abroad to check compliance with laws and 
internal rules; engage in rigorous compliance education.

● �Place top priority on legal compliance and conduct regular monitoring in Japan and 
overseas to check compliance; strengthen system for concluding contracts while also 
informing and educating all employees.

Changes in 
how employees 

work

● �Risk of undesirable changes in how employees work as a result of efforts 
to introduce new ways of working, increased telecommuting, and 
support for remote work as a countermeasure for infectious disease.

● �Risk of regulatory problems.
● �Risk of negative effects on employee health such as mental health 

problems, lack of exercise, etc.

● �Revise various internal rules and standards in line with changes in systems and 
business processes.

● �Conduct disease prevention seminars, health promotion programs, and employee 
surveys, and issue alerts.
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Strengthening of oversight 
and auditing

• Appointed and increased the number of independent outside directors 
(1 in 2007  2 in 2010  3 in 2014  4 in 2018  5 in 2019)

• Appointed and increased the number of independent outside Audit & Supervisory Board members  
(2 in 1994  3 in 2011)

• Evaluation for the effectiveness of the Board of Directors initialized (2016)
• Established criteria for judging the independence of outside officers (2016; revised 2020)
• Set an upper limit on the term of office for outside officers (2020)

Strengthening of manage-
ment transparency and 
soundness

• Replaced the Nomination and Remuneration Meeting with the Nomination and Remuneration Com-
mittee established with independent outside directors as a majority (2016)

• Revised the officer remuneration system (2017)
• Abolished the “counselor and advisor system” (2018)
• Appointed an independent outside director as chairperson of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee (2018)

Clarification of responsibili-
ties, encouragement of 
dialogue, etc.

• Introduced the executive officer system (2000)
• Formulated the Corporate Governance Guidelines (2016)
• Appointed executive officer in charge of corporate communications (2016)
• Formulated guidelines on strategic shareholdings (2016; revised 2018)
• Published skills matrix (2021)

Corporate Governance
In response to the trust and expectations of the stakeholders, we not only comply with laws and 
regulations and our Articles of Incorporation but also execute highly transparent and efficient man-
agement based on corporate ethics.

In order to earn the trust of all stakeholders, we comply with 
laws and regulations and our Articles of Incorporation and 
work to avoid any conflict with corporate ethics, while also 
striving to realize sustainable corporate growth and improve 
corporate value over the medium and long term through highly 
transparent and efficient management.

We also comply with Japan’s Corporate Governance 
Code released by the Financial Services Agency and Tokyo 
Stock Exchange and satisfy requirements for information 
disclosure by publishing corporate governance reports and 

We have established a corporate governance system with an 
Audit & Supervisory Board for its organizational design under 
the Companies Act. The Audit & Supervisory Board fulfills the 
supervisory function for the Board of Directors, and the Com-
pany’s highly independent outside directors regularly interact 
with the Audit & Supervisory Board and its members for ex-
changes of opinion and other discussions to supervise the 
proper execution of business operations, thereby forming a 
governance system with effective fairness and transparency. In 
addition, we also disclose information in a timely manner and 

integrated reports (this report) on our company website. Given 
the update of the code on June 11, 2021, we have revised the 
content of our corporate governance report accordingly to 
promptly reflect the new information disclosure requirements 
and the approach and initiatives to our sustainability policy, 
climate change, respect for human rights, and ensuring the 
diversity of our core human resources. We will continue to 
respond in a timely and appropriate manner to comply through 
disclosure in this report.

have established various systems, including an effective inter-
nal control system and risk management system, to ensure 
transparent and fair management. 

To respond swiftly to the rapidly changing business 
environment, we have functionally separated the Board of 
Directors, which is involved in making important decisions, 
from the executive officer system, which is in charge of busi-
ness execution. We have therefore transferred business exe-
cution authority to the executive body, based on the resolution 
of the Board, to allow business decisions to be executed in a 
fast and efficient manner.

Basic Approach to Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Framework

web Report on Corporate Governance is available at the following:
https://www.azbil.com/csr/basic/governance.html

Changes to Improve Corporate Governance
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General Shareholders’ Meeting

N
om

in
at

io
n 

an
d 

R
em

un
er

at
io

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

* Board of Directors

Management Meeting

Directors (11)
Independent Outside Directors (5) 

(included in the 11)

Executive Chairperson (1)
President and CEO (1)

Senior Managing Executive Officer (1)
Managing Executive Officers (7)

Executive Officers (20)

Appoint/
Supervise

Appoint/Dismiss Appoint/Dismiss Appoint/
Dismiss

Accounting 
Audit

Chairperson (1)
(Representative Director)
President and CEO (1) 

(Representative Director)

Direct/
Supervise

Appoint/
Dismiss

Audit
Cooperate

Audit
Cooperate

Cooperate

DirectAssist

Direct

Audit (Internal)

Direct

Audit & Supervisory Board
Independent

Auditor

Executive Body

Audit & Supervisory
Board Office

Internal Audit 
Department

Business Operations

Audit & Supervisory Board Members (5)
Independent Outside Audit & 

Supervisory Board Members (3) 
(included in the 5)

* Majority consists of independent outside directors with the chairperson of the committee also being an independent outside director

Corporate Governance Structure� (As of June 24, 2021)

The Board of Directors discusses and makes decisions on 
corporate management intending to achieve sustained growth 
and improved corporate value over the medium and long term 
as its basic mission. In particular, we regard matters related to 
management strategies and management plans as most 
important matters to be deliberated, and make appropriate 
decisions through open-minded and constructive discussions.

As of June 2021, the Board of Directors comprises 11 
members (including two women, of whom one is a foreign 
national.) For the details, please refer to page 85 regarding 
director appointments and dismissals.

Azbil is a company with an Audit & Supervisory Board. The 
Company elected five members to the Audit & Supervisory 
Board, of whom three are outside members, and two are full-
time members. The Audit & Supervisory Board members care-
fully audit, mainly from a legal standpoint, the business deci-
sions and operational execution by the Board of Directors and 
executive officers. Please refer to page 85 for details of Audit & 
Supervisory Board member appointments and dismissals.

The Company established its Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee as an voluntary advisory body to the Board of 
Directors. The role of the committee is to ensure greater 
fairness, objectivity, and transparency of processes for nomi-
nating and remunerating officers, with the aim of fostering the 
enduring development of the Company and improving its 
medium- and long-term profitability and productivity. It is 
stipulated that independent outside directors make up the 
majority of committee members and that an independent 
outside director is elected as its chairperson by the  
committee members.

The Management Meeting comprises the managing executive 
officers and a representative from Audit & Supervisory Board 
members and meets twice a month in principle as an advisory 
body at the business execution level to support decision-mak-
ing by the president. This allows for rapid decision-making and 
thorough execution, strengthening the Company’s ability to 
drive its business forward and business management. 

Board of Directors

Audit & Supervisory Board

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Management Meeting
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Theme Main topics

Management 
strategy and  
planning

• Growth strategy at each business
• �Approach to formulating the new medium-term plan
• �Deliberations on new medium-term plan, etc.

Capital policy • �Year-end dividend and dividend policy
• �Status of strategic shareholdings, etc.

Subsidiary 
management 
status

• �Business status reports at domestic subsidiaries
• �Business status reports at Chinese subsidiaries
• �Business status reports at Asian/North American subsid-

iaries

Governance

• �Evaluation of Effectiveness of Board of Directors
• �Compliance with Corporate Governance Code
• �Compliance with the Amendment of the Companies Act, 

etc.

Sustainability • �CSR activity policy, reporting
• �Reporting on SDG initiatives, etc.

By separating the roles and functions of the Board Directors 
responsible for decision making on basic policies involved in 
management, issues stipulated by laws and regulations, other 
important matters, and supervision of the business execution 
and the executive officer system which takes on the role for 
business execution, we have established a swift execution 
system and strengthened the supervisory function of the 
status of business execution.

In principle, the Board of Directors’ meetings are held 
once a month. The Board meetings were held 13 times in 
FY2020, with full attendance by all directors and Audit & 
Supervisory Board members at all the meetings (Anne Ka Tse 
Hung, who was appointed director at the 98th Ordinary Gen-
eral Meeting of Shareholders on June 24, 2020, attended all 
10 board meetings held after her appointment).

The Board discussed and decided on matters stipulated 
under the Companies Act and formulated a new medium-term 
plan for long-term growth and development. Upon formulating 
the plan, the Board of Directors held multiple rounds of discus-
sions over plans for each business, reflecting on the direction 
for long-term growth by the Group, and combined this with 
deliberations on responding to changes in the business envi-
ronment from a sustainability perspective, capturing new 
business opportunities, strategies for technology and R&D, 
and human resources strategy with the view to achieving the 
Company’s essential goals for the SDGs. 

The Board of Directors aims to enhance the corporate value 
over the medium and long term through open-minded and 
constructive discussions.

To ensure the Board of Directors continues to fulfill its 
roles and responsibilities, the board identifies issues and areas 
requiring improvement and assesses its effectiveness each 
year intending to enhance the board’s effectiveness.

As in the previous year, for FY2020, the evaluations and 
views on the issues listed below were collected from all mem-
bers of the Board of Directors and the Audit & Supervisory 
Board. Based on this information, the Board of Directors 
assessed its current effectiveness, shared information on 
issues, and engaged in discussions on future action.

(1) Size and composition of the Board of Directors
(2) Operating status of the Board of Directors
(3) �Support systems and communication with outside directors 

and outside Audit & Supervisory Board members
(4) Decision-making process of the Board of Directors
(5) Activities of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The results from the evaluation confirmed that the size, 
composition, and operating status of the Board of Directors are 
appropriate, and the systems are in place to make important 
management decisions and supervise business execution. 
Also, the composition and operation of the advisory Nomina-
tion and Remuneration Committee are appropriate; members 
of the board, both internal and external officers with wide-rang-
ing experience and expertise, have a profound understanding 
of their roles; and members engage in open, active, and con-
structive discussions based on adequate communication, even 
when the meetings are run using online conferencing systems. 
As a result, we have confirmed that the Board of Directors 
overall is performing effectively and appropriately.

In FY2020, we formulated a new medium-term plan for 
long-term growth and development. Upon formulating the plan, 
we also held multiple rounds of discussions over plans for each 
business, reflecting on the direction for long-term growth by 
the Group, and combined this with deliberations on responding 
to changes in the business environment from a sustainability 
perspective, capturing new business opportunities, strategies 
for technology and R&D, and human resources strategy with 
the view to achieving the Company’s essential goals for the 
SDGs. We also conducted a self-evaluation of the appropriate-
ness of the process for the appointment and dismissal of 
directors, including the replacement of the president, and 
evaluated the effectiveness of the Nomination and Remunera-
tion Committee, an advisory body to the Board of Directors, 
which is now formed with the majority of its members being 
independent outside directors and chaired by an independent 
outside director. In addition, from the perspective of strength-
ening the supervision of Group management, we continue to 
provide detailed reports on the performance, strategy reviews 
and management control status of major subsidiaries.

Main Activities of the Board of Directors Evaluation of Effectiveness of Board of Directors

Main Topics for Discussion by Theme at Board of 
Directors’ Meetings in FY2020
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Name Inside/Outside Chairperson

Katsuhiko Tanabe Independent Outside Director

Takeshi Itoh Independent Outside Director

Waka Fujiso Independent Outside Director

Hirozumi Sone Representative Director

Kiyohiro Yamamoto Representative Director

At the same time, the Board of Directors shared and 
discussed the progress of the new medium-term plan, etc., and 
further enhanced discussions on business management and 
corporate governance, including compliance, etc. The members 
also shared the recognition that it is necessary to enhance 
reporting to the Board of Directors on the deliberations and 
decisions made by the Nomination and Remuneration Commit-
tee, as well as to expand deliberations by the Board of Directors 
based on the reports of the committee.

To live up to the trust of our stakeholders, achieve 
sustainable growth, and enhance our corporate value over the 
medium and long term, we will continue the efforts to enhance 
the effectiveness of the Board of Directors, including a more 
objective supervisory function.

In principle, the Audit & Supervisory Board meeting is held 
once a month. In FY2020, the Audit & Supervisory Board 
meetings were held a total of 14 times with full attendance by 
all 5 members.

During this period, the Audit & Supervisory Board 
deliberated on the annual audit plan at the beginning of the 
fiscal year, submitted monthly and quarterly reports of its 
members’ activities through the fiscal year, submitted quarterly 
financial audit reports, provided the year-end evaluation of 
audit activities, considered key audit matters (KAM), and 
deliberated the assessments of the independent accounting 
auditor. The Audit & Supervisory Board also engaged in ex-
changes of opinion with the representative directors and 
regular information sharing with outside directors. 

Additionally, an evaluation of the effectiveness of the 
Audit & Supervisory Board was performed at the end of the 
fiscal year, and in addition to reviewing the Audit & Supervisory 
Board’s auditing activities for FY2020, the evaluation results 
were reflected in the audit plan for FY2021.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee serves as a 
voluntary advisory body to the Board of Directors that fulfills the 
function of both a nomination committee and a remuneration 
committee. It is stipulated that independent outside directors 
make up the majority of committee members and that an inde-
pendent outside director is elected as its chairperson by the 
committee members. As of June 2021, the committee had the 
following members.

Main Activities of the Audit & Supervisory Board

Composition of the Nomination and  
Remuneration Committee
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The committee also deliberates and decides on formulation/
amendments/abolishment of rules governing concurrent duties 
for officers, officer compensation, etc., and submits proposals 
to the Board of Directors.

In the deliberation and decision-making process for 
proposals concerning representative directors, the representa-
tive directors concerned do not participate in the deliberation 
and decision-making process.

Item Role and Authority
Officer nomination

Appointment
●�Deliberates and decides on proposed candidates for directors, representative directors, chairperson of the Board of Directors, 

managing executive officers, and executive officers, and submits proposals to the Board of Directors
●�Deliberates and decides on proposed candidates for the CEO and subordinate officers (president & CEO, vice president, and the 

like), and submits proposals to the Board of Directors

Dismissal
●�Deliberates and decides on proposals relating to the dismissal of directors, representative directors, chairperson of the Board of 

Directors, and managing executive officers/executive officers, and submits proposals to the Board of Directors
●�Deliberates and decides on proposals relating to the dismissal of the CEO and subordinate officers (president & CEO, vice 

president, and the like), and submits proposals to the Board of Directors

Remuneration

Remuneration 
plan and remu-
neration system

Deliberates and decides on establishment and amendments/abolishment of remuneration plans and remuneration systems for 
the representative directors, directors, managing executive officers, and executive officers, and submits proposals to the Board 
of Directors

Remuneration 
limit amendments Deliberates and decides on proposed amendments to director remuneration limits, and submits proposals to the Board of Directors

Evaluation, 
remuneration

●�Deliberates and decides on responsibility grades, basic remuneration, individual performance evaluation, and bonus amounts 
for chairperson, president & CEO, directors who concurrently perform executive duties, managing executive officers, and 
executive officers

●�Deliberates and decides on remuneration for outside directors and non-executive directors

Successor planning, successor development

Successor 
development

●�Creates, deliberates, decides on the overall plan for successor development
●�Selects successor candidate(s), deliberates, and decides on individual development plans
●�Periodically confirms progress updates on successor development

Date Items of discussion

May 2020
●�Evaluated the results of individual performance targets in FY2019 and deliberated the amounts of bonuses to be paid to 

individual directors who concurrently performed executive duties and executive officers
●�Deliberated the basic remuneration to be paid in FY2020 to individual directors who concurrently perform executive duties 

and outside directors

June 2020
●�Reconfirmed the duties of the committee under the new organization chaired by independent outside director  

Katsuhiko Tanabe
●�Confirmed the outcomes from officer interviews in the successor development plan 

January 2021 ●�Confirmed the evaluation results of the nomination process for management structure change and progress of successor 
development plans

February 2021 ●�Reported to the Board of Directors on deliberations over FY2021 executive structure and subsidiary management teams 
FY2021 management team decided at the Board of Directors’ meeting

March 2021
●�Confirmed management teams at overseas Group companies and the operational status of the global HR system
●�Revised Nomination and Remuneration Committee regulations and deliberated on full-time executives taking on concurrent 

roles at other companies

In FY2020, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met five times, with the meetings attended by all committee members. 
The main items discussed were as follows.

* �In May 2021, the Committee selected seven key skills expected of directors in light of the medium-term plan and other management strategies, organized them into a 
skills matrix, and proposed it to the Board of Directors.

Role and Authority of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Main Activities of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in FY2020

The Company formulated its policy for the determination of 
individual director remuneration and other matters in 2017 and 
bases director remuneration decisions on this policy. Before 

Executive Remuneration
Basic Policy

the enforcement of the revised Companies Act on March 1, 
2021, this policy was clearly stated and confirmed at the 
Board of Directors’ meeting held on February 26, 2021, after 
consulting the Nomination and Compensation Committee. The 
remuneration system for directors is commensurate to their 
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* �The evaluation will consider the degree of achievement of qualitative goals, as well 
as efforts in CSR activities, etc., and the development of human resources for 
successors, which were set at the beginning of the term, according to each role.

Basic  
remuneration
(Monthly  
payments as 
fixed remunera-
tion)

Director remuneration Defined, fixed remuneration for representative directors and directors

Executive position 
remuneration Fixed remuneration for each position

Executive responsibility 
remuneration

Remuneration based on the individual responsibility grade that is determined based on the level of duties, 
the scope of the role, and quantitative and qualitative evaluations for each fiscal year (responsibility 
grades are revised each year based on a review by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee)

Bonuses
(Paid at specific times twice a year as performance-linked remuneration.)

Classification
Total amount of 

remunerations paid  
(millions of yen)

Total amount by type (millions of yen) Number of 
people remuner-

atedBasic  
remuneration

Performance-linked 
remuneration

Stock 
options

Retirement 
allowance

Directors (outside members) 446 (64) 343 (64) 103 (–) – – 13 (6)

Audit & Supervisory Board members
(outside members)   81 (29)   81 (29)     – (–) – –   5 (3)

Total (outside members) 528 (94) 424 (94) 103 (–) – – 18 (9)

Directors who concurrently perform executive duties are paid a 
bonus in consideration of a performance evaluation and quali-
tative evaluation* as well as the degree of achievement of 
medium-term targets, etc., and the performance-linked portion 
of remuneration is designed to contribute to the Company’s 
continuous growth and enhancement of corporate value. In 
the specific calculations, evaluations are performed from the 
standpoint of responsibility for the Group’s consolidated man-
agement based on indicators such as increase in operating 
income and ROE in light of both profitability and capital effi-
ciency. Furthermore, the level of growth in operating income 
and other factors are also set as indicators from the stand-
point of working to enhance medium- to long-term corporate 
value. These indicators are considered in a comprehensive 
assessment of individual performance-linked remuneration by 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Operating income for FY2020 was 25.7 billion yen, com-
pared to the target of 25.5 billion yen (on a consolidated basis).

Remuneration for directors who concurrently perform execu-
tive duties comprises “basic remuneration” and twice-yearly 
“bonuses” that are linked to business results for the fiscal 
year and are also determined in consideration of the degree 
of achievement of medium-term targets. The basic remunera-
tion for directors who concurrently perform executive duties 
comprised three forms of remuneration: director remunera-
tion, executive position remuneration, and executive respon-

sibility remuneration.
Furthermore, to share awareness with the shareholders 

and to create a continuous incentive to enhance corporate 
value, executive directors purchase the Company’s stocks in 
the fixed annual contribution amount proportional with each 
officer’s positions and responsibilities through the officer stock 
ownership plan and continually hold these stocks.

Directors who do not concurrently perform executive 
duties and outside directors are paid only basic remuneration that 
is fixed remuneration to ensure that they perform their manage-
ment supervision function fully. Remuneration for Audit & Supervi-
sory Board members comprises only basic remuneration that is 
fixed remuneration considering their duties and authority.

Performance-linked Remuneration

Allocations of Total Remuneration for Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members in FY2020 (Ended March 2021)

Remuneration of Executive Directors Who Concurrently Hold Other Positions 

Composition and Approach for Executive Remuneration

Though the Company does not stipulate in advance the 
breakdown in remuneration for each of the different catego-
ries, performance-linked remuneration will account for a higher 
percentage of the total remuneration as the Company’s perfor-
mance rises or individuals make a greater contribution to 
company earnings.

The Company has resolved that the maximum annual remu-
neration for directors shall be no more than 450 million yen (for 
eight directors, excluding amounts paid as salaries for employ-
ees). The Company has also resolved that the maximum 
annual remuneration for Audit & Supervisory Board members 
shall be no more than 120 million yen (for five Audit & Supervi-
sory Board members), with individual remuneration amounts 
determined through discussions held by the Audit & Supervi-
sory Board members.

Remuneration Limits

roles, responsibilities, and accomplishments, while the remu-
neration plan is designed to contribute to sustainable growth 
and enhance corporate value.
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The basic criteria for director candidates are to be a person 
who has excellent character and insight, contributes to the 
growth of the Company and the Group, and helps improve 
corporate value. Directors involved in business execution need 
to have high levels of ability and knowledge about each busi-
ness segment and important management functions. Outside 
director candidates must have wide-ranging experience and 
excellent expertise and knowledge and must also have the 
ability to proactively express opinions and raise issues from 
outside perspectives and diverse backgrounds. The candi-
dates must be appointed after we check they have no issues 
regarding their independence. We will utilize the skills matrix 
described below to appoint candidates for Board of Directors.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, which is 
an advisory body to the Board of Directors and is chaired by 
an independent outside director with majority of Committee 
member made up by independent outside directors, deliber-
ates on these candidates before deciding at a meeting of the 
Board of Directors.

Candidates for Audit & Supervisory Board members must have 
the appropriate experience and ability, as well as knowledge 
about finance, accounting, and legal matters. We also consid-
er independence from the executive side to be another eligibili-
ty requirement. Among Audit & Supervisory Board member 
candidates, at least one person must have extensive knowl-
edge of finance and accounting. These candidates are first 
discussed by full-time Audit & Supervisory Board members 
and the representative directors, then considered and agreed 
upon by the Audit & Supervisory Board before the final approv-
al at the Board of Directors’ meeting.

In addition, for outside Audit & Supervisory Board 
member candidates, our policy is to first confirm that there are 
no issues regarding their independence, based on the estab-
lished criteria for judging the independence of outside officers.

Concerning the appointment and dismissal of CEO and subor-
dinate officers (president & CEO, vice president, and the like), 
the Board of Directors makes decisions, based on selection 
criteria and the desired composition of the Board of Directors, 
after deliberation by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Appointment Criteria for Directors
To be appointed, candidates must have a full understanding 
of our corporate philosophy, deep knowledge of corporate 
management, and wide-ranging experiences both inside 
and outside Japan, as well as good insights on corporate 
governance, CSR, and compliance. They must meet the 
following criteria and be capable of leading the Group to 
sustainable growth.

1. �Good character and insights, and selfless attitude, a person 
who earns the trust of others;

2. �The ability to think and judge from a global perspective and 
from the standpoint of the entire Group;

3. �Exceptional insights, the ability to implement change and 
innovation and predict the future, and the willingness to 
embrace challenges from a results-oriented approach;

4. �Healthy, energetic, physically sound, as well as mentally 
resilient.

Criteria for Proposed Dismissal of Directors
Concerning policies and procedures for dismissing the CEO 
and subordinate officers (president & CEO, vice president, and 
the like), the candidate for dismissal undergoes a fair and 
rigorous process of screening and deliberation by the Nomina-
tion and Remuneration Committee, based on the following 
criteria. If the Nomination and Remuneration Committee judg-
es that the dismissal is appropriate, it will be sent to the Board 
of Directors for approval.

Reasons for proposing dismissal include a serious 
business problem arising from a violation of the law or the 
Articles of Incorporation, an event that makes it difficult for the 
person to perform and continue in the job, and when it be-
comes evident that the person does not meet the appoint-
ment criteria.

Appointment of Directors and Audit & Supervisory 
Board Members, and Appointment/Dismissal of CEO 
and Subordinate Officers

Appointment of Directors

Appointment of Audit & Supervisory Board Members

Appointment/Dismissal of CEO and Subordinate Officers
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*1 �“Executive” refers to an executive director, an executive officer, or head of a department and other general employees.
*2 �3. and 4. above are new standards established on May 13, 2020, and will be applied to the election of future outside directors.
*3 �A “major lender” refers to a financial institution group from which the azbil Group has borrowed funds where the outstanding aggregate of those borrowings exceeds 

2% of the consolidated total assets of the azbil Group as of the end of the Company’s fiscal year in situations where the azbil Group effectively has loans payable (net 
balance of loans exceeding current liquidity deposited at such lender).

Criteria for Independence of Outside Officers (Revised on May 13, 2020)

The Company has formulated its criteria for independence for appointing outside officers. It judges that a person is not independent if 
any of the items below apply:

1.	� A person who serves as an executive*1 of the Company or a consolidated subsidiary of the Company, or who served for 10 years 
prior to being appointed;

2.	� A person who served as an executive of the Company or a consolidated subsidiary for 10 years prior to being appointed as a 
non-executive director or an Audit & Supervisory Board member of the Company or a subsidiary of the Company;

3.	� A person who has served as a non-executive director of the Company or a consolidated subsidiary for more than 12 years in principle*2;
4.	� A person who has served as an Audit & Supervisory Board member of the Company or a consolidated subsidiary for more than 12 

year; three terms in principle*2;
5.	� A person who serves as an executive of a major business partner of the azbil Group (a business partner that makes a payment in 

the amount exceeding 2% of its annual consolidated sales for the latest fiscal year or any of the preceding three fiscal years or 
receives such a payment), or who has served in such a position in the last three years;

6.	� A person who serves as an executive or an Audit & Supervisory Board member of a major lender*3 of the azbil Group or its parent 
company or a significant subsidiary, or who served in such a position in the last three years;

7.	� A related party of the accounting auditor or audit firm, etc. of the azbil Group, or who has served in the last three years in such a 
position (including those who have already resigned from such a position);

8.	� A lawyer, certified public accountant, or other consultant who does not fall under item 7 above and who received money and other 
economic benefits in the annual average amount of 10 million yen or more over the past three years other than executive compen-
sations from the azbil Group;

9.	� A member, partner, associate, or employee of a law firm or audit firm, etc. who does not fall under items 7 or 8 above where the 
azbil Group is a major business partner of the said law firm, audit firm, etc. (a company that received a payment from the Compa-
ny or a consolidated subsidiary in the annual average amount of 2% or more of the consolidated net sales of the company over 
the past three fiscal years);

10.	�A person who serves as an executive or as an Audit & Supervisory Board member of a current major shareholder of the Company 
(a shareholder that holds 10% or more of voting rights of the Company), its parent company or a significant subsidiary, or who 
served in such a position in the last five years;

11.	�A person who serves as an executive or an Audit & Supervisory Board member of a company that accepts a director seconded 
from the azbil Group, its parent company or subsidiary;

12.	�A person who serves as an executive or an Audit & Supervisory Board member of a company in which the Company is a major shareholder;
13.	�A person who has received as an executive of an organization such as a public interest incorporated foundation, a public interest 

incorporated association, or a non-profit organization that has received a donation or subsidy from the azbil Group in the annual 
average of 10 million yen or more over the past three fiscal years; and

14.	�A spouse, a person within the second degree of consanguinity, or a relative residing in the same household of a person for whom 
any of the above items (1 to 13) are applicable.

Concerning succession planning for the Company’s senior 
management, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
deliberates the status of training and selection of successors 
and records the results of these deliberations as well as the 
discussion process itself. As explained, we ensure that suc-
cession planning is operated appropriately and objectively, and 
the chairperson of the Nomination and Remuneration Commit-

Succession Planning tee, who is an independent outside director, reports the results 
of the discussions to the Board of Directors as appropriate.

This system is designed to ensure that the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee selects and trains successor 
candidates properly and objectively, and that the Board of 
Directors can be actively involved in succession planning with 
sufficient time and resources allocated for the training of 
successor candidates.
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Name (age) Current position(s)

Indepen-
dence Diversity Expected skills

Indepen-
dent 

officer
Gender

Corpo-
rate 

manage-
ment/

Sustain-
ability*

Global 
business

Financial 
affairs, 

account-
ing, 

finance

IT, 
technol-

ogy/
Control, 

and 
automa-

tion 
business

Sales, 
market-

ing

Manu-
factur-

ing, 
re-

search, 
and 

develop-
ment

Legal, 
risk 

manage-
ment, 

compli-
ance

Hirozumi Sone (66)

Representative 
Director
Executive Chairperson
Chairperson of the 
Board
Nomination and 
Remuneration 
Committee Member

M

Kiyohiro Yamamoto (56)

Representative 
Director
President & CEO
Nomination and 
Remuneration 
Committee Member

M

Takayuki Yokota (60)
Director
Senior Managing 
Executive Officer 

M

Masato Iwasaki (61)
Director
Managing Executive 
Officer

M

Yoshimitsu Hojo (58)
Director
Managing Executive 
Officer

M

Kazuyasu Hamada (57)
Director
Managing Executive 
Officer

M

Katsuhiko Tanabe (78)

Outside Director
Nomination and 
Remuneration 
Committee Chairper-
son

M

Takeshi Itoh (77)
Outside Director
Nomination and 
Remuneration 
Committee Member

M

Waka Fujiso (72)
Outside Director
Nomination and 
Remuneration 
Committee Member

F

Mitsuhiro Nagahama (67) Outside Director M

Anne Ka Tse Hung (57) Outside Director F

* “Corporate management/sustainability” includes human resources and personnel development from the viewpoint of sustainability.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors held on May 14, 2021, 
the Company determined the skills, etc. expected of directors 
considering the Company’s management strategy, including 
the realization of the Company’s medium-term plan, and 
confirmed the independence, diversity, and expected skills of 
the current Board of Directors as follows.

Regarding the skill items, the Board of Directors and the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company 
conducted an objective review considering the corporate 

Skills Expected in Directors (Skills Matrix)

Skills Expected in Directors (Skills Matrix)

philosophy, business model, growth strategy, etc., and select-
ed seven important items expected of the Directors to support 
growth toward the “contribution ‘in series’ to a sustainable 
society” outlined in the medium-term plan. Of these, “corpo-
rate management/sustainability,” “global business,” and “IT/
technology/control and automation business” are particularly 
relevant to the Group’s sustainable growth over the medium 
and long term.

Of the 11 directors, two are women (one of whom is a 
foreign national).
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Azbil is working to strengthen and enhance corporate 
governance and has developed a good reputation with 
external parties as a result. Here, I would like to talk 
about the Board of Directors that is at the heart of the 
Company’s governance framework.

In FY2019, the Company increased the propor-
tion of outside directors on the Board such that five of 
the 11 members are independent outside directors. In 
FY2020, we have made further progress from the 
perspective of diversity, with two women serving as 
directors, one of whom is a foreign national.

To ensure the Board’s deliberations are effective, 
briefings are held before every Board meeting to dis-
cuss agenda items and help participants have a full 
understanding of the issues in advance. Regular oppor-
tunities are also provided for information sharing be-
tween outside directors and Audit & Supervisory Board 
members and exchanges of opinion among representa-
tive directors, outside directors, and outside Audit & 
Supervisory Board members. We are also actively 
implementing various other measures to improve the 
effectiveness of the Board of Directors, including creat-
ing opportunities separate from the Board of Directors’ 
meetings for free discussions on strategy among the 
Board members. The participants always engage in 
lively discussions at the Board of Directors’ meetings 
and the various other meetings described above. Both 
the outside directors and the outside Audit & Superviso-
ry Board members have a broad range of expertise and 
business experience in a diverse array of fields, and 

therefore create significant added value through their 
multifaceted approach to discussions.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is 
chaired by an independent outside director and the 
majority of members are independent outside directors 
to ensure that the decision-making processes for officer 
nomination and remuneration are fair, objective, and 
transparent. Like the Board of Directors’ meetings, this 
Committee engages in substantial deliberations.

While it is true that the spread of COVID-19 has 
led to major constraints on corporate governance, we 
still strive to ensure deliberations of a high caliber, 
employing, in tandem, a web conference system—fea-
turing robust IT security—for the Board of Directors’ 
meetings, briefings, and other meetings. We believe that 
this arrangement means that our deliberations maintain 
an adequate level of effectiveness.

In the new post-COVID paradigm, sustainability 
(including ESG matters) will be the most important 
factor to increase corporate value over the medium and 
long term. The Company has developed strategies that 
contribute “in series” to achieving the SDGs, with the 
twin goals of solving social issues and achieving sus-
tained growth. Our founder’s original idea was to “free 
people from drudgery,” and that spirit aligns with the 
true aim of the SDGs. We will continue to focus on 
advancing corporate governance as the key foundation 
for our business, all the while based on our Group 
philosophy and the corporate DNA since its establish-
ment, to drive forward into the future.

Comment by an Outside Director

Azbil corporate governance, present and future

Mitsuhiro Nagahama
Outside Director
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Representative Director, Executive Chairperson
Hirozumi Sone
Chairperson, Responsible for Strengthening 
Group Governance
Apr 1979	� Joined the Company
Apr 1996	� Systems Marketing Manager of Systems 

Development Group, Industrial Systems Division
Oct 1998	� Transferred to Yamatake Industries Systems Co., 

Ltd., as Marketing Manager of the company
Apr 2005	� Executive Officer of the Company, Manager of 

the Corporate Planning Department
Apr 2008	� Managing Executive Officer, Manager of the 

Corporate Planning Department
Jun 2010	� Director
Apr 2012	� Representative Director, President and Chief 

Executive Officer
Apr 2020	� Representative Director, Executive Chairperson, 

President and Group Chief Executive Officer
Jun 2020	� Representative Director, Executive Chairperson 

(Present post)

Representative Director, President and Group 
Chief Executive Officer
Kiyohiro Yamamoto
Responsible for Internal Audit Department, 
Corporate Planning Department
Apr 1989	� Joined the Company
Apr 2007	� General Manager of Environmental Marketing 

Department, Marketing Headquarters, Building 
Systems Company of the Company

Apr 2011	� Head of Marketing Headquarters, Building 
Systems Company

Apr 2012	� Senior Officer, Head of Marketing Headquarters, 
Building Systems Company

Apr 2014	� Senior Officer, General Manager of Corporate 
Planning Department

Apr 2017	� Executive Officer, General Manager of Corporate 
Planning Department and Head of Marketing 
Headquarters, Building Systems Company

Apr 2018	� Managing Executive Officer, Head of Marketing 
Headquarters, Building Systems Company

Apr 2020	� Executive Vice President  
Jun 2020 Representative Director, President and 
Group Chief Executive Officer (Present post)

Director, Senior Managing Executive Officer
Takayuki Yokota
Assistant to President, Responsible for Corporate 
Administration (including Finance and Business 
Management, Corporate Communication, azbil Group 
CSR, Internal Control), International Business
Apr 1983	� Joined The Fuji Bank, Limited (Present: Mizuho 

Bank, Ltd.)
Nov 2005	� General Manager of the Investor Relations 

Department, Mizuho Financial Group, Inc.  
Apr 2010 Executive Officer and General Manager 
of the Investment Banking Business Manage-
ment Department, Mizuho Corporate Bank, 
Limited (Present: Mizuho Bank, Ltd.)

Jun 2012	� Audit & Supervisory Board Member of Mizuho 
Research Institute Ltd.

Apr 2013	� Joined the Company (Senior Officer)
Apr 2014	� Executive Officer, Head of Group Management 

Headquarters
Apr 2016	� Managing Executive Officer, Head of Group 

Management Headquarters
Apr 2017	� Managing Executive Officer, Head of Group 

Management Headquarters and Head of 
International Business Headquarters

Apr 2018	� Managing Executive Officer
Jun 2018	� Director (Present post)
Apr 2020	� Senior Managing Executive Officer (Present post)

Director, Managing Executive Officer
Yoshimitsu Hojo
Responsible for azbil Group (aG) production, aG 
purchasing, Advanced Automation Business, 
Production Management Headquarters, 
President of Advanced Automation Company
Aug 1990	� Joined the Company
Apr 2011	� Manager of Company Business Control 

Department, Advanced Automation Company
Apr 2013	� Executive Officer, Head of Production 

Management Headquarters
Apr 2014	� Managing Executive Officer, Head of Production 

Management Headquarters
Jun 2014	� Director (Present post)
Apr 2016	� Managing Executive Officer, 

President of Advanced Automation Company 
and Head of Production Management Headquarters 

Apr 2019	� Managing Executive Officer, President of 
Advanced Automation Company (Present post)

Director, Managing Executive Officer
Masato Iwasaki
Responsible for Life Automation Business, 
General Manager of Life Science Engineering 
Department
Apr 1982	� Joined the Company
Apr 2003	� Manager of Marketing 2nd Department, and 

Information Systems Department, Advanced 
Automation Company

Apr 2011	� Executive Officer, Manager of Marketing 
Department, Advanced Automation Company

Apr 2012	� Managing Executive Officer, President of 
Advanced Automation Company

Jun 2012	� Director (Present post)
Apr 2016	� Managing Executive Officer
May 2018	� Managing Executive Officer, General Manager 

of Life Science Engineering Department 
(Present post)

Apr 2021	� Head of Home Comfort Headquarters  
(Present post)

Director, Managing Executive Officer
Kazuyasu Hamada
Responsible for Building Automation 
Business, azbil Group Sales Synergy, 
President of Building Systems Company
Apr 1987	� Joined the Company
Aug 2006	� General Manager of Security Business Planning 

Department, Security Business Headquarters, 
Building Systems Company

Apr 2008	� Head of Security Business Headquarters, 
Building Systems Company

Apr 2011	� Head of Security System Headquarters, Building 
Systems Company

Apr 2013	� Executive Officer, Vice Head of Environmental 
Facility Solution Headquarters, Building Systems 
Company

Apr 2015	� Executive Officer, Head of Environmental Facility 
Solution Headquarters and General Manager of 
Environmental Particle Solution Department, 
Building Systems Company

Apr 2016	� Managing Executive Officer, General Manager of 
Tokyo Head Office, Building Systems Company

Apr 2018	� Managing Executive Officer, President of Building 
Systems Company (Present post)

Jun 2018	� Director (Present post)

Board of Directors, Executive Officers, and Audit & Supervisory Board Members
(As of June 24, 2021)

Audit & Supervisory Board Members

Hisaya Katsuta
Tomohiko Matsuyasu
Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Members

Kinya Fujimoto
Minoru Sakuma
Fumitoshi Sato

Hiroshi Arai
Responsible for azbil Group (aG) Digital Transformation Promotion, aG Information 
Security, aG Cyber Security, Information Systems Department, Cloud Operation 
Center, IT Development Headquarters, Cyber Security Office, Head of IT Develop-
ment Headquarters

Junya Nishimoto
Responsible for aG Research and Development, Product Safety/Quality/Environ-
ment, Smart Robots, aG Environmental Load Innovation, Technology Development 
Headquarters, Technology Standardization Department, Valve Production 
Development Department, Environment Promotion Department, Document 
Production Department

Akihiko Naruse
Responsible for aG Safety Management (Occupational Health and Safety), Human 
Resources Department, aG Safety Management Department, Azbil Academy

Tadayoshi Ito
Responsible for aG Marketing (in three growth fields), Service Business, Service 
Headquarters, IT Solution Department, AI Solution Department, General Manager 
of Advanced Automation (AA) SS Business*1

Masatoshi Yamada
Head of Group Management Headquarters

Masashi Hirano
Responsible for Smart Robot Business 
Development

Kenichi Hayashi
General Manager of the Building Systems 
Company (BSC) Business Planning Department

Takahiro Sakamoto
Head of Technology Development  
Headquarters

Toshiyasu Sumitomo
Responsible for aG Marketing Suport

Takashi Imamura
Head of Production Management  
Headquarters

Managing Executive Officers Executive OfficersAudit & Supervisory Board Members
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Outside Director
Katsuhiko Tanabe
Apr 1973	� Registered as a Lawyer
Sep 1979	� Established TANABE & PARTNERS (Present post)
Apr 1995	� Deputy Chairperson of Dai-ichi Tokyo Bar 

Association
Apr 1997	� Vice-Chairperson of Kanto Bar Association
Apr 1998	� Managing Director of Japan Federation of Bar 

Associations
Jun 2000	� Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Member of 

Sanwa Shutter Corporation (Present: Sanwa 
Holdings Corporation)

Jun 2007	� Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Member of 
the Company

Jun 2010	� Outside Director of the Company (Present post)
Oct 2010	� Outside Director of MIRAIT Holdings Corporation
Jun 2014	� Retired from Outside Director of MIRAIT Holdings 

Corporation
Jun 2015	� Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Member of 

JSP Corporation (Present post)
Jun 2016	� Retired from Outside Audit & Supervisory Board 

Member of Sanwa Holdings Corporation

Outside Director
Takeshi Itoh
Sep 1969	� Entered Burnham & Company
Oct 1983	� Director of The First Boston Corporation 

(Present: Credit Suisse Group AG)
Oct 1993	� Managing Director and Vice Manager of Tokyo 

Branch, Smith Barney 
(Present: Citi Group Global Markets Japan Inc.)

Oct 1998	� President of UBS Asset Management Inc. 
(Present: UBS Asset Management (Japan) Ltd.)

Dec 2010	� Supreme Advisor of Japan Wealth Management 
Securities, Inc. 
(Present: Aozora Securities Co., Ltd.)

Feb 2012	� Vice Chairperson and Chief Operating Officer of 
Aozora Securities Co., Ltd.

Jun 2013	� Senior Advisor of Aozora Securities Co., Ltd.
Jun 2014	� Outside Director of the Company (Present post)
Jun 2018	� Retired from Senior Advisor of Aozora Securities 

Co., Ltd

Outside Director
Mitsuhiro Nagahama
Apr 1976	� Joined The Fuji Bank Limited. (Present: Mizuho Bank, Ltd.)
Mar 2003	� Executive Officer and General Manager of Otemachi 

Corporate Banking Division No. 6 and Otemachi 
Corporate Banking Division No. 7, Mizuho Corporate 
Bank, Ltd. (Present: Mizuho Bank, Ltd.)

Apr 2005	� Senior Executive Officer in charge of Corporate 
Banking, Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.

Mar 2006	� Senior Executive Officer and Head of the Americas, 
Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.

Apr 2010	� Deputy President and Deputy President-Executive 
Officer and Head of the Americas, Mizuho Corporate 
Bank, Ltd.

Mar 2013	� Retired from Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.
Apr 2013	� Chairperson of the Board of Mizuho Securities Co., 

Ltd. & Mizuho Securities USA Inc.
Apr 2015	� Advisor of Mizuho Securities Co., Ltd.
Jun 2015	� Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Member of the 

Company
Mar 2018	� Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Member of 

KURARAY Co., Ltd. (Present post)
Mar 2019	� Outside Director of Tokyo Tatemono Co., Ltd. 
Jun 2019	� Outside Director of the Company (Present post) 

Representative Director of Japan Economic Research 
Institute (Present post)

Mar 2020	� Retired from Advisor of Mizuho Securities Co., Ltd. 
Jun 2020	 Outside Director of NSK Ltd. (Present Post)
Mar 2021	� Retired from Outside Director of Tokyo Tatemono Co., Ltd. 

Outside Director
Anne Ka Tse Hung
Jul 1987	� Joined Baker McKenzie
Jul 1991	� Moved to Baker McKenzie Tokyo
Jul 1999	� Partner of the firm
Jul 2018	� Senior Counsel of the firm
Mar 2019	� Retired from Senior Counsel of the firm
Jun 2020	� Outside Director of the Company (Present post)

Outside Director
Waka Fujiso
Apr 1980	� Public Prosecutor of Tokyo District Public 

Prosecutor’s Office
Apr 2001	� Public Prosecutor of Tokyo High Public 

Prosecutor’s Office
Dec 2007	� Public Prosecutor of Supreme Public 

Prosecutors Office
Mar 2008	� Retired from Public Prosecutor of Supreme 

Public Prosecutor’s Office
Apr 2009	� Professor of Rikkyo University’s Law School
Sep 2011	� Member of the Medical Ethics Council of Ministry 

of Health, Labor and Welfare
Mar 2014	� Retired from Professor of Rikkyo University’s 

Law School
Jun 2015	� Substitute Audit & Supervisory Board Member of 

the Company
Jun 2018	� Outside Director of the Company (Present post)
Oct 2019	� Retired from a member of the Medical Ethics 

Council of Ministry of Health, Labor and Welfare

Tetsuya Iwasaki
Responsible for aG System Development, 
Head of BSC Development Headquarters

Kanichiro Tsuruta
Head of BSC Engineering Headquarters

Tetsuya Maruyama
Manager of BSC Chubu Regional Division

Tomoyuki Takeda
Manager of BSC Kansai Regional Division

Takashi Sawada
Manager of BSC Tokyo Head Office

Taro Sento
General Manager of AA IAP Business*3

Tetsuo Kobayashi
Head of Advanced Automation Company 
(AAC) Business Development Headquarters, 
Promotion Member of Strategic Planning & 
Development Office for Southeast Asia 

Toshihisa Murayama
Responsible for Building Automation 
International Business, Head of BSC 
Marketing Headquarters, Promotion Member 
of Strategic Planning & Development Office 
for Southeast Asia

Tetsuo Takamura
General Manager of AA CP Business*2

Hideaki Ishii
Responsible for aG Production Innovation, 
AA Development and Quality Assurance

Masahiko Fujikawa
Responsible for aG Quality and Safety 
Enhancement General Manager of Depart-
ment of Safety Assessment, General Manager 
of aG Quality Assurance Department

Akiko Sekino
General Manager of Legal & Intellectual 
Property Department

Yukiya Kitaura
Responsible for aG Service Business 
Support, BSC Environmental Solution 
Headquarters, Head of BSC Facility 
Management Headquarters

Takashi Igarashi
Responsible for aG Work Style Creation 
Support, Manager of AAC Tokyo Head Office

*1.	Solution and Service business 
(offering control systems, 
engineering service, mainte-
nance service, energy-saving 
solution service, etc.)

*2.	Control Product business 
(supplying factory automation 
products such as controllers 
and sensors)

*3.	Industrial Automation Product 
business (supplying process 
automation products such as 
differential pressure and 
pressure transmitters, and 
control valves)
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Strengthening the Foundation for Value Creation — ESG Initiatives

We conducted the 99th Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders (on June 24, 
2021) by utilizing the internet. Officers who spoke at the meeting participated 
from Japan and overseas through an online conferencing system.

President and Group CEO Yamamoto speaking at the Nikkei SDGs Festival and 
presenting materials on SDG initiatives

Communication with Stakeholders that Connects to 
Co-creating Value
The azbil Group aims to contribute “in series” to the achieve-
ment of a sustainable society through its businesses. To 
accomplish this goal, it is extremely important to comprehend 
various issues in each country and region, propose solutions, 
and co-create value toward sustainable growth through inter-
active communication with our stakeholders. From this per-
spective, management promotes proactive dialogue and works 
to create more transparent and trusting relationships with our 
stakeholders. Recently, we used the opportunity of the an-

The azbil Group has appointed an executive officer in charge of 
corporate communication who is putting in place systems to 
facilitate dialogue with stakeholders in partnerships with various 
departments within the Group. Through this system, we disclose 
fair and highly transparent disclosure of information in accordance 
with laws and regulations. In addition to financial information, we 
also proactively disseminate non-financial information including 
the management plan, ESG initiatives, and product and ser-
vice information.

Specifically, we promote expanded disclosure including 
the skills matrix to reflect the intentions of revisions to the Corpo-
rate Governance Code and the Companies Act. Regarding the 
disclosure of non-financial information including ESG issues such 
as climate change and human rights, which have strong interest 
from capital markets, we are improving disclosure in our integrat-
ed report and on our website. We also actively work to expand 
and improve communication opportunities, including our Presi-
dent and Group Chief Executive Officer giving a presentation on 

At our general meeting of shareholders, we worked to ensure 
prompt disclosure and utilized our voting rights exercise plat-
form. Additionally, at the 99th Ordinary General Meeting of 

nouncement of new long-term targets and a new medi-
um-term plan to explain the azbil Group’s direction and the 
value that our unique automation creates. We have also been 
working proactively to disclose non-financial information 
including matters related to ESG and the SDGs, and pursuing 
creative disclosure methods including remote disclosure using 
IT and DX to ensure that comprehensive information is deliv-
ered appropriately even during the COVID-19 pandemic.

our Group initiatives at Nikkei SDGs Festival and participating in 
exhibitions and speeches on the SDGs and ESG issues at trade 
shows and environmental seminars. 

As for appropriate choice of information delivery to each 
of our stakeholders, we use various methods including the 
Tokyo Stock Exchange’s Timely Disclosure network (TDnet), 
our website, press releases in newspapers, and other media, 
and exhibitions and facilities tours using digital content. When 
disclosing information, in addition to accuracy and quality, we 
work to build our global brand through unified design imaging 
and copywriting.

Shareholders in 2021, to ensure social distancing, we continued 
to use our online conferencing system for officers’ participation 
and maintained transparency and fairness in our disclosure even 
amid the COVID-19 pandemic by live-streaming the contents of 
the meeting. In our financial results briefings, we provided 
disclosure of our medium-term plan, and at press conferences, 
we provided similar online briefings and Q&A sessions, working 
to ensure and improve the quality of dialogue. 

System to Co-create Value and Initiatives to Enhance Dialogue

Even During the COVID-19 Pandemic, Continuing to Engage in Appropriate Communications

We expanded disclosure opportunities and main-
tained fairness by live-streaming our general share-
holders’ meeting and financial results briefings online.

Exhibitions are the best opportunities to showcase of the azbil 
Group’s technologies, products, and services. Amid the 
COVID-19 pandemic, when participating in large exhibitions in 

We created opportunities for dialogue globally and 
improved digital content through online exhibitions 
and virtual facilities tours.
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Japan and overseas, we engaged in meticulous operations 
with the safety of our customers in mind. We also provided 
exhibition booths in virtual spaces, allowing the same content 
to be viewed online. Through this initiative, customers were 
able to view the exhibition content and participate in seminars 
from anywhere in the world. We also provided virtual tours of 
the Fujisawa Technology Center, our R&D base in Japan, and 
the showroom at the Strategic Planning & Development Office 
for Southeast Asia in Singapore.

Participation and support for declarations and 
initiatives
• �Declaring our support for the Task Force on Climate-relat-

ed Financial Disclosures (TCFD)
• �Signing the United Nations Global Compact
• �Climate Change Initiative and the Japan Climate Leaders’ 

Partnership Endorsement

Status of inclusion in ESG indices and various 
external evaluations
• �Four indices chosen by the Government Pension Invest-

ment Fund (GPIF): 
FTSE Blossom Japan Index, MSCI Japan ESG Select 
Leaders Index, MSCI Japan Empowering Women Index (WIN), S&P/JPX Carbon Efficient Index

• 2021 Bloomberg Gender-Equality Index
�• �CDP Climate Change (B valuation) / Water (B-valuation)
• �Received the highest level for the Eruboshi certification, which recognizes leading 

companies based on the Act on Promotion of Women’s Participation and Advancement 
in the Workplace; Acquired Kurumin certification; Certified as a Health & Productivity 
Management Outstanding Organization in 2021; Awarded the Toyo Keizai Award at the 
3rd “Platinum Career Awards” in 2021.

Status of inclusion in other indices
• �FTSE4Good Japan Index, MSCI Japan Index, JPX-Nikkei Index 400

Virtual showroom in Singapore. Virtual showroom tours are possible from 
anywhere at any time. We plan to further expand the digital content that 
promotes understanding of the azbil Group’s capabilities.

 Initiatives Communication Methods

Customers

Developing better products and ser-
vices, providing consulting, quality 
assurance, high value-added engineer-
ing, and maintenance services

• Sales and quality assurance activities
• Offering safe, dependable, and valuable products and services
• Providing information through our website
• Establishing an inquiry form on our website
• Exhibitions

Sharehold-
ers and 
Investors

Timely and appropriate information 
disclosure; acquiring appropriate 
valuations, and providing feedback to 
the demands from the capital markets

• �General shareholders’ meetings, financial results briefings, facilities tours, and exhibitions 
(including live streaming) 

• �Individual meetings with Japanese and overseas institutional investors and analysts (manage-
ment participation, establishing the IR Office as a dedicated organization, and shifting to 
online meetings from FY2020)

• �Information disclosure through the integrated report (azbil report), business reports, and 
information disclosure on the Company’s website Investor Relations page  for shareholders 
and investors

• �Establishment of a disclosure policy and dialogue based on the policy
Business 
partners and 
suppliers

Ensuring opportunities for fair transac-
tions and building good partnerships

• �Communication through our purchasing operations and our CSR procurement survey
• �Establishing the azbil Group's targets for the SDGs in our supply chain (Reference: p. 63)

The local 
and interna-
tional 
communities

Proactive communication to respond to 
the needs and expectations of the local 
and international communities. Through 
various declarations, initiatives, and 
activities, we are engaged in responsible 
corporate activities

• �Invitations to seasonal events (such as summer evening festivals hosted by the Company)  
*Currently, the events have been postponed due to the COVID-19 pandemic

• �Volunteer activities (community cleanup activities, azbil Honey Bee Club)
• �Participation in international initiatives (UN Global Compact, TCFD, and others)
• �Biodiversity conservation initiatives (cooperation with Japanese and international NPOs and 

NGOs)

Employees

Toward our goal of “health and 
well-being management,” we have built 
various systems and promote internal 
communications to enable all employ-
ees to work comfortably and exercise 
their full potential

• �Information dissemination through the intranet and Group newsletter
• �Direct dialogue between officers and employees (global live streaming of messages from the 

president, Q&A sessions, and online dialogue on an individual workplace level)
• �Implementing an annual employee satisfaction survey and establishing satisfaction levels as a 

target for the SDGs (Reference: p. 64)
• �Regular dialogue between the labor union and management and issuance of joint declarations

Details of Stakeholder Dialogues (Initiatives and Communication Methods)

Main Declarations and Initiatives in Which We Have Participated and Supported, External Evaluations
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FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2020
Financial information
Financial Results (for the year):

Net sales 219,216 223,499 227,585 248,417 254,469 256,890 254,811 260,384 262,055 259,411 246,821
(Overseas sales)*1 19,837 22,956 46,135 46,756 48,991 43,380 45,797 46,710 44,195 44,888
Gross profit 79,714 80,840 77,872 86,550 89,884 91,089 91,492 97,481 102,338 103,642 99,369
Selling, general and administrative expenses 64,818 66,492 64,461 72,646 74,546 73,953 71,347 73,454 75,648 76,386 73,649
Operating income 14,896 14,348 13,411 13,904 15,337 17,136 20,145 24,027 26,690 27,256 25,720
Net income attributable to owners of the parent 7,928 8,519 8,309 7,669 7,169 8,268 13,154 17,890 18,951 19,793 19,918

Capital expenditure 3,351 3,010 3,121 5,303 6,302 3,413 4,160 7,038 6,363 4,934 5,039
Depreciation 4,460 4,027 3,621 3,723 3,785 4,148 4,075 4,112 4,167 4,462 4,484
R&D expenses 8,953 8,816 7,824 8,767 10,124 11,012 10,446 11,262 11,897 11,788 11,182

Cash Flows (for the year):
Net cash provided by operating activities 15,223 5,634 15,010 15,836 13,698 11,073 19,949 19,481 16,111 29,812 22,602
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (2,276) (3,549) (12,716) (10,670) (13,472) 4,262 (9,061) (48) (4,075) (4,171) 284
Free cash flow 12,947 2,085 2,294 5,166 226 15,334 10,889 19,433 12,036 25,641 22,886
Net cash used in financing activities (8,001) (6,393) (2,487) (6,940) (6,066) (10,536) (6,441) (10,852) (12,024) (18,768) (6,996)

Financial Position (at year-end):
Total assets*2 217,501 223,476 243,419 253,448 265,719 259,127 263,317 273,805 275,518 274,559 284,597
Interest-bearing debt 11,848 10,230 17,920 17,687 16,673 12,605 11,175 10,686 10,028 8,576 9,350
Shareholders’ equity 129,605 133,565 139,042 143,316 158,273 155,006 163,822 175,996 181,143 183,190 198,191
Net assets 131,362 135,077 141,197 144,978 160,294 156,966 165,752 177,963 183,098 185,302 200,608

Per Share Data*3:
Net income (yen) 53.67 57.67 56.25 51.93 48.53 56.36 89.78 123.08 132.03 140.80 142.77
Net assets (yen) 877.43 904.24 941.33 970.28 1,071.56 1,058.05 1,118.23 1,213.14 1,264.88 1,313.17 1,420.52
Cash dividends (yen) 31.50 31.50 31.50 31.50 31.50 33.50 38.50 41.00 46.00 50.00 55.00

Financial Ratios:
Gross profit/Net sales (%) 36.4 36.2 34.2 34.8 35.3 35.5 35.9 37.4 39.1 40.0 40.3
SG&A expenses/Net sales (%) 29.6 29.8 28.3 29.2 29.3 28.8 28.0 28.2 28.9 29.4 29.8
Operating income/Net sales (%) 6.8 6.4 5.9 5.6 6.0 6.7 7.9 9.2 10.2 10.5 10.4
R&D expenses/Net sales (%) 4.1 3.9 3.4 3.5 4.0 4.3 4.1 4.3 4.5 4.5 4.5
Shareholders’ equity/Total assets (%)*2 59.6 59.8 57.1 56.5 59.6 59.8 62.2 64.3 65.7 66.7 69.6
Return on equity (ROE) (%) 6.2 6.5 6.1 5.4 4.8 5.3 8.3 10.5 10.6 10.9 10.4
Dividend on equity (DOE) (%) 3.6 3.5 3.4 3.3 3.1 3.1 3.5 3.5 3.7 3.9 4.0
Dividend payout ratio (%) 58.7 54.6 56.0 60.7 64.9 59.4 42.9 33.3 34.8 35.5 38.5
Debt-equity ratio 0.09 0.08 0.13 0.12 0.11 0.08 0.07 0.06 0.06 0.05 0.05

Non-Financial Information
CO2 emissions (scopes 1+2) (metric tons of CO2)*4 26,678 23,549 22,890 22,295 21,577 20,650 20,242 19,610 19,125 18,130 16,754 
Number of employees (people) 8,215 8,331 9,585 9,712 9,408 9,464 9,290 9,328 9,607 9,897 10,003

Number of domestic employees 7,063 7,056 7,085 7,026 6,679 6,551 6,463 6,444 6,618 6,862 6,856
Number of overseas employees 1,152 1,275 2,500 2,686 2,729 2,913 2,827 2,884 2,989 3,035 3,147

Number of female employees in managerial or specialist positions (people) 22 23 29 33 35 40 47 52 58 61 71
Ratio of female employees in managerial or specialist positions (%) 2.1 2.1 2.6 3.0 3.2 3.6 4.2 4.5 4.9 5.1 5.8
Ratio of employees with disabilities to total workforce (%)*5 1.93 2.19 2.08 2.10 2.11 2.20 2.18 2.26 2.29 2.35 2.32

*1 The Company has disclosed overseas sales figures since fiscal year 2012, when overseas sales first accounted for more than 10% of consolidated net sales. The 
figure for fiscal year 2011 (¥19,837 million), shown as a comparison information, reflects the aggregate of sales in the same regions used for overseas sales calcula-
tions in fiscal year 2012 and thereafter.

*2 Effective from the beginning of fiscal year 2018, the Company has applied “Partial Amendments to Accounting Standard for Tax Effect Accounting” (ASBJ Statement 
No. 28, February 16, 2018), etc. Figures for total assets and shareholders’ equity/total assets in fiscal year 2017 have been changed retrospectively to reflect the 
amended standard as a comparison information.

11-Year Key Financial and Non-Financial Figures Azbil Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries

Financial and Non-Financial Data
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(Millions of yen)

FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2020
Financial information
Financial Results (for the year):

Net sales 219,216 223,499 227,585 248,417 254,469 256,890 254,811 260,384 262,055 259,411 246,821
(Overseas sales)*1 19,837 22,956 46,135 46,756 48,991 43,380 45,797 46,710 44,195 44,888
Gross profit 79,714 80,840 77,872 86,550 89,884 91,089 91,492 97,481 102,338 103,642 99,369
Selling, general and administrative expenses 64,818 66,492 64,461 72,646 74,546 73,953 71,347 73,454 75,648 76,386 73,649
Operating income 14,896 14,348 13,411 13,904 15,337 17,136 20,145 24,027 26,690 27,256 25,720
Net income attributable to owners of the parent 7,928 8,519 8,309 7,669 7,169 8,268 13,154 17,890 18,951 19,793 19,918

Capital expenditure 3,351 3,010 3,121 5,303 6,302 3,413 4,160 7,038 6,363 4,934 5,039
Depreciation 4,460 4,027 3,621 3,723 3,785 4,148 4,075 4,112 4,167 4,462 4,484
R&D expenses 8,953 8,816 7,824 8,767 10,124 11,012 10,446 11,262 11,897 11,788 11,182

Cash Flows (for the year):
Net cash provided by operating activities 15,223 5,634 15,010 15,836 13,698 11,073 19,949 19,481 16,111 29,812 22,602
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (2,276) (3,549) (12,716) (10,670) (13,472) 4,262 (9,061) (48) (4,075) (4,171) 284
Free cash flow 12,947 2,085 2,294 5,166 226 15,334 10,889 19,433 12,036 25,641 22,886
Net cash used in financing activities (8,001) (6,393) (2,487) (6,940) (6,066) (10,536) (6,441) (10,852) (12,024) (18,768) (6,996)

Financial Position (at year-end):
Total assets*2 217,501 223,476 243,419 253,448 265,719 259,127 263,317 273,805 275,518 274,559 284,597
Interest-bearing debt 11,848 10,230 17,920 17,687 16,673 12,605 11,175 10,686 10,028 8,576 9,350
Shareholders’ equity 129,605 133,565 139,042 143,316 158,273 155,006 163,822 175,996 181,143 183,190 198,191
Net assets 131,362 135,077 141,197 144,978 160,294 156,966 165,752 177,963 183,098 185,302 200,608

Per Share Data*3:
Net income (yen) 53.67 57.67 56.25 51.93 48.53 56.36 89.78 123.08 132.03 140.80 142.77
Net assets (yen) 877.43 904.24 941.33 970.28 1,071.56 1,058.05 1,118.23 1,213.14 1,264.88 1,313.17 1,420.52
Cash dividends (yen) 31.50 31.50 31.50 31.50 31.50 33.50 38.50 41.00 46.00 50.00 55.00

Financial Ratios:
Gross profit/Net sales (%) 36.4 36.2 34.2 34.8 35.3 35.5 35.9 37.4 39.1 40.0 40.3
SG&A expenses/Net sales (%) 29.6 29.8 28.3 29.2 29.3 28.8 28.0 28.2 28.9 29.4 29.8
Operating income/Net sales (%) 6.8 6.4 5.9 5.6 6.0 6.7 7.9 9.2 10.2 10.5 10.4
R&D expenses/Net sales (%) 4.1 3.9 3.4 3.5 4.0 4.3 4.1 4.3 4.5 4.5 4.5
Shareholders’ equity/Total assets (%)*2 59.6 59.8 57.1 56.5 59.6 59.8 62.2 64.3 65.7 66.7 69.6
Return on equity (ROE) (%) 6.2 6.5 6.1 5.4 4.8 5.3 8.3 10.5 10.6 10.9 10.4
Dividend on equity (DOE) (%) 3.6 3.5 3.4 3.3 3.1 3.1 3.5 3.5 3.7 3.9 4.0
Dividend payout ratio (%) 58.7 54.6 56.0 60.7 64.9 59.4 42.9 33.3 34.8 35.5 38.5
Debt-equity ratio 0.09 0.08 0.13 0.12 0.11 0.08 0.07 0.06 0.06 0.05 0.05

Non-Financial Information
CO2 emissions (scopes 1+2) (metric tons of CO2)*4 26,678 23,549 22,890 22,295 21,577 20,650 20,242 19,610 19,125 18,130 16,754 
Number of employees (people) 8,215 8,331 9,585 9,712 9,408 9,464 9,290 9,328 9,607 9,897 10,003

Number of domestic employees 7,063 7,056 7,085 7,026 6,679 6,551 6,463 6,444 6,618 6,862 6,856
Number of overseas employees 1,152 1,275 2,500 2,686 2,729 2,913 2,827 2,884 2,989 3,035 3,147

Number of female employees in managerial or specialist positions (people) 22 23 29 33 35 40 47 52 58 61 71
Ratio of female employees in managerial or specialist positions (%) 2.1 2.1 2.6 3.0 3.2 3.6 4.2 4.5 4.9 5.1 5.8
Ratio of employees with disabilities to total workforce (%)*5 1.93 2.19 2.08 2.10 2.11 2.20 2.18 2.26 2.29 2.35 2.32

*3 The Company conducted a two-for-one stock split for shares of common stock on October 1, 2018. Per share data are based on the number of shares after the 
stock split.

*4 �Scope 1: Direct greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions from a business (from fuel burning, industrial process) 
Scope 2: Indirect greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions from using electricity, heat, or steam provided by another business

*5 Includes: Azbil Corporation, Azbil Yamatake Friendly Co., Ltd., Azbil Kimmon Co., Ltd., Azbil Trading Co., Ltd., Azbil TA Co., Ltd.  
Azbil Trading Co., Ltd. and Azbil Kimmon Co., Ltd. from 2012 and Azbil TA Co., Ltd. from 2016 were consolidated as group companies.
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Azbil Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 
March 31, 2021  
 

  Millions of Yen 

Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars 

(Note 1)
ASSETS  2021  2020 2021
 
CURRENT ASSETS:     
 Cash and cash equivalents (Note 13) ¥ 90,653  ¥ 74,744  $ 816,691
 Marketable securities (Note 4)  12,200   13,700  109,910
 Notes and accounts receivable:     
  Trade (Note 13)  82,143   85,245  740,023
  Other  1,987   1,746  17,897
  Allowance for doubtful receivables  (369 )  (376 ) (3,325)
 Inventories (Note 5)  24,514   25,339  220,847
 Prepaid expenses and other current assets  8,472   8,792  76,326
     
   Total current assets  219,600   209,190  1,978,369
     
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:     
 Land  6,411   6,708  57,761
 Buildings and structures  41,417   47,638  373,123
 Machinery and equipment  18,520   18,601  166,850
 Furniture and fixtures  20,233   20,263  182,275
 Lease assets (Note 12)  2,742   2,337  24,698
 Construction in progress  825   462  7,437
   Total  90,148   96,009  812,144
 Accumulated depreciation  (63,086 )  (67,791 ) (568,341)
     
   Net property, plant and equipment  27,062   28,218  243,803
     
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS:     
 Investment securities (Notes 4 and 13)  22,215   19,865  200,139
 Investments in and advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries  
  and associated companies  659   336  5,936
 Deposits  3,059   2,952  27,562
 Deferred tax assets (Note 9)  2,382   4,287  21,468
 Software  4,144   4,165  37,330
 Other assets  5,476   5,546  49,333
     
   Total investments and other assets  37,935   37,151  341,768
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
TOTAL ¥ 284,597  ¥ 274,559  $ 2,563,940
 
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
 

 

Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars 

(Note 1)
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2021 2020 2021
 
CURRENT LIABILITIES:  

Short-term borrowings (Notes 6 and 13) ¥ 8,997 ¥ 8,197 $ 81,053
Current portion of long-term debt (Notes 6 and 13)  462 433 4,160
Notes and accounts payable:  

Trade (Note 13)  31,951 38,482 287,855
Other  2,521 1,751 22,713

Income taxes payable  6,071 6,699 54,690
Accrued bonuses  9,989 10,830 89,989
Other accrued expenses and current liabilities  16,468 16,284 148,367

 
Total current liabilities  76,459 82,676 688,827

 
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:  

Long-term debt (Notes 6 and 13)  1,749 1,611 15,752
Liability for retirement benefits (Note 7)  1,830 2,322 16,491
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 9)  181 181 1,633
Provision for stock payment  1,635 1,319 14,730
Other long-term liabilities  2,135 1,148 19,234

 
Total long-term liabilities  7,530 6,581 67,840

 
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES  

(Note 15)  
 

EQUITY (Note 8):  
 Common stock—authorized, 559,420,000 shares;  

issued, 145,200,884 shares  10,523 10,523 94,799
Capital surplus  11,671 11,671 105,142
Retained earnings  177,900 165,055 1,602,706

 Treasury stock—at cost, 5,681,473 shares in 2021 and  
5,699,112 shares in 2020  (13,709) (13,740) (123,505)

Accumulated other comprehensive income:  
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities  11,108 8,843 100,074
Deferred gain (loss) on derivatives under hedge accounting  25 (28) 223
Foreign currency translation adjustments  699 893 6,300
Defined retirement benefit plans  (26) (27) (237)

Total  198,191 183,190 1,785,502
Noncontrolling interests  2,417 2,112 21,771

 
Total equity  200,608 185,302 1,807,273

 
TOTAL ¥ 284,597 ¥ 274,559 $ 2,563,940
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Azbil Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 
March 31, 2021  
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Azbil Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
 
Consolidated Statement of Income 
Year Ended March 31, 2021  
 

 Millions of Yen  

Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars 

(Note 1)
 2021 2020  2021
 
NET SALES ¥ 246,821 ¥ 259,411  $ 2,223,613
    
COST OF SALES 147,452  155,769   1,328,395
    
   Gross profit 99,369  103,642   895,218
    
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE  
 EXPENSES (Note 11) 73,649  76,386   663,503
    
   Operating income 25,720  27,256   231,715
    
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES):    
 Interest income 131  168   1,184
 Dividend income 546  599   4,928
 Interest expense (136)  (142 )  (1,225)
 Foreign currency exchange gain (loss) 92  (128 )  826
 Gain (loss) on sales of property, plant, equipment and  
  others—net 196  (46 )  1,762
 Gain on sales of investment securities—net (Note 4) 1,486  776   13,388
 Loss on impairment of long-lived assets  (22 )  
 Loss on abolishment of retirement benefit plan (Note 7)  (243 )  
 Loss on valuation of shares of subsidiaries and associates  (42 )  
 Others—net (Note 10) (26)  (41 )  (239)
    
   Other income (expenses)—net 2,289  879   20,624
    
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 28,009  28,135   252,339
    
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Note 9):    
 Current 6,722  7,620   60,561
 Deferred 890  313   8,020
    
   Total income tax expense 7,612  7,933   68,581
    
NET INCOME 20,397  20,202   183,758
    
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTROLLING  
 INTERESTS (479)  (409 )  (4,312)
    
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF  
 THE PARENT ¥ 19,918 ¥ 19,793  $ 179,446
 
 

 Yen  
U.S. Dollars

(Note 1)
PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK (Note 2.t):   
 Net income ¥142.77 ¥ 140.80  $1.29
 Cash dividends applicable to the year 55.00  50.00  0.50
 
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Azbil Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
 
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 
Year Ended March 31, 2021  
 

 Millions of Yen  

Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars 

(Note 1)
 2021 2020  2021
 
NET INCOME ¥20,397 ¥ 20,202  $ 183,758
   
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Note 16):   
 Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities 2,265  (884 ) 20,401
 Deferred gain (loss) on derivatives under hedge accounting 53  (33 ) 484
 Foreign currency translation adjustments (170)  (58 ) (1,540)
 Defined retirement benefit plans (9)  64  (78)
   
  Total other comprehensive income 2,139  (911 ) 19,267
   
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ¥22,536 ¥ 19,291  $ 203,025
   
   
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:   
 Owners of the parent ¥22,044 ¥ 18,897  $ 198,592
 Noncontrolling interests 492  394  4,433
 
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
 

azbil2021_e_093-142_1018.indd   97azbil2021_e_093-142_1018.indd   97 2021/10/18   19:362021/10/18   19:36

098azbil report 2021

 - 7 - 

Azbil Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
 
Consolidated Statement of Income 
Year Ended March 31, 2021  
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 
Year Ended March 31, 2021  
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Azbil Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
Year Ended March 31, 2021  
 
 Thousands  Millions of Yen Millions of Yen 
       Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income   

 

Number of  
Shares of  
Common  

Stock  
Outstanding  

Common 
Stock  

Capital 
Surplus  

Retained 
Earnings

Treasury 
Stock

Unrealized 
Gain (Loss) 

on Available-
for-Sale 

Securities

Deferred  
Gain (Loss) 

on Derivatives 
under Hedge 
Accounting

Foreign 
Currency  

Translation  
Adjustments  

Defined  
Retirement 

Benefit  
Plans  Total 

Noncontrolling 
Interests

Total 
Equity

 
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2019  143,209  ¥10,523  ¥ 11,671  ¥ 160,325 ¥ (11,952) ¥ 9,727 ¥ 4 ¥936 ¥ (91 ) ¥ 181,143  ¥1,955 ¥ 183,098
            
 Cumulative effects of changes in  
  accounting policies        (62)    (62 ) (62)
 Restated balance  143,209   10,523   11,671   160,263 (11,952) 9,727 4 936  (91 )  181,081  1,955 183,036
 Net income attributable to owners  
  of the parent        19,793    19,793  19,793
 Cash dividends, ¥48 per share        (6,888)    (6,888 ) (6,888)
 Purchase of treasury stock  (3,718 )      (9,923)    (9,923 ) (9,923)
 Disposal of treasury stock  11       22    22  22
 Retirement of treasury stock      (8,113 )  8,113     
 Transfer from retained earnings to  
  capital surplus      8,113   (8,113)     
 Net change in the year        (884) (32) (43)  64   (895 ) 157 (738)
            
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2020  139,502   10,523   11,671   165,055 (13,740) 8,843 (28) 893  (27 )  183,190  2,112 185,302
            
 Net income attributable to owners  
  of the parent        19,918    19,918  19,918
 Cash dividends, ¥50 per share        (7,073)    (7,073 ) (7,073)
 Purchase of treasury stock  (1 )      (6)    (6 ) (6)
 Disposal of treasury stock  19       37    37  37
 Retirement of treasury stock            
 Transfer from retained earnings to  
  capital surplus            
 Net change in the year        2,265 53 (194)  1   2,125  305 2,430
            
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2021  139,520  ¥10,523  ¥ 11,671  ¥ 177,900 ¥ (13,709) ¥11,108 ¥25 ¥699 ¥ (26 ) ¥ 198,191  ¥2,417 ¥ 200,608
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Azbil Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
Year Ended March 31, 2021  
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Plans  Total 

Noncontrolling 
Interests

Total 
Equity
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Azbil Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
Year Ended March 31, 2021  
 
 Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1) Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1) 
     Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income   

 
Common 

Stock  
Capital 
Surplus  

Retained 
Earnings 

Treasury 
Stock

Unrealized 
Gain on 

Available-
for-Sale 

Securities

Deferred  
Gain (Loss) 

on Derivatives 
under Hedge 
Accounting

Foreign 
Currency 

Translation 
Adjustments  

Defined  
Retirement 

Benefit  
Plans  Total 

Noncontrolling 
Interests

Total 
Equity

 
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2020 $ 94,799  $ 105,142  $ 1,486,989  $ (123,787) $ 79,673 $ (261) $8,045 $ (244 ) $ 1,650,356  $19,028 $ 1,669,384
           
 Net income attributable to owners  
  of the parent      179,446     179,446  179,446
 Cash dividends, $0.45 per share      (63,729 )    (63,729 ) (63,729)
 Purchase of treasury stock       (57)    (57 ) (57)
 Disposal of treasury stock       339    339  339
 Retirement of treasury stock           
 Transfer from retained earnings  
  to capital surplus           
 Net change in the year       20,401 484 (1,745)  7   19,147  2,743 21,890
           
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2021 $ 94,799  $ 105,142  $ 1,602,706  $ (123,505) $ 100,074 $ 223 $6,300 $ (237 ) $ 1,785,502  $21,771 $ 1,807,273
 
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Azbil Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
Year Ended March 31, 2021  
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See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Azbil Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended March 31, 2021  
 

 Millions of Yen  

Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars 

(Note 1)
 2021 2020  2021
 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:   
 Income before income taxes ¥28,009 ¥ 28,135  $ 252,339
 Adjustments for:   
  Income taxes—paid (7,312)  (8,664 ) (65,875)
  Depreciation and amortization 4,484  4,462  40,394
  Reversal of doubtful receivables (7)  (296 ) (65)
  (Decrease) increase in accrued bonuses (848)  248  (7,639)
  Foreign currency exchange (gain) loss (53)  135  (481)
  (Gain) loss on sales of property, plant, equipment and  
   others—net (196)  46  (1,762)
  Gain on sales and valuation of investment securities—net (1,476)  (776 ) (13,295)
  Loss on impairment of long-lived assets  22  
  Loss on abolishment of retirement benefit plan  243  
  Loss on valuation of shares of subsidiaries and associates  42  
  Changes in assets and liabilities:   
   Decrease in notes and accounts receivable 3,169  8,557  28,552
   Decrease (increase) in inventories 779  (428 ) 7,022
   Decrease in notes and accounts payable (6,486)  (1,563 ) (58,434)
   (Decrease) increase in liability for retirement benefits (485)  64  (4,368)
   (Increase) decrease in net defined benefit assets  3  (2)
   Increase in provision for stock payment 354  354  3,193
   Decrease in other assets 395  114  3,555
   Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 2,303  (860 ) 20,749
  Others—net (28)  (26 ) (249)
     Total adjustments (5,407)  1,677  (48,704)
   
     Net cash provided by operating activities 22,602  29,812  203,634
   
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:   
 Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 1,163  63  10,479
 Purchases of property, plant and equipment (3,260)  (3,781 ) (29,372)
 Purchases of intangible assets (1,227)  (908 ) (11,057)
 Proceeds from sales of investment securities 2,373  1,108  21,375
 Purchases of investment securities  (6 ) (1)
 Proceeds from sales of beneficiary securities of trust 8,786  9,224  79,150
 Purchases of beneficiary securities of trust (8,136)  (9,353 ) (73,293)
 Proceeds from sales of marketable securities 23,700  33,806  213,514
 Purchases of marketable securities (22,200)  (34,200 ) (200,000)
 Purchases of shares of subsidiaries and associates (451)   (4,067)
 Proceeds from liquidation of subsidiaries and associates 147   1,321
 Others—net (611)  (124 ) (5,493)
   
   Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 284  (4,171 ) 2,556
   
FORWARD ¥22,886 ¥ 25,641  $ 206,190
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Azbil Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended March 31, 2021  
 

 Millions of Yen  

Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars 

(Note 1)
 2021 2020  2021
 
FORWARD ¥22,886 ¥ 25,641  $ 206,190
   
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:   
 Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings 726  (1,178 ) 6,541
 Proceeds from long-term debt  300  
 Repayment of long-term debt (28)  (442 ) (250)
 Proceeds from sales of treasury stock   1
 Purchases of treasury stock (6)  (9,923 ) (57)
 Cash dividends paid (7,073)  (6,888 ) (63,729)
 Dividends paid to noncontrolling interests (192)  (232 ) (1,728)
 Others—net (423)  (405 ) (3,812)
   
   Net cash used in financing activities (6,996)  (18,768 ) (63,034)
   
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS  
 ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19  (263 ) 170
   
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 15,909  6,610  143,326
   
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 74,744  68,134  673,365
   
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR ¥90,653 ¥ 74,744  $ 816,691
 
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Azbil Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended March 31, 2021  
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Thousands of 
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(Note 1)
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  Gain on sales and valuation of investment securities—net (1,476)  (776 ) (13,295)
  Loss on impairment of long-lived assets  22  
  Loss on abolishment of retirement benefit plan  243  
  Loss on valuation of shares of subsidiaries and associates  42  
  Changes in assets and liabilities:   
   Decrease in notes and accounts receivable 3,169  8,557  28,552
   Decrease (increase) in inventories 779  (428 ) 7,022
   Decrease in notes and accounts payable (6,486)  (1,563 ) (58,434)
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   Increase in provision for stock payment 354  354  3,193
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   Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 2,303  (860 ) 20,749
  Others—net (28)  (26 ) (249)
     Total adjustments (5,407)  1,677  (48,704)
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 Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 1,163  63  10,479
 Purchases of property, plant and equipment (3,260)  (3,781 ) (29,372)
 Purchases of intangible assets (1,227)  (908 ) (11,057)
 Proceeds from sales of investment securities 2,373  1,108  21,375
 Purchases of investment securities  (6 ) (1)
 Proceeds from sales of beneficiary securities of trust 8,786  9,224  79,150
 Purchases of beneficiary securities of trust (8,136)  (9,353 ) (73,293)
 Proceeds from sales of marketable securities 23,700  33,806  213,514
 Purchases of marketable securities (22,200)  (34,200 ) (200,000)
 Purchases of shares of subsidiaries and associates (451)   (4,067)
 Proceeds from liquidation of subsidiaries and associates 147   1,321
 Others—net (611)  (124 ) (5,493)
   
   Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 284  (4,171 ) 2,556
   
FORWARD ¥22,886 ¥ 25,641  $ 206,190
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended March 31, 2021  
 

 Millions of Yen  

Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars 

(Note 1)
 2021 2020  2021
 
FORWARD ¥22,886 ¥ 25,641  $ 206,190
   
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:   
 Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings 726  (1,178 ) 6,541
 Proceeds from long-term debt  300  
 Repayment of long-term debt (28)  (442 ) (250)
 Proceeds from sales of treasury stock   1
 Purchases of treasury stock (6)  (9,923 ) (57)
 Cash dividends paid (7,073)  (6,888 ) (63,729)
 Dividends paid to noncontrolling interests (192)  (232 ) (1,728)
 Others—net (423)  (405 ) (3,812)
   
   Net cash used in financing activities (6,996)  (18,768 ) (63,034)
   
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS  
 ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19  (263 ) 170
   
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 15,909  6,610  143,326
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR ¥90,653 ¥ 74,744  $ 816,691
 
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Azbil Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year Ended March 31, 2021  
 
 
  1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
provisions set forth in the Japanese Financial Instruments and Exchange Act and its related 
accounting regulations and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, 
which are different in certain respects as to the application and disclosure requirements of 
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"). 
 
In preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain reclassifications and rearrangements 
have been made to the consolidated financial statements issued domestically in order to present 
them in a form which is more familiar to readers outside Japan. In addition, certain reclassifications 
have been made in the 2020 consolidated financial statements to conform to the classifications used 
in 2021. 
 
The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the currency of the country in 
which Azbil Corporation ("Azbil") is incorporated and operates. The translations of Japanese yen 
amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan 
and have been made at the rate of ¥111 to $1, the approximate rate of exchange as of March 31, 
2021. Such translations should not be construed as representations that the Japanese yen amounts 
could be converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate. 

 
  2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

a. Consolidation—The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2021, include the 
accounts of Azbil and its 47 (47 in 2020) significant subsidiaries (together, the "Azbil Group"). 
 
Under the control and influence concepts, those companies in which Azbil, directly or indirectly, 
is able to exercise control over operations are fully consolidated, and those companies over 
which the Azbil Group has the ability to exercise significant influence are accounted for by the 
equity method. 
 
Investment in 1 (1 in 2020) associated company is accounted for by the equity method. 
 
Investments in the remaining unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies are stated 
at cost. If the equity method of accounting had been applied to the investments in these 
companies, the effect on the accompanying consolidated financial statements would not be 
material. 
 
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of net assets of 
the acquired subsidiary and associated company at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is amortized 
on a straight-line basis over five years, with the exception of minor amounts which are charged to 
income in the period of the acquisitions. 
 
All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. All 
material unrealized profit included in assets resulting from transactions within the Azbil Group is 
eliminated. 
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b. Business Combinations—Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase 
method. Acquisition-related costs, such as advisory fees or professional fees, are accounted for 
as expenses in the period in which the costs are incurred. If the initial accounting for a business 
combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the business combination 
occurs, an acquirer shall report in its financial statements provisional amounts for the items for 
which the accounting is incomplete. During the measurement period, which shall not exceed one 
year from the acquisition, the acquirer shall retrospectively adjust the provisional amounts 
recognized at the acquisition date to reflect new information obtained about facts and 
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date and that would have affected the 
measurement of the amounts recognized as of that date. Such adjustments shall be recognized 
as if the accounting for the business combination had been completed at the acquisition date. A 
parent's ownership interest in a subsidiary might change if the parent purchases or sells 
ownership interests in its subsidiary. The carrying amount of noncontrolling interest is adjusted to 
reflect the change in the parent's ownership interest in its subsidiary while the parent retains its 
controlling interest in its subsidiary. Any difference between the fair value of the consideration 
received or paid and the amount by which the noncontrolling interest is adjusted is accounted for 
as capital surplus as long as the parent retains control over its subsidiary. 

 
c. Cash Equivalents—Cash equivalents are short-term investments that are readily convertible 

into cash and exposed to insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 
Cash equivalents include time deposits, certificates of deposit, beneficiary securities of trust 
under resale agreements and commercial paper, all of which mature or become due within three 
months of the date of acquisition. 

 
d. Inventories—Inventories, other than raw materials, are principally stated at the lower of cost, 

determined by the specific identification method, or net selling value. Raw materials are 
principally stated at the lower of cost, determined by the moving-average method, or net selling 
value. 

 
e. Allowance for Doubtful Receivables—The allowance for doubtful receivables is stated in 

amounts considered to be appropriate based on the Azbil Group's past credit loss experience 
and an evaluation of potential losses in the receivables outstanding. 

 
f. Marketable and Investment Securities—Marketable and investment securities are classified 

and accounted for, depending on management's intent, as follows: (1) trading securities, which 
are held for the purpose of earning capital gains in the near term, are reported at fair value, and 
the related unrealized gains and losses are included in earnings; (2) held-to-maturity debt 
securities, for which there is a positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, are reported at 
amortized cost; and (3) available-for-sale securities, which are not classified as either of the 
aforementioned securities, are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of 
applicable taxes, reported in a separate component of equity. 
 
Nonmarketable available-for-sale securities are stated at cost determined by the moving-average 
method. For other-than-temporary declines in fair value, investment securities are reduced to net 
realizable value by a charge to income. 

 
g. Property, Plant and Equipment—Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. 

Depreciation for Azbil and its consolidated domestic subsidiaries is computed by the 
declining-balance method, while the straight-line method is applied to buildings acquired after 
April 1, 1998, and to facilities attached to buildings and structures acquired after April 1, 2016. 
Depreciation of consolidated foreign subsidiaries is mainly computed by the straight-line method. 
Equipment held for lease is depreciated by the straight-line method over the respective lease 
periods. 
 
The range of useful lives is from 15 to 50 years for buildings and structures, from 4 to 9 years for 
machinery and equipment, and from 2 to 6 years for furniture and fixtures. 
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Azbil Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year Ended March 31, 2021  
 
 
  1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
provisions set forth in the Japanese Financial Instruments and Exchange Act and its related 
accounting regulations and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, 
which are different in certain respects as to the application and disclosure requirements of 
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"). 
 
In preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain reclassifications and rearrangements 
have been made to the consolidated financial statements issued domestically in order to present 
them in a form which is more familiar to readers outside Japan. In addition, certain reclassifications 
have been made in the 2020 consolidated financial statements to conform to the classifications used 
in 2021. 
 
The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the currency of the country in 
which Azbil Corporation ("Azbil") is incorporated and operates. The translations of Japanese yen 
amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan 
and have been made at the rate of ¥111 to $1, the approximate rate of exchange as of March 31, 
2021. Such translations should not be construed as representations that the Japanese yen amounts 
could be converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate. 

 
  2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

a. Consolidation—The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2021, include the 
accounts of Azbil and its 47 (47 in 2020) significant subsidiaries (together, the "Azbil Group"). 
 
Under the control and influence concepts, those companies in which Azbil, directly or indirectly, 
is able to exercise control over operations are fully consolidated, and those companies over 
which the Azbil Group has the ability to exercise significant influence are accounted for by the 
equity method. 
 
Investment in 1 (1 in 2020) associated company is accounted for by the equity method. 
 
Investments in the remaining unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies are stated 
at cost. If the equity method of accounting had been applied to the investments in these 
companies, the effect on the accompanying consolidated financial statements would not be 
material. 
 
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of net assets of 
the acquired subsidiary and associated company at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is amortized 
on a straight-line basis over five years, with the exception of minor amounts which are charged to 
income in the period of the acquisitions. 
 
All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. All 
material unrealized profit included in assets resulting from transactions within the Azbil Group is 
eliminated. 
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b. Business Combinations—Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase 
method. Acquisition-related costs, such as advisory fees or professional fees, are accounted for 
as expenses in the period in which the costs are incurred. If the initial accounting for a business 
combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the business combination 
occurs, an acquirer shall report in its financial statements provisional amounts for the items for 
which the accounting is incomplete. During the measurement period, which shall not exceed one 
year from the acquisition, the acquirer shall retrospectively adjust the provisional amounts 
recognized at the acquisition date to reflect new information obtained about facts and 
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date and that would have affected the 
measurement of the amounts recognized as of that date. Such adjustments shall be recognized 
as if the accounting for the business combination had been completed at the acquisition date. A 
parent's ownership interest in a subsidiary might change if the parent purchases or sells 
ownership interests in its subsidiary. The carrying amount of noncontrolling interest is adjusted to 
reflect the change in the parent's ownership interest in its subsidiary while the parent retains its 
controlling interest in its subsidiary. Any difference between the fair value of the consideration 
received or paid and the amount by which the noncontrolling interest is adjusted is accounted for 
as capital surplus as long as the parent retains control over its subsidiary. 

 
c. Cash Equivalents—Cash equivalents are short-term investments that are readily convertible 

into cash and exposed to insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 
Cash equivalents include time deposits, certificates of deposit, beneficiary securities of trust 
under resale agreements and commercial paper, all of which mature or become due within three 
months of the date of acquisition. 

 
d. Inventories—Inventories, other than raw materials, are principally stated at the lower of cost, 

determined by the specific identification method, or net selling value. Raw materials are 
principally stated at the lower of cost, determined by the moving-average method, or net selling 
value. 

 
e. Allowance for Doubtful Receivables—The allowance for doubtful receivables is stated in 

amounts considered to be appropriate based on the Azbil Group's past credit loss experience 
and an evaluation of potential losses in the receivables outstanding. 

 
f. Marketable and Investment Securities—Marketable and investment securities are classified 

and accounted for, depending on management's intent, as follows: (1) trading securities, which 
are held for the purpose of earning capital gains in the near term, are reported at fair value, and 
the related unrealized gains and losses are included in earnings; (2) held-to-maturity debt 
securities, for which there is a positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, are reported at 
amortized cost; and (3) available-for-sale securities, which are not classified as either of the 
aforementioned securities, are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of 
applicable taxes, reported in a separate component of equity. 
 
Nonmarketable available-for-sale securities are stated at cost determined by the moving-average 
method. For other-than-temporary declines in fair value, investment securities are reduced to net 
realizable value by a charge to income. 

 
g. Property, Plant and Equipment—Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. 

Depreciation for Azbil and its consolidated domestic subsidiaries is computed by the 
declining-balance method, while the straight-line method is applied to buildings acquired after 
April 1, 1998, and to facilities attached to buildings and structures acquired after April 1, 2016. 
Depreciation of consolidated foreign subsidiaries is mainly computed by the straight-line method. 
Equipment held for lease is depreciated by the straight-line method over the respective lease 
periods. 
 
The range of useful lives is from 15 to 50 years for buildings and structures, from 4 to 9 years for 
machinery and equipment, and from 2 to 6 years for furniture and fixtures. 
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h. Long-Lived Assets—The Azbil Group reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset or asset group may 
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or asset 
group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the 
continued use and the eventual disposition of the asset or asset group. The impairment loss 
would be measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount, which is the higher of the discounted cash flows from the continued use and 
the eventual disposition of the asset or the net selling price at disposition. 

 
i. Retirement and Pension Plans—Azbil and certain subsidiaries have defined benefit pension 

plans and defined contribution pension plans covering retired employees. 
 
Some of the consolidated subsidiaries have defined benefit pension plans, unfunded retirement 
benefit plans and defined contribution pension plans. 
 
The liability for employees' retirement benefits is provided at the amount based on the projected 
benefit obligation and plan assets at the balance sheet date. 
 
Azbil accounts for the liability for retirement benefits based on the projected benefit obligations 
and plan assets at the balance sheet date. The projected benefit obligations are attributed to 
periods on a benefit formula basis. Actuarial gains and losses and past service costs that are yet 
to be recognized in profit or loss are recognized within equity (accumulated other comprehensive 
income), after adjusting for tax effects, and are recognized in profit or loss over 13 years, which 
is no longer than the expected average remaining service period of the employees. 
 
Retirement benefits to directors and Audit & Supervisory Board members are provided at the 
amount which would be required if all directors and Audit & Supervisory Board members retired 
at each balance sheet date. 

 
j. Asset Retirement Obligations—An asset retirement obligation is recorded for a legal obligation 

imposed either by law or contract that results from the acquisition, construction, development and 
normal operation of a tangible fixed asset and is associated with the retirement of such tangible 
fixed asset. The asset retirement obligation is recognized as the sum of the discounted cash 
flows required for the future asset retirement and is recorded in the period in which the obligation 
is incurred if a reasonable estimate can be made. If a reasonable estimate of the asset 
retirement obligation cannot be made in the period the asset retirement obligation is incurred, the 
liability should be recognized when a reasonable estimate of the asset retirement obligation can 
be made. Upon initial recognition of a liability for an asset retirement obligation, an asset 
retirement cost is capitalized by increasing the carrying amount of the related fixed asset by the 
amount of the liability. The asset retirement cost is subsequently allocated to expense through 
depreciation over the remaining useful life of the asset. Over time, the liability is accreted to its 
present value each period. Any subsequent revisions to the timing or the amount of the original 
estimate of undiscounted cash flows are reflected as an adjustment to the carrying amount of the 
liability and the capitalized amount of the related asset retirement cost. 

 
k. Research and Development Expenses—Research and development expenses are charged to 

income as incurred. 
 
l. Provision for Stock Payment—Provision for stock payment is stated in amounts considered to 

be appropriate based on the provisions of Azbil's employee stock ownership plan. 
 
(Additional Information) 
 
Azbil has introduced an employee stock ownership plan (hereinafter referred to as "the Plan"), an 
incentive plan, offering Azbil's stock to its employees in order to enhance the motivation and 
morale of employees for increasing the stock price and business performance of Azbil by sharing 
economic effects with shareholders. This will hopefully enhance the correlation between the 
stock price and business performance of Azbil. 
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(1) Outline of the transaction 
 
Under the Plan, Azbil offers Azbil's stock to its employees who satisfy certain requirements 
specified in Azbil's predetermined stock granting regulations. Azbil awards points to 
employees according to their contribution level, and grants Azbil's stock proportionate to the 
awarded points when employees obtain the right to receive the stock by meeting certain 
conditions. The stock to be granted to employees is acquired with money previously placed 
in the trust, including stock to be granted in the future, and is separately managed as assets 
in the trust. 

 
(2) Azbil's stock remaining in the trust 

 
Regarding the accounting treatments for the trust contract, Azbil has applied "Practical 
Solution on Transactions of Delivering the Company's Own Stock to Employees etc. through 
Trusts" (Practical Issue Task Force No. 30, March 26, 2015), and Azbil's stock in the trust is 
recorded as treasury shares under net assets at book value in the trust. The book value of 
Azbil's stock in the trust is ¥3,887 million ($35,016 thousand) for 1,958,084 shares as of 
March 31, 2021, and ¥3,924 million for 1,977,024 shares as of March 31, 2020. 

 
m. Leases—In March 2007, the Accounting Standards Board of Japan ("ASBJ") issued ASBJ 

Statement No. 13, "Accounting Standard for Lease Transactions," which revised the previous 
accounting standard for lease transactions. Under the previous accounting standard, finance 
leases that were deemed to transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee were 
capitalized. However, other finance leases were permitted to be accounted for as operating lease 
transactions if certain "as if capitalized" information was disclosed in the notes to the lessee's 
financial statements. The revised accounting standard permits leases that existed at the 
transition date and do not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee to continue to 
be accounted for as operating lease transactions. 
 
Azbil and its consolidated domestic subsidiaries applied the revised accounting standard 
effective April 1, 2008. In addition, Azbil and its consolidated domestic subsidiaries continue to 
account for leases that existed at the transition date and that do not transfer ownership of the 
leased property to the lessee as operating lease transactions. 
 
As for capitalized lease assets related to finance leases that do not transfer ownership of leased 
property, the Azbil Group applies the straight-line method using the lease term as the useful life 
and a residual value of zero. 
 
Foreign consolidated subsidiaries prepare their financial statements in accordance with IFRS, 
and they have adopted IFRS 16, Leases (hereafter referred to as "IFRS 16") starting from the 
year ended March 31, 2020. Under IFRS 16 in principle, lessees record all leases as assets and 
liabilities on their balance sheets, where the right-of-use assets recorded as assets are subject to 
depreciation and amortization under the straight-line method. Lease transactions under IFRS 16 
are classified as "Financing Leases as a Lessee" in Note 12, "Leases." 
 
All other leases are accounted for as operating leases. 

 
n. Bonuses to Directors—Bonuses to directors are accrued at the end of the year to which such 

bonuses are attributable. The balance of such accrued bonuses as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, 
was ¥135 million ($1,221 thousand) and ¥130 million, respectively. 

 
o. Construction Contracts—Construction revenue and construction costs are recognized by the 

percentage-of-completion method if the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated 
reliably. When total construction revenue, total construction costs, and the stage of completion of 
the contract at the balance sheet date can be reliably measured, the outcome of a construction 
contract is deemed to be estimated reliably. If the outcome of a construction contract cannot be 
reliably estimated, the completed-contract method should be applied. When it is probable that 
total construction costs will exceed total construction revenue, an estimated loss on the contract 
should be immediately recognized by providing for a loss on such construction contracts. 
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h. Long-Lived Assets—The Azbil Group reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset or asset group may 
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or asset 
group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the 
continued use and the eventual disposition of the asset or asset group. The impairment loss 
would be measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount, which is the higher of the discounted cash flows from the continued use and 
the eventual disposition of the asset or the net selling price at disposition. 

 
i. Retirement and Pension Plans—Azbil and certain subsidiaries have defined benefit pension 

plans and defined contribution pension plans covering retired employees. 
 
Some of the consolidated subsidiaries have defined benefit pension plans, unfunded retirement 
benefit plans and defined contribution pension plans. 
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l. Provision for Stock Payment—Provision for stock payment is stated in amounts considered to 
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(Additional Information) 
 
Azbil has introduced an employee stock ownership plan (hereinafter referred to as "the Plan"), an 
incentive plan, offering Azbil's stock to its employees in order to enhance the motivation and 
morale of employees for increasing the stock price and business performance of Azbil by sharing 
economic effects with shareholders. This will hopefully enhance the correlation between the 
stock price and business performance of Azbil. 
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(1) Outline of the transaction 
 
Under the Plan, Azbil offers Azbil's stock to its employees who satisfy certain requirements 
specified in Azbil's predetermined stock granting regulations. Azbil awards points to 
employees according to their contribution level, and grants Azbil's stock proportionate to the 
awarded points when employees obtain the right to receive the stock by meeting certain 
conditions. The stock to be granted to employees is acquired with money previously placed 
in the trust, including stock to be granted in the future, and is separately managed as assets 
in the trust. 

 
(2) Azbil's stock remaining in the trust 

 
Regarding the accounting treatments for the trust contract, Azbil has applied "Practical 
Solution on Transactions of Delivering the Company's Own Stock to Employees etc. through 
Trusts" (Practical Issue Task Force No. 30, March 26, 2015), and Azbil's stock in the trust is 
recorded as treasury shares under net assets at book value in the trust. The book value of 
Azbil's stock in the trust is ¥3,887 million ($35,016 thousand) for 1,958,084 shares as of 
March 31, 2021, and ¥3,924 million for 1,977,024 shares as of March 31, 2020. 

 
m. Leases—In March 2007, the Accounting Standards Board of Japan ("ASBJ") issued ASBJ 

Statement No. 13, "Accounting Standard for Lease Transactions," which revised the previous 
accounting standard for lease transactions. Under the previous accounting standard, finance 
leases that were deemed to transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee were 
capitalized. However, other finance leases were permitted to be accounted for as operating lease 
transactions if certain "as if capitalized" information was disclosed in the notes to the lessee's 
financial statements. The revised accounting standard permits leases that existed at the 
transition date and do not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee to continue to 
be accounted for as operating lease transactions. 
 
Azbil and its consolidated domestic subsidiaries applied the revised accounting standard 
effective April 1, 2008. In addition, Azbil and its consolidated domestic subsidiaries continue to 
account for leases that existed at the transition date and that do not transfer ownership of the 
leased property to the lessee as operating lease transactions. 
 
As for capitalized lease assets related to finance leases that do not transfer ownership of leased 
property, the Azbil Group applies the straight-line method using the lease term as the useful life 
and a residual value of zero. 
 
Foreign consolidated subsidiaries prepare their financial statements in accordance with IFRS, 
and they have adopted IFRS 16, Leases (hereafter referred to as "IFRS 16") starting from the 
year ended March 31, 2020. Under IFRS 16 in principle, lessees record all leases as assets and 
liabilities on their balance sheets, where the right-of-use assets recorded as assets are subject to 
depreciation and amortization under the straight-line method. Lease transactions under IFRS 16 
are classified as "Financing Leases as a Lessee" in Note 12, "Leases." 
 
All other leases are accounted for as operating leases. 

 
n. Bonuses to Directors—Bonuses to directors are accrued at the end of the year to which such 

bonuses are attributable. The balance of such accrued bonuses as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, 
was ¥135 million ($1,221 thousand) and ¥130 million, respectively. 

 
o. Construction Contracts—Construction revenue and construction costs are recognized by the 

percentage-of-completion method if the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated 
reliably. When total construction revenue, total construction costs, and the stage of completion of 
the contract at the balance sheet date can be reliably measured, the outcome of a construction 
contract is deemed to be estimated reliably. If the outcome of a construction contract cannot be 
reliably estimated, the completed-contract method should be applied. When it is probable that 
total construction costs will exceed total construction revenue, an estimated loss on the contract 
should be immediately recognized by providing for a loss on such construction contracts. 
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p. Income Taxes—The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pretax income 
included in the consolidated statement of income. The asset and liability approach is used to 
recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of 
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. 
Deferred taxes are measured by applying currently enacted income tax rates to the temporary 
differences and tax loss carryforwards. 

 
q. Foreign Currency Transactions—All short-term and long-term monetary receivables and 

payables denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen at the exchange 
rates at the balance sheet date. The foreign exchange gains and losses from translation are 
recognized in the consolidated statement of income to the extent that they are not hedged by 
forward exchange contracts. 

 
r. Foreign Currency Financial Statements—The balance sheet accounts of consolidated foreign 

subsidiaries are translated into Japanese yen at the current exchange rate as of the balance 
sheet date except for equity, which is translated at the historical rate. Differences arising from 
such translation are shown as "Foreign currency translation adjustments" under accumulated 
other comprehensive income in a separate component of equity. Revenue and expense 
accounts of consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated into yen at the average exchange 
rate. 

 
s. Derivatives Financial Instruments—The Azbil Group uses derivative financial instruments to 

manage its exposures to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange forward 
contracts are utilized by the Azbil Group to reduce foreign currency exchange rate risks. The 
Azbil Group does not enter into derivatives for trading or speculative purposes. 
 
All derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities and measured at fair value with gains 
or losses on derivative transactions recognized in the consolidated statement of income. If 
derivatives qualify for hedge accounting because of high correlation and effectiveness between 
the hedging instruments and the hedged items, hedge accounting is applied. 
 
Foreign exchange forward contracts are utilized to hedge foreign exchange exposures for export 
sales and import purchases. Trade receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies 
are translated at the contracted rates if the forward contracts qualify for hedge accounting. 
Forward contracts related to forecasted (or committed) transactions are measured at fair value, 
but the unrealized gains/losses are deferred until the underlying transactions are completed. 

 
t. Per Share Information—Net income per share is computed by dividing net income attributable 

to common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the 
period. 
 
Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consolidated statement of income are 
dividends applicable to the respective fiscal years including dividends to be paid after the end of 
the year. 
 
The weighted-average number of shares of common stock used in the computation was 
139,511,724 shares for 2021 and 140,579,440 shares for 2020. 
 
Diluted net income per share is not disclosed because it is antidilutive. 
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u. Accounting Changes and Error Corrections—Under ASBJ Statement No. 24, "Accounting 
Standard for Accounting Changes and Error Corrections," and ASBJ Guidance No. 24, 
"Guidance on Accounting Standard for Accounting Changes and Error Corrections," accounting 
treatments are required as follows: 

 
(1) Changes in accounting policies 

 
When a new accounting policy is applied following revision of an accounting standard, the 
new policy is applied retrospectively unless the revised accounting standard includes 
specific transitional provisions, in which case the entity shall comply with the specific 
transitional provisions. 

 
(2) Changes in presentation 

 
When the presentation of financial statements is changed, prior-period financial statements 
are reclassified in accordance with the new presentation. 

 
(3) Changes in accounting estimates 

 
A change in an accounting estimate is accounted for in the period of the change if the 
change affects that period only, and is accounted for prospectively if the change affects both 
the period of the change and future periods. 

 
(4) Corrections of prior-period errors 

 
When an error in prior-period financial statements is discovered, those statements are 
restated. 

 
v. New Accounting Pronouncements 

 
Azbil and Domestic Subsidiaries 
 
—Accounting Standard for Revenue Recognition (ASBJ Statement No. 29 of March 31, 2020) 
 
—Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Revenue Recognition (ASBJ Guidance 
No. 30 of March 26, 2021) 
 
—Implementation Guidance on Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments (ASBJ 
Guidance No. 19 of March 31, 2020) 
 
(1) Overview 

 
This is a comprehensive accounting standard for revenue recognition. Revenue recognition 
is conducted through these five steps: 

 
Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

 
(2) Schedule date of adoption 

 
This standard will be applied for the fiscal year beginning on April 1, 2021. 

 
(3) Impact of adoption of this accounting standard 

 
The amount of the impact on the consolidated financial statements is currently under review. 
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—Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement (ASBJ Statement No. 30 of July 4, 2019) 
 
—Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement (ASBJ 
Guidance No. 31 of July 4, 2019) 
 
—Accounting Standard for Measurement of Inventories (ASBJ Statement No. 9 of July 4, 2019) 
 
—Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments (ASBJ Statement No. 10 of July 4, 2019) 
 
—Implementation Guidance on Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments (ASBJ 
Guidance No. 19 of March 31, 2020) 
 
(1) Overview 

To improve comparability with international accounting standards, "Accounting Standard for 
Fair Value Measurement" and "Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair 
Value Measurement" (hereinafter, "Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement, etc.") 
have been developed as guidance on how to measure fair value. Accounting Standard for 
Fair Value Measurement, etc. will be applied in determining the fair value of the following 
items: 

 
• Financial instruments set forth in "Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments" 
 
• Inventories held for trading purposes set forth "Accounting Standard for Measurement of 

Inventories" 
 

 Additionally, "Implementation Guidance on Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial 
Instruments" has been revised and notes to the breakdown, etc. of the fair value of financial 
instruments by level and other items have been established. 
 

(2) Schedule date of adoption 
 
This standard will be applied for the fiscal year beginning on April 1, 2021. 
 

(3) Impact of adoption of this accounting standard 
 
The amount of the impact on the consolidated financial statements is currently under review. 
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3. ACCOUNTING CHANGE 
 
Not applicable 

 
4. MARKETABLE AND INVESTMENT SECURITIES 

 
Marketable and investment securities as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, consisted of the following: 

 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of  
U.S. Dollars  

 2021  2020  2021  
 

Current:       
 Certificate of deposit   ¥ 4,700    
 Trust fund investments and other ¥ 12,200   9,000  $ 109,910  
       
Total ¥ 12,200  ¥ 13,700  $ 109,910  
       
Noncurrent:       
 Equity securities ¥ 22,205  ¥ 19,855  $ 200,045  
 Other  10   10   94  
       
Total ¥ 22,215  ¥ 19,865  $ 200,139  
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 The costs and aggregate fair values of marketable and investment securities whose fair values are  
readily determinable as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows:  

 
 Millions of Yen  Millions of Yen  Thousands of U.S. Dollars  
 2021  2020  2021  

 Cost  
Unrealized  

Gains  
Unrealized  

Losses  
Fair  

Value  Cost  
Unrealized  

Gains  
Unrealized  

Losses  
Fair  

Value  Cost  
Unrealized  

Gains  
Unrealized  

Losses  
Fair  

Value  
 

Securities classified as available-for-sale:                         
 Equity securities ¥ 3,759  ¥ 17,906  ¥ 2  ¥ 21,663  ¥ 4,630  ¥ 14,769  ¥ 102  ¥ 19,297  $ 33,864  $ 161,315  $ 18  $ 195,162  
 Certificate of deposit          4,700       4,700          
 Trust fund investments and other  12,200       12,200   9,000       9,000   109,910       109,910  
 Other                         

 
 The information for available-for-sale securities whose fair values are not readily determinable as of  

March 31, 2021 and 2020, is disclosed in Note 13. 
 
The information for available-for-sale securities which were sold during the years ended March 31, 2021  
and 2020, is as follows: 

 
 Millions of Yen        Thousands of U.S. Dollars 
   2021      2020      2021   
 

Proceeds 
 Realized 

Gains 
 Realized 

Losses 
 

Proceeds 
 Realized 

Gains 
 Realized 

Losses 
 

Proceeds 
 Realized 

Gains 
 Realized 

Losses 
 

Available-for-sale—Equity securities ¥ 2,373  ¥ 1,573  ¥ 87  ¥ 1,108  ¥ 780  ¥ 4  $ 21,375  $ 14,171  $ 783  
Other        106            

 
 The impairment loss on valuation of shares of subsidiaries and associates for the year ended  

March 31, 2021, were ¥10 million ($93 thousand). 
 
  5. INVENTORIES 

 
Inventories at March 31, 2021 and 2020, consisted of the following: 

 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of  
U.S. Dollars  

 2021  2020  2021  
 

Merchandise ¥ 1,070  ¥ 1,128  $ 9,642  
Finished products  4,291   4,385   38,652  
Work in process  6,987   7,640   62,946  
Raw materials  12,166   12,186   109,607  
       
Total ¥ 24,514  ¥ 25,339  $ 220,847  
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  6. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
Short-term borrowings as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, mainly consisted of notes to banks and bank 
overdrafts. The annual interest rates applicable to the short-term bank loans ranged from 0% to 6.0% 
as of March 31, 2021, and from 0% to 7.5% as of March 31, 2020. 
 
Long-term debt as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, consisted of the following: 

 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021  2020  2021
 

Loans from banks and other financial institutions,  
 due serially through 2026 with interest rates ranging  
 from 0.0% to 5.7% in 2021 and 0.0% to 5.7%  
 in 2020—Unsecured ¥ 353 ¥ 380  $ 3,177
Obligations under finance leases 1,858  1,664   16,735
  Total 2,211  2,044   19,912
Less current portion (462)  (433 )  (4,160)
    
Long-term debt, less current portion ¥1,749 ¥ 1,611  $ 15,752

 
 As of March 31, 2021, Azbil had an unused line of credit amounting to ¥30,000 million 

($270,270 thousand), of which ¥10,000 million ($90,090 thousand) was related to the unused portion 
of commitment lines with four banks and ¥20,000 million ($180,180 thousand) was related to a 
medium-term notes program. 
 
Annual maturities of long-term debt as of March 31, 2021, for the next five years and thereafter were 
as follows: 

 
Year Ending 

March 31  Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 
 2022 ¥ 462  $ 4,160
 2023 368   3,314
 2024 293   2,640
 2025 537   4,834
 2026 128   1,154
 2027 and thereafter 423   3,810
    
 Total ¥2,211  $ 19,912

 
 As is customary in Japan, the Azbil Group maintains deposit balances with banks with which it has 

bank loans. Such deposit balances are not legally or contractually restricted as to withdrawal. 
 
General agreements with respective banks provide, as is customary in Japan, that additional 
collateral must be provided under certain circumstances if requested by the lending banks and that 
certain banks have the right to offset cash deposited with them against any bank loan or obligation 
that becomes due and, in case of default and certain other specified events, against all other debt 
payable to the banks. The Azbil Group has never received any such requests. 

 
  7. RETIREMENT AND PENSION PLANS 

 
Azbil and certain subsidiaries have defined benefit pension plans for the pension beneficiaries (i.e., 
closed pension plans), lump-sum payment plans, and also maintain defined contribution plans for the 
participating employees. 
 
In addition to the plans above, certain subsidiaries participate in the Smaller Enterprise Retirement 
Allowance Mutual Aid System. 
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 Under most circumstances, employees terminating their employment are entitled to retirement 
benefits determined based on the rate of pay at the time of termination, years of service, and certain 
other factors. Such retirement benefits are made in the form of a lump-sum severance payments, 
from the Azbil Group and annuity payments from a trustee. Employees are entitled to larger payments 
if the termination is involuntary, by retirement at the mandatory retirement age or by death, than in the 
case of voluntary termination at certain specific ages prior to the mandatory retirement age. 
 
For the year ended March 31, 2021, certain domestic consolidated subsidiaries have transferred from 
lump-sum payment plans as defined benefit pension plans to defined contribution plans on August 1, 
2020. This is in accordance with the following two documents issued by the ASBJ: "Accounting for 
Transfer between Retirement Benefit Plans" (ASBJ Guidance No. 1) and "Practical Solution on 
Accounting for Transfer between Retirement Benefit Plans" (ASBJ Practical Issues Task Force 
No. 2). 
 
Azbil and certain subsidiaries have retirement benefit plans for directors and Audit & Supervisory 
Board members. The liability for retirement benefits at March 31, 2021 and 2020, for directors and 
Audit & Supervisory Board members is ¥170 million ($1,531 thousand) and ¥148 million, respectively. 

 
(1) The changes in defined benefit obligation for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, were as 

follows: 
 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Balance at beginning of year ¥5,548 ¥ 5,281  $ 49,976
 Current service cost 335  488   3,019
 Interest cost 21  39   186
 Actuarial losses (gains) 23  (12 )  205
 Benefits paid (239)  (457 )  (2,150)
 Decrease with transfer to the defined  
  contribution (3,409)    (30,710)
 Estimated increase due to transfer to  
  the defined contribution pension plans  201   
 Others (182)  8   (1,642)
    
Balance at end of year ¥2,097 ¥ 5,548  $ 18,884

 
(2) The changes in plan assets for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows: 
 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Balance at beginning of year ¥3,378 ¥ 3,313  $ 30,428
 Expected return on plan assets 2    14
 Actuarial gains 1    11
 Contributions from the employer 84  97   753
 Benefits paid (29)  (22 )  (260)
 Decrease with transfer to the defined  
  contribution (3,000)    (27,027)
 Others 5  (10 )  47
    
Balance at end of year ¥ 441 ¥ 3,378  $ 3,966
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  6. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
Short-term borrowings as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, mainly consisted of notes to banks and bank 
overdrafts. The annual interest rates applicable to the short-term bank loans ranged from 0% to 6.0% 
as of March 31, 2021, and from 0% to 7.5% as of March 31, 2020. 
 
Long-term debt as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, consisted of the following: 

 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021  2020  2021
 

Loans from banks and other financial institutions,  
 due serially through 2026 with interest rates ranging  
 from 0.0% to 5.7% in 2021 and 0.0% to 5.7%  
 in 2020—Unsecured ¥ 353 ¥ 380  $ 3,177
Obligations under finance leases 1,858  1,664   16,735
  Total 2,211  2,044   19,912
Less current portion (462)  (433 )  (4,160)
    
Long-term debt, less current portion ¥1,749 ¥ 1,611  $ 15,752

 
 As of March 31, 2021, Azbil had an unused line of credit amounting to ¥30,000 million 

($270,270 thousand), of which ¥10,000 million ($90,090 thousand) was related to the unused portion 
of commitment lines with four banks and ¥20,000 million ($180,180 thousand) was related to a 
medium-term notes program. 
 
Annual maturities of long-term debt as of March 31, 2021, for the next five years and thereafter were 
as follows: 

 
Year Ending 

March 31  Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 
 2022 ¥ 462  $ 4,160
 2023 368   3,314
 2024 293   2,640
 2025 537   4,834
 2026 128   1,154
 2027 and thereafter 423   3,810
    
 Total ¥2,211  $ 19,912

 
 As is customary in Japan, the Azbil Group maintains deposit balances with banks with which it has 

bank loans. Such deposit balances are not legally or contractually restricted as to withdrawal. 
 
General agreements with respective banks provide, as is customary in Japan, that additional 
collateral must be provided under certain circumstances if requested by the lending banks and that 
certain banks have the right to offset cash deposited with them against any bank loan or obligation 
that becomes due and, in case of default and certain other specified events, against all other debt 
payable to the banks. The Azbil Group has never received any such requests. 

 
  7. RETIREMENT AND PENSION PLANS 

 
Azbil and certain subsidiaries have defined benefit pension plans for the pension beneficiaries (i.e., 
closed pension plans), lump-sum payment plans, and also maintain defined contribution plans for the 
participating employees. 
 
In addition to the plans above, certain subsidiaries participate in the Smaller Enterprise Retirement 
Allowance Mutual Aid System. 
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 Under most circumstances, employees terminating their employment are entitled to retirement 
benefits determined based on the rate of pay at the time of termination, years of service, and certain 
other factors. Such retirement benefits are made in the form of a lump-sum severance payments, 
from the Azbil Group and annuity payments from a trustee. Employees are entitled to larger payments 
if the termination is involuntary, by retirement at the mandatory retirement age or by death, than in the 
case of voluntary termination at certain specific ages prior to the mandatory retirement age. 
 
For the year ended March 31, 2021, certain domestic consolidated subsidiaries have transferred from 
lump-sum payment plans as defined benefit pension plans to defined contribution plans on August 1, 
2020. This is in accordance with the following two documents issued by the ASBJ: "Accounting for 
Transfer between Retirement Benefit Plans" (ASBJ Guidance No. 1) and "Practical Solution on 
Accounting for Transfer between Retirement Benefit Plans" (ASBJ Practical Issues Task Force 
No. 2). 
 
Azbil and certain subsidiaries have retirement benefit plans for directors and Audit & Supervisory 
Board members. The liability for retirement benefits at March 31, 2021 and 2020, for directors and 
Audit & Supervisory Board members is ¥170 million ($1,531 thousand) and ¥148 million, respectively. 

 
(1) The changes in defined benefit obligation for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, were as 

follows: 
 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Balance at beginning of year ¥5,548 ¥ 5,281  $ 49,976
 Current service cost 335  488   3,019
 Interest cost 21  39   186
 Actuarial losses (gains) 23  (12 )  205
 Benefits paid (239)  (457 )  (2,150)
 Decrease with transfer to the defined  
  contribution (3,409)    (30,710)
 Estimated increase due to transfer to  
  the defined contribution pension plans  201   
 Others (182)  8   (1,642)
    
Balance at end of year ¥2,097 ¥ 5,548  $ 18,884

 
(2) The changes in plan assets for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows: 
 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Balance at beginning of year ¥3,378 ¥ 3,313  $ 30,428
 Expected return on plan assets 2    14
 Actuarial gains 1    11
 Contributions from the employer 84  97   753
 Benefits paid (29)  (22 )  (260)
 Decrease with transfer to the defined  
  contribution (3,000)    (27,027)
 Others 5  (10 )  47
    
Balance at end of year ¥ 441 ¥ 3,378  $ 3,966
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(3) Reconciliation between the liability recorded in the consolidated balance sheet and the balances 
of defined benefit obligation and plan assets was as follows: 

 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Funded defined benefit obligation ¥ 559 ¥ 3,902  $ 5,031
Plan assets (441) (3,378 )  (3,966)
  Total 118 524   1,065
Unfunded defined benefit obligation 1,538 1,646   13,853
   
Net liability arising from defined  
 benefit obligation ¥1,656 ¥ 2,170  $ 14,918

 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Liability for retirement benefits ¥1,660 ¥ 2,174  $ 14,960
Asset for retirement benefits (4) (4 )  (42)
   
Net liability arising from defined  
 benefit obligation ¥1,656 ¥ 2,170  $ 14,918

 
(4) The components of net periodic benefit costs for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, 

were as follows: 
 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Service cost ¥335 ¥ 488  $3,019
Interest cost 21  39   186
Expected return on plan assets (2)    (14)
Recognized actuarial losses 12  37   112
Others 65  123   581
    
Net periodic benefit costs ¥431 ¥ 687  $3,884
    
Loss on abolishment of retirement benefit plan ¥ 243   

 
(5) Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (before income tax effect) in respect of 

defined retirement benefit plans for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows: 
 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Actuarial (gains) losses ¥(8) ¥ 91  $ (73)
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(6) Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (before income tax effect) in 
respect of defined retirement benefit plans as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows: 

 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Unrecognized actuarial gains ¥ (54) ¥ (46 ) $ (487)
 
(7) Plan assets 
 

a. Components of plan assets 
 
Plan assets as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, consisted of the following: 

 
 2021 2020

 
Cash and cash equivalents  99 %  100%
Others  1  0
   
Total  100 %  100%

 
b. Method of determining the expected rate of return on plan assets 

 
The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined considering the long-term rates of 
return which are expected currently and in the future from the various components of the 
plan assets. 

 
(8) Assumptions used for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, are set forth as follows: 
 

 2021  2020
 

Discount rate  1.5 %  0.9%
Expected rate of return on plan assets  0.1  0.0

 
  8. EQUITY 

 
Japanese companies are subject to the Companies Act of Japan (the "Companies Act"). The 
significant provisions in the Companies Act that affect financial and accounting matters are 
summarized below: 

 
a. Dividends 

 
Under the Companies Act, companies can pay dividends at any time during the fiscal year in 
addition to the year-end dividend upon resolution at the shareholders' meeting. Additionally, for 
companies that meet certain criteria including (1) having a Board of Directors, (2) having 
independent auditors, (3) having an Audit & Supervisory Board, and (4) the term of service of the 
directors being prescribed as one year rather than the normal two-year term by its articles of 
incorporation, the Board of Directors may declare dividends (except for dividends-in-kind) at any 
time during the fiscal year if the company has prescribed so in its articles of incorporation. 
However, Azbil does not meet all the above criteria. 
 
The Companies Act permits companies to distribute dividends-in-kind (noncash assets) to 
shareholders subject to a certain limitation and additional requirements. 
 
Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid once a year upon resolution by the Board of 
Directors if the articles of incorporation of the company so stipulate. The Companies Act provides 
certain limitations on the amounts available for dividends or the purchase of treasury stock. The 
limitation is defined as the amount available for distribution to the shareholders, but the amount 
of net assets after dividends must be maintained at no less than ¥3 million. 

 

azbil2021_e_093-142_1018.indd   117azbil2021_e_093-142_1018.indd   117 2021/10/18   19:362021/10/18   19:36

118azbil report 2021

 - 23 - 

(3) Reconciliation between the liability recorded in the consolidated balance sheet and the balances 
of defined benefit obligation and plan assets was as follows: 

 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Funded defined benefit obligation ¥ 559 ¥ 3,902  $ 5,031
Plan assets (441) (3,378 )  (3,966)
  Total 118 524   1,065
Unfunded defined benefit obligation 1,538 1,646   13,853
   
Net liability arising from defined  
 benefit obligation ¥1,656 ¥ 2,170  $ 14,918

 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Liability for retirement benefits ¥1,660 ¥ 2,174  $ 14,960
Asset for retirement benefits (4) (4 )  (42)
   
Net liability arising from defined  
 benefit obligation ¥1,656 ¥ 2,170  $ 14,918

 
(4) The components of net periodic benefit costs for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, 

were as follows: 
 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Service cost ¥335 ¥ 488  $3,019
Interest cost 21  39   186
Expected return on plan assets (2)    (14)
Recognized actuarial losses 12  37   112
Others 65  123   581
    
Net periodic benefit costs ¥431 ¥ 687  $3,884
    
Loss on abolishment of retirement benefit plan ¥ 243   

 
(5) Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (before income tax effect) in respect of 

defined retirement benefit plans for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows: 
 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Actuarial (gains) losses ¥(8) ¥ 91  $ (73)
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(6) Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (before income tax effect) in 
respect of defined retirement benefit plans as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows: 

 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Unrecognized actuarial gains ¥ (54) ¥ (46 ) $ (487)
 
(7) Plan assets 
 

a. Components of plan assets 
 
Plan assets as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, consisted of the following: 

 
 2021 2020

 
Cash and cash equivalents  99 %  100%
Others  1  0
   
Total  100 %  100%

 
b. Method of determining the expected rate of return on plan assets 

 
The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined considering the long-term rates of 
return which are expected currently and in the future from the various components of the 
plan assets. 

 
(8) Assumptions used for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, are set forth as follows: 
 

 2021  2020
 

Discount rate  1.5 %  0.9%
Expected rate of return on plan assets  0.1  0.0

 
  8. EQUITY 

 
Japanese companies are subject to the Companies Act of Japan (the "Companies Act"). The 
significant provisions in the Companies Act that affect financial and accounting matters are 
summarized below: 

 
a. Dividends 

 
Under the Companies Act, companies can pay dividends at any time during the fiscal year in 
addition to the year-end dividend upon resolution at the shareholders' meeting. Additionally, for 
companies that meet certain criteria including (1) having a Board of Directors, (2) having 
independent auditors, (3) having an Audit & Supervisory Board, and (4) the term of service of the 
directors being prescribed as one year rather than the normal two-year term by its articles of 
incorporation, the Board of Directors may declare dividends (except for dividends-in-kind) at any 
time during the fiscal year if the company has prescribed so in its articles of incorporation. 
However, Azbil does not meet all the above criteria. 
 
The Companies Act permits companies to distribute dividends-in-kind (noncash assets) to 
shareholders subject to a certain limitation and additional requirements. 
 
Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid once a year upon resolution by the Board of 
Directors if the articles of incorporation of the company so stipulate. The Companies Act provides 
certain limitations on the amounts available for dividends or the purchase of treasury stock. The 
limitation is defined as the amount available for distribution to the shareholders, but the amount 
of net assets after dividends must be maintained at no less than ¥3 million. 
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b. Increases/Decreases and Transfer of Common Stock, Reserve and Surplus 
 
The Companies Act requires that an amount equal to 10% of dividends must be appropriated as 
a legal reserve (a component of retained earnings) or as additional paid-in capital (a component 
of capital surplus), depending on the equity account charged upon the payment of such 
dividends, until the aggregate amount of legal reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 25% 
of the amount of the common stock. Under the Companies Act, the total amount of additional 
paid-in capital and legal reserve may be reversed without limitation. The Companies Act also 
provides that common stock, legal reserve, additional paid-in capital, other capital surplus and 
retained earnings can be transferred among the accounts within equity under certain conditions 
upon resolution of the shareholders. 

 
c. Treasury Stock and Treasury Stock Acquisition Rights 

 
The Companies Act also provides for companies to purchase treasury stock and dispose of such 
treasury stock by resolution of the Board of Directors. The amount of treasury stock purchased 
cannot exceed the amount available for distribution to the shareholders which is determined by a 
specific formula. Under the Companies Act, stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate 
component of equity. The Companies Act also provides that companies can purchase both 
treasury stock acquisition rights and treasury stock. Such treasury stock acquisition rights are 
presented as a separate component of equity or deducted directly from stock acquisition rights. 

 
  9. INCOME TAXES 

 
Azbil and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to Japanese national and local income taxes which, in 
the aggregate, resulted in normal effective statutory tax rates of approximately 30.5% for the year 
ended March 31, 2021, and 30.5% for the year ended March 31, 2020. 
 
The tax effects of significant temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards which resulted in 
deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2021 and 2020, are as follows: 

 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Deferred tax assets:    
 Pension and severance costs ¥ 705 ¥ 1,837  $ 6,348
 Accrued expenses 4,364  3,981   39,311
 Depreciation 1,405  1,448   12,662
 Loss on impairment of long-lived assets 200  200   1,800
 Allowance for doubtful receivables 76  87   690
 Tax loss carryforwards 1,966  1,968   17,715
 Others 2,948  2,860   26,560
 Total of tax loss carryforwards and temporary  
  differences 11,664  12,381   105,086
 Less valuation allowance for tax loss carryforwards (1,868)  (1,855 )  (16,833)
 Less valuation allowance for temporary differences (697)  (736 )  (6,278)
 Total valuation allowance (2,565)  (2,591 )  (23,111)
    
Deferred tax assets 9,099  9,790   81,975
    
Deferred tax liabilities:    
 Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 5,447  4,464   49,071
 Special advanced depreciation 1,015  839   9,147
 Others 255  201   2,289
    
Deferred tax liabilities 6,717  5,504   60,507
    
Net deferred tax assets ¥ 2,382 ¥ 4,286  $ 21,468
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 The expiration of tax loss carryforwards, the related valuation allowances, and the resulting net 
deferred tax assets as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows: 

 
  Millions of Yen

March 31, 2021  
1 Year 
or Less 

After 
1 Year
through 
2 Years

After 
2 Years 
through 
3 Years

After 
3 Years 
through 
4 Years

After  
4 Years 
through 
5 Years  

After 
5 Years Total

 
Deferred tax assets  
 relating to tax loss  
 carryforwards   ¥55 ¥109 ¥89 ¥8  ¥ 1,705 ¥1,966
Less valuation  
 allowances for tax  
 loss carryforwards   (55) (96) (89) (8 )  (1,620) (1,868)
Net deferred tax  
 assets relating  
 to tax loss  
 carryforwards   13   85 98

 
March 31, 2020 

 
Deferred tax assets  
 relating to tax loss  
 carryforwards   ¥58 ¥127 ¥ 93  ¥ 1,690 ¥1,968
Less valuation  
 allowances for tax  
 loss carryforwards   (58) (108) (93 )  (1,596) (1,855)
Net deferred tax  
 assets relating  
 to tax loss  
 carryforwards   19   94 113

 
  Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

March 31, 2021  
1 Year 
or Less  

After 
1 Year 
through 
2 Years

After 
2 Years 
through 
3 Years

After 
3 Years 
through 
4 Years

After  
4 Years 
through 
5 Years  

After  
5 Years Total

 
Deferred tax assets  
 relating to tax loss  
 carryforwards   $500 $985 $800 $72  $ 15,358 $17,715
Less valuation  
 allowances for tax  
 loss carryforwards   (500) (871) (800) (72 )  (14,590 ) (16,833)
Net deferred tax  
 assets relating  
 to tax loss  
 carryforwards   114   768 882

 
 In addition to the above, the Azbil Group recorded deferred tax liabilities on the revaluation surplus of 

¥181 million ($1,633 thousand) at March 31, 2021, and ¥181 million at March 31, 2020. 
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b. Increases/Decreases and Transfer of Common Stock, Reserve and Surplus 
 
The Companies Act requires that an amount equal to 10% of dividends must be appropriated as 
a legal reserve (a component of retained earnings) or as additional paid-in capital (a component 
of capital surplus), depending on the equity account charged upon the payment of such 
dividends, until the aggregate amount of legal reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 25% 
of the amount of the common stock. Under the Companies Act, the total amount of additional 
paid-in capital and legal reserve may be reversed without limitation. The Companies Act also 
provides that common stock, legal reserve, additional paid-in capital, other capital surplus and 
retained earnings can be transferred among the accounts within equity under certain conditions 
upon resolution of the shareholders. 

 
c. Treasury Stock and Treasury Stock Acquisition Rights 

 
The Companies Act also provides for companies to purchase treasury stock and dispose of such 
treasury stock by resolution of the Board of Directors. The amount of treasury stock purchased 
cannot exceed the amount available for distribution to the shareholders which is determined by a 
specific formula. Under the Companies Act, stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate 
component of equity. The Companies Act also provides that companies can purchase both 
treasury stock acquisition rights and treasury stock. Such treasury stock acquisition rights are 
presented as a separate component of equity or deducted directly from stock acquisition rights. 

 
  9. INCOME TAXES 

 
Azbil and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to Japanese national and local income taxes which, in 
the aggregate, resulted in normal effective statutory tax rates of approximately 30.5% for the year 
ended March 31, 2021, and 30.5% for the year ended March 31, 2020. 
 
The tax effects of significant temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards which resulted in 
deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2021 and 2020, are as follows: 

 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Deferred tax assets:    
 Pension and severance costs ¥ 705 ¥ 1,837  $ 6,348
 Accrued expenses 4,364  3,981   39,311
 Depreciation 1,405  1,448   12,662
 Loss on impairment of long-lived assets 200  200   1,800
 Allowance for doubtful receivables 76  87   690
 Tax loss carryforwards 1,966  1,968   17,715
 Others 2,948  2,860   26,560
 Total of tax loss carryforwards and temporary  
  differences 11,664  12,381   105,086
 Less valuation allowance for tax loss carryforwards (1,868)  (1,855 )  (16,833)
 Less valuation allowance for temporary differences (697)  (736 )  (6,278)
 Total valuation allowance (2,565)  (2,591 )  (23,111)
    
Deferred tax assets 9,099  9,790   81,975
    
Deferred tax liabilities:    
 Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 5,447  4,464   49,071
 Special advanced depreciation 1,015  839   9,147
 Others 255  201   2,289
    
Deferred tax liabilities 6,717  5,504   60,507
    
Net deferred tax assets ¥ 2,382 ¥ 4,286  $ 21,468
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 The expiration of tax loss carryforwards, the related valuation allowances, and the resulting net 
deferred tax assets as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows: 

 
  Millions of Yen

March 31, 2021  
1 Year 
or Less 

After 
1 Year
through 
2 Years

After 
2 Years 
through 
3 Years

After 
3 Years 
through 
4 Years

After  
4 Years 
through 
5 Years  

After 
5 Years Total

 
Deferred tax assets  
 relating to tax loss  
 carryforwards   ¥55 ¥109 ¥89 ¥8  ¥ 1,705 ¥1,966
Less valuation  
 allowances for tax  
 loss carryforwards   (55) (96) (89) (8 )  (1,620) (1,868)
Net deferred tax  
 assets relating  
 to tax loss  
 carryforwards   13   85 98

 
March 31, 2020 

 
Deferred tax assets  
 relating to tax loss  
 carryforwards   ¥58 ¥127 ¥ 93  ¥ 1,690 ¥1,968
Less valuation  
 allowances for tax  
 loss carryforwards   (58) (108) (93 )  (1,596) (1,855)
Net deferred tax  
 assets relating  
 to tax loss  
 carryforwards   19   94 113

 
  Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

March 31, 2021  
1 Year 
or Less  

After 
1 Year 
through 
2 Years

After 
2 Years 
through 
3 Years

After 
3 Years 
through 
4 Years

After  
4 Years 
through 
5 Years  

After  
5 Years Total

 
Deferred tax assets  
 relating to tax loss  
 carryforwards   $500 $985 $800 $72  $ 15,358 $17,715
Less valuation  
 allowances for tax  
 loss carryforwards   (500) (871) (800) (72 )  (14,590 ) (16,833)
Net deferred tax  
 assets relating  
 to tax loss  
 carryforwards   114   768 882

 
 In addition to the above, the Azbil Group recorded deferred tax liabilities on the revaluation surplus of 

¥181 million ($1,633 thousand) at March 31, 2021, and ¥181 million at March 31, 2020. 
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 A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rates and the actual effective tax rates 
reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of income for the years ended March 31, 
2021 and 2020, is as follows: 

 
 2021  2020

 
Normal effective statutory tax rate  30.5 %  30.5%
Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes  0.6  0.7
Tax credits for qualified expenses  (2.6)  (3.7)
Change of valuation allowance  (0.3)  1.4
Others—net  (1.0)  (0.7)
   
Actual effective tax rate  27.2 %  28.2%

 
10. OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)—OTHERS—NET 

 
Other income (expenses)—others—net for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, mainly 
consisted of the following: 

 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Expenses for office relocation ¥ (114) ¥ (54 ) $ (1,029)
Loss on valuation of investment securities (10)    (93)
Gain on reversal of environmental expenses 21    189
Other 77  13   694
    
Total ¥ (26) ¥ (41 ) $ (239)

 
11. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES 

 
Research and development expenses charged to income were ¥11,182 million ($100,735 thousand) 
and ¥11,788 million for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

 
12. LEASES 
 

(1) Financing Leases as a Lessee 
 
The Azbil Group leases certain machinery, computer equipment, office space and other assets 
as a lessee. 
 
Total rental expenses under the above leases for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, 
were ¥5,631 million ($50,727 thousand) and ¥5,561 million, respectively. 
 
ASBJ Statement No. 13, "Accounting Standard for Lease Transactions," requires that all finance 
lease transactions be capitalized to recognize lease assets and lease obligations in the balance 
sheet. However, ASBJ Statement No. 13 permits leases without ownership transfer of the leased 
property to the lessee and whose lease inception was before March 31, 2008, to continue to be 
accounted for as operating lease transactions if certain "as if capitalized" information is disclosed 
in the notes to the financial statements. Azbil and its consolidated domestic subsidiaries applied 
ASBJ Statement No. 13 effective April 1, 2008, and accounted for such leases as operating 
lease transactions. However, disclosure is omitted as it is immaterial. 
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 The minimum rental commitments under noncancelable operating leases as of March 31, 2021 
and 2020, were as follows: 

 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Due within one year ¥274 ¥ 748  $2,469
Due after one year 42 284   374
   
Total ¥316 ¥ 1,032  $2,843

 
(2) Financing Leases as a Lessor 

 
The Azbil Group leases certain machinery and equipment as a lessor. 
 
Azbil and its consolidated domestic subsidiaries applied ASBJ Statement No. 13 effective April 1, 
2008, and accounted for leases which existed at the transition date and which do not transfer 
ownership of the leased property to the lessee as operating lease transactions. However, 
disclosure is omitted as it is immaterial. 

 
13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 
 

(1) Policy for Financial Instruments 
 
The Azbil Group makes risk reduction the first priority in terms of its asset management and 
limits its investments to financial assets that consist mainly of short-term deposits, while the Azbil 
Group's financing needs are met by selecting the most suitable method of funding while taking 
into account such factors as the purpose of the loan, the terms and funding costs. The Azbil 
Group limits the use of derivatives to forward exchange contracts and currency option contracts 
to hedge against the risks associated with fluctuating foreign currency exchange rates, and does 
not engage in transactions for speculative purposes. 

 
(2) Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments and Risk Management 

 
Notes and accounts receivable—trade are subject to the credit risks of the customers. The Azbil 
Group manages its credit risks on the basis of internal guidelines, which include keeping track of 
due dates and outstanding balances of the receivables for each transaction and monitoring the 
credit standing of major customers on a yearly basis. Notes and accounts receivable—trade 
denominated in foreign currencies are subject to risks associated with fluctuating exchange 
rates; however, their net positions after deducting operating liabilities are, in principle, hedged 
through the use of forward exchange contracts. 
 
Investment securities mainly comprise stocks of companies with which the Azbil Group has 
business relationships, and are subject to the risks associated with fluctuating stock prices. Such 
stock investments are managed by monitoring their fair values and the financial status of the 
companies on a regular basis. Moreover, the Azbil Group conducts ongoing reviews of the 
shareholdings at the meetings of the Board of Directors by regularly examining whether the 
shareholdings contribute to improvement in medium- to long-term corporate value, as well as 
periodically verifying the rationality of the shareholdings such as business and financial returns 
from the perspective whether the benefits of the shareholdings are commensurate with capital 
costs etc. 
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 A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rates and the actual effective tax rates 
reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of income for the years ended March 31, 
2021 and 2020, is as follows: 

 
 2021  2020

 
Normal effective statutory tax rate  30.5 %  30.5%
Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes  0.6  0.7
Tax credits for qualified expenses  (2.6)  (3.7)
Change of valuation allowance  (0.3)  1.4
Others—net  (1.0)  (0.7)
   
Actual effective tax rate  27.2 %  28.2%

 
10. OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)—OTHERS—NET 

 
Other income (expenses)—others—net for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, mainly 
consisted of the following: 

 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Expenses for office relocation ¥ (114) ¥ (54 ) $ (1,029)
Loss on valuation of investment securities (10)    (93)
Gain on reversal of environmental expenses 21    189
Other 77  13   694
    
Total ¥ (26) ¥ (41 ) $ (239)

 
11. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES 

 
Research and development expenses charged to income were ¥11,182 million ($100,735 thousand) 
and ¥11,788 million for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

 
12. LEASES 
 

(1) Financing Leases as a Lessee 
 
The Azbil Group leases certain machinery, computer equipment, office space and other assets 
as a lessee. 
 
Total rental expenses under the above leases for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, 
were ¥5,631 million ($50,727 thousand) and ¥5,561 million, respectively. 
 
ASBJ Statement No. 13, "Accounting Standard for Lease Transactions," requires that all finance 
lease transactions be capitalized to recognize lease assets and lease obligations in the balance 
sheet. However, ASBJ Statement No. 13 permits leases without ownership transfer of the leased 
property to the lessee and whose lease inception was before March 31, 2008, to continue to be 
accounted for as operating lease transactions if certain "as if capitalized" information is disclosed 
in the notes to the financial statements. Azbil and its consolidated domestic subsidiaries applied 
ASBJ Statement No. 13 effective April 1, 2008, and accounted for such leases as operating 
lease transactions. However, disclosure is omitted as it is immaterial. 
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 The minimum rental commitments under noncancelable operating leases as of March 31, 2021 
and 2020, were as follows: 

 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Due within one year ¥274 ¥ 748  $2,469
Due after one year 42 284   374
   
Total ¥316 ¥ 1,032  $2,843

 
(2) Financing Leases as a Lessor 

 
The Azbil Group leases certain machinery and equipment as a lessor. 
 
Azbil and its consolidated domestic subsidiaries applied ASBJ Statement No. 13 effective April 1, 
2008, and accounted for leases which existed at the transition date and which do not transfer 
ownership of the leased property to the lessee as operating lease transactions. However, 
disclosure is omitted as it is immaterial. 

 
13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 
 

(1) Policy for Financial Instruments 
 
The Azbil Group makes risk reduction the first priority in terms of its asset management and 
limits its investments to financial assets that consist mainly of short-term deposits, while the Azbil 
Group's financing needs are met by selecting the most suitable method of funding while taking 
into account such factors as the purpose of the loan, the terms and funding costs. The Azbil 
Group limits the use of derivatives to forward exchange contracts and currency option contracts 
to hedge against the risks associated with fluctuating foreign currency exchange rates, and does 
not engage in transactions for speculative purposes. 

 
(2) Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments and Risk Management 

 
Notes and accounts receivable—trade are subject to the credit risks of the customers. The Azbil 
Group manages its credit risks on the basis of internal guidelines, which include keeping track of 
due dates and outstanding balances of the receivables for each transaction and monitoring the 
credit standing of major customers on a yearly basis. Notes and accounts receivable—trade 
denominated in foreign currencies are subject to risks associated with fluctuating exchange 
rates; however, their net positions after deducting operating liabilities are, in principle, hedged 
through the use of forward exchange contracts. 
 
Investment securities mainly comprise stocks of companies with which the Azbil Group has 
business relationships, and are subject to the risks associated with fluctuating stock prices. Such 
stock investments are managed by monitoring their fair values and the financial status of the 
companies on a regular basis. Moreover, the Azbil Group conducts ongoing reviews of the 
shareholdings at the meetings of the Board of Directors by regularly examining whether the 
shareholdings contribute to improvement in medium- to long-term corporate value, as well as 
periodically verifying the rationality of the shareholdings such as business and financial returns 
from the perspective whether the benefits of the shareholdings are commensurate with capital 
costs etc. 
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Notes and accounts payable—trade are liabilities due within one year. Although certain notes and                                     Derivative transactions are executed and managed in accordance with internal rules that stipulate 
accounts payable—trade denominated in foreign currencies are subject to the risks associated with                                  the authorization procedures of such transactions, are used for the purpose of mitigating credit risks, 
fluctuating exchange rates, the majority of such instruments are constantly kept within the amount of                                and are conducted solely with highly rated financial institutions as counterparties. Please see Note 14 
the outstanding balance of accounts receivable denominated in the same foreign currency.                                               for more details about derivatives. 
 
Interest-bearing debt mainly comprises short-term borrowings. While a portion of these borrowings,                                  Additionally, notes and accounts payable—trade and short-term borrowings are subject to liquidity  
having floating interest rates, is subject to the risks associated with fluctuating interest rates, the effects                           risks in the event the Azbil Group cannot execute payment on the payment date. Liquidity risks are 
of these risks are negligible as their terms are short and amounts are minimal.                                                                   managed by such methods as having each group company draw up monthly cash flow plans. 
 

 (3) Fair Values of Financial Instruments 
 
Fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted prices in active markets. If a quoted price is  
not available, other rational valuation techniques are used instead. Please see Note 14 for the details  
of fair value for derivatives. 

 
(a) Fair value of financial instruments 
 

 Millions of Yen  Millions of Yen  Thousands of U.S. Dollars  
 March 31  March 31  March 31  
 2021  2020  2021  

 
Carrying  
Amount  

Fair  
Value  

Unrealized  
Loss  

Carrying  
Amount  

Fair  
Value  

Unrealized  
Loss  

Carrying  
Amount  

Fair  
Value  

Unrealized  
Loss  

 
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 90,653  ¥ 90,653    ¥ 74,744  ¥ 74,744    $ 816,691  $ 816,691    
Notes and accounts receivable—trade  82,143   82,143     85,245   85,245     740,023   740,023    
Investment securities  21,663   21,663     19,297   19,297     195,162   195,162    
                   
Total ¥ 194,459  ¥ 194,459    ¥ 179,286  ¥ 179,286    $ 1,751,876  $ 1,751,876    
                   
Short-term borrowings ¥ 8,997  ¥ 8,997    ¥ 8,197  ¥ 8,197    $ 81,053  $ 81,053    
Current portion of long-term debt  462   462     433   433     4,160   4,160    
Notes and accounts payable—trade  31,951   31,951     38,482   38,482     287,855   287,855    
Long-term debt  1,749   1,749     1,611   1,612  ¥(1 )  15,752   15,752    
                   
Total ¥ 43,159  ¥ 43,159    ¥ 48,723  ¥ 48,724  ¥(1 ) $ 388,820  $ 388,820    
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Notes and accounts payable—trade are liabilities due within one year. Although certain notes and                                     Derivative transactions are executed and managed in accordance with internal rules that stipulate 
accounts payable—trade denominated in foreign currencies are subject to the risks associated with                                  the authorization procedures of such transactions, are used for the purpose of mitigating credit risks, 
fluctuating exchange rates, the majority of such instruments are constantly kept within the amount of                                and are conducted solely with highly rated financial institutions as counterparties. Please see Note 14 
the outstanding balance of accounts receivable denominated in the same foreign currency.                                               for more details about derivatives. 
 
Interest-bearing debt mainly comprises short-term borrowings. While a portion of these borrowings,                                  Additionally, notes and accounts payable—trade and short-term borrowings are subject to liquidity  
having floating interest rates, is subject to the risks associated with fluctuating interest rates, the effects                           risks in the event the Azbil Group cannot execute payment on the payment date. Liquidity risks are 
of these risks are negligible as their terms are short and amounts are minimal.                                                                   managed by such methods as having each group company draw up monthly cash flow plans. 
 

 (3) Fair Values of Financial Instruments 
 
Fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted prices in active markets. If a quoted price is  
not available, other rational valuation techniques are used instead. Please see Note 14 for the details  
of fair value for derivatives. 

 
(a) Fair value of financial instruments 
 

 Millions of Yen  Millions of Yen  Thousands of U.S. Dollars  
 March 31  March 31  March 31  
 2021  2020  2021  

 
Carrying  
Amount  

Fair  
Value  

Unrealized  
Loss  

Carrying  
Amount  

Fair  
Value  

Unrealized  
Loss  

Carrying  
Amount  

Fair  
Value  

Unrealized  
Loss  

 
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 90,653  ¥ 90,653    ¥ 74,744  ¥ 74,744    $ 816,691  $ 816,691    
Notes and accounts receivable—trade  82,143   82,143     85,245   85,245     740,023   740,023    
Investment securities  21,663   21,663     19,297   19,297     195,162   195,162    
                   
Total ¥ 194,459  ¥ 194,459    ¥ 179,286  ¥ 179,286    $ 1,751,876  $ 1,751,876    
                   
Short-term borrowings ¥ 8,997  ¥ 8,997    ¥ 8,197  ¥ 8,197    $ 81,053  $ 81,053    
Current portion of long-term debt  462   462     433   433     4,160   4,160    
Notes and accounts payable—trade  31,951   31,951     38,482   38,482     287,855   287,855    
Long-term debt  1,749   1,749     1,611   1,612  ¥(1 )  15,752   15,752    
                   
Total ¥ 43,159  ¥ 43,159    ¥ 48,723  ¥ 48,724  ¥(1 ) $ 388,820  $ 388,820    
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Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Notes and Accounts Receivable—Trade                                                                     Long-Term Debt 
                                                                                                                                                                                            
The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents and notes and accounts receivable—trade                                       The fair values of loans from banks and other financial institutions are determined by the 
approximate fair value because of their short maturities.                                                                                                  present values calculated by discounting the total amount of principal and interest rates currently 
                                                                                                                                                                                           considered applicable to similar loans. 
Investment Securities                                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                                                                           The fair values of bonds without market value price are determined by the present values 
The fair values of investment securities are measured at the quoted market price of the stock                                       calculated by discounting the total amount of principal and interest at a rate that takes into 
exchange for equity instruments, and at the quoted price obtained from the financial institution                                      account the remaining term and credit risks. 
for certain debt instruments. Fair value information for investment securities by classification is                                       
included in Note 4.                                                                                                                                                              Derivatives 
 
Short-Term Borrowings, Current Portion of Long-Term Debt and Notes and Accounts                                                     Fair value information for derivatives is included in Note 14. 
Payable—Trade 
 
The carrying values of short-term borrowings, current portion of long-term debt, and notes and  
accounts payable—trade approximate fair value because of their short maturities. 

 
(b) Carrying amount of financial instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably determined 
 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of  
U.S. Dollars  

 March 31  March 31  
 2021  2020  2021  

 
Investments in equity instruments that do not  
 have a quoted market price in an active market ¥ 552  ¥ 568  $ 4,977  

 
(4) Maturity Analysis for Financial Assets and Securities with Contractual Maturities 
 
 

  Millions of Yen  Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

March 31, 2021 

 
Due in  
1 Year  
or Less  

Due after  
1 Year  
through  
5 Years  

Due after  
5 Years  
through  

10 Years  
Due after  
10 Years 

 
Due in  
1 Year  
or Less  

Due after  
1 Year  
through  
5 Years  

Due after  
5 Years  
through  

10 Years  
Due after  
10 Years 

 
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 90,653        $ 816,691        
Notes and accounts receivable—trade  78,923  ¥ 3,213  ¥ 7     711,017  $ 28,946  $ 60    
                 
Total ¥ 169,576  ¥ 3,213  ¥ 7    $ 1,527,708  $ 28,946  $ 60    

 
 Please see Note 6 for annual maturities of long-term debt and Note 12 for obligations under finance leases. 
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Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Notes and Accounts Receivable—Trade                                                                     Long-Term Debt 
                                                                                                                                                                                            
The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents and notes and accounts receivable—trade                                       The fair values of loans from banks and other financial institutions are determined by the 
approximate fair value because of their short maturities.                                                                                                  present values calculated by discounting the total amount of principal and interest rates currently 
                                                                                                                                                                                           considered applicable to similar loans. 
Investment Securities                                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                                                                           The fair values of bonds without market value price are determined by the present values 
The fair values of investment securities are measured at the quoted market price of the stock                                       calculated by discounting the total amount of principal and interest at a rate that takes into 
exchange for equity instruments, and at the quoted price obtained from the financial institution                                      account the remaining term and credit risks. 
for certain debt instruments. Fair value information for investment securities by classification is                                       
included in Note 4.                                                                                                                                                              Derivatives 
 
Short-Term Borrowings, Current Portion of Long-Term Debt and Notes and Accounts                                                     Fair value information for derivatives is included in Note 14. 
Payable—Trade 
 
The carrying values of short-term borrowings, current portion of long-term debt, and notes and  
accounts payable—trade approximate fair value because of their short maturities. 

 
(b) Carrying amount of financial instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably determined 
 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of  
U.S. Dollars  

 March 31  March 31  
 2021  2020  2021  

 
Investments in equity instruments that do not  
 have a quoted market price in an active market ¥ 552  ¥ 568  $ 4,977  

 
(4) Maturity Analysis for Financial Assets and Securities with Contractual Maturities 
 
 

  Millions of Yen  Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

March 31, 2021 

 
Due in  
1 Year  
or Less  

Due after  
1 Year  
through  
5 Years  

Due after  
5 Years  
through  

10 Years  
Due after  
10 Years 

 
Due in  
1 Year  
or Less  

Due after  
1 Year  
through  
5 Years  

Due after  
5 Years  
through  

10 Years  
Due after  
10 Years 

 
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 90,653        $ 816,691        
Notes and accounts receivable—trade  78,923  ¥ 3,213  ¥ 7     711,017  $ 28,946  $ 60    
                 
Total ¥ 169,576  ¥ 3,213  ¥ 7    $ 1,527,708  $ 28,946  $ 60    

 
 Please see Note 6 for annual maturities of long-term debt and Note 12 for obligations under finance leases. 
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14. DERIVATIVES 
 
The Azbil Group enters into foreign currency forward contracts to hedge currency exchange rate risk                                        Because the counterparties to these derivatives are limited to major international financial institutions, 
associated with trade receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies.                                                                    the Azbil Group does not anticipate any losses arising from credit risk 
                                                                                                                                                                                                         
It is the Azbil Group's policy to use derivatives only for the purpose of reducing market risks associated                                     Derivative transactions entered into by the Azbil Group have been made in accordance with internal 
with assets and liabilities, not to hold or issue derivatives for speculative or trading purposes.                                                     policies which regulate the authorization and credit limit amounts. 
 
Since all of the Azbil Group's foreign currency forward contracts are related to qualified hedges of  
underlying business exposures, market gain or loss risk in the derivative instruments is effectively offset  
by opposite movements in the value of the hedged assets or liabilities. 
 
Derivative Transactions to Which Hedge Accounting Is Not Applied 

 
 Millions of Yen  Millions of Yen  Thousands of U.S. Dollars 
 March 31  March 31  March 31 
 2021  2020  2021 
 

Contract  
Amount  

Contract  
Amount  

Due after  
One Year  

Fair  
Value  

Unrealized  
Loss  

Contract  
Amount  

Contract  
Amount  

Due after  
One Year  

Fair  
Value  

Unrealized  
Gain 

(Loss)  
Contract  
Amount  

Contract  
Amount  

Due after  
One Year  

Fair  
Value  

Unrealized  
Loss 

 
Foreign currency forward  
 contracts:                         
 Selling U.S. dollars ¥ 659    ¥ (27 ) ¥ (27 ) ¥ 498    ¥ 9  ¥ 9  $ 5,939    $ (242 ) $ (242 ) 
 Buying U.S. dollars  251     (2 )  (2 )  309     (3 )  (3 )  2,265     (22 )  (22 ) 
 Buying Japanese yen  3                 23        

 
 Derivative Transactions to Which Hedge Accounting Is Applied 
 

   Millions of Yen  Millions of Yen  Thousands of U.S. Dollars  
   March 31  March 31  March 31  
   2021  2020  2021  

 Hedged Item  
Contract  
Amount  

Contract  
Amount  

Due after  
One Year  

Fair  
Value  

Contract  
Amount  

Contract  
Amount  

Due after  
One Year  

Fair  
Value  

Contract  
Amount  

Contract  
Amount  

Due after  
One Year  

Fair  
Value  

 
Foreign currency forward contracts:                     
 Selling U.S. dollars Receivables  ¥ 926  ¥ 102  ¥ 40  ¥ 793    ¥ (35 ) $ 8,338  $ 923  $ 364  
 Selling Swedish krona Receivables   114     (7 )  292  ¥ 3   (3 )  1,025     (61 ) 
 Selling UAE dirham Receivables   30     2   186   50     266     16  
 Buying U.S. dollars Payables   84     (1 )  8       755     (6 ) 
 Buying UAE dirham Payables   30     (2 )        266     (16 ) 

 
 The fair value of derivative transactions is measured at the quoted price, etc., obtained from the  

financial institution. 
 
The contract or notional amounts of derivatives which are shown in the above table do not represent  
the amounts exchanged by the parties and do not measure the Azbil Group's exposure to credit or  
market risk. 
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14. DERIVATIVES 
 
The Azbil Group enters into foreign currency forward contracts to hedge currency exchange rate risk                                        Because the counterparties to these derivatives are limited to major international financial institutions, 
associated with trade receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies.                                                                    the Azbil Group does not anticipate any losses arising from credit risk 
                                                                                                                                                                                                         
It is the Azbil Group's policy to use derivatives only for the purpose of reducing market risks associated                                     Derivative transactions entered into by the Azbil Group have been made in accordance with internal 
with assets and liabilities, not to hold or issue derivatives for speculative or trading purposes.                                                     policies which regulate the authorization and credit limit amounts. 
 
Since all of the Azbil Group's foreign currency forward contracts are related to qualified hedges of  
underlying business exposures, market gain or loss risk in the derivative instruments is effectively offset  
by opposite movements in the value of the hedged assets or liabilities. 
 
Derivative Transactions to Which Hedge Accounting Is Not Applied 
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 2021  2020  2021 
 

Contract  
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Contract  
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Fair  
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Unrealized  
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Contract  
Amount  

Contract  
Amount  

Due after  
One Year  

Fair  
Value  

Unrealized  
Gain 

(Loss)  
Contract  
Amount  

Contract  
Amount  

Due after  
One Year  

Fair  
Value  

Unrealized  
Loss 

 
Foreign currency forward  
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 Selling U.S. dollars ¥ 659    ¥ (27 ) ¥ (27 ) ¥ 498    ¥ 9  ¥ 9  $ 5,939    $ (242 ) $ (242 ) 
 Buying U.S. dollars  251     (2 )  (2 )  309     (3 )  (3 )  2,265     (22 )  (22 ) 
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Contract  
Amount  
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Contract  
Amount  

Contract  
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Due after  
One Year  

Fair  
Value  

 
Foreign currency forward contracts:                     
 Selling U.S. dollars Receivables  ¥ 926  ¥ 102  ¥ 40  ¥ 793    ¥ (35 ) $ 8,338  $ 923  $ 364  
 Selling Swedish krona Receivables   114     (7 )  292  ¥ 3   (3 )  1,025     (61 ) 
 Selling UAE dirham Receivables   30     2   186   50     266     16  
 Buying U.S. dollars Payables   84     (1 )  8       755     (6 ) 
 Buying UAE dirham Payables   30     (2 )        266     (16 ) 

 
 The fair value of derivative transactions is measured at the quoted price, etc., obtained from the  

financial institution. 
 
The contract or notional amounts of derivatives which are shown in the above table do not represent  
the amounts exchanged by the parties and do not measure the Azbil Group's exposure to credit or  
market risk. 
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15. COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

 
Disclosure is omitted as it is immaterial. 

 
16. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

 
The components of other comprehensive income for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, were 
as follows: 

 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities:    
 Gains (losses) arising during the year ¥4,703 ¥ (458 ) $ 42,368
 Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss (1,455)  (777 )  (13,111)
 Amount before income tax effect 3,248  (1,235 )  29,257
 Income tax effect (983)  351   (8,856)
    
 Total ¥2,265 ¥ (884 ) $ 20,401
    
Deferred gain (loss) on derivatives under hedge 
accounting:    
 Adjustments arising during the year ¥ 71 ¥ (44 ) $ 645
 Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss    
 Amount before income tax effect 71  (44 )  645
 Income tax effect (18)  11   (161)
    
 Total ¥ 53 ¥ (33 ) $ 484
    
Foreign currency translation adjustments:    
 Adjustments arising during the year ¥ (170) ¥ (67 ) $ (1,540)
 Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss  9   
 Amount before income tax effect (170)  (58 )  (1,540)
    
 Total ¥ (170) ¥ (58 ) $ (1,540)
    
Defined retirement benefit plans:    
 Adjustment arising during the year ¥ (20) ¥ 12  $ (185)
 Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss 12  79   112
 Amount before income tax effect (8)  91   (73)
 Income tax effect (1)  (27 )  (5)
    
 Total ¥ (9) ¥ 64  $ (78)
    
Total other comprehensive income ¥2,139 ¥ (911 ) $ 19,267
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17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

a. Repurchase of Treasury Shares 
 
The following repurchase of own shares pursuant to Article 156 and Article 165, paragraph 3 of 
the Companies Act was approved at Azbil's Board of Directors' meeting held on May 14, 2021: 

 
(a) Reason for share repurchase: Taking into consideration business results and 

the outlook for future business performance, 
Azbil aims not only to improve capital 
efficiency but also to enhance the return of 
profits to shareholders and develop flexible 
capital policies responding to changes in the 
corporate environment. 

  
(b) Type of stock to be repurchased: Common stock of Azbil 
  
(c) Total number of shares to be repurchased: Up to 3,000,000 shares (2.1% of total number 

of common stock issued, excluding treasury 
shares)

  
(d) Total amount of repurchase: Up to ¥10,000 million ($90,090 thousand)
  
(e) Period of repurchase: From May 17, 2021 to September 30, 2021
  
(f) Method of repurchase: Market transactions on the Tokyo Stock 

Exchange
 

b. Appropriation of Retained Earnings 
 
The following appropriation of retained earnings at March 31, 2021, was approved at Azbil's 
shareholders' meeting held on June 24, 2021: 

 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 
Year-end cash dividends, ¥30.0 ($0.27) per share ¥4,244  $ 38,237

 
 The total cash dividends approved at Azbil's shareholders' meeting held on June 24, 2021, 

include the dividends of ¥59 million ($529 thousand) for the stock of Azbil held by Trust & 
Custody Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust E) as assets in the trust of "Employee Stock Ownership Plan 
(J-ESOP)." 

 
18. SEGMENT INFORMATION 

 
Under ASBJ Statement No. 17, "Accounting Standard for Segment Information Disclosures," and 
ASBJ Guidance No. 20, "Guidance on Accounting Standard for Segment Information Disclosures," an 
entity is required to report financial and descriptive information about its reportable segments. 
Reportable segments are operating segments or aggregations of operating segments that meet 
specified criteria. Operating segments are components of an entity about which separate financial 
information is available and such information is evaluated regularly by the chief operating 
decision-maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. Generally, 
segment information is required to be reported on the same basis as is used internally for evaluating 
operating segment performance and deciding how to allocate resources to operating segments. 
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15. COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

 
Disclosure is omitted as it is immaterial. 

 
16. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

 
The components of other comprehensive income for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, were 
as follows: 

 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 2021 2020  2021
 

Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities:    
 Gains (losses) arising during the year ¥4,703 ¥ (458 ) $ 42,368
 Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss (1,455)  (777 )  (13,111)
 Amount before income tax effect 3,248  (1,235 )  29,257
 Income tax effect (983)  351   (8,856)
    
 Total ¥2,265 ¥ (884 ) $ 20,401
    
Deferred gain (loss) on derivatives under hedge 
accounting:    
 Adjustments arising during the year ¥ 71 ¥ (44 ) $ 645
 Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss    
 Amount before income tax effect 71  (44 )  645
 Income tax effect (18)  11   (161)
    
 Total ¥ 53 ¥ (33 ) $ 484
    
Foreign currency translation adjustments:    
 Adjustments arising during the year ¥ (170) ¥ (67 ) $ (1,540)
 Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss  9   
 Amount before income tax effect (170)  (58 )  (1,540)
    
 Total ¥ (170) ¥ (58 ) $ (1,540)
    
Defined retirement benefit plans:    
 Adjustment arising during the year ¥ (20) ¥ 12  $ (185)
 Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss 12  79   112
 Amount before income tax effect (8)  91   (73)
 Income tax effect (1)  (27 )  (5)
    
 Total ¥ (9) ¥ 64  $ (78)
    
Total other comprehensive income ¥2,139 ¥ (911 ) $ 19,267
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17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

a. Repurchase of Treasury Shares 
 
The following repurchase of own shares pursuant to Article 156 and Article 165, paragraph 3 of 
the Companies Act was approved at Azbil's Board of Directors' meeting held on May 14, 2021: 

 
(a) Reason for share repurchase: Taking into consideration business results and 

the outlook for future business performance, 
Azbil aims not only to improve capital 
efficiency but also to enhance the return of 
profits to shareholders and develop flexible 
capital policies responding to changes in the 
corporate environment. 

  
(b) Type of stock to be repurchased: Common stock of Azbil 
  
(c) Total number of shares to be repurchased: Up to 3,000,000 shares (2.1% of total number 

of common stock issued, excluding treasury 
shares)

  
(d) Total amount of repurchase: Up to ¥10,000 million ($90,090 thousand)
  
(e) Period of repurchase: From May 17, 2021 to September 30, 2021
  
(f) Method of repurchase: Market transactions on the Tokyo Stock 

Exchange
 

b. Appropriation of Retained Earnings 
 
The following appropriation of retained earnings at March 31, 2021, was approved at Azbil's 
shareholders' meeting held on June 24, 2021: 

 

 Millions of Yen  
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

 
Year-end cash dividends, ¥30.0 ($0.27) per share ¥4,244  $ 38,237

 
 The total cash dividends approved at Azbil's shareholders' meeting held on June 24, 2021, 

include the dividends of ¥59 million ($529 thousand) for the stock of Azbil held by Trust & 
Custody Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust E) as assets in the trust of "Employee Stock Ownership Plan 
(J-ESOP)." 

 
18. SEGMENT INFORMATION 

 
Under ASBJ Statement No. 17, "Accounting Standard for Segment Information Disclosures," and 
ASBJ Guidance No. 20, "Guidance on Accounting Standard for Segment Information Disclosures," an 
entity is required to report financial and descriptive information about its reportable segments. 
Reportable segments are operating segments or aggregations of operating segments that meet 
specified criteria. Operating segments are components of an entity about which separate financial 
information is available and such information is evaluated regularly by the chief operating 
decision-maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. Generally, 
segment information is required to be reported on the same basis as is used internally for evaluating 
operating segment performance and deciding how to allocate resources to operating segments. 
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(1) Description of Reportable Segments 
 
The reportable segments of the Azbil Group—identifiable operating segments of the Azbil Group's                                                The Building Automation business supplies commercial buildings and production facilities with automatic 
business structure for which financial information is made separately available—are subject to periodic                                         heating ventilation, and air conditioning control and security systems, including products, engineering, and 
review by the Board of Directors in order to make decisions on the distribution of management resources                                     and related services. The Advanced Automation business supplies automation control systems, switches  
and to assess performance.                                                                                                                                                               and sensors, and engineering and maintenance services to industrial plants and factories. The Life  
                                                                                                                                                                                                            Automation business supplies meters for lifelines, residential central air-conditioning systems, life science  
The Azbil Group identifies its operating segments using such criteria as business organization, product                                         research, manufacture and sale of manufacturing equipment and environmental equipment for the  
lines, service content, and markets. This approach results in three separate reportable segments: the                                            pharmaceutical and medical fields as well as related services—all of which are intimately connected with  
Building Automation business, the Advanced Automation business, and the Life Automation business.                                          everyday life. 

  
(2) Methods of Measurement for the Amounts of Sales, Profit, Assets and Other Items for Each  

Reportable Segment 
 
The accounting policies of each reportable segment are consistent with those disclosed in Note 2,  
"Summary of Significant Accounting Policies." 

 
(3) Information about Sales, Profit, Assets and Other Items 
 

 
 Millions of Yen  Millions of Yen 
 2021  2021 
 Reportable Segment 

 
Building  

Automation  
Advanced  

Automation  
Life  

Automation  Total  Other  Total  Reconciliations  Consolidated  
 

Sales:                 
 Sales to external customers ¥ 117,198  ¥ 86,908  ¥ 42,662  ¥ 246,768  ¥ 53  ¥ 246,821    ¥ 246,821  
 Intersegment sales or transfers  324   871   281   1,476   1   1,477  ¥ (1,477 )   
                 
Total ¥ 117,522  ¥ 87,779  ¥ 42,943  ¥ 248,244  ¥ 54  ¥ 248,298  ¥ (1,477 ) ¥ 246,821  
                 
Segment profit ¥ 14,023  ¥ 10,251  ¥ 1,434  ¥ 25,708  ¥ 7  ¥ 25,715  ¥ 5  ¥ 25,720  
Segment assets  65,743   62,785   31,872   160,400   1   160,401   124,196   284,597  
Other:                 
 Depreciation  1,420   2,209   855   4,484     4,484     4,484  
 Increase in property, plant and 
  equipment and intangible assets  1,892   2,335   812   5,039     5,039     5,039  

 
 Millions of Yen  Millions of Yen 
 2020  2020 
 Reportable Segment 

 
Building  

Automation  
Advanced  

Automation  
Life  

Automation  Total  Other  Total  Reconciliations  Consolidated  
 

Sales:                 
 Sales to external customers ¥ 123,497  ¥ 92,159  ¥ 43,701  ¥ 259,357  ¥ 54  ¥ 259,411    ¥ 259,411  
 Intersegment sales or transfers  298   997   332   1,627   6   1,633  ¥ (1,633 )   
                 
Total ¥ 123,795  ¥ 93,156  ¥ 44,033  ¥ 260,984  ¥ 60  ¥ 261,044  ¥ (1,633 ) ¥ 259,411  
                 
Segment profit ¥ 14,891  ¥ 10,487  ¥ 1,867  ¥ 27,245  ¥ 6  ¥ 27,251  ¥ 5  ¥ 27,256  
Segment assets  67,962   68,153   31,054   167,169   1   167,170   107,389   274,559  
Other:                 
 Depreciation  1,422   2,204   836   4,462     4,462     4,462  

 Increase in property, plant and 
  equipment and intangible assets   1,770   2,341   823   4,934 

 

 

 

 4,934     4,934  
 Impairment losses of assets      22   22     22     22  
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(1) Description of Reportable Segments 
 
The reportable segments of the Azbil Group—identifiable operating segments of the Azbil Group's                                                The Building Automation business supplies commercial buildings and production facilities with automatic 
business structure for which financial information is made separately available—are subject to periodic                                         heating ventilation, and air conditioning control and security systems, including products, engineering, and 
review by the Board of Directors in order to make decisions on the distribution of management resources                                     and related services. The Advanced Automation business supplies automation control systems, switches  
and to assess performance.                                                                                                                                                               and sensors, and engineering and maintenance services to industrial plants and factories. The Life  
                                                                                                                                                                                                            Automation business supplies meters for lifelines, residential central air-conditioning systems, life science  
The Azbil Group identifies its operating segments using such criteria as business organization, product                                         research, manufacture and sale of manufacturing equipment and environmental equipment for the  
lines, service content, and markets. This approach results in three separate reportable segments: the                                            pharmaceutical and medical fields as well as related services—all of which are intimately connected with  
Building Automation business, the Advanced Automation business, and the Life Automation business.                                          everyday life. 

  
(2) Methods of Measurement for the Amounts of Sales, Profit, Assets and Other Items for Each  

Reportable Segment 
 
The accounting policies of each reportable segment are consistent with those disclosed in Note 2,  
"Summary of Significant Accounting Policies." 

 
(3) Information about Sales, Profit, Assets and Other Items 
 

 
 Millions of Yen  Millions of Yen 
 2021  2021 
 Reportable Segment 

 
Building  

Automation  
Advanced  

Automation  
Life  

Automation  Total  Other  Total  Reconciliations  Consolidated  
 

Sales:                 
 Sales to external customers ¥ 117,198  ¥ 86,908  ¥ 42,662  ¥ 246,768  ¥ 53  ¥ 246,821    ¥ 246,821  
 Intersegment sales or transfers  324   871   281   1,476   1   1,477  ¥ (1,477 )   
                 
Total ¥ 117,522  ¥ 87,779  ¥ 42,943  ¥ 248,244  ¥ 54  ¥ 248,298  ¥ (1,477 ) ¥ 246,821  
                 
Segment profit ¥ 14,023  ¥ 10,251  ¥ 1,434  ¥ 25,708  ¥ 7  ¥ 25,715  ¥ 5  ¥ 25,720  
Segment assets  65,743   62,785   31,872   160,400   1   160,401   124,196   284,597  
Other:                 
 Depreciation  1,420   2,209   855   4,484     4,484     4,484  
 Increase in property, plant and 
  equipment and intangible assets  1,892   2,335   812   5,039     5,039     5,039  

 
 Millions of Yen  Millions of Yen 
 2020  2020 
 Reportable Segment 

 
Building  

Automation  
Advanced  

Automation  
Life  

Automation  Total  Other  Total  Reconciliations  Consolidated  
 

Sales:                 
 Sales to external customers ¥ 123,497  ¥ 92,159  ¥ 43,701  ¥ 259,357  ¥ 54  ¥ 259,411    ¥ 259,411  
 Intersegment sales or transfers  298   997   332   1,627   6   1,633  ¥ (1,633 )   
                 
Total ¥ 123,795  ¥ 93,156  ¥ 44,033  ¥ 260,984  ¥ 60  ¥ 261,044  ¥ (1,633 ) ¥ 259,411  
                 
Segment profit ¥ 14,891  ¥ 10,487  ¥ 1,867  ¥ 27,245  ¥ 6  ¥ 27,251  ¥ 5  ¥ 27,256  
Segment assets  67,962   68,153   31,054   167,169   1   167,170   107,389   274,559  
Other:                 
 Depreciation  1,422   2,204   836   4,462     4,462     4,462  

 Increase in property, plant and 
  equipment and intangible assets   1,770   2,341   823   4,934 

 

 

 

 4,934     4,934  
 Impairment losses of assets      22   22     22     22  
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 Thousands of U.S. Dollars  Thousands of U.S. Dollars 
 2021  2021 
 Reportable Segment 

 
Building  

Automation  
Advanced  

Automation  
Life  

Automation  Total  Other  Total  Reconciliations  Consolidated  
 

Sales:                 
 Sales to external customers $ 1,055,839  $ 782,954  $ 384,340  $ 2,223,133  $ 480  $ 2,223,613    $ 2,223,613  
 Intersegment sales or transfers  2,918   7,845   2,533   13,296   14   13,310  $ (13,310 )   
                 
Total $ 1,058,757  $ 790,799  $ 386,873  $ 2,236,429  $ 494  $ 2,236,923  $ (13,310 ) $ 2,223,613  
                 
Segment profit $ 126,334  $ 92,352  $ 12,925  $ 231,611  $ 61  $ 231,672  $ 43  $ 231,715  
Segment assets  592,287   565,630   287,131   1,445,048   8   1,445,056   1,118,884   2,563,940  
Other:                 
 Depreciation  12,792   19,898   7,704   40,394     40,394     40,394  
 Increase in property, plant  
  and equipment and  
  intangible assets  17,042   21,036   7,319   45,397 

 

   45,397     45,397  
 

Note: Corporate assets of ¥124,196 million ($1,118,884 thousand) for the year ended  
March 31, 2021, included in "Reconciliations" mainly consist of cash and cash equivalents  
and investment securities. 

 
 Related Information 
 

(1) Information about Products and Services 
 
This information is identical to the segment information and is therefore omitted.  

 
 (2) Information by Region 
 

(a) Sales 
 

 Millions of Yen  
 2021  

 Japan  Asia  China  
North  

America  Europe  Other  Total  
 
¥ 201,933  ¥ 18,819  ¥ 11,025  ¥ 3,755  ¥ 9,050  ¥ 2,239  ¥ 246,821  

 
 Millions of Yen  
 2020  

 Japan  Asia  China  
North  

America  Europe  Other  Total  
 
¥ 215,216  ¥ 18,784  ¥ 9,827  ¥ 3,781  ¥ 9,177  ¥ 2,626  ¥ 259,411  

 
 Thousands of U.S. Dollars  
 2021  

 Japan  Asia  China  
North  

America  Europe  Other  Total  
 

$ 1,819,220  $ 169,544  $ 99,326  $ 33,827  $ 81,528  $ 20,168  $ 2,223,613  
 

Note: Sales are classified by country or region based on the location of customers.  
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 Thousands of U.S. Dollars  Thousands of U.S. Dollars 
 2021  2021 
 Reportable Segment 

 
Building  

Automation  
Advanced  

Automation  
Life  

Automation  Total  Other  Total  Reconciliations  Consolidated  
 

Sales:                 
 Sales to external customers $ 1,055,839  $ 782,954  $ 384,340  $ 2,223,133  $ 480  $ 2,223,613    $ 2,223,613  
 Intersegment sales or transfers  2,918   7,845   2,533   13,296   14   13,310  $ (13,310 )   
                 
Total $ 1,058,757  $ 790,799  $ 386,873  $ 2,236,429  $ 494  $ 2,236,923  $ (13,310 ) $ 2,223,613  
                 
Segment profit $ 126,334  $ 92,352  $ 12,925  $ 231,611  $ 61  $ 231,672  $ 43  $ 231,715  
Segment assets  592,287   565,630   287,131   1,445,048   8   1,445,056   1,118,884   2,563,940  
Other:                 
 Depreciation  12,792   19,898   7,704   40,394     40,394     40,394  
 Increase in property, plant  
  and equipment and  
  intangible assets  17,042   21,036   7,319   45,397 

 

   45,397     45,397  
 

Note: Corporate assets of ¥124,196 million ($1,118,884 thousand) for the year ended  
March 31, 2021, included in "Reconciliations" mainly consist of cash and cash equivalents  
and investment securities. 

 
 Related Information 
 

(1) Information about Products and Services 
 
This information is identical to the segment information and is therefore omitted.  

 
 (2) Information by Region 
 

(a) Sales 
 

 Millions of Yen  
 2021  

 Japan  Asia  China  
North  

America  Europe  Other  Total  
 
¥ 201,933  ¥ 18,819  ¥ 11,025  ¥ 3,755  ¥ 9,050  ¥ 2,239  ¥ 246,821  

 
 Millions of Yen  
 2020  

 Japan  Asia  China  
North  

America  Europe  Other  Total  
 
¥ 215,216  ¥ 18,784  ¥ 9,827  ¥ 3,781  ¥ 9,177  ¥ 2,626  ¥ 259,411  

 
 Thousands of U.S. Dollars  
 2021  

 Japan  Asia  China  
North  

America  Europe  Other  Total  
 

$ 1,819,220  $ 169,544  $ 99,326  $ 33,827  $ 81,528  $ 20,168  $ 2,223,613  
 

Note: Sales are classified by country or region based on the location of customers.  
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(b) Property, plant and equipment 
 

 Millions of Yen
 2021

 Japan  Asia China
North 

America Europe  Other Total
 

¥ 22,237  ¥ 2,095  ¥1,097 ¥63 ¥1,451 ¥ 119  ¥27,062
 

 Millions of Yen
 2020

 Japan  Asia China
North 

America Europe  Other Total
 

¥ 23,470  ¥ 2,399  ¥953 ¥90 ¥1,168 ¥ 138  ¥28,218
 

 Thousands of U.S. Dollars
 2021

 Japan  Asia China
North 

America Europe  Other  Total
 

$ 200,337 $ 18,872  $9,885 $570 $13,069 $ 1,070  $ 243,803
 

(3) Information about Major Customers
 
This information is omitted as no customer accounted for more than 10% of sales in the 
consolidated statement of income. 

 
 Information on Amortization of Goodwill and Unamortized Balance by Reportable Segment 

 
March 31, 2021 

 
Amortization of goodwill  Not applicable
Goodwill at March 31, 2021  Not applicable

 
 March 31, 2020 
 

Amortization of goodwill  Not applicable
Goodwill at March 31, 2020  Not applicable

 
* * * * * * 

 
 

azbil2021_e_093-142_1018.indd   135azbil2021_e_093-142_1018.indd   135 2021/10/18   19:362021/10/18   19:36

136azbil report 2021

azbil2021_e_093-142_1018.indd   136azbil2021_e_093-142_1018.indd   136 2021/10/18   19:362021/10/18   19:36



137 azbil report 2021

azbil2021_e_093-142_1018.indd   137azbil2021_e_093-142_1018.indd   137 2021/10/18   19:362021/10/18   19:36

138azbil report 2021

azbil2021_e_093-142_1018.indd   138azbil2021_e_093-142_1018.indd   138 2021/10/18   19:362021/10/18   19:36



139 azbil report 2021

azbil2021_e_093-142_1018.indd   139azbil2021_e_093-142_1018.indd   139 2021/10/18   19:362021/10/18   19:36

140azbil report 2021

azbil2021_e_093-142_1018.indd   140azbil2021_e_093-142_1018.indd   140 2021/10/18   19:362021/10/18   19:36



141 azbil report 2021

azbil Group Company Data

Japan

Overseas

• Azbil Corporation
Head office: Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo
Founded: 1906  
Established: 1949

• Azbil Trading Co., Ltd.
Head office: Toshima-ku, Tokyo
Established: 1964

• Azbil Yamatake Friendly Co., Ltd.
Head office: Fujisawa-shi, Kanagawa
Established: 1998

• Azbil Kimmon Co., Ltd.
Head office: Toshima-ku, Tokyo
Founded: 1904
Established: 1948

• Azbil Kyoto Co., Ltd.
Head office: Funai-gun, Kyoto
Established: 2009

• Azbil TA Co., Ltd.
Head office: Itabashi-ku, Tokyo
Established: 1955

• Azbil Taishin Co., Ltd.
Head office: Nakano-shi, Nagano
Established: 1974

• Tem-Tech Lab.
Head office: Chuo-ku, Tokyo
Established: 1982

• Azbil Korea Co., Ltd.
Head office: Seoul
Established: 1999

• Azbil Taiwan Co., Ltd.
Head office: Taipei
Established: 2000

• Azbil Kimmon Technology Corporation
Head office: Miaoli
Established: 2011

• Azbil Vietnam Co., Ltd.
Head office: Hanoi
Established: 2008

• Azbil India Private Limited
Head office: Navi Mumbai
Established: 2010

• Azbil (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Head office: Bangkok
Established: 1995

•  Azbil Production (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Head office: Chonburi
Established: 2013

• Azbil Philippines Corporation
Head office: Makati
Established: 1996

• Azbil Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.
Head office: Kuala Lumpur
Established: 1999

• Azbil Singapore Pte. Ltd.
Head office: Singapore
Established: 1998

• PT. Azbil Berca Indonesia
Head office: Jakarta
Established: 1997

• Azbil Saudi Limited
Head office: Dammam
Established: 2013

•  Azbil Control Instruments  
(Dalian) Co., Ltd.
Head office: Dalian
Established: 1994

•  Azbil Information Technology Center  
(Dalian) Co., Ltd.
Head office: Dalian
Established: 2006

•  Azbil Control Solutions  
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Head office: Shanghai
Established: 1994

• Shanghai Azbil Automation Co., Ltd.
Head office: Shanghai
Established: 1995

•  Yamatake Automation Products  
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Head office: Shanghai
Established: 2004

• Azbil Hong Kong Limited
Head office: Hong Kong
Established: 2000

•  Azbil North America Research and 
Development, Inc.
Head office: Santa Clara, CA, U.S.A.
Established: 2014

• Azbil North America, Inc.
Head office: Phoenix, AZ, U.S.A.
Established: 2000

• Azbil VorTek, LLC
Head office: Longmont, CO, U.S.A.
Established: 1995

• Azbil Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Head office: Leon
Established: 2017

• Azbil Mexico Services, S. de R.L. de C.V. 
Head office: Leon
Established: 2017

• Azbil Brazil Limited
Head office: Sao Paulo
Established: 2010

• Azbil Europe NV
Head office: Zaventem, Belgium
Established: 2001

• Azbil Telstar, S.L.U.
Head office: Terrassa, Spain
Established: 1963

Corporate Data
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Corporate Data/Stock Information
(As of March 31, 2021)

Corporate Data Composition of Shareholders

Founded December 1, 1906
Incorporated August 22, 1949
Paid-in capital ¥10,523 million
Accounting date March 31
Annual shareholders’ meeting June
Head office Tokyo Building, 2-7-3 Marunouchi,

Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-6419, Japan
Consolidated number of 
employees

10,003

Stock listing Tokyo Stock Exchange, 1st Section
Ticker symbol number 6845
Stock information Shares of Common Stock Issued  

145,200,884
Share unit number 100
Shareholders 7,223

Transfer agent Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.

100
(%)

80

60

40

20

0
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Japanese financial institutions Other Japanese corporations Securities companies

Foreign institutions and individuals Japanese individuals and others Treasury shares

Major Shareholders (Top 10)
Shareholders Number of shares 

held (thousands)
Percentage of total 

shares issued (%)
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust account) 12,160 8.59
Meiji Yasuda Life Insurance Company 10,428 7.37
SSBTC CLIENT OMNIBUS ACCOUNT 8,890 6.28
Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust account) 6,354 4.49
Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd. 
(Trustee for Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. Retirement Benefit Trust Account) 4,631 3.27

Northern Trust CO. (AVFC) Re Fidelity Funds 4,272 3.02
Nippon Life Insurance Company 3,739 2.64
National Mutual Insurance Federation of Agricultural Cooperatives 3,356 2.37
Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust account 7) 3,258 2.30
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 2,809 1.98
Note: The percentage of total shares issued is calculated excluding treasury shares (3,723,389 shares).

Stock Price and Trading Volume

Trading volume (right scale)
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Azbil stock price (left scale) Nikkei stock average INDEX (left scale) TOPIX INDEX (left scale)

* Azbil stock price, Nikkei stock average, and TOPIX: Value (100) based on the end of March 2010
*  On October 1, 2018, the Company implemented a 2-for-1 stock split for shares of common stock. Above figures for stock prices have been recalculated to take the 

stock split into account.

Fiscal Year 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Year-end closing price (yen) 1,019.0 915.0 989.0 1,274.0 1,630.0 1,440.5 1,870.0 2,477.5 2,589.0 2,804.0 4,765.0
Highest price (yen) 1,185.0 1,033.0 1,023.0 1,280.5 1,677.5 1,750.0 1,927.5 2,655.0 2,775.0 3,275.0 6,120.0
Lowest price (yen) 817.0 769.5 745.0 935.0 1,150.0 1,309.0 1,347.5 1,772.5 1,949.0 2,215.0 2,619.0
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